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2006 —another year of disciplined growth. —

At Assurant, every growth opportunity

is cultivated within the framework of
disciplined risk management and handled
with great care. We adhere to a rigorous
process to identify unmet market needs
and apply our focused expertise to nurture

their development.




While numerous opportunities present
themselves, we are very selective about
which are the most ripe to pursue. Qur
criteria include untapped markets,
the potential for market leadership
and the ability to leverage Assurant’s

proven capabilities.

OPPONRtUN1ties

'ﬁ‘f i"t .' * .

o




-
-3

R a . s ..‘mn ‘J,
=Py e’ P e,







In local markets around the world, clients
know “a product of Assurant” is always
of the highest quality—and available in

unique varietals. It is this ongoing process

that allows us, as a diversified, specialty

insurance provider, to deliver vintage

performance year after year.




To QOur Shareholders

EVERY DAY WE STRIVE TO ANSWER THE QUESTION, “HOW CAN WE
CONTINUE TO GROW SHAREHOLDER VALUE OVER THE LONG
TERM?” WE BELIEVE THE KEY TQO CONTINUED DISCIPLINED
GROWTH 1S WORKING DILIGENTLY TO UNCOVER OPPORTUNITIES,
STAYING FOCUSED TO CULTIVATE THOSE OPPORTUNITIES, AND
ENSURING THAT WE HAVE THE RIGHT TOOLS TO HARVEST THEM

WHEN THE TIME 1S RIGHT.

2006: Patience. Persistence. Performance.
By almost any measure, 2006 was a vintage year for Assurant.

We continued to execute on our diversified, specialty strategy and, to the benefit
of our shareholders, achieved considerable growth in numerous target areas.
Net operating income increased 17% to $602.7 million, up from $513.3 million
the prior year. Earnings per share grew 25% to $4.68 per diluted share, up
from $3.75 per diluted share. Net earned premiums rose to $6.8 billion in 2006,
a 5% increase over $6.5 billion in 2005. Also, our operating return on equity
(ROE} reached 16.7%, retaining Assurant’s position in the top ROE quartile of
the industry.

We advanced our leadership position in several key growth markets. Most
notably, in Assurant Specialty Property, we completed the successful acquisition
of Safeco Financial Institution Solutions (Safeco FIS)—a perfect strategic
fit for us. We look for acquisitions that will help us grow and strengthen our
specialty businesses. We seek opportunities that will allow us to leverage
our core capabilities, which will enhance our market position. Through the
acquisition of Safeco FIS, we added 4 million loans te our loan tracking
database, bringing the total number of loans to approximately 28 million. The
acquisition further cements Assurant’s leading position in the creditor-placed
insurance market,

In 2006, Assurant continued to return capital to shareholders. We increased
our dividend per share by 25% and repurchased $422 million in shares.
We further enhanced our financial disclosure and continued to build on our
solid financial strength. At year-end, Assurant had $450 million of excess
capital and a low debt to capital ratio of 21%. These results reflect how we are
applying our risk management expertise to execute our very prudent capital
management philosophy.




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
LS. dollars in millions

2006 2005 % Change
Total Revenue 58,071 $7,498 8
Net Earned Premiums 6,844 6,521 5
Net Investment Income 737 687 7
Net Operating Income’ 603 513 17
Shareholders’ Equity? 3,745 3,480 8

1 - Assurant uses nel operating income (a non-GAAP financial measvre) as an important measure of the company’s
operating performance, Net operating income equals net income excluding net realized gains (losses) on investments
and other unusual andfor infrequent items. Nel realized gains were $72.7 million and $7.4 million, noef of income tax,
in 2006 and 2005, respectively. Other unusual andfor infrequent items in 2006 include income of $40.5 mitlion, net
of income tax, related to a legal scitlement in the Assurant Solutions segmen!t. Other unusual andfor infrequent items
in 2005 inchute o $40.3 million charge for the 1995-1997 excess of loss reinsurance program and 51.0 million of
expenses direetly related to our secondary public offering, both nel of income tax.,

2 - Exeluding aceumulbited other comprehensive income (AOCH.

Although we are proud of our success to date, we recognize that achieving
long-term growth is an ongoing pursuit that requires investment, patience
and persistence. We are confident that we have the right tools, people and
expertise in place to achieve our goals. Qur track record shows that we can.
Our mission is to be the premier provider of specialized insurance products
and related services in selected international markets, Qur specialty insurance
products address untapped markets with unmet needs, and we have a
history of identifying, serving and growing those markets. We will continue
to expand our product offerings and our operations in areas where we can
establish a leadership position. By doing so, we will achieve our financial goal
of delivering top quartile returns to our shareholders. Driven by Assurant’s
entrepreneurial spirit, we will continue to steadfastly pursue our goals—
strategically, financially and operationally—within and across our business units.

Like a Vineyard: Skillfully Applying Expertise to Grow Many Varietals

Much like a vintner who grows different grapes to produce great wines,
Assurant cultivates a diverse portfolic of businesses to deliver results. This
approach offers many advantages. Each business is attuned to its own market
forces and is accountable for its financial performance. Trends that might
influence short-term results in one business are uncorrelated with trends in
others. This strategic diversification reduces overall volatility. It also allows us



OPERATING EARNINGS PER SHARE

2006 $4.68 Our focus on top-line
growth and leveraging
2005 53.75 operational efficiencies
2004 $2.44 yielded significant gains
for Assurant in 2006.
2003 §2.31

to do the right things for each business to ensure long-term profitability for
our shareholders.

At the same time, our businesses share a strategy of focusing on specialty
markets, supported by a unique blend of core capabilities: proven risk
management expertise; long-standing distribution relationships with market
leaders; and the ability to integrate complex technologies and administrative
systems that pave the way for the success of our customers, intermediaries
and shareholders. These capabilities are leveraged across the Assurant
enterprise to ensure that best practices are applied efficiently and cost-
effectively as they are tailored to meet specific market needs.

A closer look at our individual businesses will demonstrate how we executed
on our strategy in 2006.

Assurant Specialty Property

Assurant Specialty Property had a very productive year, delivering
$241.1 million in net operating income in 2006 and demonstrating year-over-
year growth of 68%. The top-line growth and solid profits were derived in
large measure from a 70% increase in net earned premiums in the creditor-
placed homeowners insurance and voluntary insurance products, combined
with a benign hurricane season with catastrophe losses markedly lower than
in 2005. For the year, Assurant Specialty Property enjoyed a healthy combined
ratio of 76.5%. The acquisition of Safeco FIS combined with strong organic
growth to bolster our leading position in the marketplace. We maintained our
broad geographic spread of risk; we were able to retain customers and the
professionals that serve them; we continued to leverage our competitive
advantages in scale, efficiency and systems integration to meet the needs of
our clients.




Looking to the future, we are pursuing opportunities in the United States
where economic trends continue to propel our business prospects. We are also
Iéoking to apply our successful model in adjacent, emerging markets such as
creditor-placed auto insurance and renters insurance.

Assurant Solutions

Assurant Solutions enjoyed another year of overall strong results in 2006,
contributing $158.4 million in net operating income—an increase of 19% year
over year. Extended service contracts continued to lift top-line growth worldwide,
producing 12% growth in gross written premiums in the domestic market and
38% growth in international markets. In the same way, gross written premiums
for international credit increased 5% during 2006. We also announced an
extension of our exclusive partnership with Service Corporation International
(SCD to further improve our preneed sales. Progress was made toward our
long-term ROE goals of 14-16% for Assurant Solutions. ROE was 10.1% in
2006, up from 8.4% the prior year.

Targeted international expansion is a key growth driver for Assurant Solutions.
For example, over the last two years we have initiated operations in Germany,
ltaly and Spain. These markets were carefully selected because they offer a
fertile long-term growth opportunity for Assurant. Market trends indicate
that personal spending, the use of credit cards, and fevolving credit loans are
on the rise, which will allow us to continue to develop and expand within the
international credit and extended service contract markets. By leveraging our
core domestic platform, we are able to enter these markets in a cost-effective
manner with proven product solutions that can meet the needs of the
customers within these markets. These countries join our growing list of
established and emerging enterprises in Argentina, Brazil, Canada, Denmark,
[reland, Mexico, Puerto Rico and the United Kingdom.

BOOK VALUE PER SHARE'

2006 — $29.97 QOur commitment to
increasing shareholder
2005 ‘%/—:Ois— $26.25  value over the long
2004 — v $23.57 term is unwavering
and results driven.
2003 T~ ) $21.37

1 - Excluding accumulated other comprehensive income (AQOCH), 2003 Pre Forma.
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Assurant Health

Assurant Health delivered strong ROE performance of 37.5% in 2006, up from
37.1% in 2005. We are focused on the individual medical market. Individual
medical membership increased during the second half of 2006, propelled by a
16% year over year increase in new business sales. Overall, individual medical
net earned premium was up 4%. Assurant Health harvested $167.9 million in
profits in 2006, down slightly from 2005. A modest regression in net earned
premiums was attributable to declines in small group premiums offset by the
focus on growing our individual medical business. Assurant Health maintained
a favorable combined ratio of 91.4%.

Advantage Agent™ is an example of how our disciplined risk management
expertise and customer-focused culture is identifying unmet needs and
delivering innovative, practical solutions, which resulted in individual medical
sales increases in 2006. This proprietary process enables Assurant to turn
around underwriting decisions for our agents in a matter of days—compared
to the industry standard process, which can take several weeks. By listening
to our agents and brokers, developing new solutions and responding to their
needs faster, Assurant Health is well positioned to build on the traction we are
gaining in the individual medical marketplace.

Assurant Employee Benefits

Assurant Employee Benefits improved ROE performance in 2006, earning 13.6%.
These results were up from 11.2% ROE in 2005 and moved the business
closer to our target ROE of 14-16%. The business continued its focus on the
small employer market (<500 lives), realigning resources and reshaping our
offering to meet those unmet customer needs. Net earned premiums
decreased slightly to $1.2 billion from $1.3 billion, primarily as a result of
lower sales and lower persistency of larger, less profitable business. Net
operating income was up 22% to $83.6 million from $68.4 million in 2005,
These results were driven primarily by a very favorable loss experience,
most notably in group disability. Assurant Employee Benefits also posted
quarter-over-quarter sales increases in the targeted small employer market.
Another promising development is the dental network access agreement
signed with Aetna in late 2006. Consistent with our overall strategy of partnering
with market leaders, working with Aetna greatly expands the dentists
available in our network and improves our geographic reach.




NET OPFPERATING INCOME'
ULS. dollars in millions

2006 O e 5603 Our bottom line
reflects Assurant’s
2005 T —] $513 ongoling efforts to

2004 32/_73& 345 increase profitability
3 and improve ROEs
2003 :./—*G& $329 through our continued

disciplined growth,

1 - Nel operating income excluding gainsftiosses) and non-recurring items.

Looking Forward: A Taste of What's Ahead

I firmly believe we are taking the proper steps to assure long-term, profitable
growth. We have a strong financial track record. We have demonstrated
considerable growth in earnings per share, book value per share, ROE and
profits year over year. We have several profitable opportunities to pursue
moving forward. We enjoy leadership positions in specialty insurance and are
well positioned to leverage our core capabilities in the markets we choose to
enter. As stewards of the company, we have demonstrated effective capital
and resource management in continuing to build value for our shareholders.
We have eslablished processes to develop our next generation of leaders and
to engage employees across the organization, as they are at the core of the
value we create.

Patience. Persistence. Performance. Like nurturing a fine wine, we are
committed to applying our expertise to develop products that will increase
value and deliver exceptional results you can savor over the long term.

Sincerely,

AN e Tl N

Robert B. Pollock
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Miami, Florida | The Assurant Management Committee, from left: S. Craig Lemasters, President
and Chief Executive Officer, Assurant Solutions; John B. Qwen, President and Chief Executive
Officer, Assurant Specialty Property; Donald Hamm, President and Chief Executive Officer,
Assurant Health; Lesley Silvester, Executive Vice President, Assurant; Philip Bruce Camacho,
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Assurant; Robert B. Pollock, President and
Chief Executive Officer, Assurant; Jerome A. Atkinson, Executive Vice President and Chief
Compliance Officer, Assurant; Michael J, Peninger, President and Chief Executive Officer, Assurant
Employee Benefits.
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New Country Growth Comes in Bunches

Expansion into targeted international
markets is an important growth driver and
strategic priority for Assurant Solutions.
Having opened operations in three new
countries— Germany, Italy and Spain—
over the past 24 months, Assurant continues
to demonstrate that our model is scalable
and adaptable to local markets.

The Proof Is in the Process

At the center of Assurant’s international growth
strategy is a fundamental approach to success.
This involves identifying the company’s best-
performing products and thoroughly evaluating
which countries would provide the most fertile
ground for future, long-term profitable growth, then
carefully transplanting those products, applying
the best practices from across the organization.
Finally, Assurant adapts the offering to ensure that
the business can thrive in local market conditions.
Although the company continues to be proactive
in cultivating multiple new opportunities and is
accelerating its speed to market with every new
country we enter, experience also demoenstrates
that constructing a business that’s built to last
doesn’t happen overnight—generating results
happens over time.

Assurant is applying this patient, meticulous
and market-driven approach to several attractive
opportunities in Europe. Across the continent,
market forces are moving consumers toward more

revolving credit, as well as protection and service

for products that they are purchasing with this
credit. These trends create an opportunity for
Assurant to offer credit insurance and extended
service contract products to meet growing customer
needs. In Germany, Italy and Spain, we are
leveraging our broad expertise to adapt products
to fit the unique dynamics of the local markets.
Although the cultures of the individual countries
vary, Assurant’s enduring values of knowledge
sharing and responsive service remain constant.

What Grows Next? Determining Destinations

Assurant is investing dollars today to generate
better growth margins over the long run. While we
remain committed to the United States market,
which continues to deliver strong growth, we are
pursuing opportunities in other markets that offer
accelerated growth potential. Assurant uses a
complex and proprietary series of data-driven
formulas to help evaluate, quantify and prioritize
theé attractiveness of potential new market
opportunities. Once these metrics are determined,
we have the flexibility to deploy and/or redirect
resources to support the best market prospects.
The evaluation process is continuous and always
moving forward. The length of time between
initial start-up of operations and profitability
will typically span several years, varying from
country to country based on market conditions. By
employing talented personnel, as weil as through
our proven selection process and disciplined risk
management, we are confident that we will create
satisfied clients and deliver strong results wherever
the company chooses to enter.
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International Expansion

A Product Of

ASSURANT
SOLUTIONS

Milan, Italy | from left: Eugenio Magdalena, Country Manager,
Assurant Solutions Spain; Ludolph Van Hasselt, Country Manager,
Assurant Selutions Germany; Orla Ralph, Country Manager,
Assurant Solutions Italy; Steve Phillips, Senior Vice President
and Regional Director, Canada/Europe, Assurant Sotutions.
"To succeed in markets where we're starting from scratch,
we need experienced international leaders who thoroughty
understand the local cutture and business environment—and
who can create value for our clients within it,” said Steve.




Sdo Paulo, Brazil | from left: Ivan C. Lopez Morales, Senior Yice
President and Regional Director, Latin America/Caribbean,
Assurant Solutions; Marcello Gongalves, President, Assurant
Solutions, Brazil. "While we are pieased to see our measurable
progress, we feel as though we haven't even scratched the
surface of what we could do,” commented Marcellg. "The market
potential in Brazil is stilt significant, and we’'re committed to
pursuing those opportunities with passion and discipline.”

Extended Service Contracts

A Product Of

ASSURANT
SOLUTIONS




Business Taking Root, Bearing Fruit in Brazil

The continued rise of credit insurance
products and extended service contracts
in 2006 further advanced the Assurant
Solutions enterprise in Brazil. The
company has enjoyed 10 consecutive
quarters of growth in clients and
contracts, demonstrating that prudent
investments in the right people, products
and technologies are the best foundation
for sustained long-term growth.

Growing Stronger Every Day, Year after Year

The momentum Assurant Solutions is generating
in Brazil is the result of careful and ongoing
cultivation. In 2002, we believed Brazil offered an
attractive, underserved retail consumer market
that was ripe to be harvested. After a thorough
due diligence process, including a comprehensive
evaluation of market dynamics and risk factors,
Assurant entered the market. Consistent with our
targeted international expansion approach, we
sought to apply successful strategies and transplant
proven products from the United States and other
established markets to help meet customer needs
in emerging countries. We also committed to
making the necessary investments to build a
high-quality, high-value enterprise and optimize
the opportunity for sustained growth over the long
term. Today in Brazil, we are seeing tangible and
measurable signs of growth built on that strong

foundation. Our operations in Brazil have delivered
top-line premium growth year over year since
inception. Looking to the future, macroeconomic
trends continue to be favorable in Brazil for both
credit insurance and extended service contracts.
The economy has been stable for over a decade,
and personal income across all market segments
is on the rise, creating increased demand for

Assurant’s products as consumers spend more.

Keys to Success: Exceptional People, Service

Assurant is making inroads in the extended service
contract and credit insurance markets largely
because our combination of specialty product
expertise and hands-on, personal service is difficult
for competitors to replicate. For example, Assurant
Solutions is buiiding loyal partner relationships
and capturing market share with retailers
throughout Brazil by demonstrating the willingness
to invest more time and resources—including
conducting on-site and in-person training-—to
ensure customers’ sales forces are successful. This
uniquely personalized service, offered along with
our focus on two key products and services, sets us
apart from our competitors and provides great
opportunity for continued growth. An intangible
asset that is making a difference is the talent,
experience and local-market knowledge of
Assurant’s employees. We take the time to find the
best people who are native to each market and
have the knowledge and leadership skill set that
will continue to grow with the company over time.

o



Organic Growth and Acquisition Widen Market Lead

Assurant Specialty Property enjoyed
double-digit growth in sales, premium
and profit in 2006. In addition, our
acquisition of Safeco’s creditor-placed
insurance business—a perfect strategic
fit—further extended Assurant’s leading
market share position. With increasing
advantages in scale, Assurant is well
positioned for continued success.

Building from Strength, Investing for Growth

Prior to the acquisition of Safeco Financial Institution
Solutions (Safeco FIS), Assurant Specialty Property
had carved out an attractive leadership position
in the creditor-placed homeowners market. The
business was enjoying strong year-over-year growth,
maintaining a favorable geographic spread of risk
and operating three processing centers across the
United States. Proprietary technology actively
tracked over 24 million loans and 135,000 pieces of
mail every day, helping to ensure proper insurance
of loan collateral for our financial institution
partners. Clients and prospects alike considered
Assurant an established and highly valuable industry
leader. To further advance Assurant Specialty
Property’s position, purchasing Safeco FIS made
perfect sense—and precisely fit our acquisition
criteria. Their business was an ideal fit that could
improve our leadership position, advance economies
of scale, generate new revenue opportunities and
deliver top quartile ROE. Strategically, Safeco’s
book of business complements Assurant Specialty
Property’s existing risk portfolio and adds 4 million
more loans into the tracking system.

Financially, the move has already delivered
results and exceeded expectations, contributing to
Assurant Specialty Property’s strong growth in both
net operating income and net earned premiums.
Moreover, because both parties welcomed the
acquisition with open arms, the focus on servicing
customers has been paramount. By adding two
additional service centers and retaining a large
number of key Safeco personnel, we have been able
to preserve Safeco FIS's attractive client relationships
and keep familiar points of contact in place while
adding to the company’s overall management depth.

Benefits for Financial Institutions,
Opportunities in Adjacencies

Assurant Specialty Property’s technology and
support processes provide a clear competitive
advantage for financial institution partners. Well
beyond loan tracking, our advanced capabilities
draw real-time data feeds from major insurance
providers, and our extensive business rule
processing functionality greatly improves data and
processing quality and efficiency. Moreover,
Assurant is the only company whose systems
model financial exposure for clients in advance
of a hurricane or catastrophic event. These
unique capabilities—and the Assurant model—
are sustainable and applicable to other, adjacent
creditor-placed products and uses. Two such
opportunities reside in creditor-placed auto
insurance and the emerging renters insurance
market. We will continue to grow the core
business, tap new markets and provide customers
with the customized and responsive service that
is Assurant’s hallmark.




Creditor-Placed Insurance

A Product Of

ASSURANT
SPECIALTY PROPERTY

Orange, California | from left: Gene Mergelmeyer, Executive
Vice President, Assurant Specialty Property, and President of
Lending Solutions Business Unit; Mike Campbell, Seniar Vice
President of Operations and Finance, Assurant Specialty
Property—Lending Solutions. “We're thrilled to join the Assurant
team,” said Mike. "The advaniages of proprietary technology
systems and our own field service adjusters enable us to serve
our clients better and faster than ever.”



Chicago, llinois | from left: Bitl Forrest, Agent, Health
Insurance Brokerage; Tim Burke, Regional Sales Director,
Assurant Health; Laura Hohing, Senior Vice President of Sales,
Assurant Health. "The quicker | can respond to my customers,
the better it is for them and the better it is for me,” said Bill.

Advantage Agent™

A Product Of

ASSURANT

HEALTH éﬁ
|




Healthy Yields from Individual Medical

With a strong focus on individual
medical, Assurant Health enjoyed a
16% increase in individual medical sales
in 2006. Those results were generated
in large part by innovations such as
Advantage Agent™ and other new tools
and technologies designed to make selling
and acquiring health insurance easier
and faster for agents and their customers.

New Perspectives, Innovative Solutions

When the leadership of Assurant Health considered
how to sustain long-term profitable growth and
advance our position as a preferred insurer in the
highly competitive health insurance industry, we
turned a critical eye to the fundamentals of the
market. Specifically, we focused on individual
medical markets and the unmet needs of our
distribution partners and the end consumer. Two
key concepts emerged around product offering
and service delivery that, taken together, amounted
to a significant competitive advantage for Assurant.
We quickly developed compelling solutions that
were made available through our broad national
distribution network.

In service delivery, a critical pain point for agents
and customers was the time required to get a
response on new applications—a process that
takes several weeks on average in the industry.
The time spent waiting was frustrating for agents
and customers alike. The impact on agents was

real and direct—they lost opportunities to gain
new customers and grow their business. Based
upon insights gleaned from market research,
Assurant Health pioneered a dynamic new
approach to the individual medical marketplace.
From product design to application submission to
underwriting and issuing policies, we focused our
technology, people and processes to accomplish a
goal: make selling and acquiring health insurance
easier and faster for agents and their customers.

Advantage Agent

The result was Advantage Agent—an array of new
tools, products and service capabilities designed to
help agents grow their business and to provide an
expanded range of health insurance plan options
for consumers. Agents can submit applications and
proposals online, generate instant quotes, even
check underwriting status anytime day or night.
Assurant’s streamlining of the application questions
by 80% shortens the individual medical sales cycle
and enables agents to serve their customers with
greater speed and efficiency. The process that once
took up to a few weeks can now be completed in
as little as a few hours. In fact, more than 60% of
Assurant Health’s complete policy applications
that are submitted electronically are issued in
less than two days. With innovations such as
Advantage Agent, Assurant Health has accelerated
the sales process for agents and their customers
without sacrificing the disciplined risk management
focus that has long been the cornerstone of our
approach to long-term profitable growth.

.
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Turning Up New Opportunities

In 2006, Assurant Employee Benefits
sharpened its focus to concentrate on
companies with fewer than 500 employees.
By leveraging our strong distribution
relationships, a growing national dental
network and a highly motivated sales
force, Assurant Employee Benefits is
aligning its capabilities to meet the unmet
needs of small businesses.

Retooling to Capture an Untapped Market

Businesses across the United States with fewer
than 500 employees have unique needs when it
comes to employee benefits. The policies typically
offered by large, mainstream insurance carriers are
not specifically developed with the smaller
business in mind. As a result, benefit plans often
are too costly for smaller employers to afford
and too cumbersome to administer. Assurant
Employee Benefits sees this gap in the marketplace
as an opportunity to focus on better serving the
small business customer and to provide a range of
coverage options that are flexible, affordable and
developed expressly for this unique market
segment. We are investing to make sure all aspects
of the business—sales, marketing, operations,
service—are aligned to capitalize on the opportunity.
Assurant Employee Benefits completely retooled
its field sales force to focus on small cases by
working with select brokers who specialize in
smal!l business, deployed new technology and
built a streamlined infrastructure to support the
business objectives.

Assurant’s disciplined risk management expertise
excels in uncovering unmet needs and building
core competencies in specialty products. In the
benefits market, Assurant Employee Benefits has
developed a unique range of non-medical products
and services that bring valued plans into reach for
small businesses. In dental, we introduced several
benefits with our Lifetime of Smiles™ offering,
inspired by the growing connection between
improved oral health and overall physical health.
We also announced a provider network expansion
that will help broaden the appeal and availability
of our dental coverage, with a wider geographic
scope and a larger pool of professionals from
which te choose. In disability, we redefined the
parameters of disability benefits and revamped
our offering to make the benefit available and
attractive to more customers, including first-time
buyers and those in high-risk industries. These
products not only differentiate Assurant Employee
Benefits’ total offering, they show great potential
for long-term growth.

Making Benefits an Easy Choice

Assurant Employee Benefits is committed to its
customers and to differentiating itself through
a service strategy focused on the specific needs
of small businesses. As an example, Online
Advantage, the company’s exclusive online tool,
enables employers to manage their policies at
their convenience with the click of a mouse. By
leveraging our people, processes and technology,
Assurant Employee Benefits removes administrative
barriers, making offering benefits an affordable
and easy choice.




Smail Employer Focus

A Product Of

ASSURANT
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Fort Worth, Texas | from left: Brent Matthews, Partner,
Johnston and Matthews; Jim Gimaretli, D.M.D., Vice President
of Dental, Assurant Employee Benefits, “Working with Assurant
Employee Benefits is exciting and rewarding. They are truly
dedicated to providing high-quality products and services, and
their people go out of their way to make sure | have everything |
need to provide effective coverage and responsive service for
my customers,” said Brent.
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Assurant Board of Directors

John Michael Palms, Ph.D., D.Sc. | 1990

Chairman of the Board, Assurant; Distinguished

University Professor and Distinguished President Emeritus,
University of South Carolina
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

LT

Some of the statements under “Business,” “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Cendition
and Resuits of Operations,” and elsewhere in this report may contain forward-looking statements which reflect
our current views with respect to, among other things, future events and financial performance. You can identify
these forward-looking statements by the use of forward-looking words such as “outlook.” “believes,” “expects,”
“potential,” “continues.” “may,” “will,” “should,” “seeks,” “approximately,” “predicts,” “intends,” “plans,”
“estimates.” “anticipates” or the negative version of those words or other comparable words. Any forward-
looking statements contained in this report are based upon our historical performance and on current plans,
estimates and expectations. The inclusion of this forward looking information should not be regarded as a
representation by us or any other person that the future plans, estimates or expectations contemplated by us will
be achieved. Such forward-looking statements are subject to various risks and uncertainties. Accordingly. there
are or will be important factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those indicated in this
report. We believe that these factors include but are not limited to those described under the subsection entitled
“Risk Factors” in “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”
These factors should not be construed as exhaustive and should be read in conjunction with the other cautionary
statements that are included in this report. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or review any forward-
looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future developments or otherwise.
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If one or more of these or other risks or uncertainties materialize, or if our underlying assumptions prove to
be incorrect, actual results may vary materially frem what we projected. Any forward-looking statements you
read in this report reflect our current views with respect to future events and are subject to these and other risks,
uncertainties and assumptions relating to our aperations, results of operations, financial condition, growth
strategy and liquidity.




Item 1. Business

Legal Organization

Assurant, Inc. ("Assurant™) is a Delaware corporation, formed in connection with the Initial Public Offering
(“IPO™) of its common stock. which began trading on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE") on February 5,
2004. Prior to the PO, Fortis, Inc., a Nevada corporation, had formed Assurant and merged into it on February 4,
2004. The merger was executed in order to redomesticate Fortis, Inc. from Nevada to Delaware and to change its
name. As a result of the merger, Assurant is the successor to the business operations and obligations of Fortis,
Inc.

Prior 1o the IPO, 100% of the outstanding common stock of Fortis, Inc. was owned indirectly by Fortis
N.V., a public company with limited liability incorporated as naamloze vennootschap under Duich law, and
Fortis SA/ NV, a public company with limited liability incorporated as sociélé anonyme/naamloze vennootschap
under Belgian law. Fellowing the IPO, Fortis N.V. and Fortis SA/ NV, through a wholly owned subsidiary Fortis
Insurance N.V., owned approximately 35% (50,199,130 shares) of the outstanding common stock of Assurant.

On January 21, 2005, Fortis N.V. and Fortis SA/ NV, through a wholly owned subsidiary Fortis Insurance
N.V., owned approximately 36% (50,199,130 shares} of the outstanding commeon stock of Assurant based on the
number of shares outstanding that day and sold 27,200,000 of those shares in a secondary offering to the public.
Assurant did not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of shares of common stock. Fortis N.V. received all
net proceeds from the sale and concurrently sold exchangeable bonds, due January 26, 2008, that are mandatorily
exchangeable for their remaining 22,999,130 shares of Assurant. The exchangeable bonds and the shares of
Assurant’s common stock into which they are exchangeable have not been and will not be registered under the
Securities Act of 1933 (“Securities Act™) and may not be offered or seld in the United States absent registration
or an applicable exemption from registration requirements.

In this report, references to the “Company.” “Assurant,” “we,” *“us” or “our” refer to (1) Fortis, Inc. and its
subsidiaries, and (2) Assurant, Inc. and its subsidiaries after the consummation of the merger described above,
References to “Fortis™ refer collectively to Fortis N.V. and Fortis SA/ NV, References to our “separation” from
Fortis refer to the fact that Fortis reduced its ownership of our common stock in connection with the secondary
offering.

Dollar amounts are presented in U.S. dollars and all amounts are in thousands, except number of shares, per
share amounts, registered holders, number of employees and beneficial owners.

Business Organization

Assurant’s mission is to be the premier provider of specialized insurance products and related services in
North America and selected international markets. To achieve this mission, we focus on the following areas:

+ Building and maintaining a porifolic of diverse, specialty insurance businesses

+ Leveraging a set of core capabilities—managing risk; managing relationships with large distribution
partners: and integrating complex administrative systems—for competitive advantage

+  Managing targeted growth initiatives
» Identifying and adapting to evolving market needs
+ Centralizing certain key functions in the Corporate segment to achieve economies of scale

Building and maintaining a porifolio of diverse, specialty insurance businesses—We currently are made up
of four operating business segments each focused on serving specific segments of the insurance market. We

1




believe that the uncorrelated nature of the risks in our businesses allows us to maintain a greater level of financial
stability since our businesses will likely not be affected in the same way by the same economic and operating
trends.

Leveraging core capabilities for competitive advantage—We pursue a differentiated strategy of building
leading positions in specialized market segments for insurance products and related services in North America
and selected international markets. These markets are generally complex, have a relatively limited number of
competitors and, we believe, offer attractive long-term profitable growth opportunities. In these markets, we
leverage the experience of our management team and apply our core capabilities for competitive advantage—
managing risk; managing relationships with large distribution pariners; and integrating complex adminisirative
sysiems. These core capabilities represent areas of expertise which are evident within each of our businesses. We
seek to generate insurance industry top-quartile returns by building on specialized market knowledge, well-
established distribution relationships and economies of scale. As a result of our strategy, we are a leader in many
of our chosen markets and products.

Muanaging targeted growth initiasives—Qur approach to mergers, acquisitions and other growth
opportunities reflects our prudent and disciplined approach to managing our business. We make decisions based
on strict guidelines ensuring that any new business will support our business model. We have established
performance goals related to short-term incentive compensation for senior management based on those and other
ntiatives.

Identifying and adapting 1o evolving market needs—Assurant’s businesses adapt quickly to changing market
conditions by tailoring product and service offerings to specific client and customer needs. This flexibility was
developed, in part, as a result of our entrepreneurial culture and the encouragement of management autonomy at
each business segment. By understanding the dynamics of our core markets, we design innovative products and
services and seek to sustain long-term profitable growth and market leading positions.

Centralizing cerlain key functions in the Corporate segment to achieve economies of scale—At the
Corporate level, Assurant. Inc, provides strategic management and key resources for its operating businesses,
including asset management, employee benefits, finance, treasury, tax, accounting, legal, organizational and
leadership development, mergers and acquisitions and communications. We also provide support services in such .
areas as information technology, financial and human resources systems management, enabling the operating
business segments to focus on their target markets and distribution relationships while enjoying the economies of
scale realized by operating these businesses together and benefiting from being part of a larger, diversified
specialty insurance company. Qur overall strategy and financial objectives are set and continuously monitored at
the corporate level to ensure that our capital resources are being properly allocated.

Competition

Assurant’s businesses focus on niche segments within broader insurance markets. While we face
competition in each of our businesses, we believe that no single competitor competes against us in all of our -
business lines and the business lines in which we operate are generally characterized by a limited number of
competitors. Competition in our operating business segments is based on a number of factors, including: quality
of service, product features, price, scope of distribution, financial strength ratings and name recognition. The
relative importance of these factors depends on the particular product and market. We compete for customers and
distributors with insurance companies and other financial services companies in our various businesses.

Assurant Solutions and Assurant Specialty Property face competition in their product lines, but we believe
that no other company participates in all of the same lines or offers comparable comprehensive capabilities as
these two businesses. Competitors include insurance companies, financial institutions and, in the case of
preneed—regional insurers. Assurant-Health's main competitors are other health insurance companies, Health
Maintenance Organizations (“HMOs") and the Blue Cross/Blue Shield plans in states where we write business.
Assurant Employee Benefits competitors include other benefit and life insurance companies, dental managed
care entities and not-for-profit dental plans.




Segments

On April 1, 2006, the Company separated its Assurant Solutions business segment into two business
segments: Assurant Solutions and Assurant Specialty Property. In addition, concurrent with the creation of the
new Assuranl Solutions and Assurant Specialty Property segments, the Company realigned the Preneed segment
under the new Assurant Solutions segment. Segment income statements for the years ended December 31, 2005
and December 31, 2004 and segment assets for the year ¢nded December 31, 2003 have been recast to reflect the
new segment reporting structure.

Assurant Solutions

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, 2006  December 31, 2005

Gross Written Premium for selected product groupings (1):

Domestic Credit . ... . . 5 714,791 $ 767466
International Credit .. ... ... e $ 680,097 $ 647467
Domestic Extended Service Contracts(2) ...............oovii... $ 1,258,292 5 1120227
International Extended Service Contracts(2) . ............ ..., .. $ 341,886 $ 247,506
Preneed (face sales) ................ .. ... ... . . . ... ... $ 433510 $ 542512
Net eamned premiums and other considerations ............ ... ... ... $ 2.371.605 $ 2.220.145
Segment NEL iNCOME . ...\ttt et ee e nas $ 198,293 5 133147
BQUItY(3Y - e oottt e e $ 1.564,795 $ 1.576.176

(1) Gross written premium does not necessarily translate to an equal amoun of subsequent net earned
premiums since Assurant Solutions reinsures a portion of its premiums 1o insurance subsidiaries of its
clients.

(2) Extended service contracts include warranty contracts for products such as personal computers, consumer
electronics and appliances. .

(3) Eaquity excludes accumulated other comprehensive income.

. Products and Services

Assurant Solutions targets growth in three key product areas: domestic extended service contracts (“ESC™)
and warranties; preneed life insurance sales; and international credit and ESC. In addition, we offer debt
protection services through financial institutions. ’

ESC and Warranties: Through partnerships with leading retailers. we underwrite and provide administrative
services for extended service contracts and warranties. These contracts provide consumers with coverage on
appliances, consumer electronics, personal computers, cellular phones, automobiles and recreational vehicles
protecting them from losses incurred due to product failures. We pay the cost of repairing or replacing
customers’ property in the event of damages due to mechanical breakdown, accidental damage, and casualty
losses such as theft, fire, and water damage. Our strategy is to seamlessly provide a total solution to our clients
that addresses ali aspects of the warranty or extended service contract. including program design and marketing
strategy. We provide technologically advanced administration, claims handling and customer service. We believe
that we maintain a differentiated position in the marketplace as a provider of both the required administrative
infrastructure and insurance underwriting capabilities.

Preneed Life Insurance: Preneed life insurance allows individuals to prepay for a funeral in a single
payment or in multiple payments over a fixed number of years. The insurance policy proceeds are used to address
funeral costs at death, These products are generally structured as whole life insurance policies in the United
States and as annuity products in Canada.

Credit Insurance: Our credit insurance programs provide our clients’ customers with products that offer
protection from life events and uncertainties that arise in purchasing and borrowing transactions thereby
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providing the consumer peace of mind. Credit insurance programs generally offer consumers a convenient option
to protect a credit card balance or installment loan in the event of death, involuntary unemployment or disability
and are generally available to all consumers without the underwriting restrictions that apply to term life
insurance.

Debt Protection/Debr Defermeni: Debt protection products are offered by our clients 10 their customers and
are typically underwritten by the institution that issues the credit card. Due to regulatory changes and the
resulting shift to debt deferment products by financial institutions, we have seen a reduction in domestic written
premium generated in the credit insurance market. Consequently, the largest credit card issuing institutions have
migrated from credit insurance towards debt protection programs. We have worked with our clients to offer
alternative products such as debt deferment and protection services. Qur debt protection programs generate fee
income.

Marketing and Distribution

Assurant Solutions focuses on establishing strong, long-term distribution relationships with market leaders,
We pariner with six of the top ten largest credit companies to market our credit insurance and debt protection
programs and five of the ten largest consumer electronics and appliance retailers (based on combined product
sales) to market our warranty and extended service contracts.

Several of our distribution agreements are exclusive. Typically these agreements have terms of one to five
years and allow us to integrate our administrative systems with those of our clients. This integration enables us to
exchange information in an almost real-time environment.

g

In addition to our domestic market. we operate in Canada, the United Kingdom, Denmark, Germany, Spain,
Italy, Argentina, Brazil, Mexico and Puerto Rico. In these markets, we primarily sell extended service contracis
and credit insurance products through agreements with financial institutions, retailers and cellular-phone
companies, Although there has been shrinkage in the domestic credit insurance market, the international markets
are experiencing growth in the credit insurance business. Expertise gained in the domestic credit insurance
market has enabled us 1o extend our administrative infrastructure internationally. Systems, training, computer
hardware and the overall market development approach are customized to fit the particular needs of each targeted
international market.

Our pre-funded funeral programs are marketed in the United States and Canada. In November 2005 we sold
our US independent distribution business to Forethought Life Insurance Company (*Forethought™) to allow us to
focus on our exclusive distribution partnership with Service Corporation International (“SCI™) and continue to
develop our other growth area; independent business in Canada. We are the sole provider through September 30,
2010 of preneed life insurance for SCI, the largest funeral provider in the US based on total revenue. In Canada,
we market our preneed programs through independent and corperate funeral homes and selected third-party
general agencies, In late 2006 we entered into an agreement to acquire 100% of the outstanding stock of
Mayflower National Life Insurance Company (“Mayflower™) from SCI and extend our exclusive marketing
agreement with SCI to September 30, 2013, The transaction is expected to close in 2007. Mayflower will add
approximately $50,000 in annual net eamed premiums,

Underwriting and Risk Management

We write a significant portion of our contracts on a retrospective commission basis. This allows us to adjust
commissions based on claims experience. Under this commission arrangement, as permitted by law,
compensation to the financial institutions and other clients is predicated upon-the actual losses incurred compared
to premiums earned after a specific net allowance to us. We believe that this aligns our clients’ interests with ours
and helps us to better manage risk exposure. A distinct characteristic of our credit insurance program is that the
majority of these products have relatively low exposures per incident. This is because policy size is equal to the
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size of the installment loan or credit card balance. Thus, catastrophic loss severity for most of this business is low
relative to insurance companies writing more traditional lines of property insurance.

Our claims processing is automated and combines the efficiency of centralized claims handling, customer
service centers and the flexibility of field representatives. This flexibility adds savings and efficiencies to the
claims-handling process. Our claims department also provides continuous automated feedback to the
underwriting team to help with risk assessment and pricing.

We have exiensive knowledge-based experience and risk management expertise in the extended service
contract and warranty areas and utilize an integrated model to address the complexities of pricing, marketing,
training, risk retention and client service.

Profitability generated through our preneed life insurance programs is generally eamned from interest rate
spreads—the difference between the death benefit growth rates on underlying pelicies and the investment returns
generated on the assets we hold related to those policies. To manage those spreads, we monitor the movement in
new money yields and evaluate monthly our actual net new achievable yields among other techniques.

Assurant Specialty Property

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005

Net Earned Premiums and Other Considerations by Major Product

Grouping:

Homeowners (Creditor Placed and Voluntary) ...................... $ 753,169 $443.526
Manufactured Housing (Creditor Placed and Voluntary) .. ............. 214,461 217,424
Other (1) ..o e _ 240,681 197,898

0 7 Y R $1,208,311 $858.848
SegmentNetlncome . ... .. ... .. i 10 $143.227
Loss RO (2} . ..ottt 33.8%. 37.0%
EXPEnse RAtio (3) .. .o v oo 44.0% 47.2%
Combined RAO (4 ) - ..ottt 76.5% 82.6%
EQuity (5) oo e e $ 752913 $524.403

(1) This includes flood, renters, agricultural, specialty auto and other insurance products.

(2) The loss ratio is equal to pelicyholder benefits divided by net earned premiums and other considerations.

(3) The expense ratio is equal to selling, underwriting and general expenses divided by net earned premiums
and other considerations and fees and other income.

(4) The combined ratio is equal 1o total benefits, losses and expenses divided by net earmed premiums and other
considerations and fees and other income,

(5) Equity excludes accumulated other comprehensive income.

Products and Services

Assurant Specialty Property is pursuing long-term profitable growth in creditor-placed homeowners
insurance and seeks to extend this model into two emerging markets, creditor-placed automobile and renters
liability and property.

Creditor-placed homeowners insurance: The largest product line within Assurant Specialty Property is
homeowners insurance consisting principally of fire and dwelling hazard insurance offered primarily through our
creditor-placed programs. The creditor-placed program provides collateral protection to our mortgage lender
clients in the event that a homeowner fails to purchase or renew homeowners insurance on a mortgaged dwelling.

We use a proprietary insurance tracking administration system to continuously monitor a client’s mortgage
portfolio to verify the existence of insurance on each mortgaged property. In the event that a mortgagee is not
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maintaining adequate insurance coverage, they will be notified and, if the situation continues, we will issue an
insurance policy on the property on behalf of the creditor. This process works through the integration of our
proprietary loan tracking system with the back offices of our clients.

The creditor-placed programs are administered separately for homeowner mortgages and manufactured
housing mortgages. Our hazard products can also be sold on a voluntary basis. In addition, we provide fee-based
administration services for some of the largest mortgage lenders and servicers, manufactured housing lenders,
dealers and vertically integrated builders and equipment leasing institutions in the United States. Manufactured
housing retailers use our proprietary premium rating technology which allows them to sell property coverages at
the point of sale.

We believe this proven business model will allow us to continue our growth due to seamless integration
with our clients and the inherent efficiencies of this integration. Additionally, we are optimistic about the
opportunities before us to expand this business model with the addition of new clients, new products for existing
clients, and the acquisition of new business such as the May 2006 acquisition of the creditor-placed business of
Safeco Financial Institution Solutions, Inc. (“SFIS™). The acquisition of SFIS raised our market share of
outsourced creditor-placed business to approximately 70%.

Creditor-Placed Auto and Renters: We have developed products using our creditor-placed business model
to meet similar needs in adjacent and emerging markets, such as the creditor-placed automobile and creditor-
placed rental markets. Both of these markets have been expanding in recent years. The creditor-placed
automobile market has benefited from regulatory improvements made by the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners. The creditor-placed rental market continues to expand as more property management companies
mandate tenant liability coverage.

As a result of our efficiency in handling certain back-office functions, the vast majority of our mortgage
lender and servicing clients outsource their insurance processing to us. We also act as an administrator for the
Federal Government under the voluntary National Flood Insurance Program for which we earn an expense
reimbursement for collecting premiums and processing claims. This is a public flood insurance program and is
restricted as to rates, underwriting, coverages and claims management procedures. We do not assume any
underwriting risk with respect to this program; however, we underwrite a smaller separate voluntary flood
insurance program,

Marketing and Distribution

Our marketing strategy is to establish relationships with institutions that are leaders in their chosen markets.
Our creditor-placed homeowners program is marketed through financial institutions and other mortgage lenders.
Ouwr clients in this program consist of 17 of the top 25 prime mortgage lenders/servicers and 14 of the top 25
sub-prime mortgage lenders/servicers.

We offer our manufactured housing insurance programs primarily through three channels; manufactured
housing lenders, manufactured housing retailers and independent specialty agents. The independent specialty
agents distribute our products to individuals subsequent to new home purchases.

Underwriting and Risk Management

We maintain a disciplined approach to the management of our product lines. Our creditor-placed
homeowners insurance program is unique in that it is not underwritten on an individual basis. Contracts with our
clients require us to automatically issue these policies, after notice, when a homeowners policy lapses or is
terminated. These products are priced after factoring in this inherent underwriting risk.



As part of our overall risk management focus, we continually monitor pricing adequacy on a product by
_region, state, risk and producer. We proactively seek to make timely commission, premium and coverage
modifications, subject to regulatory considerations, where we determine them to be appropriate. In addition, we
maintain a segregated risk management area that concentrates on catastrophic exposure management, the
adequacy and pricing of reinsurance coverage and continuous analytical review of risk retention and subsequent
profitability in the property lines. For the lines where there is exposure to calastrophes (e:g. homeowners
policies), we monitor and manage our aggregate risk exposure by geographic area and, when appropriate, enter
into reinsurance contracts to manage our exposure to catastrophic events. Additionally, in the event of a
catastrophic loss, we have the mechanism in place to reinstate, as needed, reinsurance coverages for protection
from potential subsequent catastrophic events within the policy year.

Assurant Health

For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
December 31, 2006  December 31, 2005

Net Earned Premiums and Other Considerations:

Individual Markets:
Individual Medical ........ .. 00t e $1,213,677 $1,164,498
Short-term Medical . . ... .. e s 101,454 110,912
Subtotal . .. e s 1,315,131 1,275,410
Small Employer Group .. ......o ot e 768,826 888,555
TOtal . e e $2,083,957 $2,163,965
Segment NetIncome ................... NN $ 167919 $ 178,055
Loss ratio (1) oottt 62.4% 62.1%
Expense ratio (2) .. ..o e 30.2% 29.8%
Combined ratio (3 ) ..o i it e 91.4% 90.8%
Equity () ..ot e $ 416,765 $ 479,564

{1y The loss ratio is equal to policyholder benefits divided by net earned premiums and other considerations.

(2) The expense ratio is equal to selling, underwriting and general expenses divided by net earned premiums
and other considerations and fees and other income.

(3) The combined ratio is equal to total benefits, losses and expenses divided by net earned premiums and other
considerations and fees and other income.

" (4) Equity excludes accumulated other comprehensive income.

' Producf and Servtces '

' In business sifice 1892, Assurant Health is focused on pursuing long-term profitable growth opportunities in
the ‘individual medical market by offering traditional medical insurance, short-term medical insurance and
studcnt medical plans to individuals and families. Products are offered with different plan options to meet a broad
" range of customer needs. Assurant Health also offers traditional medical insurance to small employer groups.

. . .
- Individual Medical: Qur medical insurance products are sold to individuals, primarily between the ages of
18 and 64 years, and-their families who do not have employer-sponsored coverage. We emphasize the sale of
individual products through associations and trusts that act as the master policyholder for such products. Products
,marketed and sold through associations and trusts offer flexibility in pricing and product design which increase
_our ab:llly to respond to market changes.

~ Substantially zﬂl of the individual health insurance products we sell are Preferred Provider Organization
(“PPQ"} plans, which offer members the ability to select from a’'wide range of health care providers. Coverage is

" typically available with a variety of co-payment or deductible and coinsurance options, with the total benefit for
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covered services limited by certain policy maximums. Members can also add an HSA (“Health Savings
Account™) option with their high deductible health plan. We offer extensive HSA training to our independent
agents and offer internet-based HSA tools making it easier for our customers to integrate their HSA into the plan
of their choice and better manage their health care spending. These products are individually underwritten, taking
into account the member’s medical history and other factors. The remaining products we sell are indemnity, or
fee-for-service plans. [ndemnity plans offer a member the ability to select any health care provider for covered
services.

Short-term Medical Insurance and Student Health Insurance: The short-term medical insurance product is
designed for individuals who are between jobs or seeking interim coverage before their major medical coverage
becomes effective. Short-term medical insurance products are generally sold to individuals in order to fill gaps in
coverage of twelve months or less. Student health coverage plans are medical insurance plans sold to full-time
college students who are not covered by their parents’ health insurance. are no longer eligible for dependant
coverage, or are seeking a more comprehensive alternative 1o a college-sponsored plan.

Small Group Medical: Qur group medical insurance sold to small employers focuses primarily on
companies with two to fifty employees, although larger employer coverage is available. As of December 31,
2006, our average group size was approximately five employees. In the case of our small employer group health
insurance, we underwrite the entire group and examine the medical risk factors of the individual groups for
pricing purposes only. Substantially all of the small employer health insurance products that we sold in 2006 and
2005 were PPO products. We also offer HSA and HRA (“Health Reimbursement Accouni”) options and a variety
of ancillary products to meet the demands of small employers for life insurance, short-term disability insurance
and dental insurance. ‘

Marketing and Distribution

Breadth and depth of distribution is a key competitive advantage for Assurant Health. Our health insurance
products are principally marketed through an extensive network of independent agents by our distributors. We
also market our products to individuals through a variety of exclusive and non-exclusive national account
relationships and direct distribution channels. In addition, we market our products through NorthStar Marketing,
a wholly owned affiliate that proactively seeks business directly from independent agents. Since 2000, we have
had an exclusive national marketing agreement with a major mutual insurance company. pursuant to which their
captive agents market our individual health products. Captive agents are representatives of a single insurer or
group of ingurers who are obligated to submit business only to that insurer, or at a minimum, give that insurer
first refusal rights on a sale. The term of this agreement will expire in June 2008, but may be extended if agreed
1o by both parties. We also have a solid relationship with a well-known association. Through our agreement with
this well-known association’s administrator, we provide many of our individual health insurance products. The
term of the agreement with this administrator will expire in September 2008, but will be automatically extended
for an additional two-year term unless prior notice of a party’s intent to terminate is given to the other party. We
also have a long-term relationship with a national marketing organization with more than 50 offices. We, and our
direct writing agents, also sell short-term medical insurance plans through the intemet. ‘

[n 2006, we launched Advantage Agent, an array of new products, 1ools and capabilities designed to make it
easy for agents to do business with Assurant Health, Along with the introduction of a new individual medical
portfolio designed to meet a broad spectrum of customer needs, Advantage Agent also includes a new on-line
program called EASE (Electronic Agent Sales Experience) that shortens approval periods and makes the
application process easier for applicants and agents while maintaining the integrity of our disciplined risk
management requirements.

Underwriting and Risk Management

Our underwriting and risk management capabilities include pricing discipline, policy underwriting and
renewal optimization, development and retention of provider networks, product development and claims
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processing. In establishing premium rates for our health care plans, we use underwriting criteria based upon our
accumulated actuarial data, with adjustments for factors such as claims experience and member demographics to
evaluate anticipated health care costs. Qur pricing considers the expected frequency and sevemy of claims and
the costs of providing the necessary coverage, including the cost of administering policy benefits, sales and other
administrative costs,

We also utilize a broad range of focused traditional cost containment and care management processes across
our various product lines to manage risk and to lower costs. These include case management, disease
management and pharmacy benefits management programs. We retain provider networks through a variety of
relationships. These refationships generally include leased networks, such as Private Health Care Systems. Inc.
{“PHCS™), which contract directly with individual health care providers. Assurant Health was a co-founder of
PHCS. Although we sold our equity interest in PHCS during 2006, we continue to have access to the PHCS
network. Pharmacy benefits management is provided by Medco Health Solutions, formerly known as Merck-
Medco. Medco Health Solutions has established itself as a leader in its industry with almost 60,000 participating
retail pharmacies nationwide and its extensive mail-order service. Through Medco Health Solutions’ advanced
technology platforms, Assurant Health is able to access information about customer utilization patierns on a
timelier basis to improve its risk management capabilities. In addition to the technology-based advantages,
Medco Health Solutions allows us to purchase our pharmacy benefits at competitive prices. Our agreement with
Medco Health Solutions expires June 30, 2007 and we are currently in negotiations to renew this contract. We
also utilize co-payments and deductibles to reduce prescription drug costs.

Assurant Employee Benefits

For the Year Ended  For the Yecar Ended
December 31,2006  December 31, 2005

Net Earned Premiums and Other Considerations:

GroupDental ........ ... i e $ 428218 $ 502,789
Group Disability Single Premiums for Closed Blocks (1) .............. 46,313 26,700
All Other Group Disability .. ... 480,924 489,840
Group Life ... i e 224,447 258.509
Total ................ AU $1,179,902 $1,277.838
Segment NetIncome . ...t $ 83603 5 68366
Loss ratlo () . o e e e e 70.4% 73.3%
Expense ratio (3) . ..ot 33.7% 32.1%
Equity (4) ..o $ 615612 $ 610,248

(1) This represents single premium on closed blocks of group disability business.

{2) The loss ratio is equal to policyholder benefits divided by net earned premiums and other considerations.

(3) The expense ratio is equal to selling, underwriting and general expenses divided by net earned premiums
and other considerations and fees and other income.

(4) Equity excludes accumulated other comprehensive income.

Products and Services

We focus our group business around the needs of the small employer, which we define as businesses with
fewer than 500 employees. We believe that our core capabilities around small group risk selection, administrative
systems that can efficiently handle thousands of cases, and our strong relationships with brokers who work
primarily with small businesses gives us a competitive advantage over other companies.

We offer a full range of group disability, dental, life and voluntary products as well as individual dental
products. The group products are offered with funding option choices ranging from fully employer paid to fully
employee paid (voluntary).




Group Disability: Group disability insurance provides partial replacement of lost earnings for insured
employees who become disabled as defined by their plan provisions. Our group disability products include both
short-and tong-term disability coverage options. We also reinsure disability policies written by other carriers
through our subsidiary Disability Reinsurance Management Services. Inc. (“DRMS™).

Group long-term disability insurance provides income protection for extended work absences due to
sickness or injury. Most policies commence benefits following 90- or 130-day waiting periods, with benefits
limited to specified maximums as a percentage of income, Group short-term disability insures temporary loss of
income due to injury or sickness, and often provides benefits immediately for disabilities caused by accidents or
after one week for disabilities caused by sickness.

Group Dental: Dental benefit plans provide funding for necessary or elective dental care. Customers may
select a traditional indemnity arrangement, a PPO arrangement, or a prepaid or managed care arrangement.
Coverage is subject to deductibles, coinsurance and annual or lifetime maximums. In a prepaid plan, members
must use participating dentists in order to receive benefits.

[n addition to fully insured and managed care dental benefits, we offer Administrative Services Only
("ASO") for self-funded dental plans. Under the ASO arrangement, an employer or plan sponsor pays us a fee to
provide administrative services.

Success in the group dental business requires strong provider network development and management, a
focus on expense management and a claim system capable of efficiently and accurately adjudicating high
volumes of transactions. These success factors are the cornerstone of our dental business.

In 2006, we entered a joint network leasing agreement with Aetna which will strengthen our Dental PPO
network position beginning in 2007. Aetna will add to its PPO offerings the dentists contracted with Dental
Health Aliiance, L.L.C.®, the dental PPO operated by Assurant Employee Benefits. Assurant Employee Benefits
will begin marketing a network comprised of the Dental Health Alliance® and the Aetna Dental Access®
networks. This agreement opens up an additional 30+ dental PPO markets and, we believe, enhances the
attractiveness of our dentat offerings to the small employer.

Group Life: Group term life insurance provided through the workplace provides financial coverage in the
event of premature death. Accidental death and dismemberment (“AD&D”) insurance, as well as coverage for
spouses, children or domesltic partners is also available. Insurance consists primarily of renewable term life
insurance with the amount of coverage either a flat amount, a multiple of the employee’s eamings, or a
combination of the two. .

Marketing und Distribution

Ouwr insurance products and services are distributed through a group sales force strategically positioned in 35
U.S. offices located near major metropolitan areas. These company employees distribute our preducts and
services through independent employee benefits advisors, including brokers and other intermediaries, and are
compensated through a salary and incentive package. Daily account management is provided through the local
sales office, further supported by one of four regional sales service centers and a home office customer relations
department. Compensation to brokers is generally provided at the time of sale, and in some cases includes a
performance incentive, based on volume and retention of business.

Marketing efforts concentrate on the identification of our target customers’ benefit needs, the development
and communication of products and services tailored 10 meet those needs, alignment of our Company with select
high-potential brokers and other intermediaries who value our approach to the market, and the promotion of the
Assurant Employee Benefits® brand.
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DRMS, our wholly owned subsidiary, assists customers in obtaining reinsurance for other carriers wanting
to supplement their core product offerings with a turnkey group disability insurance solution. Services are
provided for a fee and may include product development, state insurance regulatory filings, underwriting, claims
management or any of the other functions typically performed by an insurer’s back office. The risks written by
DRMS' various clients are reinsured into a pool, with the clients generally retaining shares ranging from 20% to
60% of the risk. Because DRMS’ clients operate in niches not often reached through our traditional distribution,
our participation in the pools enables us to reach new customers.

Underwriting and Risk Management

The pricing of our products is based on the expected cost of benefits, calculated using assumptions for
mortality, morbidity, interest, expenses and persistency. depending upon the specific product features, Group
underwriting takes into account demographic factors such as age, gender and occupation of members of the
group as well as the geographic location and concentration of the group. Some policies limit the payment of
benefits for certain defined or pre-existing conditions, or in other ways seek to limit the risk from anti-selection.
Our block of business is highly diversified by industry and geographic location, which serves to limit some of the
risks associated with changing economic conditions.

Disability claims management focuses on facilitating positive return-to-work through a supportive network
of services that may include physical therapy, vocational rehabilitation, and workplace accommodation. In
addition to claims specialists, we also employ or contract with a staff of doctors, nurses and vocational
rehabilitation specialists, and use a broad range of additional outside medical and vocational experts for
independent evaluations and local vocational services. Our dental business uses a highly automated claims
system focused on rapid handling of claims.

Ratings

Rating organizations continually review the financial position of insurers, including our insurance
subsidiaries. Insurance companies are assigned financial strength ratings by independent rating agencies based
upon factors relevant 1o policyholders. Ratings provide both industry participants and insurance consumers
meaningful information on specific insurance companies and are an important factor in establishing the
compelitive position of insurance companies. Most of our active domestic operating insurance subsidiaries are
rated by A.M. Best. A.M. Best maintains a letter scale rating system ranging from “A++" (Superior) to “S”
{Suspended). Six of our domestic operating insurance subsidiaries are also rated by Moody’s. In addition, seven
of our domeslic operating insurance subsidiaries are rated by S&P.

All of our domestic operating insurance subsidiaries rated by A.M. Best have financial strength ratings of A
(“Excellent”™), which is the second highest of ten ratings categories and the highest within the category based on
modifiers (i.e.. A and A- are “Excellent™), or A- (“Excellent™), which is the second highest of ten ratings
categories and the lowest within the category based on modifiers.

The Moody's financial strength rating for six of our domestic operating insurance subsidiaries is
A2 (“Good™), which is the third highest of nine ratings categories and mid-range within the category based on
modifiers (i.e., Al, A2 and A3 are “Good”).

The $&P financial strength rating for four of our domestic operating insurance subsidiaries is A (“Strong”),
which is the third highest of nine ratings categories and mid-range within the category based on modifiers (i.e.,
A+, A and A- are “Strong”), and for three of our domestic operating insurance subsidiaries is A- with a positive
outlook (“Strong”), which is the third highest of nine ratings categories and the lowest within the category based
on modifiers.

The objective of A.M. Best's, Moody's and S&F's ratings systems is 1o assist policyholders and to provide
an opinion of an insurer's financial strength, operating performance, strategic position and ability to meet
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ongoing obligations to its policyholders. These ratings reflect the opinions of A.M. Best, Moody’s and S&P of
our ability to pay policyholder claims, are not applicable to our common stock or debt securities and are not a
recommendation to buy, sell or hold any security, including our commeon stock or debt securities. These ratings
are subject to periodic review by and may be revised upward, downward or revoked at the sole discretion of
A.M. Best, Moody's and S&P.

Employees

We had approximately 13,400 employees as of February 15, 2007. Assurant Solutions has employees in
Argentina, Brazil, lialy and Mexico that are represented by labor unions and trade organizations.

Available Information

Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, the
Statements of Beneficial Ownership of Securities on Forms 3, 4 and 5 for our Directors and Officers and all
amendments to such reports, filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, are available free of charge at the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC") website at
www.sec.gov. These documents are also available free of charge through our website at www.assurant.com.




Item LA. Risk Factors

Risks Related to Our Company

Our income and profitability may decline if we are unable to maintain our relationships with significant
cllen.rs, distributors and other parties important to the success of our business.

Our relationships and contractual arrangements with significant clients, distributors and other parties with
whom we do business are important to the success of our business segments. Many of these arrangements are
exclusive. For example, in Assurant Specialty Property, we have exclusive relationships with manufactured
housing and mortgage lenders. In Assurant Solutions, we have exclusive relationships with retailers and financial
and other institutions through which we distribute our products, including an exclusive preneed distribution
relationship with SCI relating to the distribution of pre-funded funeral insurance policies. In Assurant Health, we
have exclusive distribution relationships for our individual health insurance products with a major mutual
insurance company as well as a relationship with a well known association through which we provide many of
our individual health insurance products. We also maintain contractual relationships with several separate
networks of health and dental care providers, each referred to as a PPO, through which we obtain discounts.
Typically, these relationships and contractual arrangements have terms ranging from one to five years.

Although we believe we have generally been successful in maintaining our client, distribution and
associated relationships, if these parties decline to renew or seek to lerminate these arrangements or seek to
renew these contracts on terms less favorable to us, our results of operations and financial condition could be
matérially adversély affected. For example, a loss of one or more of the discount arrangements with PPOs could
lead to higher medical or dental costs and/or a loss of members to other medical or dental plans. In addition. we
are subject to the risk that these parties may face financial difficulties, reputational issues or problems with
respect to their own products and services, which may lead to decreased sales of our products and services.
Moreover, if one or more of our clients or distributors consolidate or align themselves with other companies, we
may lose business or suffer decreased revenues.

Sales of our products and services may be reduced if we are unable to attract and retain sales representatives
or develop and maintain distribution sources.

We distribute our insurance products and services through a variety of distribution channels, including
independent employee benefits specialists, brokers, managing general agents, life agents, financial institutions,
mortgage lenders and servicers, retailers, funeral homes, association groups and other third-party marketing
organizations. -

Our relationships with these various distributors are significant both for our revenues and profits. We
generally do not distribute our insurance products and services through captive or affiliated agents. In Assurant
Health, we depend in large part on the services of independent agents and brokers and on associations in the
marketing of our products. In Assurant Employee Benefits, independent agents and brokers who act as advisors
to our customers market and distribute our products. Strong competition exists among insurers to form
relationships with agents and brokers of demonstrated ability. We compete with other insurers for sales
representatives, agents and brekers primarily on the basis of our financial position, support services,
compensation and product features. Independent agents and brokers are typically not exclusively dedicated to us,
but instead usually also market the products of our competitors and therefore we face continued competition from
our competiters’ products, Moreover, our ability to market our preducts and services depends on our ability to
tailor cur channels of distribution to comply with changes in the regulatory environment in which we and such
agents and brokers operate. For example, in the past, both the marketing of health insurance through association
groups and broker compensation arrangements have come under increased scrutiny. An interruption in, or
changes to, our relationships with various third-party distributors or our inability to respend to regulatory
changes that threaten to disrupt our distribution processes could impair our ability 1o compete and market our
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insurance products and services that could cause a material adverse effect on our results of operations and
financial condition.

We have our own sales representatives whose role in the distribution process varies by segment. We depend
in large part on our sales representatives to develop and maintain client relationships. Our inability to attract and
retain effective sales representatives could materially adversely affect our results of operations and financial
condition.

General economic, financial market and political conditions may adversely affect our results of operations
and financial condition,

General economic, financial market and political conditions may have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations and financial condition. These conditions include economic cycles such as insurance
industry cycles, levels of employment, levels of consumer lending, levels of consumer spending, levels of
inflation and movements of the financial markets.

Fluctuations in interest rates, morigage rates, monetary policy, demographics, and legislative and
competitive factors also influence our performance. Qur expansion into foreign countries may result in similar
risks, including currency fluctuations, unstable political climates, and governmental and competitive factors.
During periods of economic downturn:

* individuals and businesses may choose not to purchase our insurance products and other related
products and services, may terminate existing policies or contracts or permit them to lapse, may choose
to reduce the amount of coverage purchased or. in Assurant Employee Benefits and in small group
employer health insurance in Assurant Health, may have fewer employees requiring insurance coverage
due to reductions in their staffing levels;

+ new disability insurance claims and claims on other specialized insurance products tend to rise:

« there is a higher loss ratio on credit card and installment loan insurance due to rising unemployment and
disability levels;

* insureds tend to increase their utilization of health and dental benefits if they anticipate becoming
unemployed or losing benefits; and

In addition, general inflationary pressures may affect the costs of medical and dental care, as well as repair
and replacement costs on our real and personal property lines, increasing the costs of paying claims. Inflationary
pressures may also affect the costs associated with our preneed insurance policies, particularly those that are
guaranteed to grow with the Consumer Price Index (“CPT™).

Our actual claims losses may exceed our reserves for claims, which may require us to establish additional
reserves that may materially reduce our earnings, profitability and capital.

We maintain reserves to cover our estimated ultimate exposure for claims and claim adjustment expenses
with respect to reported and incurred but not reported claims (“IBNR™) as of the end of each accounting period.
Reserves, whether calculated under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“GAAP") or Statutory Accounting Principles (“SAP™), do not represent an exact calculation of exposure, but
instead represent our best estimates, generally involving actuwarial projections at a given time, of what we expect
the ultimate settlement and administration of a claim or group of claims will cost based on our assessment of
facts and circumstances then known. The adequacy of reserves will be impacted by future trends in claims
severity, frequency, judicial theories of liability and other factors. These variables are affected by both external
and internal events, such as changes in the economic cycle, changes in the social perception of the value of work,
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emerging medical perceptions regarding physiological or psychological causes of disability. emerging health
issues and new methods of treatment or accommodation, inflation, judicial trends, legislative changes and claims
handling procedures. Many of these items are not directly quantifiable, particularly on a prospective basis,
Reserve estimates are refined as experience develops. Adjustments to reserves, both positive and negative, are
reflected in the statement of operations of the period in which such estimates are updated.-Because establishment
of reserves is an inherently uncertain process involving estimates of future losses, there can be no certainty that
ultimate losses will not exceed existing claims reserves. In addition, future loss development could require
reserves (o be increased. which could have a material adverse effect on our earnings in the periods in which such
increases are made.

We may be unable to accurately predict benefits, claims and other costs or to manage such costs through our
loss limitation methods, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial
condition.

Our profitability could vary depending on our ability to predict benefits, claims and other costs, including
medical and dental costs, and predictions regarding the frequency and magnitude of claims on our disability and
property coverages. It also depends on our ability to manage future benefit and other costs through product
design, underwriting criteria, utilization review or claims management and, in health and dental insurance,
negotiation of favorable provider contracts. Utilization review is a review process designed to control and limit
medical expenses, which includes, among other things, requiring certification for admission to a health care
facility and cost-effective ways of handling patients with catastrophic ilinesses. Claims management entails the
use of a variety of means to mitigate the extent of losses incurred by insureds and the corresponding benefit cost.
which includes efforts to improve the quality of medical care provided to insureds and to assist them with
vocational services. Our ability to predict and manage costs and claims, as well as our business, results of
operations and financial condition may be adversely affected by changes in health and dental care practices,
inflation, new technologies, the cost of prescription drugs, clusters of high cost cases. changes in the regulatory
environment, economic factors, the occurrence of catastrophes and increased construction and repair related
costs.

The judicial and regulatory environments. changes in the composition of the kinds of work available in the
economy, market conditions and numerous other factors may also materially adversely affect our ability to
manage claim costs. The aging of the population, other demographic characteristics and advances in medical
technology continue to contribute to rising health care costs. As a result of one or more of these facters or other
factors, claims could substantially exceed our expectations, which could have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations and financial condition.

As industry practices and legal. judicial, social and other environmental conditions change, unexpected and
unintended issues relating to claims and coverage may emerge. These issues could materially adversely affect our
results of operations and financial condition by either extending coverage beyond our underwriting intent or by
increasing the number or size of claims or both. We may be limited in our ability to respond 10 such changes, by
insurance regulations, existing contract terms. contract filing requirements, market conditions or other factors.

Our investment portfolio is subject to several risks that may diminish the value of our invested assets and
affect our profitability.

Qur investment portfolio may suffer reduced returns or losses that could reduce our profitability.

Investment returns are an important part of our overall profitability and significant fluctuations in the fixed
income market could impair our profitability, financial condition and/or cash flows. Our investments are subject
to market-wide risks and fluctuations, as well as to risks inherent in particular securities. [n particular, volaility
of claims may force us to liquidate securities prior to maturity, which may cause us to incur capital losses. If we
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do not structure our investment portfolio so that it is appropriately matched with our insurance liabilittes, we may
be forced 1o liquidate investments prior to maturily at a significant loss to cover such liabilities. Qur net
investment income and net realized gains on investments collectively accounted for approximately 11% of our
total revenues during the year ending December 31, 2006 and 9% of our total revenues during the year ending
December 31, 2003, See “ltem 7—Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—Investments” and “ltem 7A—Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk™ for
additional information on our investment portfolio and related risks.

The performance of our investment portfolio is subject to fluctuations due to changes in interest rates and market
conditions.

Changes in interest rates can negatively affect the performance of some of our investments. Interest rate
volatility can reduce unrealized gains or create unrealized losses in our portfolios. Interest rates are highly
sensitive to many factors, including governmental monetary policies, domestic and intemational economic and
political conditions and other factors beyond our control. Fixed maturity and short-term investments represented
76% of the fair value of our total investments as of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005. See “ltem 7—
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Investments™ and
“lItem 7TA—Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk™ for additional information on the effect
of fluctuations in interest rates.

The fair market value of the fixed maturity securities in our portfolio and the investment income from these
securities fluctuate depending on general economic and market conditions. Because substantially all of our fixed
maturity securities are classified as available for sale, changes in the market value of these securities are reflected
in our balance sheet. The fair market value generally increases or decreases in an inverse relationship with
fluctuations in interest rates, while net investment income realized by us from future investments in fixed
maturity securities will generally increase or decrease with interest rates. In addition, actual net investment
income and/or cash flows from investments that carry prepayr:henl risk, such as mortgage-backed and other asset-
backed securities, may differ from those anticipated at the time of investment as a result of interest rate
fluctuations. In periods of declining interest rates, mortgage prepayments generally increase and mortgage-
backed securities, commercial mortgage obligations and bonds in our investment ponfolio are more likely to be
prepaid or redeemed as borrowers seek to borrow at lower interest rates, and we may be required to reinvest
those funds in lower interest-bearing investments. As of December 31, 2006, mortgage-backed and other asset-
backed securities represented $1.206,597, or 9.7%. of the fair value of our total investments.

We employ asset/liability management strategies to reduce the adverse effects of interest rate volatility and
to ensure that cash flows are available to pay claims as they become due. Our asset/liability management
strategies include asset/liability duration management, structuring our bond and commercial mortgage loan
portfolios 1o limit the effects of prepayments and consistent monitoring of, and appropriate changes to, the
pricing of our products.

Asset/liability management strategies may faif to eliminate or reduce the adverse effects of interest rate
volatility. and no assurances can be given that significant fluctuations in the level of interest rates will not have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

In addition, our preneed insurance policies are generally whole life insurance policies with increasing death
benefits. [n extended periods of declining interest rates or high inflation, there may be compression in the spread
between the death benefit growth rates on these policies and the investment eamings that we can earn, resulting
in a negative spread. As a result, declining interest rates or high inflation rates may have a materia! adverse effect
on our results of operations and our overall financial condition. See “ltem 7A—Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures About Market Risk—Inflation Risk™ for additional information.

Assurant Employee Benefits calculates reserves for long-term disability and life waiver of premium claims
using net present value calculations based on current interest rates at the time claims are funded and expectations
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regarding future interest rates. Waiver of premium refers to a provision in a life insurance policy pursuant to .
which an insured with a disability that lasts for a specified period no longer has to pay premiums for the duration
of the disability or for a stated period, during which time the life insurance coverage provides continued
coverage. If interest rates decline, reserves for open and/or new claims in Assurant Employee Benefits would
need to be calculated using lower discount rates thereby increasing the net present value of those claims and the
required reserves. Depending on the magnitude of the decline, this could have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations and financial condition. In addition, investment income may be lower than that assumed in
.setting premium rates. '

Our investment portfolio is subject 1o credir risk.

We are subject to credit risk in our investment portfolio, primarily from our investments in corporate bonds
and preferred stocks. Defaults by third panties in the payment or performance of their obligations could reduce
our investment income and realized investment gains or result in investment losses. Further, the value of any
particular fixed maturity security is subject to impairment based on the creditworthiness of a given issuer. As of
December 31, 2006, fixed maturity securities represented 73% of the fair value of our total invested assets. Qur
fixed maturity portfolio also includes below investment grade securities (rated “BB™ or lower by nationally
recognized securities rating organizations). These investments generally provide higher expected returns, but
present greater risk and can be less liquid than investment grade securities. A significant increase in defaults and
impairments on our fixed maturity investment portfolio could materially adversely affect our results of
operations and financial condition. See “Item 7A—Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market
Risk—Credit Risk™ for additional information on the composition of our fixed maturity investment portfolio.

The Company currently invests in a small amount of equity securities (approximately 6% of the fair value of
our total investments as of December 31, 2006). However, we have had higher percentages in the past and may
make more such investments in the future. Investments in equity securities generally provide higher expecied
total returns, but present greater risk to preservation of principal than our fixed maturity investments.

In addition, while we currently do not utilize derivative instruments to hedge or manage our interest rate or
equity risk, we may do so in the future. Derivative instruments generally present greater risk than fixed income
investments or equity investments because of their greater sensitivity to market fluctuations. Since August 1,
2003, we have been utilizing derivative instruments to manage the exposure to inflation risk created by our
preneed insurance policies that are tied to the CPL. However, we would not be fully protected by the derivative
instruments if there were a sharp increase in inflation on a sustained long-term basis which could have a material
adverse effect on our resuits of operations and financial condition.

Our commercial mortgage loans and real estate investments subject us to liquidity risk.

Our commercial mortgage loans on real estate investments {which represented approximately 10% of the
fair value of our total investments as of December 31, 2006) are relatively illiquid, thus increasing our liquidity
risk. In addition, if we require extremely large amounts of cash on short notice, we may have difficulty selling
these investments at attractive prices, in a timely manner, or both.

The risk parameters of our investment porifolio may not target an appropriate level of risk, thereby reducing our
profitability and diminishing our ability to compete and grow.

We seek to earn returns on our investmeints to enhance our ability to offer competitive rates and prices to
our customers. Accordingly, our investment decisions and objectives are a function of the underlying risks and
product profiles of each of our business segments. However, if we do not succeed in targeting an appropriate
overall risk level for our investment portfolio, the return on cur investments may be insufficient to meet our
profit targets over the long term, thereby reducing our profitability. If, in response, we choose to increase our
product prices to maintain profitability, we may diminish our ability to compete and grow.
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Environmental liability exposure may result from our commercial morigage loan portfolio and real estate
investments.

Liability under environmental protection laws resulting from our commercial mortgage loan portfolio and real
estate investments may harm our financial strength and reduce our profitability. Under the laws of several states,
contamination of a property may give rise to a lien on the property to secure recovery of the costs of the cleanup.
In some states, this kind of lien has priority over the lien of an existing mortgage against the property, which
would impair our ability to foreclose on that property should the related loan be in default. In addition. under the
laws of some states and under the federal Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability
Act of 1980, under certain circumstances, we may be liable for costs of addressing releases or threatened releases
of hazardous substances that require remedy at a property securing a mortgage loan held by us. We also may face
this liability after foreclosing on a property securing a mortgage loan held by us after a loan default.

Catastrophe losses, including man-made catastrophe losses, could materially reduce our profitability and have
a material adverse effect on our resulits of operations and financial condition.

Our insurance operations expose us to claims arising out of catastrophes, particularly in our homeowners,
tife and other personal business lines. We have experienced, and expect in the future to experience, catastrophe
losses that may materially reduce our profitability or have a material adverse effect on our results of operations
and financial condition. Catastrophes can be caused by various natural events, including, but not limited 1o,
hurricanes, windstorms, earthquakes, hailstorms, severe winter weather, fires and epidemics, or can be man-made
catastrophes, inctuding terrorist attacks or accidents such as airplane crashes. The frequency and severity of
catastrophes are inherently unpredictable. Catastrophe losses can vary widely and could significantly exceed our
recent historic results. It is possible that both the frequency and severity of man-made catastrophes will increase
and that we will not be able to implement exclusions from coverage in our policies or obtain reinsurance for such
catastrophes.

The extent of losses from a catastrophe is a function of both the total amount of insured exposure in the area
affected by the event and the severity of the event. Most of our catastrophe claims in the past have related to
homeowners and other personal lines coverages, which, for the year ended December 31, 2006, represented
approximately 84% of our net eamed premiums in our Assurant Specialty Property segment. In addition, as of
December 31, 2006, approximately 37% of the insurance in force in our homeowners and other personal lines
related to properties located in California, Florida and Texas. As a result of our creditor-placed homeowners and
creditor-placed manufactured housing insurance products, which automatically provide coverage against an
insured's property being destroyed or damaged by various perils, cur concentration in these areas may increase in
the future. If other insurers withdraw coverage in these or other states, this may lead to adverse selection and
increased utilization of our creditor-placed homeowners or creditor-placed manufactured housing insurance in
these areas and may negatively impact loss experience. Adverse selection refers to the process by which an
applicant who believes him or herself to be uninsurable, or at greater than average risk, seeks to obtain an
insurance policy at a standard premium rate. Claims resulting from natural or man-made catastrophes could cause
substantial volatility in our financial results for any fiscal quarter or year and could materially reduce our
profitability or harm our financial condition. Our ability to write new business also could be affected. Increases
in the value and geographic concentration of insured property and the effects of inflation could increase the
severity of claims from catastrophes in the future.

Pre-tax catastrophe losses in excess of $5,000 (before the benefits of reinsurance) that we have experienced
in recent years include (total losses do not include amounts paid in connection with the National Flood Insurance
Program as we are only an administrator and have no risk under the Program):

« total losses of approximately $339,000 incurred through December 31, 2005, in connection with
* Hurricanes Dennis, Katrina, Rita and Wilma. Total reinsurance recoveries related to these events were
approximately $296.000; and '

= total losses of approximately $125,000 incurred through December 31, 2004, in connection with the four
Florida hurricanes. Total reinsurance recoveries related to these events were approximately $34,000.
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No liguidation in investments was required in connection with these catastrophes as the claims were paid
from current cash flow, cash on hand or short-term investments.

In addition, our group life and health insurance operations could be materially impacted by catastrophes
such as a terrorist attack, a natural disaster, a pandemic or an epidemic that causes a widespread increase in
mortality or disability rates or that causes an increase in the need for medical care. If the severity of such an event
were sufficiently high, it could exceed our reinsurance coverage limits and could have a material adverse effect
on our results of operations and financial condition. In addition, with respect to our preneed insurance policies,
the average age of policyhclders is in excess of 73 years. This group is more suseeptible 1o certain epidemics
than the overall population, and an epidemic-resulting in a higher incidence of morlahly could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

Some of our business segments may also face the loss of premium income due to a large scale business
interruption caused by a catastrophe combined with legislative or regulatory reactions to the event. For example,
following hurricanes in 2005, several states suspended premium payment or precluded insurers from canceling
coverage in defined areas. While the premiums uncollected were immaterial, a more serious catastrophe
combined with a similar legislative or regulatory response could materially impact our ability to collect
premiums in connection with our liabilities and thereby have a material adverse effecl on our resufts of
operations and financial condition.

Our ability to manage these risks depends in part on our successful utilization of catastrophic property and
life reinsurance to limit the size of property and life losses from a single event or multiple events, and life and
disability reinsurance to limit the size of life or disability insurance exposure on an individual insured lifé. It also
depends in part on state regulation that may prohibit us from excluding such risks or from withdrawing from or
increasing premium rates in catastrophe-prone areas. As discussed further below, catastrophe reinsurance for our
group insurance lines is not currently widely available. This means that the occurrence of a significant
catastrophe could materially reduce our profitability and have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations and financial condition.

Reinsurance may not be available or adequate to protect us against losses, and we are subject to the credit risk
of reinsurers.

As part of our overall risk and capacity management strategy., we purchase reinsurance for certain risks
underwritten by our various business segments. Market conditions beyond our control determine the availability
and cost of the reinsurance protection we purchase. Reinsurance for certain types of catastrophes generally could
become unavailable for some of our businesses and has become more expensive. Due to these changes in the
reinsurance market, our exposure to the risk of significant losses from natural or man-made catastrophes may
hinder our ability to write future business. '

As part of our business, we have reinsured certain life, property and casualty and health risks to reinsurers.
Although the reinsurer is liable to us to the extent of the ceded reinsurance, we remain liable to the insured as the
direct insurer on all risks reinsured. As a result, ceded reinsurance arrangements do not eliminate our obligation
to pay claims. We are subject to credit risk with respect 10 our ability to recover amounts due from reinsurers,
Due to insolvency, adverse underwriting results or inadequate investmeni returns, our reinsurers may not pay the
reinsurance recoverables that they owe to us or they may not pay such recoverables on a timely basis.

Our reinsurance facilities are generally subject to annual renewal. We may not be able to maintain our
current reinsurance facilities and, even where highly desirable or necessary, we may not be able to obtain other
reinsurance facilities in adequate amounts and at favorable rates. [f we are unable 10 renew our expiring facilities
or to obtain new reinsurance facilities, either our net exposures would increase or, if we are unwilling to bear an
increase in net exposures, we may have 1o reduce the level of our underwriting commitments. Either of these
potential developments could materially adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.
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We have sold businesses through reinsurance that could again become our direct financial and administrative
responsibility if the purchasing companies were to become insolvent.

In the past, we have sold businesses through reinsurance ceded to third parties. For example, in 2001 we
sold the insurance operations of our Fortis Financial Group (“FFG") division to The Hartford Financial Services
Group, Inc. (“The Hartford"™) and in 2000 we sold our Long Term Care (“LTC”) division to John Hancock Life
Insurance Company {*John Hancock™), now a subsidiary of Manulife Financial Corporation. Most of the general
account assets backing reserves coinsured with The Hartford and John Hancock are held in trusts that could aid
in protecting us financially if The Hartford or John Hancock were to fail. However, such trusts have varying
provisions regarding how fully funded they are required to be and how often they must be restored to such
funded status. Therefore, protection from the trusts is only existent to the extent the coinsurance trusts are funded
at the time of reinsurer default. Aside from the coinsurance, a portion of the assets backing FFG general account
reserves and all of the FFG separate accounts remain on our balance sheet pursuant to modified coinsurance
arrangements. In addition to the financial risk, we have the additional risk of becoming responsible for
administering these businesses in the event of a default by either reinsurer. We do not have the administrative
systems and capabilities to process this business today. Accordingly, we would need to obtain those capabilities
in the event of an insolvency of one or more of the reinsurers of these businesses. We might be forced to obtain
such capabilities on unfavorable terms with a resulting material adverse effect on our results of operations and
financial condition.

Due to the structure of our commission program, we are exposed to the credit risk of some of our agents and
our clients in Assurant Solutions and Assurant Specialty Property.

We advance agents’ commissions as part of our preneed insurance product offerings. These advances are a
percentage of the total face amount of coverage as opposed to a percentage of the first-year premium paid, the
formula that is more common in other life insurance markets. There is a one-year payback provision against the
agency if death or lapse occurs within the first policy year. In addition, if SCI were unable to fulfill its payback
obligations. this could have an adverse effect on our operations and financial condition.

In addition, we are subject to the credit risk of the clients and/or agents with which we contract in Assurant
Solutions and Assurant Specialty Property. If these parties fail to remit payments owed to us or fail 1o pass on
payments they collect on our behalf, it could have an adverse effect on our results of operations.

A further decline in the manufactured housing market may adversely affect our results of operations and
financial condition.

The manufactured housing industry has experienced a significant decline in both shipments and retail sales
in the last seven years. The downturn in the manufactured housing industry is a result of several factors,
including the impact of repossessions, the lack of retail financing, reduced resale values, and the consolidations
of manufacturers and lenders of manufactured housing. In the year ended December 31, 2006, our sales of
homeowners’ policies in the manufactured housing sector comprised 18% of Assurant Specialty Property’s net
written premiums. If these downward trends continue, without diversification and growth in other manufactured
housing product lines, our results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected.

A.M. Best, Moody’s, and S&P rate the financial strength of our insurance company subsidiaries, and a
decline in these ratings could affect our standing in the insurance industry and cause our sales and earnings
to decrease.

Ratings have become an increasingly important factor in establishing the competitive position of insurance
companies. A.M. Best rates most of our domestic operating insurance subsidiaries. Moody’s rates six of our
domestic operating insurance subsidiaries and S&P rates seven of our domestic operating insurance subsidiaries.
The ratings reflect A.M. Best's. Moody's. and S&P's opinions of our subsidiaries’ financial strength, operating
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performance, strategic position and ability to meet their obligations to policyholders. The ratings are not
evaluations directed to investors and are not recommendations to buy, sell or hold our securities. These ratings
are subject to periodic review by A.M. Best, Meody’s, and S&P, and we cannot assure you that we will be able
1o retain these ratings. For more information on the specific A.M. Best, Moody's, and S&P ratings of our
domestic operating insurance subsidiaries, see “Item 1—Business—Ratings.”

If our ratings are reduced from their current levels by A.M. Best, Moody's, or S&P, or placed under
surveillance or review with possible negative implications, our competitive position in the respective insurance
industry segments could suffer and it could be more difficult for us to market our products. Rating agencies may
take action to lower our ratings in the future due to, among other things the competitive environment in the
insurance industry, which may adversely affect our revenues, the inherent uncertainty in determining reserves for
future claims, which may cause us to increase our reserves for claims, the outcome of pending litigation and
regulatory investigations, which may adversely affect our financial position and reputation and possible changes
in the methodology or criteria applied by the rating agencies.

As customers and their advisors place importance on our financial strength ratings, we may lose customers
and compete less successfully if we are downgraded. In addition, ratings impact our ability to attract investment
capital on favorable terms. If our financial strength ratings are reduced from their current levels by A.M. Best,
Moody's, or S&P, our cost of borrowing would likely increase, our sales and earnings could decrease and our
results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

Contracts representing approximately 23% of Assurant Selutions’ net earned premivms and fee income for
the year ended December 31, 2006 contain provisions requiring the applicable subsidiaries to maintain minimum
A.M. Best financial strength ratings ranging from “A” or better to “B” or better, depending on the contract. Qur
clients may terminate these contracts or not renew contracts if the subsidiaries® ratings fall below these minimum
or other acceptable levels. Under our ten-year marketing agreement with SCI, American Memorial Life
Insurance Company (“*AMLIC”), one of our subsidiaries, is required to maintain an A.M. Best financial strength
rating of “B" or better throughout the term of the agreement. If AMLIC fails to maintain this rating for a period
of 180 days, SCI may terminate the agreement.

The failure to effectively maintain and modernize our information systems could adversely affect our
business.

Our business is dependent upon the ability to keep up to date with technological advances. This is
particularly important where our systems, including our ability to keep our systems integrated with those of our
clients, are critical to the operation of our business. If we do not update our systems to reflect technological
advancements or protect our systems, our relationships and ability to do business with our clients may be
adversely affected,

Our business depends significantly on effective information systems, and we have many different
information systems for our various businesses. We must commit significant resources to maintain and enhance
our existing information systems and develop new information systems in order to keep pace with continuing
changes in information processing technology, evolving industry, regulatory and legal standards and changing
customer preferences. A failure to maintain effective and efficient information systems, or a failure to efficiently
and effectively consolidate our information systems to eliminate redundant or obsolete applications, could have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. If we do not maintain adequate
systems we could experience adverse consequences, including inadequate information on which to base pricing,
underwriting and reserving decisions, the loss of existing customers, difficulty attracting new customers,
customer, provider and agent disputes, regulatory problems, such as failure to meet prompt payment obligations,
litigation exposure, or increases in administrative expenses.

Our management information, internal control and financial reporting systems may need further
enhancements and development to satisfy continuing financial and other.reporting requirements of being a public
company.
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Failure to protect our clients’ confidential information and privacy could result in the loss of reputation and
customers, reduction to our profitability and/or subject us to fines, litigation and penalties.

A number of our businesses are subject to privacy regulations and to confidentiality obligations. For
example, the collection and use of patient data in our Assurant Health and Assurant Employee Benefits segments
is the subject of national and state legislation, including the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
(“HIPAA™), and certain activities conducted by our segments are subject to the privacy regulations of the
Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act. We also have contractual obligations to protect certain confidential information we
obtain from our existing vendors, servicing companies, and clients. These obligations generally include
protecting such confidential information to the same extent as we protect our own confidential information or in
accordance with laws that govern our clients. The actions we take to protect such confidential information vary
by business segment and may include, among other things, training and educating our employees regarding our
obligations relating to confidential information, actively monitoring our record retention plans and any changes
in state or federal privacy and compliance requirements, drafting appropriate contractual provisions into any
contract that raises proprietary and confidentiality issues, maintaining and utilizing appropriately secure storage
facilities for tangible records, and limiting access, as appropriate, to both tangible records and to electronic
information.

In addition, we maintain a comprehensive written information security program with appropriate
administrative, technical and physical safeguards to protect such confidential information. If we do not propetly
comply with privacy and security laws and regulations that require us to protect confidential information, we
could experience adverse consequences, including loss of customers and related revenue, regulatory problems
(including fines and penalties), loss of reputation and civil litigation.

See “Risks Related to Qur Industry—Costs of compliance with privacy and security laws could adversely
affect our business and results of operations.”

Our inability to achieve our desired market positions may be significantly impaired if we do not find suitable
acquisition candidates or new insurance ventures and even if we do, we may not successfully integrate any
such acquired companies or successfully invest in such ventures, which could have an adverse effect on our
results of operations. ’

From time to time, we evaluate possible acquisition transactions and the start-up of complementary
businesses, and at any given time, we may be engaged in discussions with respect to possible acquisitions and
new ventures, While our business model is not dependent upon acquisitions or new insurance ventures, the time
frame for achieving or further improving upon our desired market positions can be significantly shortened
through opportune acquisitions or new insurance ventures. Historically, acquisitions and new insurance ventures
have played a significant role in achieving desired market positions in some, but not all, of our businesses."No
assurance can be given that we will be able to identify suitable acquisition transactions or insurance ventures, that
such transactions will be financed and completed on acceptable terms or that our future acquisitions or ventures
will be successful. The process of integrating any companies we do acquire or investing in new ventures could
have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

In addition, implementation of an acquisition strategy entails a number of risks, including among other
things inaccurate assessment of undisclosed liabilities; difficulties in realizing projected efficiencies, synergies
and cost savings; failure to achieve anticipated revenues, earnings or cash flow; an increase in our indebtedness;
and a limitation in our ability to access additional capital when needed. For example, we recognized a gocdwill
impairment of $1,260,939 in 2002 related to an earlier acquisition. Our failure to adequately address these
acquisition risks could materially adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

The inability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends to us in sufficient amounts could harm our ability to meet
our obligations and pay future stockholder dividends.

As a holding company whose principal assets are the capital stock of our subsidiaries, we rely primanly on
dividends and other statutorily permissible payments from our subsidiaries to meet our obligations for payment
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of interest and principal on outstanding debt obligations, dividends to stockholders (including any dividends on
our common stock) and corporate expenses. The ability of our subsidiartes to pay dividends and to make such
other payments in the future will depend on their statutory surplus, future statutory earnings and regulatory
restrictions. Except to the extent that we are a creditor with recognized claims against our subsidiaries, claims of
the subsidiaries’ creditors, including policyholders, have priority with respect to the assets and earnings of the
subsidiaries over the claims of our creditors. If any of our subsidiaries should become insolvent, liquidate or
otherwise reorganize, our creditors and stockholders will have no right to proceed against the assets of that
subsidiary or to cause the liquidation, bankruptcy or winding-up of the subsidiary under applicable liquidation,
bankruptcy or winding-up laws. The applicable insurance laws of the jurisdiction where each of our insurance
subsidiaries is domiciled would govern any proceedings relating to that subsidiary. The insurance authority of
that jurisdiction would act as a liquidator or rehabilitator for the subsidiary. Both creditors and policyholders of
the subsidiary would be entitled to payment in full from the substdiary’s assets before we. as a stockholder,
would be entitled to receive any distribution from the subsidiary.

The payment of dividends to us by any of our regulated operating subsidiaries in excess of a certain amount
{i.e., extraordinary dividends) must be approved by the subsidiary’s domiciliary state department of insurance.
Ordinary dividends, for which no regulatory approval is generally required, are limited to amounts determined by
a formula, which varies by state. The formula for the majority of the states in which our subsidiaries are
domiciled is based on the prior year’s statutory net income or 10% of the statutory surplus as of the end of the
prior year. Some states limit ordinary dividends to the greater of these two amounts, others limit them to the
lesser of these two amounts and some states exclude prior year realized capital gains from prior year net income
in determining ordinary dividend capacity. Some states have an additional stipulation that dividends may only be
paid out of earned surplus. If insurance regulators determine that payment of an ordinary dividend or any other
payments by our insurance subsidiaries to us (such as payments under a tax sharing agreement or payments for
employee or other services) would be adverse to policyholders or creditors, the regulators may block such
payments that would otherwise be permitted without prior approval. No assurance can be given that there will not
be further regulatory actions restricting the ability of our insurance subsidiaries to pay dividends. We may seek
approval of regulators to pay dividends in excess of any amounts that would be permitted without such approval.
If the ability of insurance subsidiaries to pay dividends or make other payments to us is materially restricted by
regulatory requirements, it could adversely affect our ability to pay any dividends on our common stock and/or
service our debt and pay our other corporate expenses. For more information on the maximum amount our
" subsidiartes could pay us in 2007 without regulatory approval, see “Hem 5—Market For Registrants Common
Equity and Related Stockholder Matters—Dividend Policy.”

Our credit facilities also contain limitations on our ability to pay dividends to our stockholders if we are in
default or such dividend payments would cause us to be in default of the credit facilities.

Risks Related to Our Industry
Our business is subject to risks related to litigation and regulatory actions.

In addition to the occasional employment-related litigation to which businesses are subject, we are a
defendant in actions arising out of, and are involved in, various regulatory investigations and examinations
relating to, our insurance and other related business operations. We may from time to time be subject to a variety
of legal and regulatory actions relating to our current and past business operations, including, but not limited to:

+ disputes over coverage or claims adjudication including, but not limited to, pre-existing conditions in
" individual medical contracts;

« disputes regarding sales practices, disclosures, premium refunds, licensing, regulatory compliance and
compensation arrangements;

» disputes with our agents, producers or network providers over compensation and termination of
contracts and related claims;
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« disputes concerning past premiums charged by companies acquired by us for coverage that may have
been based on factors such as race;

= disputes relating to customers regarding the ratio of premiums to benefits in our various business
segments;

= disputes alleging packaging of credit insurance products with other products provided by financial
institutions:

+  disputes relating to certain excess of loss programs in the London markets;

= disputes with taxation and insurance authorities regarding our tax liabilities;
= disputes relating to certain businesses we have acquired or disposed of;,

= periodic examinations of compliance with applicable federal securities laws;

* disputes relating to customers” claims that the customer was not aware of the full cost of insurance or
that insurance was in fact being purchased; and

*  industry-wide investigations regarding business practices including, but not limited to, the use of certain
loss mitigation products and finite risk insurance.

The cutcome of these actions cannot be predicted, and no assurances can be given that such actions or any
litigation would not materially adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition. In addition. if
we were 1o expertence difficulties with our relationship with a regulatory body in a given jurisdiction, it could
have a material adverse effect on our ability to do business in that jurisdiction.

In addition, plaintiffs continue to bring new types of legal claims against insurance and related companies.
Current and future court decisions and legislative activity may increase our exposure to these types of claims.
Muliiparty or class action claims may present additional exposure to substantial economic, non-economic or
punitive damage awards. The loss of even one of these claims, if it resulted in a significant damage award or a
judicial ruling that was otherwise detrimental, could have a material adverse effect on our resulis of operations
and financial condition. This risk of potential Hability may make reasonable settlements of claims more difficult
o obtain. We cannot determine with any certainty what new theories of recovery may evolve or what their
impact may be on our businesses.

Recently, the insurance industry has experienced substantial volatility as a result of litigation, investigations
and regulatory activity by various insurance, governmental and enforcement authorities conceming certain
practices within the insurance industry. These practices include the payment of contingent commissions by
insurance companies to insurance brokers and agents and the extent to which such compensation has been
disclosed, the solicitation and provision of fictitious or inflated quotes and the use of inducements to brokers or
companies in the sale of group insurance products. In accordance with a long-standing and widespread industry
practice, we have paid and continue to pay contingent commissions to insurance brokers and agents, primarily in
our Assurant Employee Benefits segment. Assurant Employee Benefits follows a policy of full disclosure
consistent with its understanding of existing regulations in this area. With respect to improper sales practices, we
have received inquiries and informational requests from insurance departments in certain states in which our
insurance subsidiaries operate. We have conducted an internal review under the supervision of outside counsel
and have confirmed that our employees have not provided inflated or fictitious quotes or used improper
inducements in the sale of group insurance products in our Assurant Employee Benefits segment.

Another focus of regulators has been the accounting treatment for finite reinsurance or other non-traditional
or loss mitigation insurance products. Some state regulators have made routine inquiries to some of our insurers
regarding finite reinsurance. Additionally, as part of ongoing. industry-wide investigations, we received various
subpoenas and requests from the SEC and the United States Attorney for the Southern District of New York in
connection with various investigations into certain loss mitigation products and the use of finite risk insurance.
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We are cooperating fully with these investigations and are complying with these requests. We conducted an
evaluation of the transactions that could potentially fall within the scope of the subpoenas, as defined by the
authorities, and have provided information as requested. Based on our investigation to date, we have concluded
that there was a verbal side agreement with respect to one of our reinsurers under our catastrophic reinsurance
program. While management believes that the difference resulting from the appropriate alternative accounting
treatment would be immaterial to our financial position or results of operations, regulators may reach a different
conclusion. In 2004 and 2003, premiums ceded to this reinsurer were $2,600 and $1,500, respectively, and losses
ceded were $10,000 and zero, respectively. This coniract expired in December 2004 and was not renewed. The
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, with the assistance of independent and Company counsel as it
deemed appropriate, also completed its own investigation of the matters raised by the subpoenas, continues to
respond te inquiries from the regulatory agencies and otherwise continues to fully cooperate with the regulatory
agencies. The Audit Committee has not found any wrongdoing on the part of any of our officers.

We cannot predict at this time the effect that current litigation, investigations and regulatory activity will
have on the insurance industry or our business. Given our prominent position in the insurance industry, it is
possible that we will become subject to further investigations and have lawsuits filed against us. Our involvement
in any investigations and lawsuits would cause us to incur legal costs and, if we were found to have viclated any
laws, we could be required to pay fines and damages, perhaps in material amounts. In addition, we could be
materially adversely affected by the negative publicity for the insurance industry related to any such proceedings,
and by any new industry-wide regulations or practices that may result from any such proceedings.

We face significant competitive pressures in our businesses, which may reduce premium rates and prevent us
from pricing our products af rates that will allow us to be prafitable.

In each of our lines of business, we compete with other insurance companies or service providers,
depending on the line and products, although we have no single competitor who competes against us in all of the
business lines in which we operate. Assurant Solutions and Assurant Specialty Property have numerous
competitors in their product lines, but we belicve no other company participates in all of the same lines or offers
comparable comprehensive capabilities. Competitors for both business segments include insurance companies,
financial institutions and, in the case of preneed, regional insurers.

While we are among the largest competitors in terms of market share in many of our business lines, in some
cases there are one or more major market players in a particular line of business. In Assurant Health, we believe
the market is characterized by many competitors, and our main competitors include health insurance companies,
HMQOs and the Blue Cross/Blue Shield plans in the states in which we write business. In Assurant Employee
Benefits, competitors include benefits and life insurance companies, dental managed care entities and
not-for-profit dental plans.

Competition in our businesses is based on many factors, including quality of service, product features, price.
scope of distribution, scale, financial strength ratings and name recognition. We compete, and will continue to
compete, for customers and distributors with many insurance companies and other financial services companies.
We compete not only for business and individual customers, employer and other group customers, but alse for
agents and distribution relationships. Some of our competitors may offer a broader array of products than our
specific subsidiaries with which they compete in particular markets, may have a greater diversity of distribution
resources, may have better brand recognition, may from time to time have more competitive pricing, may have
lower cost structures or, with respect to insurers, may have higher financtal strength or claims paying ratings.
Some may also have greater financial resources with which to compete. For example, many of our insurance
products, particularly our group benefits and health insurance policies, are underwritten annually and,
accordingly, there is a risk that group purchasers may be able to obtain more favorable terms from competitors
rather than renewing coverage with us. The effect of competition may, as a result, adversely affect the
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persistency of these and other products, as well as our ability to sell products in the future, In Assurant Solutions,
as a result of state and federal regulatory developments and changes in prior years, certain financial institutions
are now able to offer a product called debt protection which is similar to credit insurance and financial
institutions are able to affiliate with other insurance companies to offer services similar to our own. This has
resulted in new competitors with significant financial resources entering some of our markets. Assurant Solutions
currently provides debt protection administration and as financial institutions gain experience with debt
protection administration, their reliance on third party administrators may diminish.

Mareover, some of our competitors may have a lower target for returns on capital allocated to their business
than we do, which may lead them to price their products and services lower than we do. In addition, from time to
time, companies enter and exit the markets in which we operate, thereby increasing competition at times when
there are new entrants. For example, several large insurance companies have recently entered the market for
individual health insurance products. We may lose business to competitors offering competitive products at
lower prices, or for other reasons, which could materially adversely affect our results of operations and financial
condition.

In certain markets, we compete with organizations that have a substantial market share. In addition, with
regard to Assurant Health, organizations with sizable market share or provider-owned plans may be able to
obtain favorable financial arrangements from health care providers that are not available to us. Without our own
similar arrangements, we may not be able to compete effectively in such markets.

New competition could also cause the supply of insurance to change, which could affect our ability to price
our products at attractive rates and thereby adversely affect our underwriting results. Although there are some
impediments facing potential competitors who wish to enter the markets we serve, the entry of new competitors
into our markets can occur, affording our customers significant flexibility in moving to other insurance providers.

The insuranee industry is cyclical, which may impact our results.

The insurance industry is cyclical. Although no two cycles are the same, insurance industry cycles have
typically lasted for periods ranging from (wo (o ten years. The segments of the insurance markets in which we
operate tend not to be correlated to each other, with each segment having its own cyclicality. Periods of intense
price competition due to excessive underwriting capacity, periods when shortages of underwriting capacity
permit more favarable rate levels, consequent fluctuations in underwriting results and the occurrence of other
losses characterize the conditions in these markets. Historically, insurers have experienced significant
fluctuations in operating results due to volatile and sometimes unpredictable developments, many of which are
beyond the direct control of the insurer, including competition, frequency of occurrence or severity of
catastrophic events, levels of capacity, general economic conditions and other factors. This may cause a decline
in revenue at times in the cycle if we choose not to reduce our product prices in order to maintain our market
position, because of the adverse effect on profitability of such a price rediiction. We can be expected, therefore,
to experience the effects of such cyclicality and changes in customer expectations of appropriate premium levels,
the frequency or severity of claims or other loss events or other factors affecting the insurance industry that
generaily could have a matenial adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

The insurance and related businesses in which we operate may be subject to periodic negative publicity, which
may negatively impact our financial results.

We communicate with and distribute our products and services ultimately to individual consumers. There
may be a perception that some of these purchasers may be unsophisticated and in need of consumer protection.
Accordingly. from time to time, consumer advocate groups or the media may focus attention on our products and
services, thereby subjecting our industries to the possibility of periodic negative publicity. We may alse be
negatively impacted if another company in one of our industries or in a related industry engages in practices
resulting in increased public attention to our businesses. Negative publicity may alse occur as a result of judicial
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inquiries and regulatory or governmental action with respect to our products, services and industry commercial
practices. Negative publicity may result in increased regulation and legislative scrutiny of industry practices as
well as increased litigation or enforcement action by civil and criminal authorities. Additionally, negative
publicity may increase our costs of doing business and adversely affect our profitability by impeding our ability
to market our products and services, requiring us to change our products or services or increasing the regulatory
burdens under which we operate.

Ongoing focus by the government and the National Association of Insurance Commissioners (“NAIC™) on
certain industry practices. including but not limited to, broker contingent commissions and finite or financial
reinsurance, has created negative publicity for some insurers and the reinsurance industry, including those
seeking reinsurance covers.

We are subject to extensive governmental laws and regulations, which increase our costs and could restrict the
conduct of our business.

Our operating subsidiaries are subject to exiensive regulation and supervision in the jurisdictions in which
they do business. Such regulation is generally designed to protect the interests of policyholders, as opposed to
stockholders and other investors. To that end, the laws of the various states establish insurance departments with
broad powers with respect to such things as:

+ licensing and authorizing companies and agents to transact business:

+ regulating capital and surplus and dividend requirements:

= regulating underwriting limitations:

« regulating companies’ ability to enter and exit markets;

* imposing slatu.tory accounting requirements and annual statement disclosures;
= approving policy forms and mandating certain insurance benefits;

* restricting companies’ ability to provide, terminate or cancel certain coverages;
» regulating premium rates, including the ability to increase or maintain premium rates;
« regulating trade and claims practices;

* reguiating certain transactions between affiliates;

« regulating the content of disclosures to consumers;

* regulating the type. amounts and valuation of investments;

» mandating assessments or other surcharges for guaranty funds and the ability to recover such
assessments in the future through premium increases; and

= regulating market conduct and sales practices of insurers and agents.

Qur non-insurance operations and certain aspects of our insurance operations are subject to federal and state
regulation including state and federal consumer protection laws. Similarly, our foreign subsidiaries are subject to
legisiation in the countries in which they are domiciled. We face the challenge of conducting business in a multi-
national setting with varying regulations.

Assurant Health is alse required by some jurisdictions to provide coverage to persons who would not
otherwise be considered eligible by insurers. Each of these jurisdictions dictates the types of insurance and the
level of coverage that must be provided to such involuntary risks. Qur share of these involuntary risks is
mandatory and generally a function of our respective share of the voluntary market by line of insurance in each
jurisdiction. Assurant Health is exposed to some risk of losses in connection with mandated participation in such
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programs in those jurisdictions in which they are still effective. HIPAA requires certain guaranteed issuance and
renewability of healih insurance coverage for individuals and small groups {generally 50 or fewer employees)
and limits exclusions based on pre-existing conditions. See also “—Risks Related 1o Our Industry—Costs of
compliance with privacy and security laws could adversely affect our business and results of operations.” If
regulatory requirements impede our ability to raise premium rates, utilize new policy forms or terminate, deny or
cancel coverage in any of our businesses, our results of operations and financial condition could be materially
adversely affected. .

The capacity for an insurance company’s growth in premiums is in part a function of its statutory surplus.
Maintaining appropriate levels of statutory surplus, as measured by Statutory Accounting Practices (“SAP™) and
procedures, is considered important by insurance regulatory authorities and the private agencies that rate
insurers’ claims-paying abilities and financial strength. Failure to maintain certain levels of statutory surplus
could result in increased regulatory scrutiny and enforcement, action by regulatory authorities or a downgrade by
rating agencies.

We may be unable to maintain all required licenses and approvals and our business may not fully comply
with the wide variety of applicable laws and regulations or the relevant authority’s interpretation of the laws and
regulations. Also, some regulatory authorities have relatively broad discretion to grant, renew or revoke licenses
and approvals. If we do not have the requisite licenses and approvals or do not comply with applicable regulatory
requirements, the insurance regulatory authorities could preclude or temporarily suspend us from carrying on
some or all of our activities or monetarily penalize us. That type of action could materially adversely affect our
results of operations and financial condition.

Changes in regulation may reduce our profitability and limit our growth.

Legislation or other regulatory reform that increases the regulatory requirements imposed on us or that
changes the way we are able to do business may significantly harm our business or results of operations in the
future. For example, some states have imposed new time limits for the payment of uncontested covered claims
and require health care and dental service plans to pay interest on uncentested claims not paid promptly within
the required time period. Some states have also granted their insurance regulatory agencies additional authority to
impose monetary penalties and other sanctions on health and dental plans engaging in certain unfair payment
practices. If we were to be unable for any reason to comply with these requirements, it could result in substantial
costs to us and may materialiy adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Legislative or regulatory changes that could significantly harm us and our subsidiaries include, but are not
limited to:

.+ legislation that holds insurance companies or managed care cornpanies liable for adverse consequences
of medical or dental decisions;

+ limitations or imposed reductions on premium levels or the ability to raise premivms on existing
policies; :

« increases in minimum capital, reserves and other financial viability requirements;

= impositions of fines, taxes or other penalties for improper licensing, the failure to prompily pay claims,
however defined, or other regulatory violations;

+ increased licensing requirements;
= prohibitions or limitations on provider financial incentives and provider risk-sharing arrangements;
* imposition of more stringent standards of review of our coverage determinations;

+ new benefit mandates;
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= increased regulation relating to the use of associations and trusts in the sale of individual health
insurance;

= limitations on our ability to build appropriate provider networks and, as a result, manage health care and
utilization due to “any willing provider” legislation, which requires us to take any provider willing to
accept our reimbursement;

« limitations on the ability to manage health care and utilization due to direct access laws that allow
insureds to seek services directly from specialty medical providers without referral by a primary care
provider; and

« resiriction of solicitation of preneed insurance consumers by funeral board laws.

In recent years, the state insurance regulatory framework has come under increased federal scrutiny and
some state legislatures have considered or enacted laws that may alter or increase state authority to regulate
insurance compantes and insurance holding companies. Further, the NAIC and state insurance regulators are
re-examining existing laws and regulations, specifically focusing on modifications to holding company
regulations, interpretations of existing laws and the development of new laws. Although the U.S. federal
government does not directly regulate the insurance business, changes in federal legislation and administrative
policies in several areas could significantly impact the insurance industry and us. Federal legislation and
administrative policies in areas such as employeé benefit plan regulation, financial services regulation and
federal taxation can reduce our profitability. Additionally, there have been attempts by the NAIC and several
states to limit the use of discretionary clauses in policy forms. The elimination of discretionary clauses could
increase our costs under our life, health and disability insurance policies. New interpretations of existing laws
and the passage of new legislation may harm our ability to sell new policies and increase our claims exposure on
policies we issued previously. '

A number of legislative proposals have been made at the federal level over the past several years that could
impose added burdens on Assurant Health. These proposals would, among other things, mandate benefits with
respect to certain diseases or medical procedures, require plans to offer an independent external review of certain
coverage decisions, establish association health plans for small businesses, and establish a national health
insurance program. Any of these proposals, if implemented, could adversely affect our results of operations or
financial condition. Federal changes in Medicare and Medicaid that reduce provider reimbursements could have
negative implications for the private sector due to cost shifting. State small employer group and individual health
insurance market reforms to increase access and affordability could also reduce profitability by precluding us
from appropriately pricing for risk in our individual and smalt employer group health insurance policies.

With respect to Assurant Specialty Property, federal legislative proposals regarding National Catastrophe
Insurance, if adopted, could reduce the business need for some of the property and casualty related products
provided by Assurant Specialty Property.

The NAIC has adopted the Annual Financial Reporting Medel Act (which prior 1o revision was known as
the Mode! Audit Rule), that, when adopted by states, will impose internal controls similar to those mandated by
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (which we refer to as SOX 404), with some differences for
insurance companies. The latest date of adoption by any state, as prescribed by the NAIC, is 2010. These SOX
404 type controls will add an additional layer of internal review for insurer financial statements and subject
insurers to varying levels of review by state insurance regulators. This could result in potential exposure for fines
and penalties for non-compliance. In addition, the NAIC is considering changes in statutory accounting
principles, which may negatively impact insurer financial reporting requirements and the profitability of
insurance operations on a statutory basis.

Additionally, the Attorney General of Mississippi has initiated legal actions against a number of large
insurers to invalidate or interpret the flood exclusion in various insurance policies of hurricane-affected
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claimants, so 4s to require coverage for losses from hurricane floods and tidal waves. The named insurers are
contesting such action. Although none of the Assurant companies has been specificatly named as defendants, the
lawsuit names as unknown defendants, “any business entity qualified to do business in the State of Mississippi
who offered insurance, similar to the named insurers, 1o the detriment of the citizens of the State.” As a result, if
any of our companies are determined to be a defendant and the Mississippi Attorney General prevails, this could
result in negative publicity or have a materially adverse effect on our current financial results as well as future
pricing and profitability.

We cannot predict with certainty the effect any proposed or future legislation, regulations or NAIC
initiatives may have on the conduct of our business. The insurance laws or regulations adopted or amended frem
time to time may be more restrictive or may result in materially higher costs than current requirements.

It is difficult 10 predict the effect of the current investigations in connection with insurance industry
- practices. See the preceding section entitled “—OQur business is subject to risks related to litigation and regulatory
actions.” :

Costs of compliance with privacy and security laws could adversely affect our business and results of
operations.

State privacy laws, particularly those with “opt-in” clauses, or provisions that enable an individual to elect
informatien sharing instead of being automatically included, can affect ali our businesses. These laws make it
harder for our affiliated businesses to share information for marketing purposes, such as generating new sales
leads and participating in joint marketing arrangements,

Similarly, the federal and various state “do not solicit” lists could pose a litigation risk to Assurant
Solutions. Even an inadvertent failure to comply with consumers’ requests to be added to the “do not solicit” list
could result in litigation.

HIPAA and the implementing regulations that have been adopted impose obligations for issuers of health
and dental insurance coverage and health and dental benefit plan sponsors. HIPAA also establishes requirements
for maintaining the confidentiality and security of individually identifiable health information and standards for
electronic health care transactions. The Department of Health and Human Services promulgated final HIPAA
reguimions in 2002, The privacy regulations required compliance by April 2003, the electronic transactions-
regulations by October 2003 and the security regulations by April 2005. There are new provistons relating to the
National Provider Identification Number that our health and dental businesses are working to comply with by
May 2007. As have other entities in the health care industry, we have incurred and will continue to incur
substantial costs in complying with the requirements of the HIPAA regulations,

HIPAA is far-reaching and complex and proper interpretation and practice under the law continue to evolve.
Consequently, our efforts to measure, monitor and adjust our business practices to comply with HIPAA are
ongoing. Failure to comply with HIPAA could result in regulatory fines and civil lawsuits. Knowing and’
intentional violations of these rules may also result in federal criminal penalties.

Beginning in early 2005, several large organizations became subjects of intense public scrutiny due to high-
profile data security breaches involving sensitive financial and health information. These events focused national
attention on identity theft and the duty of organizations to notify impacted consumers in the event of a data
security breach. Several federal bills are pending in Congress and currently 27 states have passed legislation
requiring customer notification in the event of a data security breach. Most state laws take their lead from
recently enacted California Civil Code Section 1798.82, which requires businesses that conduct business in
California to disclose any breach of security to any resident whose unencrypted data is believed to have been
disclosed. Several significant legal, operational and reputational risks exist with regard to data breach and
customer notification. Federal pre-emption relating to this issue may reduce our compliance costs. Nonetheless, a
breach of data security requiring public notification can result in regulatory fines, penalties or sanctions, civil
lawsuits, loss of reputation, loss of customers and reduction of our profitability.
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Risks Related to Qur Relationship with Fortis

Fortis continues to be a significant stockholder of the Company, which gives them the right to register their
shares and the ability to influence the market price of our stock.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock, or the perception by the market that those
sales could occur, could cause the market price of our common stock to decline or could make it more difficult
for us 1o raise funds through the sale of equity in the future. Fortis owned 22,999.130 shares of our common
stack as of December 31, 2006. or approximately 19% of our outstanding common stock. All of these shares are
subject to the terms of the exchangeable bonds, due January 26, 2008, that were sold by Fortis concurrently with
the closing of our secondary offering on January 21, 2005. However, Fortis could choose not to exchange its
shares for the bonds. If the exchangeable bonds are not exchanged for shares of our commen stock, Fortis could
retain its existing ownership interest in our Company. In that case. under the terms of a Registration Rights
Agreement, dated as of February 10, 2004, as amended on January 10, 2005, Fortis would have the right to affect
the registration of such shares of our common stock, making them freely tradable in the public market. Sales of a
Jarge number of these shares by Fortis at any time could have an adverse effect on the market price of our
common stock. Additionally, Fortis would continue to be represented on our Board of Directors.

Because Fortis Bank operates U.S. branch offices, we are subject to regulation and oversight by the Federal
Reserve Board under the Bank Holding Company Act (“BHCA™).

Fortis Bank S.A./N.V. (“Fortis Bank™), which is a company in the Fortis Group, obtained approval in 2002
from state banking authorities and the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (“Federal Reserve™) to
establish branch offices in Connecticut and New York. By virtue of the opening of these offices, the Fortis
Group's operations and investments (including the Fortis Group’s investment in us) became subject to the
nonbanking prohibitions of Section 4 of the BHCA. Except to the extent that a BHCA exemption or authority is
available, Section 4 of the BHCA does not permit foreign banking organizations with U.S. branches to own more
than 5% of any class of voting shares or otherwise to control any company that conducts comnercial activities,
such as manufacturing, distribution of goods or real estate development.

To broaden the scope of activities and investments permissible for the Fortis Group and us, the Fortis Group
in 2002 notified the Federal Reserve of its election to be a “financial holding company” for purposes of the
BHCA and the Federal Reserve’s implementing regulations in Regulation Y. As a financial holding company. the
Fortis Group may own shares of companies engaged in activities in the United States that are “financial in
nature,” “incidental 1o such financial activity” or “complementary to a financial activity.” Activities that are
“financial in nature” include, among other things:

+« insuring, guaranteeing or indemnifying against loss, harm. damage, illness, disability or death, or
providing and issuing annuities; and

 acting as principal, agent or broker for purposes of the foregoing.

In connection with Fortis Bank's establishment of U.S. branches, staff of the Federal Reserve inquired as to
whether certain of our activities are financial in nature under Section 4(k)} of the BHCA. In light of the Fortis
Group's contemplated divestiture of our shares, this inquiry was suspended at the Fortis Group’s and our request.
To the extent that any of our activities might be deemed not to be financial in nature under Section 4(k}, the
Fortis Group may rely on an exemption in Section 4(a)(2) of the BHCA that permits the Fortis Group to continue
to held interests in companies engaged in activities that are not financial in nature for an initial period of two
years and, with Federal Reserve approval for each extension, for up to three additional one-year periods. The
Federal Reserve also has the discretion to permit the Fortis Group to hold such interests after the five-year period
under certain provisions other than Section 4¢a)2}. The initial two-year period under Section 4(a)(2) expired on
December 2. 2004. The first one-year extension expired on December 2, 2005 and the second one-year extension
expired on December 2, 2006. The Fortis Group has obtained an additional one-year extension of the divestiture
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period through December 2, 2007, and has informed the Federal Reserve that the divestiture is scheduled to be
completed early in 2008. Further, the Fortis Group has committed to notify the Federal Reserve within 10 days of
the consummation of the divestiture.

The Federal Reserve has jurisdiction under the BHCA over all of the Fortis Group's direct and indirect
U.S. subsidiaries. We and our subsidiaries wiil be considered subsidiaries of the Fortis Group for purposes of the
BHCA so long as the Fortis Group owns 25% or more of any class of our voting shares or otherwise controls or
has been determined to have a controlling influence over us within the meaning of the BHCA. The Federal
Reserve could take the position that the Fortis Group continues to control us until the Fortis Group reduces its
ownership to less than 5% of our voting shares. So long as the Fortis Group controls us for purposes of the
BHCA, the Federal Reserve could require us immediately to discontinue, restructure or divest any of our
operations that are deemed to be impermissible under the BHCA, which could result in reduced revenues,
increased costs or reduced profitability for us.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Applicable laws and our certificate of incorporation and by-laws may discourage takeovers and business
combinations that our stockholders might consider in their best interesis.

State laws and our certificate of incorporation and by-laws may delay, defer, prevent or render more
difficult a takeover attempt that our stockholders might consider in their best interests. For instance, they may
prevent our stockholders from receiving the benefit from any premium to the market price of our common stock
offered by a bidder in a takeover context. Even in the absence of a takeover attempt, the existence of these
provisions may adversely affect the prevailing market price of our common stock if they are viewed as
discouraging takeover atternpts in the future. .

State laws and our certificate of incorporation and by-laws may also make it difficult for stockholders to
replace or remove our directors. These provisions may facilitate director entrenchment, which may delay, defer
or prevent a change in our control, which may not be in the best interests of our stockholders,

The following provisions in our certificate of incorporation and by-laws have anti-takeover effects and may
delay, defer or prevent a takeover attempt that our stockholders might consider in their best interests. In
particular, our certificate of incorporation and by-laws:

* permit our Board of Directors to issue one or more series of preferred stock;

¢ divide our Board of Directors into three classes;

* limit the ability of stockholders to remove directors;

» except for Fortis, prohibit stockholders from filling vacancies on our Board of Directors;

* prohibit stockholders from calling special meetings of stockholders and from taking action by written
consent;

* impose advance notice requirements for stockholder proposals and nominations of directors to be
considered at stockholder meetings;

* subject to limited exceptions, require the approval of at least two-thirds of the voting power of our
outstanding capital stock entitled to vole on the matter to approve mergers and consolidations or the sale
of all or substantially all of our assets; and '

* require the approval by the holders of at least two-thirds of the voting power of our outstanding capital
stock entitled to vote on the matter for the stockholders to amend the provisions of our by-laws and
certificate of incorporation described in the second through seventh bullet points above and this
supermajority provision.

In addition, Section 203 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware may limit the ability of an
“interested stockholder” to engage in business combinations with us. An interested stockholder is defined to
include persons owning 15% or more of our outstanding voting stock.
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Applicable insurance laws may make it difficult to effect a change of contrel of our Company.

Before a person can acquire control of an insurance company in the U.S. and certain other countries, prior
written approval must be obtained from the insurance commissioner of the jurisdiction where the insurer is
domiciled. For example, generally, state statutes provide that control over a domestic insurer is presumed to exist
if any person, directly or indirectly, owns, controls, holds with the power to vote, or holds proxies representing,
10% or more of the voting securities of the domestic insurer. However, the State of Florida, in which certain of
our insurance subsidiartes are domiciled, defines control as 5% or more. Because a person acquiring 5% or more
of our commaon stock would indirectly control the same percentage of the stock of our Florida subsidiaries, the
insurance change of control laws of Florida would apply to such transaction and at 10%, the laws of many other
states would likely apply to such a transaction. Prior to granting approval of an application to acquire control of a
domestic insurer, a state insurance commissioner will typically consider such factors as the financial strength of
the applicant, the integrity of the applicant’s board of directors and executive officers, the applicant’s plans for
the future operations of the domestic insurer and any anti-competitive results that may arise from the
consummation of the acquisition of control. :

Our stock and the stocks of other companies in the insurance industry are subject to stock price and trading
volume volatility.

From time to time, the stock price and the number of shares traded of companies in the insurance indusiry
experience periods of significant volatility. Company-specific issues and developments generally in the insurance
industry and in the regulatory environment may cause this volatility. Our stock price may fluctuate in response to
a number of events and factors, including:

= quarterly variations in operating results;

» natural disasters, terrorist attacks and epidemics;

+- changes in financial estimates and recommendations by securities analysts;

« operating and stock price performance of other companies that investors may deem comparable;

¢ press releases or publicity relating to us or our competitors or relating to trends in our markets;

» regulatory changes and adverse outcomes from litigation and government or regulatory investigations;,
« sales of stock by insiders;

- changes in our financial strength ratings;

« limitations on premium levels or the ability to raise premiums on existing policies; and

+ increases in minimum capital, reserves and other financial viability requirements.

In addition, broad market and industry fluctuations may adversely affect the trading price of our common
stock, regardless of our actual operating performance.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

item 2. Properties

We own seven properties, including five buildings that serve as headquarters locations for our operating
business segments and two buildings that serve as operation centers for Assurant Solutions and Assurant
Specialty Property. Assurant Solutions and Assurant Specialty Property share headquarters buildings located in
Miami, Florida and Atlanta, Georgia and Assurant Specialty Property has operation centers located in Florence,
South Carolina and Springfield, Ohio. Assurant Solution’s preneed business also has a headquarters building in
Rapid City. South Dakota. Assurant Employee Benefits has a headquarters building in Kansas City, Missouri.
Assurant Health has a headquarters building in Milwaukee, Wisconsin. We lease office space for various offices
and service centers located throughout the United States and internationally, including our New York corporate
office and our data center in Woodbury, Minnesota. Qur leases have terms ranging from month-to-month to
twenty-five years. We believe that our owned and leased properties are adequate for our current business
operations.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are regularly involved in litigation in the ordinary course of business, both as a defendant and as a
plaintiff. We may from time to time be subject to a variety of legal and regulatory actions relating to our current
and past business operations. While we cannot predict the outcome of any pending or future litigation,
examination or investigation and although no assurances can be given, we do not believe that any pending matter
will have a material adverse effect individually or in the aggregae on our financial position or results of
operations.

As part of ongoing, industry-wide investigations, we have received various subpoenas and requests from the
SEC and the United States Attorney for the Southern District of New York in connection with various
investigations into certain loss mitigation products and the use of finite risk insurance. We are cooperating fully
with these investigations and are complying with these requests.

We conducted an evaluation of the transactions that could potentially fall within the scope of the subpoenas,
as defined by the authorities, and have provided information as requested. Based on our investigation to date, we
have concluded that there was a verbal side agreement with respect to one of our reinsurers under our
catastrophic reinsurance program. While management believes that the difference resulting from the appropriate
alternative accounting treatment would be immaterial to our financial position or results of operations, regulators
may reach a differem conclusion. In 2004 and 2003, premiums ceded to this reinsurer were $2.600 and $1.500,
respectively, and losses ceded were $10,000 and zero, respectively. This contract expired in December 2004 and
was not renewed.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, with the assistance of independent and Company counsel as
it deemed appropriate, also completed its own investigation of the matters raised by the subpoenas, continues to
respond to inquiries from the regulatory agencies and otherwise continues to fully cooperate with the regulatory
agencies. The Audit Committee has not found any wrongdoing on the part of any of our officers.

We believe, based on information currently available, that the amounts accrued for currently outstanding
disputes are adequate. The inherent uncertainty of arbitrations and lawsuits, including the uncertainty of
estimating whether any settlements we may enter into in the future, would be on favorable terms, makes it
difficult o predict the outcomes with certainty.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matter was submitted to a vote of the stockholders of Assurant, Inc. during the fourth quarter of 2006.
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PART II

Item 5. Market of Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities

" Stock Performance Graph

The following chart compares the total stockholder returns (stock price increase plus dividends) on our
common stock from February 4, 2004 (the date of the initial public offering of our common stock) through
December 31, 2006 with the total stockholder returns for the S&P 400 Midcap Index, as the broad equity market
index, and the S&P 400 Multi-Line Insurance Index and S&P 500 Multi-Line Insurance Index, as the published
industry indexes. The graph assumes that the value of the invesiment in the common stock and each index was
$100 on February 4, 2004 and that all dividends were reinvested.
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Total Return To Stockholders
(Includes reinvestment of dividends)

Base INDEXED RETURNS

Period Six Months Ending
Company / Index 2/4/04 630/04 12731704 6730405 1231405 &/A0/06 12731706
AssurantInc. ......... .. ... ... 100 12024 13995 166.08 200.87 22440 257.13
S&P 400 MidcapIndex .. ....... ... ... ... 100 10498 11527 11971 i29.75 135.25 143.14
S&P 500 Multi-line Insurance Index ......... 100 102.84  97.20 8954 10573 9580 il3.74
S&P 400 Multi-line Insurance Index ......... 100 104,12 10780 118.63 12889 13471 156.93

RETURN PERCENTAGE |

Six Months Ending
Company / Index 63004 12731/04  6/30/05 12314058 6430706 12731706
CAssurantIne L. 20.24 16.38 18.68 20.95 11.71 14.58
S&P 400 Midcap Index ......................... 4.98 9.80 3.85 8.38 4.24 5.83
S&P 500 Multi-line Insurance Index ............... 2.84 -5.49 -7.88 18.09 -8.39 18.73
S&P 400 Multi-line Insurance Index ............... 4.12 3.54 10.04 8.65 451 16.49

Common Stock Price

Our common stock is listed on the NYSE under the symbo! “AlZ". The following table sets forth the high
and low intraday sales prices per share of our common stock as reported by the NYSE for the periods indicated.

Year Ended December 31, 2006 High Low Dvividends
FirstQuarter. . .. ... .. . $49.80 $42.80 50.08
Second Quarter ......... ... ... e $51.68 $45.12 $0.10
Third QUarter . . ... ... .. e $54.10  $46.73 $0.10
FourthQuarter ... ... ... ... ... i i, $56.76  $52.20 $0.10
Year Ended December 31, 2005 High Low Dividends
FIrst Quarter . . ... $35.01  $29.70 $0.07
Second Quarter ... ... .. e $36.41  $31.90 50.08
Third QUarter .. ... i $38.96 $35.60 $0.08
Fourth Quarter .......... O $44.68 33579 $0.08

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table shows aggregate information, as of December 31, 2006, with respect to compensation
plans under which equity securities of Assurant are authorized for issuance.
©

Number of Securities
Remaining Available

() for Future Issuance
Number of Securities (] Under Equity
to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average Compensation Plans
Exercise of Exercise Price of (Excluding Securities
Outstanding Options, Qutstanding Options, Reflected
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights in Column {(a))

Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Security
Holders ...........cccoiiiiiiiiiinne i, 2.574,655 $32.35 7.332,252
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by
Security Holders ......................... —

Total. ... 2,574,655 $32.35 7,332,252

36




Holders

On February 15, 2007, there were approximately 495 registered holders of record of our commeon stock. The
closing price of our common stock on the NYSE on February 15, 2007 was $54.64.

Shares Repurchased
\ Total Number of Maximum Number
. Shares Purchased as  of Shares that may
Total Number Part of Publicly yet be Purchased
of Shares Average Price  Announced Plansor  under the Plans or
Period in 2006 Purchased Paid per Share Programs - Programs (1)
January 1 —January 31 ... ... ... ... 450,200 . $44.33 450,200 8,183,435
February | - February 28 .. ............. 416,600 $44.49 416,600 7,868,909
March 1 =March 31 ... ... ... .. ... .. 550,000 -$46.38 550,000 6,735,802
Total first quarter ... ................. 1,416,800 $45.17 1,416,800
April L —Apnil 30 ... .. ... ... ... 475,000 $48.86 475,000 6,405,065
May | -May3l ... ... ... L 475,000 $49.90 475,000 5,827,145
June t=June30 .......... ... L. 1,190,000 $47.67 1,190,000 4,712,978
Total second quarter .. .. .............. 2,140.000 $48.43 2,140,000
July I=July 3l .. ..o 1,040,000 $48.21 1,040,000 3.694.683
August | —August 31 ... ...l 1,101,000 $50.14 1,101,000 2,386,228
September 1 - September 30 ............ 940,000 $52.95 940,000 1,366,775
Total third quarter ................... 3,081,000 $50.34 3.081,000
October | —October31 ................. 1,030,000 $53.88 1,030,000 332,469
November 1 — November 30 .. ........... 430,100 $54.79 430,100 10,806,791
December | — December 31 ............. 366,316 $55.65 366,316 10,381,092
Total fourthquarter .................. 1,826,416 $54.45 1,826,416
Total through December 31 ... ... ... 8,464,216 8,464.216 10,381,092

(1} On November 11, 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program under
which the Company could repurchase $400,000 of its outstanding stock. On November 21, 2006, the
Company reached the $400,000 threshold under this program. On November 10, 2006, the Company’s
Board of Directors approved another stock repurchase program under which the Company may repurchase
up to an additional $600,000 of its outstanding common stock.

Dividend Policy

On February 15, 2007, we announced that our Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend of $0.10 per
common shares payable on March 12, 2007 to stockholders of record as of February 26, 2007. We paid dividends
of $0.08 per common share on March 7, 2006, $.10 per common share on June 13, 2006, $.10 per common share
on September 12, 2006 and $.10 per common share on December |1, 2006. Any determination to pay future
dividends will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will be dependent upon: our subsidiaries’
payment of dividends and/or other statutorily permissible payments to us; our results of operations and cash
flows; our financial position and capital requirements; general business conditions; any legal, tax, regulatory and
contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends; and any other factors our Board of Directors deems
relevant.

We are a holding company and, therefore, our ability to pay dividends, service our debt and meet our other
obligations depends primarily on the ability of our regulated U.S. domiciled insurance subsidiaries to pay
dividends
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and make other statutorily permissible payments to us. Our insurance subsidiaries are subject to significant
regulatory and contractual restrictions limiting their ability to declare and pay dividends. See “ltem 1A—Risk
Factors—Risks Relating to Our Company—The inability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends to us in sufficient
amounts could harm our ability to meet our obligations and pay future stockholder dividends.” For the calendar
year 2007, the maximum amount of dividends that our regulated U.S. domiciled insurance subsidiaries could pay
to us under applicable laws and regulations without prior regulatory approval is approximately $476,070.
Dividends were paid by our subsidiaries totaling $554,270 through December 31, 2006.

We may seek approval of regulators to pay dividends in excess of any amounts that would be permitted
without such approval. However, there can be no assurance that we would obtain such approval if sought.

In addition, payments of dividends on the shares of common stock are subject to the preferential rights of
preferred stock that our Board of Directors may create from time to time. For more information regarding
restrictions on the payment of dividends by us and our insurance subsidiaries, including pursuant to the terms of
our revolving credit facilities, see “ltem 7—Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Resuits of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Rescurces.”

In addition, our $500,000 senior revolving credit facility restricts. payments of dividends in the event that an

event of default under the facility has occurred or a proposed dividend payment would cause an event of default
under the facility.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Five-Year Summary of Selected Financial Data Assurant, Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:

Revenues
Net eamned premiums and other considerations .........
Nel investment INGOME ... vvve v e e ireraaenannann
Net realized gains (losses) on investments . ........._.
Amontization of deferred gain on disposal of

BUSIHESSES L it
{Loss)Gain on disposal of businesses ................
Fees and otherincome ... ... ..o

Toal MEVENUES ... vttt aas

Benefits, losses and expenses
Policyholderbenefits .............................
Amortization of deferred acquisition costs and value of
businesses acquired .................
Underwriting, general and administrative expenses ... ..
Interest expense . ..........v i
Distributions on mandatorily redeemable preferved
SECUMLES .. ...t
Interest premium on redemption of preferred securities . .

Total benefits, losses and expenses . .............

Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle .................
Income taxes ............0c i

Net income before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle .. ... L
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle (1) . oo e

Netincome (loss) .. ..., cooiiiiiiin. ..

Earnings per share;

Rasic

Net income before cumulative effect of change in
uccounting principle .. ... i

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle .. ..

Netincome (JOS8) . v v vvuiui i,

Diluted
Net income before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle .. ... ...l e,
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
prnciple (1) .. o
Netincome (JOSS) .. .. ... o

Dividendspershare ........ .. . i

Share Data:

Weighted average shares outstanding vsed in per share
caleulations ........... .

Plus: Dilutive seeurities .. ... ..ol

Weighted average shares used in diluted per share
calculations ... ... ..o

As of and for the years ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands, except share amounts and per share data)
$ 6843775 % 6520796 § 6482871 % 6156772 § 50815396
736,686 687,257 634,749 607313 631,828
111,865 8,235 24,308 1,868 (118.372)
37,300 42,508 57.632 68,277 79.801
— — (9,232) —_— 10,672
340,958 238,879 220,386 241,988 246,675
8.070.584 7.497.673 7.410.714 7.076,218 6,532.200
3.538.947 3,707,809 3,839,769 1,657,763 3435175
1.185,113 926,608 820,456 834,662 732,010
2,189,539 2,146,392 2,155,980 2,004 481 1.876.222
61,243 61,258 56418 1,175 —
—_ — 2.163 112,958 118,396
— —_ — 205,822 —
6,974,842 6.842,067 6,874,786 6,816,861 6,161,803
1,095,742 655.608 535,928 25%.357 370397
379.871 176.253 185,368 73,705 110,657
715,871 479,355 350,560 185,652 259.740
1,547 - — — (1,260,939)
$ 717418 § 479355 § 350,560 $ 185.652 § (1,001,199)
$ 565 % 333 % 253 % 170 % . 2.38
001 — — _ (11.55)
3 566 3% 353 % 253 3% 170 % {2t
$ 556 §$ 150 § 253 % 1.70 § 238
0.01 — — — (11.55}
3 557 § 350 § 253 % .70 % (9.17)
3 038 3§ 031 § (V.4 I 166 % 0.38
126,846,990 135,773,551 138,358,167 109.222.276 109,222,276
1,965,823 1,171,759 108,797 _ —
128,812,813 136945310 118,467,564 109,222.276 109,222,276
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As of and for the years ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands, except share amounts and per share data)

Selected Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalents and investments . .. .............. $12,416,817 $13371,392 $12,955,128 $12,302,585 3510694772
TOAl @SSRS o o oottt $25,165,148  $25,365453  $24,548,106  $24.093.444  $22.257.69%
Policy liabilities (2) ... vttt $14,608,402 $14,391691 313471716 $12,932,661 $12.,388,623
Dbl L e $ 971,774 § 971,690 $ 97L6I1 § L750,000 § —

Mandatorily redeemable preferred securities . . .............. $ — % — % — 5 196224 % 1446074
Mandatorily redeemable preferred stock ................ ... $ 22160 § 24,160 5 24060 § 24,160 § 24660
Total stockholder’sequity ....... oo $ 3832597 § 3,699,559 $ 3635431 § 2,632,103 § 2,555059

Per Share Data: -
Total book value per share (3} ............. ... .o ... $ 3126 % 2833 % 2601 % 2410 3 23.39

(1) On January 1, 2006, we adopted FAS 123R. As a result, we recognized a cumulative adjustment of $1,547, On January 1, 2002, we
adopted FAS 142. As a result, we recognized a non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $1,260,939.

(2) Policy liabilities include future policy benefits and expenses, unearned premiums and claims and benefits payable.

(3) Total stockholders’ equity divided by the basic shares of common stock outstanding. At December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 there were
122,618,317, 130,591,834 and 139,766,177 shares, respectively, of commaon stock outstanding. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, there
were 109,222,276 shares of common stock outstanding.

Ttem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes which appear elsewhere in this
report. It contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Please see “Forward-Looking
Statements” for more information. Qur actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these
forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including those discussed below and elsewhere in this
report, particularly under the headings “Item [ A—Risk Factors” and “Forward-Looking Statements.”

General

On April 1, 2006, the Company separated its Assurant Solutions business segment into two business
segments: Assurant Solutions and Assurant Specialty Property. In addition, concurrent with the creation of the
new Assurant Solutions and Assurant Specialty Property segments, the Company realigned the Preneed segment
under the new Assurant Solutions segment. Segment income statements for the years ended December 31, 2005
and 2004 have been recast to reflect the new segment reporting structure.,

We report our results through five segments: Assurant Solutions, Assurant Specialty Property, Assurant
Health, Assurant Employee Benefits, and Corporate and Other. The Corporate and Other segment includes
activities of the holding company, financing expenses, net realized gains (losses) on investments, interest income
earned from short-term investments held, interest income from excess surptus of insurance subsidiaries not
allocated to other segments, run-off Asbestos business, and additional costs associated with excess of loss
reinsurance and ceded to certain subsidiaries in the London market between 1995 and 1997. The Corporate and
Other segment also includes the amortization of deferred gains associated with the portions of the sales of FFG
and LTC. FFG and LTC were sold through reinsurance agreements as described below.

Critical Factors Affecting Results

Qur results depend on the adequacy of our product pricing, underwriting and the accuracy of our
methodology for the establishment of reserves for future policyhelder benefits and claims, returns on invested
assets and our ability to manage our expenses. Therefore, factors affecting these items may have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations or financial condition.
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Revenues

We generate our revenues primarily from the sale of our insurance policies and, to a lesser extent, fee
income by providing administrative services to certain clients. Sales of insurance policies are recognized in
revenue as eamed premiums while sales of administrative services are recognized as fee income. In late 2000, the
majority of Assurant Solutions’ domestic credit insurance clients began a transition from the purchase of our
credit insurance products, from which we eamned premium revenue, to debt protection administration programs,
from which we eam fee income. Debt protection administration programs include services for non-insurance
products that cancel or defer the required monthly payment on outstanding loans when covered events occur.

Our premium and fee income is supplemented by income earned from our investment portfolio. We
recognize revenue from interest payments, dividends and sales of investments. Currently, our investment
portfolio is primarily invested in fixed maturity securities. Both investment income and realized capital gains on
these investments can be significantly impacted by changes in interest rates.

Interest rate volatility can reduce unrealized gains or create unrealized losses in our portfolios. Interest rates
are highly sensitive to many factors, including governmental monetary policies, domestic and international
economic and political conditions and other factors beyond our control. Fluctuations in interest rates affect our
returns on, and the market value of, fixed maturity and short-term investments.

The fair market value of the fixed maturity securities in our portfolio and the investment income from these
securities fluctuate depending on general economic and market conditions. The fair market value generally
increases or decreases in an inverse relationship with fluctuations in interest rates, while net investment income
realized by us from future investments in fixed maturity securities will generally increase or decease with interest
rates. We also have investments that carry pre-payment risk, such as mortgage backed and asset backed
securities. Actual net investment income and/or cash flows from investments that carry prepayment risk may
differ from estimates at the time of investment as a result of interest rate fluctuations. In periods of declining
interest rates, mortgage prepayments generally increase and mortgage-backed securities, commercial mortgage
obligations and bonds are more likely to be prepaid or redeemed as borrowers seek to borrow at lower interest
rates. Therefore, we may be required to reinvest those funds in lower interest-bearing investments.

Expenses

Our expenses are primarily policyholder benefits, selling, underwriting and general expenses and interest
expense.

Our profitability depends in large part on accurately predicting policyholder benefits, claims and other costs,
including medical and dental costs. It also depends on cur ability to manage future policyholder benefit and other
costs through product design, underwriting criteria, utilization review or claims management catastrophe
reinsurance coverage and, in health and dental insurance, negotiation of favorable provider contracts. Changes in
the composition of the kinds of work available in the economy, market conditions and numerous other factors
may also materially adversely affect our ability to manage claim costs. As a result of one or more of these factors
or other factors, claims could substantially exceed our expectations, which could have a material adverse effect
on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Selling, underwriting and general expenses consist primarily of commissions, premium taxes, licenses, fees,
amortization of deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”) and value of businesses acquired (“VOBA") and general
operating expenses. For a description of DAC and VOBA, see Notes 2, 9 and 11 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included elsewhere in this report. )

At December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, we had $993,934 and $995,850, respectively of debt and
mandatorily redeemable preferred stock. This has had an impact on our annual interest and dividend costs.
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Dispositions of Businesses

Our results of operations were affected by the following dispositions:

On November 9, 2005, the Company signed an agreement with Forethought to sell via reinsurance new
preneed insurance polices written as of October 1, 2005 in the United States via independent funeral homes and
funeral home chains other than those owned and operated by SCI. The Company will receive payments from
Forethought over the next ten years based on the amount of business the Company transitions to Forethought.
This agreement does not impact preneed’s Independent—Canada operation or SCI distribution channels.

On May 3, 2004, we sold the assets of our WorkAbility division of CORE, Inc. (“CORE™). We recorded 2
pre-tax loss on the sale of $9,232, which was included in the Corporate and Other segment.

Critical Accounting Estimates

There are certain accounting policies that we consider to be critical due to the amount of judgment and
uncertainty inherent in the application of those policies. In calculating financial statement estimates, the use of
different assumptions could produce materially different estimates. In addition, if factors such as those described
above or in “Item 1 A.—Risk Factors” cause actual events to differ from the assumptions used in applying the i
accounting policies and calculating financial estimates, there could be a material adverse effect on our results of
operations, financial condition and liquidity.

We believe the following critical accounting policies require significant estimates which, if such estimates
are not materiaily correct, could affect the preparation of our conselidated financial statements.

Reserves

Reserves are established according to GAAP using generally accepted actuarial methods and are based on a
number of factors. These factors include experience derived from historical claim payments and actuarial
assumptions to arrive at loss development factors. Such assumptions and other factors include trends, the
incidence of incurred claims, the extent to which all claims have been reported and internal claims processing
charges. The process used in computing reserves cannot be exact, particularly for liability coverages, since actual
claim costs are dependent upon such complex factors as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal liabilities and
damage awards. The methods of making such estimates and establishing the related liabilities are periodically
reviewed and updated. '

Reserves do not represent an exact calculation of exposure, but instead represent our best estimates,
generally involving actuarial projections at a given time, of what we expect the ultimate settlement and
administration of a claim or group of claims will cost based on our assessment of facts and circumstances then
known. The adequacy of reserves will be impacted by future trends in claims severity, frequency, judicial
theories of liability and other factors. These variables are affected by both external and internal events, such as:
changes in the economic cycle, changes in the social perception of the value of work, emerging medical
perceptions regarding physiological or psychological causes of disability, emerging health issues and new
methods of treatment or accommodation, inflation, judicial trends, legislative changes and claims handling
procedures.

Many of these items are not directly quantifiable, particularly on a prospective basis. Reserve estimates are
refined as experience develops. Adjustments to reserves, both positive and negative, are reflected in the statement
of operations of the period in which such estimates are updated. Because establishment of reserves is an
inherently uncertain process involving estimates of future losses, there can be no certainty that ultimate losses
will not exceed existing claims reserves. Future loss development could require reserves to be increased, which
could have a material adverse effect on cur earnings in the periods in which such increases are made.
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The following table provides reserve information by our major lines of business for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005:

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005

Future Incurred Future Incurred
Policy But Not Policy But Not
Benefits and  Uncarned Case Reported Benefits and Unearned Case Reported
Expenses Premiums Reserve Reserves  Expenses  Premiums  Reserve  Reserves

Long Duration Contracts:
Pre-funded funeral life
insurance policies and
investment-type annuity

COMMTACIS .\ ..ovvvr.ins $3.031.487 § 3,339 3 10599 § 3094 52902918 $ 3616 § 11476 3 3443
Life insurance no longer
offered................ 502,406 784 1,356 467 513,426 820 1612 517

Universai life and other
products no longer

offered................ 331,257 1,537 263 8.289 346,928 1,699 339 7,128
FFG and LTC disposed
businesses ............. 2,743,154 45,129 262.960 34,743 2724575 46,956 218,311 15,243
Medical ..,......,....... 152,954 23,827 34.454 43,602 172,441 31,650 50,866 45926
Allother ................ 5,085 504 11,532 7213 4,566 608 8.548 7926
Short Duration Contracts: -
Group term life ........... _ 6,787 327,180 53,221 — 6,207 331,040 58,953
Group disability .......... — 2195 1.362.594 156,296 — 2,110 1,330,091 168,825
Medical ................. — 95,651 123,736 192,394 — 89,776 143,379 180,727
Dental ...........cc0o.uu — 3,79 4,746 19.873 —_ 4,226 4,631 23.332
Property and Warranty . . . .. — 1,488,253 195,306, 296,336 —_ 1,261,145 415,654 531,364
Credit Life and Disability . . . _ 494,113 125.909 93.261 —_ 571,723 154,964 120,279
Extended Service
Contract .............. — 2,179,345 3,075 32,462 — 1,784,292 6,726 27.900
Allother ................ — 84,633 3.251 3.954 — 46,786 3,694 2,329
Total .............ccovvvnnnn $6,766,343 34429893 $2.466,961 $945205 36,664,854 33,851,614 $2,681.331 51,193,892

For a description of our reserving methodelogy, see Note 12 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements included elsewhere in this report.

The following discusses the reserving process for our major long duration product line.

Long Duration

Reserves for future policy benefits are recorded as the present value of future benefits to policyholders and
related expenses less the present value of future net premiums. Reserve assumptions are selected using best
estimates for expected investment yield. inflation. montality and withdrawal rates. These assumptions reflect
current trends, are based on Company experience and include provision for possible unfavorable deviation, We
also record an unearned revenue reserve which represents the balance of the excess of gross premiums over net
premiums that is still to be recognized in future years’ income in a constant relationship to insurance in force.

Risks related to the reserves recorded for contracts from FFG and LTC disposed businesses have been 100%
ceded via reinsurance. While the Company has not been released from the contractual obligation to the
policyholders, changes in and deviations from economic and mortality assumptions used in the calculation of
these reserves will not directly affect the Company unless there is a default by the assuming reinsurer. We have
sold these businesses through reinsurance.

Loss recognition testing is performed annually and reviewed quarterly. Such testing involves the use of best
estimate assumptions to determine if the net liability position (all liabilities less DAC) exceeds the minimum
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liability needed. Any premium deficiency would first be addressed by removing the provisien for adverse
deviation. To the extent a premium deficiency still remains, it would be recognized immediately by a charge to
the statement of operations and a corresponding reduction in DAC. Any additional deficiency would be
recognized as a premium deficiency reserve.

Historically, loss recognition testing has not resulted in an adjustment to DAC or reserves. Such adjustments
would occur only if economic or mortality conditions significantly deteriorated. .

Short Duration

For short duration contracts, claims and benefits payable reserves are reported when insured events occur.
The liability is based on the expected ultimate cost of settling the claims. The claims and benefits payable
reserves include (1) case reserves for known but unpaid claims as of the balance sheet date; (2) IBNR reserves
for claims where the insured event has occurred but has not been reported to us as of the balance sheet date; and
(3) loss adjustment expense reserves for the expected handling costs of settling the ¢laims. Periodically, we
review emerging experience and make adjustments to our case reserves and assumptions where necessary. Below
are further discussions on the reserving process for our major short duration products.

Group Disability and Group Term Life

Case or claim reserves are set for active individual claims on group long term disability policies and for
disability waiver of premium benefits on group term life policies. Assumptions considered in setting such
reserves include disabled life montality and claim recovery rates, claim management practices, awards for social
security and other benefit offsets and yield rates earned on assets supporting the reserves. Group long term
disability and group term life waiver of premium reserves are discounted because the payment pattern and
uitimate cost are fixed and determinable on an individual claim basis. '

Factors considered when setting IBNR reserves include patterns in elapsed time from claim incidence to
claim reporting, and elapsed time from claim reporting to claim payment.

Key sensitivities for group long-term disability claim reserves include the discount rate and claim
termination rates.

Claims and Claims and
Benefits Payable Benefits Payable
Group disability, discount rate Group disability, claim termination
decreased by 100 basis points ...... $1,589,249 rate [0% lower................ $1,570,982
Group disability, asreported . ... .. ... $1.518,890  Group disability, as reported ....... $1,518.890
Group disability, discount rate Group disability, claim termination
increased by 100 basis points . ..... $1,452 698 rate 10% higher ............... $1,470.360

The discount rate is also a key sensitivity for group term life waiver of premium reserves.

Claims and Benefits Payable

Group term life, discount rate decreased by 100 basis points ..................... $388,123
Group term life, a5 reported ... .o e $380.401
Group life, discount rate increased by 100 basispoints . ........ ... ... .. ... ..... $£372,212
Medical

IBNR reserves represent the largest component of reserves estimated for claims and benefits payable in our
Medical line of business, and the primary methods we use in their estimation are the loss development method
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and the projected claim method for recent claim periods. Under the loss development method, we estimate
ultimate losses for each incident period by multiplying the current cumulative losses by the appropriate loss
development factor. Under the projected claim method, we use ultimate loss ratios when development methods
do not provide enough data to reliably estimate reserves. In addition, we use variations on each method as well as
a blend of the two. The primary variation is the use of projected claims using differing experience periods. We
primarily use these two methods in our Medical line of business because of the limitations of relying exclusively
on a single method.

We develop the best estimate of expected outstanding liabilities for medical IBNR reserves using generally
accepted actuarial principles. The various product lines are evaluated using experience data of sufficient detail to
allow for the compilation of historical loss patterns including but not limited to claim lag factors, projected
claims per member and restated development factors. If sufficient experience data is not available, experience
data from other similar blocks may be used. Industry data as well as data from consulting actuaries provide
additional benchmarks when historical experience is too limited. This information is used to provide a range in
which the expected outstanding liabilities may fall. The selection of the ultimate loss estimate varies by product
line as the credibility of certain methods differs depending upon the in-force volume, the product’s claim
volatility and the method itself, The selection is also influenced by other available information that may indicate
that historical experience data may not be appropriate (o use for current liability estimates. Examples of such
information include but are not limited to changes in claims inventory levels, changes in provider negotiated
rates or cost savings initiatives, increasing or decreasing medical cost trends, product changes and demographic
changes in the underlying insured population.

The devélopmem of prior period estimates are also reviewed to assist in establishing the current period's
loss reserves. The short claim lag time inherent in many of our Medical products allows for emerging trends to be
identified quickly.

We evaluate all pertinent information and indicated ranges using experience and actuarial judgment to
establish our best estimate for the associated liabilities.

A key sensitivity is the loss development factors used. Loss development factors selected take into
consideration claims processing levels, claims under case management, medical inflation, seasonal effects,
medical provider discounts and product mix.

Claims and Benefits Payable

Medical, loss development factors [%elower ... ... ... ... ... ... ...cciiian $342,130*
Medical, asreported .. ... ... e e $316,130
Medical, loss development factors 1% higher .......... ... .. ... oo $295,130

*  This refers to loss development factors for the most recent four months. Our historical claims experience
indicates that approximately 84% of medical claims are paid within four months of the incurred date.

None of the changes in incurred claims from prior years in our Medical line of business. and the related

‘downward revisions in our Medical estimated reserves, were attributable to any change in our reserve methods or

assumptions.

Property and Warranty -

We develop the best estimate of loss reserves for our Property and Warranty line of business on a product
line basis using generally accepted actuarial principles. Our Property and Warranty line of business includes
creditor-placed homeowners, manufactured housing homeowners, credit property, credit unemployment and
warranty insurance and some longer-tail coverages (e.g., asbestos, environmental, other general liability and
personal accident). Qur Property and Warranty loss reserves consist of case reserves, IBNR and development on
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case reserves. The method we most often use in setting our Property and Warranty reserves is the loss
development method. Under this method, we estimate ultimate losses for each accident period by multiptying the
current cumulative losses by the appropriate loss development factor. We then calculate the reserve as the
difference between the estimate of ultimate losses and the current case-incurred losses (paid losses plus case
reserves). We select loss development factors based on a review of historical averages, and we consider recent
trends and business specific matters such as current claims payment practices.

The loss development method involves aggregating loss data (paid losses and case-incurred losses) by
accident quarter (or accident year) and accident age in quarters (or years} for each product or product grouping.
As the data ages, we compile loss development factors that measure emerging claim development patierns
between reporting periods. By selecting the most appropriate loss development factors, we project the known
losses to an ultimate incurred basis for each accident period.

The data is analyzed at a minimum using four different loss development methods by product or product
grouping: a) annual paid losses, b) annual case-incurred losses, ¢) quarterly paid losses and d) quarterly case-
incurred losses. Also, in addition to the above, some product groupings are analyzed using the expected loss ratio
and Bornhuetter-Ferguson loss development methods.

Each of these reserve methodologies produces an indication of the loss reserves for the product or product
grouping. The process to select the best estimate differs across lines of business. The single best estimale is
determined based on many factors, including but not limited to:

» the nature and extent of the underiying assumptions,
+ the guality and applicability of historical data — whether it be internal or industry data,

« current and future market conditions — the economic environment will often impact the development of
loss triangles,

« the extent of data segmentation — data should be homogenous yet credible enough for loss development
methods to apply, and

»  the past variability of loss estimates — the loss estimates on some product lines will vary from actual loss
experience more than others.

We review operational and claims activity to gather additional pertinent information. After reviewing all
additional pertinent information, a final IBNR amount for each product grouping is selected. We may use other
methods depending on data credibility and product line. We use the estimates generated by the various methods
to establish a range of reasonable estimates. The best estimate of Property and Warranty reserves is generally
selected from the middle to upper end of the third quartile of the range of reasonable estimates.

Most of our credit insurance business is written on a retrospective commission basis, which permits
management to adjust commissions based on claims experience. Thus, any adjustment to prior years’ incurred
claims in this line of business is largely offset by a change in contingent commissions which is included in the
selling, underwriting and general expenses line in our results of operations.

While management has used its best judgment in establishing its estimate of required reserves, different
assumptions and variables could lead to significantly different reserve estimates. Two key measures of loss
activity are loss frequency, which is a measure of the number of claims per unit of insured exposure, and loss
severity, which is a measure of the average size of claims. Factors affecting loss frequency include the
effectiveness of loss controls and safety programs and changes in economic activity or weather patterns. Factors
affecting loss severity include changes in policy limits, retentions, rate of inflation and judicial interpretations.
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If the actual level of loss frequency and severity are higher or lower than expected, the ultimate reserves will
be different than management’s estimate. The effect of higher and lower levels of loss frequency and severity
levels on our ultimate costs for claims occurring in 2006 would be as follows:

Change in both loss frequency and Ultimate cost of claims  Change in cost of claims
severity for all Property and Warranty occurring in 2006 occurring in 2006
3% higher ... . e $521.724 $ 29,949

2P higher .. e e $511,643 $ 19,868

19 higher .. ... e e $501.660 $ 9,885

Base SCENAMIO . ...\ttt e et $491.642 £ —

10 OWeE .. e e $481.890 $ (9.885)

2 1 $471,907 $(19,868)

B OWET vt it e e e e e e s $461,826 $(29.949)

Reserving for Ashestos and Other Claimsy

We have exposure to asbestos, environmental and other general liability claims arising from our
participation in various reinsurance pools from 1971 through 1983. This exposure arose from a short duration
contract that we discontinued writing many vears ago. We believe the balance of case reserves for these liabilities
and bulk reserves for IBNR are adequate. However, any estimation of these liabilities is subject to greater than
normal variation and uncertainty due to the general lack of sufficiently detailed data, reporting delays and
absence of a generally accepted actuarial methodology for those exposures. There are significant unresolved
industry legal issues, including such items as whether coverage exists and what constitutes an occurrence. In
addition. the determination of ultimate damages and the final allocation of lesses to financially responsible
parties are highly uncertain. However, based on information currently available, and after consideration of the
reserves reflected in the financial statements, we believe that any changes in reserve estimates for these claims
are not reasonably likely to be material.

One of our subsidiaries, American Reliable Insurance Company (“ARIC™), participated in certain excess of
loss reinsurance programs in the London market and, as a result, reinsured certain personal accident. ransom and
kidnap insurance risks from 1995 to 1997. ARIC and a foreign affiliate ceded a portion of these risks to
retrocessionaires. ARIC ceased reinsuring such business in 1997. However. certain risks continued beyond 1997
due to the nature of the reinsurance contracts written. ARIC and some of the other reinsurers involved in the
programs are seeking 10 avoid certain treaties on various grounds. including material misrepresentation and
non-disclosure by the ceding companies and intermediaries involved in the programs. Similarly, some of the
retrocessionaires are seeking avoidance of certain treaties with ARIC and the other reinsurers and some
reinsureds are seeking collection of disputed balances under some of the treaties. The disputes generally involve
multiple layers of reinsurance, and allegations that the reinsurance programs involved interrelated claims
“spirals” devised to disproportienately pass claims losses 1o higher-level reinsurance layers. Many of the
companies involved in these programs, including ARIC, are currently involved in negotiations, arbitrations and/
or litigation between multiple layers of retrocessionaries, reinsurers, ceding companies and intermediaries,
including brokers. in an effort to resolve these disputes.

Many of the disputes involving ARIC and an affiliate, Bankers Insurance Company Limited (“BICL"}).
relating to the 1995 and 1997 program years, have been resolved by settlement or arbitration. As a result of the
settlements and an arbitration (in which ARIC did not prevail) additional information became available in 2005,
and, based on management’s best esiimate, we increased our reserves and recorded a total pre-tax charge of
$61,943 for the year ended December 31, 2005. On February 28, 2006. many of the disputes relating to losses in
the 1996 program were setiled. Loss accruals previously established relating to the 1996 program were
adequate. Negotiations, arbitrations and litigation are still ongoing or will be scheduled for the remaining
disputes. We believe, based on information currently available, that the amounts accrued for currently
outstanding disputes are adequate. However, the inherent uncertainty of arbitrations and lawsuits, including the
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uncertainty of estimating whether any settlements we may enter into in the future would be on favorable terms,
makes it difficult to predict the outcomes with certainty.

DAC

The costs of acquiring new business that vary with and are primarily related (o the production of new
business have been deferred to the extent that such costs are deemed recoverable from future premiums or gross
profits. Acquisition costs primarily consist of commissions, policy issuance expenses, premium tax and certain
direct marketing expenses.

Loss recognition testing is performed annually and reviewed quarterly. Such testing involves the use of best
estimate assumptions, including the anticipation of interest income to determine if anticipated future policy
premiums are adequate to recover all DAC and related claims, benefits and expenses. To the extent a premium
deficiency exists, it is recognized immediately by a charge to the statement of operations and a corresponding
reduction in DAC. If the premium deficiency is greater than uvnamortized DAC, a liability will be accrued for the
excess deficiency.

Long Duration Contracts

Acquisition costs for pre-funded funeral life insurance policies and life msurance policies no longer offered
are deferred and amortized in proportion to anticipated premiums over the premium-paying period. These
acquisition costs consist primarily of first year commissions paid to agents and sales and policy issue costs.

For pre-funded funeral investment-type annuities and universal life insurance policies and investment-type
annuity contracts that are no longer offered, DAC is amortized in proportion to the present value of estimated
gross margins or profits from investment, mortality, expense margins and surrender charges over the estimated
life of the policy or contract. The assumptions used for the estimates are consistent with those used in computing
the policy or contract liabilities,

Acquisition costs relating to worksite group disability consist primarily of first year commissions to brokers
and one time policy transfer fees and costs of issuing new certificates. These acquisition costs are front-end
loaded, thus they are deferred and amortized over the estimated terms of the underlying contracts.

Acquisition costs relating to individual medical contracts issued prior to 2003 and currently in a limited
number of jurisdictions are deferred and amortized over the estimated average terms of the underlying contracts.
These acquisition costs relate to commissions and policy issuance expenses. Commissions represent the majority
of deferred costs and result from commission schedules that pay significantly higher rates in the first year. The
majority of deferred policy issuance expenses are the costs of separately underwriting each individual medical
contract,

Short Duration Contracts
Acquisition costs relating to property contracts, warranty and extended service contracts and single premium
credit insurance contracts are amortized over the term of the contracts in relation to premiums earned.

Acquisition costs relating to monthly pay credit insurance business consist mainly of direct marketing costs
and are deferred and amortized over the estimated average terms and balances of the underlying contracts.

Acquisition costs relating to group term life, group disability and group dental consist primarily of
compensation to sales representatives. These acquisition costs are front-end loaded; thus, they are deferred and
amortized over the estimated terms of the underlying contracts.

Acquisition costs on individual medical contracts issued in most jurisdictions after 2002 and small group
medical contracts consist primarily of commissions to agents and brokers and compensation to representatives.
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These contracts are considered short duration because the terms of the contract are not fixed at issue and they are
not guaranteed renewable. As a result, these costs are not deferred, but rather are recorded in the statement of
operations in the period in which they are incurred.

Investments

We regularly monitor our investment portfolio to ensure that investments that may be other-than-
temporarily impaired are identified in a timely fashion and properly valued and that any impairments are charged
against earnings in the proper period. Our methodology to identify potentizl impairments requires professional
judgment.

The Company monitors its investment portfolio to identify investments that may be other than temporarily
impaired. In addition, securities whose market price is equal to 85% or less of their original purchase price are
added to the impairment watchlist, which is discussed at quarterly meetings attended by members of the
Company’s investment, accounting and finance departments. Any security whose price decrease is deemed other-
than-temporary is written down to its then current market level with the amount of the writedown reported as a
realized loss in that period. Assessment factors include, but are not limited to, the length of time and the exient to
which the market value has been less than cost, the financial condition and rating of the issuer, whether any
collateral is held and the intent and ability of the Company to retain the investment for a period of time sufficient
to allow for recovery. ’

Realized gains and losses on sales of investments and declines in value judged to be other-than-temporary
are recognized on the specific identification basis.

Inherently, there are risks and uncertainties involved in making these judgments. Changes in circumstances
and critical assumptions such as a continued weak economy, a more pronounced economic downturn or
unforeseen events which affect one or more companies, industry sectors or countries could result in additional
writedowns in future periods for impairments that are deemed to be other-than-temporary. See also
“Investments” in Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this report and
“Item 1 A—Risk Factors—OQur investment portfolio is subject to several risks that may diminish the value of our
invested assets and affect our profitability.”

Reinsurance

Reinsurance recoverables inciude amounts related to paid benefits and estimated amounts related to unpaid
policy and contract claims, future policyholder benefits and policyholder contract deposits. The cost of
reinsurance is accounted for over the terms of the underlying reinsured policies using assumptions consistent
with those used to account for the policies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner
consistent with claim and claim adjustment expense reserves or future policy benefits reserves and are reported in
our consolidated balance sheets. The ceding of insurance does not discharge our primary liability to our insureds.
An estimated allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded on the basis of periodic evaluations of balances due
from reinsurers, reinsurer solvency, management’s experience and current economic conditions.

The following table sets forth our reinsurance recoverables as of the dates indicated:
As of As of
December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005

(in thousands)
Reinsurance recoverables . ................... .. $3,914.972 $4,447.810

We have used reinsurance to exit certain businesses, such as the dispositions of FFG and LTC. The
reinsurance recoverables relating to these dispositions amounted to $2,728,216 and $2,440,480 at December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively.
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In the ordinary course of business, we are involved in both the assumption and cession of reinsurance with
non-affiliated companies. The following table provides details of the reinsurance recoverables balance for the

years ended December 31:

2006 2005
(in thousands)
Ceded future policyholder benefits and expense . ... ... ... ... ... .. ... $2,635.445 32,565,223
Ceded unearned Premilm ... ..ttt et r e i 637447 691,787
Ceded claims and benefits payable ................. .. ... ... ..t 577.052 928,882
Cededpaid losses ... .. 65,028 261,918
17 ¢ S $3.914972 $4,447.810

We utilize reinsurance for loss protection and capital management, business dispositions and, in Assurant
Solutions, client risk and profit sharing. See also “ltem TA-Quantative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market
Risk-—Credit Risk.”

Retirement and Other Employee Benefits

We sponsor a pension and a retirement health benefit plan covering our employees who meet specified
eligibility requirements. The reported expense and liability associated with these plans requires an extensive use
of assumptions which include the discount rate, expected return on plan assets and rate of future compensation
increases. We determine these assumptions based upon currently available market and industry data, historical
performance of the plan and its assets, and consultation with an independent consulting actuarial firm to aid us in
selecting appropriate assumptions and valuing our related liabilities. The actuarial assumptions used in the
calculation of our aggregate projected benefit obligation may vary and include an expectation of long-term
markel appreciation in equily markets which is not changed by minor short-term market fluctuations, but does
change when large interim deviations occur. The assumptions we use may differ materially from actual results
due to changing market and economic conditions, higher or lower withdrawal rates or longer or shorter life spans
of the participants.

Contingencies

We follow the requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS™) No. 5, Accounting for.
Contingencies ("FAS 57). This requires management to evaluate each contingent matter separately. A loss is
reported if reasonably estimable and probable. We establish reserves for these contingencies at the best estimate,
or, if no one estimated number within the range of possible losses is more probable than any other, we report an
estimated reserve at the low end of the estimated range. Contingencies affecting the Company include litigation
matters which are inherently difficult to evaluate and are subject to significant changes.
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Results of Operations

Assurant Consolidated
Overview
The table below presents information regarding our consolidated resuits of operations:

For the Year Ended

December 31,
2006 2005 2004
{in thousands)
Revenues:
Net earned premiums and other considerations .............. $ 6,843,775 36,520,796 § 6,482,871
Net investment inCoOMe . .. ...ttt ot 736,686 687.257 634,749
Net realized gainsoninvestments . ... .......ovevvenvnnnn.s 111.865 8.235 24,308
Amortization of deferred gains on disposal of businesses . ..... 37.300 42,508 57,632
Loss on disposal of businesses .. ... ... ... . o o L o _— (9,232}
Feesandotherincome ............ ... ... ... .......... 340,958 238.879 220386
Total FBVENUES . . .ottt e e 8,070,584 7.497.675 7.410,714
Benefits, losses and expenses:
Policyholder benefits ... ... ... i (3.538,947) (3,707.809) (3.839,769)
Selling. underwriting and general expenses(1) ............... {3,374,652) (3.073.000) (2.976,436)
INEETEST EXPEIISE « . .ottt ittt et et (61,243) (61,258) (56,418)
Distributions on preferred securities .............. ... . ... — — (2,163)
Total benefits, losses and expenses . ................... (6.974,842) (6.842.067) (6,874.786)
Income before income taxes and curmulative effect of change in
accounting principle ............. ... ... ... ..o i, 1,095,742 655.608 535928
Income taxes ... ..o e e (379,871) (176.253) (185.368)
Net income before cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle ... ... 715,871 479,355 350.560
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . ......... 1.547 — —
Netincome . ... ... ... e $ 717418 $ 479355 § 350,560

(1) Includes amortization of DAC and VOBA and underwriting, general and administrative expenses.

The following discussion provides a high level analysis of how the consolidated resulis were affected by our
four operating business segments and our Corporate and Other segment. Please see the results of operations
discussion for each of these segments contained in this document for more detailed analysis of the fluctuations.

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Net income increased $238,063, or 50%, 1o $717.418 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2006 from
$479,355 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005. The increase was primarily driven by an increase in
Assurant Specialty Property’s creditor-placed homeowners business net eared premiums, fee income, improved
loss experience and the lack of significant catastrophes in 2006, Assurant Solutions also contributed to the
increase in net income primarily due to higher fee income from a $40,500 (after rax) legal settlement, growth in
the extended service contract business and one-time fee income recognized from a closed block of extended
service contract business. Corporate and Other also contributed to the increase in net income primarily due to
higher net realized gains due to $63,900 (after tax) from the sale of our investment in PHCS. The $1,547
cumulative effect of change in accounting principle is a result of adopting FAS 123R and reflects the difference
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between compensation expense that would have been recognized using actual forfeitures and compensation
expense that would have been recognized using expected forfeitures.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004

Net income increased $128,795, or 37%., to $479,355 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005 from
$350,560 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2004, The increase was primarily driven by Assurant
Specialty Property’s creditor-placed homeowners business with lower net catastrophe losses, improved loss
experience absent catastrophes and increased net earned premiums. Assurant Solutions also contributed to the
increase in net income primarily due to an increase in net investment income and fee and other income. Also
adding 10 this increase was a lower benefit loss ratio in Assurant Health’s small employer group business and the
release of previously provided tax accruals due to the resolution of IRS audits in Corporate and Other. Offseuting
these increases was a strengthening of reserve accruals of approximately $40,300 (after-tax) on certain excess of
loss reinsurance programs sold by our subsidiaries in the London market between 1995 and 1997 in Corporate
and Other.

Assurant Solutions
Overview
The table below presents information regarding Assurant Solutions’ segment results of operations:

For the Year Ended
December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(in thousands)

Revenues:
Net earned premiums and other considerations . ............. $2.371.605 §27220,145 $ 2205988
Netinvestment inCome .. ...........c.o.uriinennnnennnnn. 392,510 371,565 318,705
Feesand otherincome . ... ... ... ... . . i, 221,751 132,730 113,515
Total revenues ... ... e e 2,985,806 2,724,440 2,638,208
Benefits, losses and expenses:
Policyholderbenefits .. ........ ... ... . ... ... ... ... .... (998,770) (1.046,900) (1,094,884)
Selling, underwriting and general expenses ................. (1,689,776} (1,477.505) (1,413,562)
Total benefits, losses and expenses . ................... (2,688,546) (2,524,405) (2,508,446)
Segment income before incometax ............ ... ... . ... .. 267.320 200,035 129,762
INCOME LAXES .. ..ttt e e e e (98,427 (66,388) (39,044)
Segment income aftertax ............. ... ... .. ... ..., $ 198893 § 133,147 § 90,718

Gross written premiums for selected product groupings: (1)

DomesticCredit . ... ... . .. i e $ 714791 § 767466 $ 853,011
International Credit ....... ... ..o . £ 680,097 § 647467 § 594,646
Domestic Extended Service Contracts (2) .................. $1,258.292 31,120,227 % 960.352
International Extended Service Contracts (2) ................ $ 341886 % 247506 § 73,103
Preneed (Face Sales) .. ...... ..., $ 433510 $ 542,512 $ 582197

(1) Gross written premium does not necessarily translate to an equal amount of subsequent net earned
premiums since Assurant Solutions reinsures a portion of its premium to insurance subsidiaries of its clients.

(2) Extended Service Contracts includes warrunty contracts for products such as personal computers, consumer
electronics and appliances.
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Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2005
Net Income

Segment net income increased by $65,746, or 49%, to $198,893 for the twelve months ended December 31,
2006 from $133,147 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005. The increase in segment net income was
primarily due to a legal settlement resulting in $40,500 (after tax) of other income and $5.041 (after tax) of
one-time fee income recognized from a closed block of extended service contract business. This was partially
offset by $3,363 (after tax) of lower investment income from real estate partnerships. Absent these events the
Solutions’ segment net income increased by $23.568, or 18%, which is primarily attributable to higher fee
income resulting from growth in our extended service contract business and an increase in invesimeni income
primarily due to an increase in average invested assets.

Toral Revenues

Total revenues increased by $261.426 or 10%, 1o $2.985,866 for the twelve months ended December 31,
2006 from $2,724,440 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005. This increase is primarily due to an
increase in net earned premiums and other considerations of $151,460. This increase is primarily attributable to
higher net earned premiums in our extended service contract and international businesses. These increases are
partially offset by the decrease in the net earned premium in our Preneed business due to the sale of the
Independent-13.S. distribution channel as well as decreases in other runoff businesses. The increase in revenues
was also due to an increase in fees and other income of $89,021, primarily driven by a legal settlement of
$62,300 and continued growth from our extended service contract business, including $7,756 of one-time fee
income from a closed block of extended service contract business. The legal settlement is with a former customer
and was first disclosed as a pending legal judgment in our 2004 10-K. We are anticipating a reduction in fee
income in 2007 due to the loss of a large debt deferment client. This client contributed approximately $18,000 of
fee income in 2006, Net investment income increased by $20,945, or 6%, primarily due to higher average
invested assets from growth in our extended service contract businesses both domestically and abroad.

We experienced sales growth in most of our cere product lines, with the exception of our domestic credit
and Preneed businesses. Gross written premiums in our domestic credit business decreased by $52,675 due to the
continued decline of this product line. Gross written premiums from our international credit business increased
by $32.630 due to growth in our expansion countries. Gross written premiums in our domestic extended service
contract business increased by $138,065 due to the addition of new clients and growth generated from existing
clients. Gross written premiums in our international extended service contract business increased by $94,380,
mainly due to the continued growth of a client signed in late 2004. We also experienced a decrease in our
preneed businesses due to the sale of the U.S. Independent distribution channel in November 20085.

Total Benefits, Losses and Expenses

Total benefits, losses and expenses increased by $164,141, or 7%. to $2,688,546 for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2006 from $2.524,405 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005. This increase was
primarily due to an increase in selling, underwriting and general expenses of $212,271. Commissions, laxes,
licenses and fees, of which amortization of DAC is a component, increased by $187.036 primarily due 1o the
associated increase in revenues and the change in the mix of business. Commissions increased due to higher
commission rates on our increasing extended service contract business versus lower commission rates on the
decreasing U.S. Independent Preneed business, General expenses increased by $25,235 due to higher expenses
directly related to the growth of the business. Policyholder benefits decreased by $48,130 primarily as a result of
the sale via reinsurance of the U.S. Independent Preneed channel and lower policyholder benefits attributable to
the termination of a block of accidental death business. This was offset by an increase in extended service
contract policyholder benefits, mostly from growth in the business.
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Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Net Income

Segment net income increased by $42.429, or 47%. 10 $133,147 for the twelve months ended December 31,
2005 from $90,718 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2004. The increase in segment net income is
primarily attributable to an increase in investment income driven by the increased invested assets as a resuit of
growth in our domestic and international extended service contract business combined with $6,116 (after tax) of
additional investment income from a real estate partnership. The growth in our extended service contract and
international products fee income also contributed to an increase in segment net income.

Total Revenues

Total revenues increased by $86,232, or 3%, to $2,724,440 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005
from $2,638,208 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2004. This increase is primarily due to an increase
in net investment income of $52,860, or 17%. The increase was a result of an increase in the average portfolio
vield and average invested assets, combined with income from a real estate partnership transaction of $9,409 and
approximately $7,300 of non-recurring investment income itemns in 2005, Also contributing to the increase was
an increase in fee income of $19,215, or 17%, mainly due to growth in our extended service contract and debt
deferment products. Net earned premiums and other considerations increased by $14,157, or 1%, primarily from
higher net earned premiums in our extended service contract and international products, partially offset by the
continued decline of our domestic credit insurance products and the decrease in net eamed premiums in our
Preneed business due to the sale of the Preneed Independent-U.S. distribution channel.

We experienced sales growth in all of our core product groupings, with the exception of our domestic credit
and Preneed businesses. Gross written premiums in our domestic credit products decreased by 585,545, or 10%,
due to the continued decline of this product line. Gross written premiums from our international credit products
increased by $52,821, or 9%, due to our focus on international expansion, Gross wrilten premiums in our
domestic extended service contract products increased by $159,875, or 17%, due to the addition of new clients
and growth generated from existing clients. Gross written premiums in our international extended service
contract products increased by $174,403, or over 100%, mainly due to the signing of a new client in Canada in
late 2004,

Total Benefits, Losses c;nd Expenses

Total bienefits, losses and expenses increased by $15,959 or 1%, to $2,524,405 for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2005 from $2.508,446 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2004. This increase was
primarily due to an increase in selling, underwriting and general expenses of $63,943. Commission, taxes,
licenses and fees, of which amortization of DAC is a component, increased by $45,207 primarily due to the
associated increase in revenues, partially offset by lower premium taxes attributable to the change in the mix of
business. General expenses increased by $18,736 due to growth in the business, severance and costs related to the
sale of the Independent-U.S. distribution channel, and increased expenses related to SOX 404. This increase was
offset by a decrease in policyholder benefits of $47.984, or 4%, primarily attributable to a decline in policyholder
benefits associated with the sale of the Independent-U.S. distribution channel.
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Ve
Assurant Specialty Property
Overview
The table below presents information regarding Assurant Specialty Property’s segment results of operations:
For the Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(in thousands)
Revenues:
Net eamed premiums and other considerations ................ $1,208,311  $ 858,848 § 768,773
Net investment iNCOME .. ... viver vt ir e in e er e 74,501 61,953 72,546
Feesandotherincome .......... .. ... it innnn.s 49,424 38.159 37.013
Total TeVenuUes . .. ..ot e e 1,332,236 958.960 878,332
Benefits, losses and expenses:
Policyholderbenefits . ......... ... .. .. ... . L (408,721  (317.507)  (363.,926)
Selling, underwriting and general expenses ................... (553,452) (422,999 (401.327)
Total benefits, losses and expenses .............. . ...... (962,173)  (740,506)  (765.253)
Segment income beforeincometax . ... ... ... .. Lo 370,063 218,454 113,079
o TT ] 17 1D - (128,942) (75.227) {38.138)
Segment incomeaftertax .. ................... ... ..o $ 241,121 $143227 § 74941
Net earned premiums and other considerations by major product
groupings:
Homeowners (Creditor Placed and Voluntary) ................ $ 753.169 $ 443526 $ 392561
Manufacturing Housing (Creditor Placed and Voluntary) ........ 214.461 217,424 210,824
Other( 1) .o et e e e 240,681 197,868 165,388
Total ..o e $1,208311 § 858848 §$ 768,773
Ratios: .
Loss ratio(d) ... .o i e e 33.8% 37.0% 47.3%
Expenseratiof3) ... . .. 44.0% 47.2% 49 8%
Combined ratio(d) . .. ... 76.5% 82.6% 95.0%

(1)} This includes flood, renters, agricultural, specialty auto and other insurance products.

{2) The loss ratio is equal 1o policyholder benefits divided by net earned premiums and other considerations.

{3) The expense ratio is equal 10 selling, underwriting and general expenses divided by net earned premiums
and other considerations and fees and other income.

{4) The combined ratio is equal 1o total benefits, losses and expenses divided by net earned premiums and other
considerations and fees and other income.

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2005
Net Income

Segment net income increased by $97,894, or 68%, to $241,121 for the twelve months ended December 31,
2006 from $143,227 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005, The increase in segment net income is
primarily due to increased net eamed premiums, fee income and improved loss experience in our creditor placed
homeowners business, the lack of significant catastrophes in 2006, the acquisition of SFIS and favorable
settlements with two former clients of $53,500 (after tax). The increase in net income was partially offset by a
reduction in loss adjustment expense reimbursements from the National Flood [nsurance Program and one-time
favorable settlements with clients in 2005.
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Total Revenues

Total revenues increased by $373.276 or 39%, to $1.332.236 for the twelve months ended December 31,
2006 from $958,960 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005, The increase is primarily due to an
increase in net earned premiums and other considerations of $349,463, or 41%. This increase was primarily
attributable to the growth in our creditor placed and voluntary homeowners product lines, due to continued
organic growth of these businesses combined with $123,818 of net earned premium resulting from the
acquisition of SFIS. The increase in revenues was also driven by an increase in fee income of §11,263, or 30%,
primarily from growth in creditor-placed homeowners loan tracking services. Also contributing to the increase in
revenues was higher investment income of $12,548, or 20%. due to higher invested assets combined with higher
investment yields.

Total Benefits, Losses and Expenses

Total benefits, losses and expenses increased by $221.667 or 30%, to $962,173 for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2006 from $740,506 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005. This increase was primarily
due to an increase in policyholder benefits of $91,214 and an increase in selling, underwriting and general
expenses of $130.453. The combined ratio decreased 610 basis points from 82.6% to 76.5% primarily due w0
lower catastrophe losses and proactive risk management. The increase in policyholder benefits is primarily
attributable to the growth in our creditor-placed homeowners business and approximately $8.000 in lower
reimbursements from the National Flood Insurance Program for the adjudication of expenses related to the 2005
catastrophe flood losses (from approximately $18,500 in 2005 to $10.500 in 2006). This increase is partially
offset by lower net catastrophe losses of approximately $42.000 and a favorable settlement with two former
clients of $8.500. Commissions, taxes, licenses and fees, of which amortization of DAC is a component,
increased by $69,939 primarily due to the associated increase in revenues combined with approximately $11,400
of one time income recognized in 2005 related to favorable settlements with two clients which resulted in a
release of certain accrued commissions. General expenses increased by $60.514 due to increases in employment
related expenses consistent with business growth and additional operating expenses associated with the SFIS
business.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to December 31, 2004
Net Income

Segment net income increased by $68,286, or 91%, 1o $143,227 for the twelve months ended December 31,
2005 from $74,941 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2004. The increase in segment net income is
primarily attributable to lower net catastrophe losses, improved loss experience absent catastrophe losses and
higher net earned premiums in our creditor placed homeowners business. Net income was also positively
impacted by approximately $11,100 (after-tax) primarily related to the release of certain accrued commissions
and claims payable associated with three clients, two of which previously declared bankruptcy. We favorably
settled many of our claims with these clients during 2005.

Total Revenues

Total revenues increased by $80,628, or 9%, to $938,960 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005
from $878,332 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2004, This increase is primarily due to an increase in
net earned premiums and other considerations of $90,075 or 12%, primarily due o an increase in net earned
premiums in our creditor placed homeowners business. This was partially offset by a reduction in net earned
premiums of approximately $26,000, due 1o additional catastrophe reinsurance reinstatement premiums related to
the hurricanes.

Total Benefits, Losses and Expenses

Total benefits, losses and expenses decreased by 324,747 or 3%, to $740,506 for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2005 from $765,253 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2004, This decrease ts primarily
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due to a decrease in policyholder benefits offset by an increase in selling, underwriting and general expenses. The
decrease in policyholder benefits of $46,419, or 13%, is primarily attributable to $44,400 in lower catastrophe
losses, net of reinsurance in 2005 versus 2004. We incurred losses from catastrophes, net of reinsurance of
$48,700 in 2005, compared to $93,100 in 2004, The decrease was a result of the different severity of gross losses
from each storm and the change in composition of our reinsurance coverage in 2003, Additionally, we collected
approximately $18,500 of loss adjustment expense reimbursements from the National Flood Insurance Program
for providing processing and adjudication services, which resulted in reduced policyholder benefits. We
continued to see improvement in our overall loss ratio in 2005, excluding catastrophe losses. In addition, benefits
and losses reflect a one-time reduction of claims payable of $5,700 associated with a client that previously
declared bankruptcy. Selling, underwriting and general expenses increased by $21,672, or 5%. Commissions,
taxes, licenses and fees, of which amortization of DAC is a component, decreased by $3,365 primarily due to a
one-time reduction of $11,400 of commission liabilities as a result of favorable settlements with two clients
offset by higher expenses related to the growth of our creditor placed homeowners insurance products. General
expenses increased by $25,037 due to growth in the business and expenses relating to the 2005 hurricane season,
including guaranty fund assessments.
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Assurant Health

Overview

The table below presents information regarding Assurant Health's segment results of operations:

For the Year Ended

December 31,
2006 2005 2004
{in thousands)
Revenues:
Net earned premiums and other considerations .............. $ 2083957 $2,163965 § 2,231,298
Net iInvestment iNCOME . . ... ...ttt 75215 69,056 67,902
Feesandotherincome .......... ... ... .. ... .. ... ...... 41,560 40,344 38,708
Totalrevenues ......... ... ... .. .. ... .. ... . .. 2,200,732 2,273,365 2,337,908
Benefits, losses and expenses:
Policyholderbenefits . . ............. .. ... i it (1,300817)  (1,344,624) (1,422,783)
Selling. underwriting and general expenses ................. (641,328) (657,399) (674.907)
Tolal benefits, losses and expenses . ................... (1.942,145) (2,002,523) (2,097,690)
Segment income before incometax .. ...... .. ... ... .. ..... 258,587 270,842 240,218
Income LaXeS ... ... e e e (90,668) (92,787) (81,931)
Segment income aftertax ................ ... i $ 167919 3 178055 $ 158,287
Net earned premiums and other considerations:
Individual Markets
Individval Medieal .. ... ... ... .. $ 1,213,677 $1,164498 $ 1,100,868
Shortterm medical ....... ... ... o i e 101,454 110,912 114,583
Subtotal ... .. 1,315,131 1,275,410 1,215,451
Small emplover group: .. ... .. ... 0 o 768,826 888,555 1,015,847
Total L $ 2083957 52163965 §$2231,298
Membership by product line:
Individua! Markets
Individual medical . ......... .. ... . .. .. ... .. ... 641 644 675
Shorttermmedical ...... .. .. ... .. ... ..., 87 102 107
Subtotal .. ... 728 746 782
Small emplover group: ... ... . 207 255 333
Total .. ! 935 1,001 1,115
Ratios:
Lossmatio (1) ... oo e e 62.4% 62.1% 63.8%
Expense ratio(2) .. ..o e e 30.2% 29.8% 29.7%
Combined ratio (3) . ..o it e 91.4% 90.8% 92.4%

(1) The loss ratio is equal to policyholder benefits divided by net earned premiums and other considerations.

(2) The expense ratio is equal to selling, underwriting and general expenses divided by net earned premiums
and other considerations and fees and other income.

(3) The combined ratio is equal to total benefits, losses and expenses divided by net earned premiums and other
considerations and fees and other income.
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Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2005
Net Income

Segment net income decreased by $10,136, or 6%, to $167,919 for the twelve months ended December 31,
2006 from $178,055 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005. The decrease in segment income was
primarily attributable to an overall decline in membership due to continued increased competition and our strict
adherence to underwriting guidelines. The decrease in net income was partially offset by an increase in
investment income from real estate partnerships of approximately $4,900 (after tax).

Toral Revenues

Total revenues decreased by $72,633. or 3%, to $2.200,732 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2006
from $2,273.365 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005. Net earned premiums and other
considerations from our individual markets business increased by $39,721, or 3%, primarily due to premium rate
increases. Net earned premiums and other considerations from our smalt employer group business decreased by
$119.729. or 13%, due to a decline in members, partially offset by premium rate increases. The small employer
group business continues to experience decreases in new business due to increased competition and our strict
adherence to underwriting guidelines. The decrease was partially offset by an increase in investment income of
$6,159. or 9%, primarily due to an increase in real estate partnership investment income of approximately
$7.500.

Total Benefits, Losses and Expenses

Total benefits, losses and expenses decreased by $60,378, or 3%, to $1,942,145 for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2006 from $2.002,523 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005. Policyholder benefits
decreased by $43,807, or 3%. The benefit loss ratio increased by 30 basis points, from 62.1% 1o 62.4%. The
decrease in policyholder benefits was primarily due to the decline in net earned premiums, partially offset by
higher claims experience primarily on individual medical business. Selling, underwriting and general expenses
decreased by $16,571, or 3%. The expense ratio increased by 40 basis points. from 29.8% to 30.2%. The
decrease in expenses was primarily due to decreased commission expense resulting from the decline in small
employer group business.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Net Income

Segment net income increased by $19,768, or 12%, to $178,055 for the year ended December 31, 2005 from
$158.287 for the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase in segment income is primarily attributable to an
improved benefit loss ratio in the small employer group business. The increase is partially offset by two items.
First, an overall decline in membership due to continued increased competition and strict adherence to our
underwriting guidelines. Second, an increase in expenses of approximately $6.500 {after-tax) due to increased
spending on initiatives aimed at growing the individual markets business.

Total Revenues

Total revenues decreased by $64.543, or 3%, 10 $2.273,365 for the year ended December 31, 2005. from
$2,337,908 for the year ended December 31, 2004. Net earned premiums and other considerations from our
individual markets business increased by $59,959, or 5%, primarily due to premium rate increases, partially
offset by a decline in members. Net earned premiums and other considerations from our small employer group
business decreased by $127,292, or 13%, due to a decline in members, partially offset by premium rate increases.
Both individual markets and the small employer group business continue to experience decreases in new business
due to increased competition in their respective markets and strict adherence to our underwriting guidelines.
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Total Benefits, Losses, and Expenses

Total benefits, losses and expenses decreased by $95,167, or 5%, to $2,002,523 for the year ended
December 31, 2005, from $2,097,690 for the year ended December 31, 2004. The benefit loss ratio decreased by
170 basis points, from 63.8% to 62.1%. The improvement in the benefit loss ratio is due to a decrease in
policyholder benefits of $78,159, or 5%, primarily due to the overall decline in members and favorable claims
experience in the small employer group business. The expense ratio increased by 10 basis points, from 29.7% to
29.8%. The increase in the expense ratio is primarily due to a proportionately smaller decrease in expenses
compared to the decrease in net earned premiums and fees and other income. Selling, underwriting and general
expenses decreased by $17,008, or 3%, primarily due to a decline in first year business in 2005 compared to
2004, resulting in decreased commission expense and other acquisition costs in both individual markets and
small employer group business. This decrease was partially offset by an increase of appreximately $10,000 in
sperding on initiatives aimed at growing the individual markets business.

Assurant Employee Benefits
Overview

The table below presents information regarding Assurant Employee Benefits™ segment results of operations:

For the Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004
{in thousands)
Revenues: .
Net earned premiums and other considerations .............. $ 1179902 §$ 1,277,838 $ 1,276,812
Net investment inCome ... ... ... ourinnrnenennnn... 158,525 156,889 149,718
Fees and otherincome . ............ ... .. .. .. .. ......... 27,541 26,214 29,306
Total revenues ... ... ... ... i 1,365,968 1,460,941 1,455,836
Benefits, losses and expenses:
Policyholderbenefits . . ........... . ... .. ... ... ... ... ..... {830,634) {936,835) (950,235)
Selling, underwriting and general expenses ................, (407,020) (418,542) (409,737)
Total benefits, losses and expenses . ................... (1,237,654 (1,355,377) (1,359,972)
Segment income before incometax .......................... 128,314 105,564 95,804
InCOme taXES . . ..o e 44,711) (37.198) {33,654)
Segmentincomeaftertax .......... ... ... ... ... ... ... § 83603 3 68366 $§ 62,210
Ratios:
Losstatio (1) ... 70.4% 73.3% 74.4%
Expense ratio (2) ... . e e 337% 32.1% 31.4%

Net earned premiums and other considerations:
By major product groupings:

Groupdental ........ . . . . e $ 428218 $ 502,789 $§ 520,513
Group disability single premiums for closed blocks (3) ........ 46,313 26,700 40,906
All Other group disability ........... ... ... ... ......... 480,924 489,840 465,517
Grouplife ... ... .. . 224,447 258,509 249,876

Total .. $ 1,179,902 § 1,277,838 $ 1,276,812

(1} The loss ratio is equal to policyholder benefits divided by net earned premivms and other considerations.

(2) The expense ratio is equal to selling, underwriting and general expenses divided by net earned premiums
and other considerations and fees and other income.

(3} This represents single premium on closed blocks of group disability business.
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Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2005
Net Income

Segment net income increased by $15,237, or 22%, to $83,603 for the year ended December 31, 2006 from
$68,366 for the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase in segment income was primarily driven by
continued favorable group disability experience and improved group dental experience. Disability recovery rates,
which include claimants who return to work, and experience in our DRMS channel, were improved. The
improvement i loss ratios is partially offset by the decrease in revenues.

Total Revenues

Total revenues decreased by $94,973, or 7%, to $1,365,968 for the year ended December 31, 2006 from
$1,460,941 for the years ended December 31, 2005. Excluding group disability single premium for closed blocks,
net eamed premiums and other considerations decreased $117,549 or 9%, from the prior year primarity due to
increased lapses and decreased sales. Lapse experience and sales trends reflect the transition to the business
small case strategy along with disciplined pricing in a competitive marketplace.

Total Benefits, Losses and Expenses

Total benefits, losses and expenses decreased by $117,723, or 9%, to $1,237,654 for the year ended
December 31, 2006 from $1,355,377 for the year ended December 31, 2005. The loss ratio decreased 290 basis
points, from 73.3% to 70.4%, primarily due to continued favorable group disability experience. Group disability
recovery rates, which include claimants who return to work, and deaths were higher compared to the prior year.
Experience in our DRMS channel also improved. Group dental experience has improved primarily due to
disciplined pricing actions. The expense ratio increased 160 basis points from 32.1% to 33.7%. The increase in
the expense ratio is primarily driven by the decrease in revenues that was proporticnally larger than the decrease
in general expenses. Selling, underwriting and general expenses have decreased $11,522, or 3%, year over year.
In the prior year, we had a non-recurring reduction in short-term incentive compensation expenses. Excluding the
prior year non-recurring reduction, selling, general and underwriting expenses have decreased primarily due to
expense management consistent with revenue trends.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2004
Net Income

Segment net income increased by $6,156, or 10%, to $68,366 for the year ended December 31, 2005, from
$62,210 for the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase in segment income was primarily due to a decrease
in policyholder benefits. This decrease was driven by improved group life mortdhly and improved group dental
experience, partially offset by lower group disability claim closures.

Total Revenues

Total revenues remained relatively flat increasing $5.105 to $1,460,941 for the year ended December 31,
2003, from $1,455,836 for the year ended December 31, 2004. Net earned premiums and other considerations
remained flat compared to prior year due to our increased focus on small case and voluntary business. The
increase in revenues was primarily due to an increase in net investment income of $7,171, or 5%. During the
third quarter, we recognized $2,560 of investment income from a real estate partnership. The remaining increase
in net investment income is primarily due to an increase in average invested assets of approximately 3%.

Total Benefits, Losses, and Expenses

Total benefits, losses and expenses decreased by $4,595, or less than 1%, to $1,355,377 for the year ended
December 31, 2005, from $1,359,972 for the year ended December 31, 2004. The loss ratio decreased 110 basis
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points, from 74.4% to 73.3%. The decrease in the loss ratio and the decrease in policyholder benefits of $13,400,
or 1%, was primarily due to improved group life mortality and improved group dental experience partially offset
by lower group disability claim closures. The expense ratio increased 70 basis points, from 31.4% to 32.1%. The
increase in the expense ratio is due to an increase in selling, underwriting and general expenses of $8,805, or 2%,
primarily driven by higher technology-related costs due to implementation of technelogy aimed at improving our
customer service.

Corporate and Other

The table below presens information regarding the Corporate and Other segment’s results of operations:

For the Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004
{in thousands}
Reventes;
Net investment inComIE . .. oo vt ittt et i $ 35935 $ 27,794 % 25878
Net realized gains oninvestments ............................. 111,865 8,235 24,308
Amortization of deferred gains on disposal of businesses . .......... 37,300 42,508 57,632
Loss on disposal of business ............... ... ... .. ... — — (9,232)
Fees and other iNCOME .+ .+« oo v ettt et e e ' 682 1,432 1.844
Total FEVENUES . .ot et e ittt e s 185,782 79,969 100,430
Benefits, losses and expenses:
Policyholder benefits ... ... ... ... .. . . . (5y (61,943) (7.941)
Selling, underwriting and general expenses ........... P (83,076}  (96,055) (76,903
Interest BXPeNSe . . ot (61.243)  (61,258) (58,581)
Total benefits, lossesand expenses ........................ (144,324) (219.256) (143,425
Segment income (loss) before incometax .. ........................ 41,458 {139,287 (42,995)
Income (aXes . . . .. e e (17,123) 95,847 7,399
Segment income (loss) aftertax .................. e $ 24335 § (43,440) $ (35,396)

As of December 31, 2006, we had approximately $249.911 (pre-tax) of deferred gains that had not yet been
amortized. We expect to amortize deferred gains from dispositions through 2031. The deferred gains are being
amortized in a pattern consistent with the expected future reduction of the in-force blocks of business ceded to
The Hartford and John Hancock. This reduction is expected to be more rapid in the first few years after sale and
to be slower as the liabilities in the blocks decrease.

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2005
Net Income

Segment net income improved by $67,775, or over 100%, to $24,335 for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2006 from a net loss of ($43,440) for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005. This
improvement is mainly due 1o a realized gain of $63,900 (after tax) from the sale of our investment in PHCS, a
realized gain from the reduction of our mortgage loan loss reserve, strengthening of reserve accruals on certain
excess of loss programs in 2005 that did not recur in 2006 and a reduction in stock appreciation rights expense
upon adopting FAS 123R. This improvement was partially offset by the 2005 release of $39,400 of previously
provided tax accruals which were no longer considered necessary due to the resolution of IRS audits and $5,500
of tax benefit related to the technical correction of tax leglslatlon under the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004
(“Jobs Act”) that did not recur in 2006.
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Toral Revenues

Total revenues increased by $105,813, or aver 100%, 1o $183,782 for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2006 from $79,969 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005. Revenues increased mainly
due to a $103,630 increase in realized gains on investments primarily due to the sale of our investment in PHCS,
resulting in a pre-tax gain of $98,300 and a reduction of our mortgage loan loss reserve of $15,168 due to a
refinement of management’s best estimate of this reserve.

Total Benefits, Losses and Expenses

Total benefits, losses and expenses decreased by $74,932, or 34%, to $144,324 for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2006 from $219,256 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005. This decrease is primarily
due to $61,943 of costs incurred in 2005 on excess of loss reinsurance programs, related to personal accident,
ransom and kidnap insurance risks, reinsured and ceded by certain subsidiaries in the London market between
1995 and 1997, In addition, stock appreciation rights expense declined, due to the adoption of FAS 123R on
January 1, 2006. These expense declines were partially offset by a $5,000 contribution to the Assurant Charitable
Foundation,

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2004
Net Income

Segment net loss increased by $7,844, or 22%, to ${43,440) for the year ended December 31, 2005, from
$(35,596) for the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase in net loss was primarily due to an increase in
policyholder benefits due to the strengthening of reserve accruals on certain excess of loss reinsurance programs
sold by our subsidiaries in the London market between 1995 and 1997, an increase in selling, underwriting and
general expenses due to stock compensation and a reduction in the amortization of deferred gains on disposal of
business. The increase in net loss was partially offset by approximately $39.400 of income tax accrual releases
due to the resolution of IRS audits.

Total Revenues

Total revenues decreased by $20,461, or 20%, to $79,969 for the year ended December 31, 2003, from
$100,430 for the year ended December 31, 2004, This decrease was primarily due to lower net realized gains on
investments and lower amortization of deferred gains on disposal of businesses due to continued runoff of the
sold businesses. In addition, as a result of our annual review of estimates affecting the deferred gain on disposal
of businesses we took a charge of approximately $4,600.

Total Benefits, Losses, and Expenses

Total benefits, losses and expenses increased by $75,831, or 33%, to $219,256 for the year ended
December 31, 2005, from $143.425 for the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase is primarily due to an
increase in policyholder benefits of $54,002 as a result of costs incurred on excess of loss reinsurance programs,
related 1o personal accident, ransom and kidnap insurance risks, reinsured and ceded by certain subsidiaries in the
London market between 1995 and 1997. These charges include a settlement with one of our largest reinsurers for
1997 and strengthening of reserves for remaining portions of the program. Selling, underwriting and general
expenses increased by $19,152, or 25%, primarily due to stock appreciation rights (“SARs”}, which increased by
$18,000 in 20035 compared to 2004 primarily as a result of appreciation in the stock price.

Income Taxes

The income tax benefits increased by $88,448 to $95,847 for the year ended December 31, 2005 from
$7,399 for the year end December 31, 2004, Approximately $39,400 of the increased benefit was primarily due
to the release of previously provided tax accruals, which were no longer considered necessary based on the
resolution of IRS audits. In addition, approximately $3,500 of the increased benefit was due to a recaptured tax
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benefit from the $19.000 of tax expense we incurred in 2004 on the repatriation of capital from Puerto Rico,
primarily due to a technical correction of the Jobs Act.

Investments

The following table shows the carrying value of our investments by type of security as of the dates
indicated:

Asof As of
December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
(in thousands)
Fixed maturities .............. ... . .. .. .. . $ 9,118,049 73% § 8,961,778 TN2%
Equity securities ...................... ESP 741,639 6% 693,101 5%
Commercial mortgage loans onreal estate .. .................... 1,266,158  10% 1,212,006 10%
Policy loans . ... ... .. ... .. 58,733 1% 61,043 1%
Short-term investments .. .......... ... ... 314,114 3% 427,474 3%
Collateral held under securities lending ........................ 365,958 3% 610,662 5%
Other INVESTMENTS L L. ..ttt e et i ee e e 564,494 4% 549,759 4%
Total INVESIMENIS . . ... . e $12,429,145 100% $12,515.823 100%

Of our fixed maturity securities shown above, 67% and 66% (based on total fair value) were invested in
securities rated “A” or better as of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively. As interest rates
increase, the market value of fixed maturity securities decreases.

The following table provides the cumulative net unrealized gains (losses), pre-tax, on fixed maturity
securities and equity securities as of the dates indicated:

As of As of
December 31, 2006 Decembher 31, 2005

Fixed maturities;

Amortizedcost .. ... ... ... .. ... $8,934,017 $8.668,595

Netunrealized gains ...................... 184,032 293,183

Fairvalue .......... ... ... ... ... ...... $9,118,049 $8.961,778
Equities:

GOt e § 735566 $ 694,977

Net unrealized gains (losses) ................ 6,073 (1,876)

Fairvalue ...... ... ... ... ... ... .. ..., $ 741,639 $ 693,101

Net unrealized gains on fixed maturity securities decreased by $109,151 from December 31, 2005 to
December 31, 2006. The decrease in net unrealized gains on fixed maturity securities was primarily due to an
increase in treasury yield. The yield on 5-year treasury securities increased by approximately 39 basis points and
the yield on 10-year treasury securities increased by 34 basis points between December 31, 2005 and
December 31, 2006. Net unrealized gains on equity securities increased by $7,949 from December 31, 2005 to
December 31, 2006. The increase was primarily due to changes in the preferred stock market. The price return of
Merrill Lynch Global Bond Index—Preferred Stock, Hybrid index ended 2006 up slightly after decreasing for
most of the year.

Net investment income increased by $49,429, or 7%, 10 $736,686 at December 31, 2006 from $687,257 at
December 31, 2005. The increase is primarily the result of an increase in yields and average invested assets. Net
investment income includes $18,578 of investment income from real estate partnerships in 2006 compared to
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$12,565 in 2005. The yield on average invested assets and cash and cash equivalents, which excludes real estate
investment income, was 3.67% in 2006 compared to 5.54% in 2005.

Net investment income increased by $52,508, or 8%, to $687.257 at December 31, 2005 from $634,749 at
December 31, 2004. The increase is primarily the result of real estate partnership income and increased average
invested assets. Net investment income includes $12,565 of investment income from real estate partnerships in
2005 compared to zero in 2004. The yield on average invested assets and cash equivatents, which excludes real
estate investment income, remained relatively flat at 5.54% in 2005 compared to 5.55% in 2004,

We recorded $810, $763, and $600 of realized losses in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, associated with
other-than-temporary declines in value of available for sale securities. We also recorded $854, zero, and $4,217
of pre-tax realized losses in 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively, associated with other investments.

The investment category and duration of our gross unrealized losses on fixed maturities and equity
securities at December 31, 2006 were as follows: :

Less than 12 months 12 Months or More Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Vatoe Losses
Fixed maturities
Bonds:
United States Government and
government agencies and
authorities .................. $ 189,037 $ (1,373) $ 24036 $ (745 $ 213,073 § (2,118)
States, municipalities and political
subdivisions . ................ 21,423 (214) 9,398 (158)  30.821 (372
Foreign governments .. .......... 247,291 (2,823) 12,899 (326} 260,190 (3,149)
Public utilities . ................ 346,570 (7,267) 45,626 (1,531) 392,196 (8,798)
All other corporate bonds . ....... 2,136,342 (37,521) 250,908 7,717y 2,387,250  (45,238)
Mortgage backed securities . ... ... 713,912 (8,850) 99,713 (3,330} 813,625 (12,180)
Total fixed maturities ......... $3,654,575 $(58,048) $442.580 $(13,807) $4,097,155 $(71,855)
Equity securities
Common stocks:
Banks, trusts and insurance
COMPAILIES ... ... ...oonnnn.. b 1490 $ G § — F — % 140§  (30)
Industrial, miscellaneous and all
other ........ .ot 102 2 — — 102 (2)
Non-redeemable preferred stocks: ’
Non-sinking fund preferred .
SIOCKS ... . 248,030 (5,425) 67,143 29171 315,173 (8,342)
Total equity securities ......... $ 248272 § (5457 $ 67,143 $ (2917) § 315415 § (8,374)
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The investment category and duration of our gross unrealized losses on fixed maturities and equity
securities at December 31, 2005 were as follows:

Less than 12 months 12 Months or More Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
. Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Fixed maturities
Bonds:
United States Government and
government agencies and
authorities ....... ... ovviiuin.n. $ 128,125 § (1617) % 22380 5 (691) § 150,505 §$ (2,308)
States, municipalities and political
subdivisions .. .................. 6,521 44y 12,179 (234) 18,700 (278)
Foreign governments ............... 142,116 (2,081) 10,142 (469) 152,258 (2,.550)
Public utilities . .................... 240,259 (5.358) 36,752 (1,135) 277,011 (6,493)
All other corporatebonds ............ 1,611,483 (28,926) 131,084 (5.383) 1,742,567 (34,309)
Mortgage Backed Securities .. ........ 707,930 (8,082) 124,754 (4,053) 832,684 (12,135)
Total fixed maturities ............. $2,836,434 $(46,108) $337,291 $(11,965) $3,173,725 $(58,073)
Equity securities ‘
Common stocks:
Banks, trusts and insurance .
COMPANIES .. .. ..ot $ 10 § ms — 8 — % 10 % (n
Industrial, miscellaneous and all
other ......... ... 55 (44) — — 55 (44
Non-redeemable preferred stocks:
Non-sinking fund preferred stocks .. ... 307,918 (7.468) 71,798  (4286) 379,716 (11,754)
Total equity securities .. ........... $ 307983 § (7.513) 3 71,798 § (4,286) $ 379,781 $(11,799)

The total unrealized losses represent less than 2% of the aggregate fair value of the related securities at
December 31, 2006 and 2005. Approximately 79% and 77% of these unrealized losses have been in a continuous
loss position for less than twelve months in 2006 and 2005, respectively. The total unrealized losses are
comprised of 1,394 and 1,172 individual securities with 94% of the individual securities having an unrealized
loss of less than $200 in 2006 and 2008, respectively. The total unrealized losses on securities that were in a
continuous unrealized loss position for greater than six months but less than 12 months were approximately
$2,171 and $9,388 in 2006 and 2005, respectively. There were no securities with an unrealized loss of greater
than $200 having a market value below 88% and 79% of book value at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

As part of our ongoing monitering process, we regularly review our investment portfolio to ensure that
investments that may be other-than-temporarily impaired are identified on a timely basis and that any impairment
is charged against earnings in the proper period. We have reviewed these securities and recorded $810, $765, and
$600 of additional other-than-temporary impairments as of December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.
Due to issuers’ continued satisfaction of the securities’ obligations in accordance with their contractual terms and
their continued expectations to do so, as well as our evaluation of the fundamentals of the issuers” financial
condition, we believe that the prices of the securities in an unrealized loss position as of December 31, 2006 in
the sectors discussed above were temporarily depressed primarily as a result of the prevailing level of interest
rates at the time the securities were purchased. The Company has the intent and ability to hold these assets until
the date of recovery.
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Loss Protection and Capital Management

As part of our overall risk and capital management strategy, we purchase reinsurance for certain risks
underwritten by our various business segments, including significant individual or catastrophic claims, and o
free up capital to enabie us to write additional business.

For those product lines where there is exposure to catastrophes, we closely monitor and manage the
aggregate risk exposure by geographic area, and we have entered into reinsurance treaties to manage exposure to
these types of events.

Under indemnity reinsurance transactions in which we are the ceding insurer, we remain liable for policy
claims if the assuming company fails to meet its obligations. To limit this risk, we have control procedures to
evaluate the financial condition of reinsurers and to monitor the concentration of credit risk to minimize this
exposure. The selection of reinsurance companies is based on criteria related to solvency and reliability and. to a
lesser degree, divérsification as well as developing strong relationships with our reinsurers for the sharing of
risks.

Business Dispositions

To exit certain businesses, we have used reinsurance to facilitate transactions because the businesses share
legal entities with business segments we retain. Assets supporting liabilities ceded relating to these businesses are
held in trusts and the separate accounts relating to divested business are still reflected in our balance sheet.

Segments Client Risk and Profit Sharing

The Assurant Solutions and Assurant Specialty Property segments write business produced by clients, such
as mortgage lenders and servicers and financial institutions, and reinsures all or a portion of such business to
insurance subsidiaries of the clients. Such arrangements allow significant flexibility in structuring the sharing of

.risks and profits on the underlying business.

A substantial portion of Assurant Solutions and Assurant Specialty Property reinsurance activities are
related to agreements to reinsure premiums and risk related to business generated by certain clients to the clients’
captive insurance companies or to reinsurance subsidiaries in which the clients have an ownership interest.
Through these arrangements, our insurance subsidiaries share some of the premiums and risk related to client-
generated business with these clients. When the reinsurance companies are not authorized to do business in our
insurance subsidiary’s domiciliary state, our insurance subsidiary generally obtains collateral, such as a trust or a
letier of credit, from the reinsurance company or its affiliate in an amount equal to the outstanding reserves to
obtain full statutory financial credit in the domiciliary state for the reinsurance. Our reinsurance agreements do
not relieve us from our direct obligation to our insured. Thus, a credit exposure exists to the extent that any
reinsurer is unable to meet the obligations assumed in the reinsurance agreements. To minimize our exposure to
reinsurance insolvencies, we evaluate the financial condition of our reinsurers and hold substantial collateral (in
the form of funds, trusts and letters of credit) as security under the reinsurance agreements. See “Ttem 7A—
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk-~Credit Risk.”

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Regulatory Requirements

Assurant, Inc. is a holding company, and as such, has limited direct operations of its own. Our holding
company assets consist primarily of the capital stock of our subsidiaries. Accordingly, our future cash flows
depend upon the availability of dividends and other statutorily permissible payments from our subsidiaries, such
as payments under our tax allocation agreement and under management agreements with our subsidiaries. The
ability 1o pay such dividends and to make such other payments will be limited by applicable laws and regulations
of the states in which our subsidiaries are demiciled, which subject our subsidiaries to significant regulatory
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restrictions. The dividend requirements and regulations vary from state to state and by type of insurance provided
by the applicable subsidiary. These laws and regulations require, among other things, our insurance subsidiaries
to maintain minimum solvency requirements and limit the amount of dividends these subsidiaries can pay to the
holding company. Solvency regulations, capital requirements and rating agencies are some of the factors used in
determining the amount of capital used for dividends. For 2007, the maximum amount of distributtons our
substdiaries could pay, under applicable laws and regulations without prior regulatory approval for our statutory
subsidiaries, is approximately $476,070.

Liquidiry
Dividends paid by our subsidiaries totaled $554,270, $530,094 and $361,700 for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. We used these cash inflows primarily to pay expenses, to make

interest payments on indebtedness, to make dividend payments to our stockholders, and to repurchase our
" outstanding shares.

The primary sources of funds for our subsidiaries consist of premiums and fees collected, the proceeds from
the sales and maturity of investments and investment income. Cash is primarily used to pay insurance claims,
agent commissions, operating expenses and taxes. We generally invest our subsidiaries’ excess funds in order to
generate income.

We conduct periodic asset liability studies to measure the duration of our insurance liabilities, to develop
optimal asset portfolic maturity structures for our significant lines of business and ultimately to assess that cash
flows are sufficient to meet the timing of cash needs. These studies are conducted in accordance with formal
Company-wide Asset Liability Management (“ALM"} guidelines.

To complete a study for a particular line of business, models are developed to project asset and liability cash
flows and balance sheet items under a large, varied set of plausible economic scenarios. These models consider
many factors including the current investment portfotio, the required capital for the related assets and liabilities,
our tax position and projected cash flows from both existing and projected new business,

Alternative asset portfolio structures are analyzed for significant lines of business. An investment portfolic
maturity structure is then selected from these profiles given our return hurdle and risk preference. Sensitivity
testing of significant liability assumptions and new business projections is also performed.

Given our ALM asset allocation processes and the nature of the products we offer, we have minimal
exposure to disintermediation risk. Our liabilities have limited policyholder optionality which results in
policyholder behavior that is mainly insensitive to the interest rate environment. In addition, our investment
portfolio is largely comprised of highly liquid fixed income securities with a sufficient component of such
securities invested that are near maturity which may be sold with minimal risk of loss to meet cash needs.

Generally, our subsidiaries’ premiums, fees and investment income, along with planned asset sales and
maturities, provide sufficient cash to pay claims and expenses. However, there are instances where unexpected
cash needs arise in excess of that available from usual operating sources. In such instances, we have several
options to raise needed funds including selling assets from the subsidiaries’ investment portfolios, using holding
company cash (if available), issuing commercial paper and drawing funds from our revolving credit facility. We
consider the permanence of the cash need as well as the cost of each source of funds in determining which option
to utilize.

On February 15, 2007, we announced that our Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend of $0.10 per
common shares payable on March 12, 2007 to stockholders of record as of February 26, 2007. We paid dividends
of $0.08 per share of common stock on March 7, 2006 and $.10 per share of commeon steck on June 13,

2006, September 12, 2006 and December 11, 2006. We paid dividends of $0.07 per share of common stock on
March 14, 2005 and $0.08 per share of commen stock on June 7, 2005, September 7, 2005 and December 12,
2005. Any determination to pay future dividends will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will be
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dependent upon: our subsidiaries’ payment of dividends and/or other statutorily permissible payments to us; our
results of operations and cash flows; our financial position and capital requirements; general business conditions;
any legal, tax, regulatory and contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends; and any other factors our
Board of Directors deems relevant.

Retirement and Other Employee Benefits

We sponsor a pension and a retirement health benefit plan covering our employees who meet specified
eligibility requirements. The reported expense and liability associated with these plans requires an extensive use of
assumptions which include the discount rate, expected return on plan assets and rate of future compensation
increases. We determine these assumptions based upon currently available market and industry data, historical
performance of the plan and its assets, and consultation with an independent consulting actuarial firm to aid us in
selecting appropriate assumptions and valuing our related liabilities. The actuarial assumptions used in the
calculation of our aggregate projected benefit obligation may vary and include an expectation of long-term market
appreciation in equity markets which is not changed by minor short-term market fluctuations, but does change when
large interim deviations occur. The assumptions we use may differ materially from actual results due to changing
market and economic conditions, higher or lower withdrawal rates or longer or shorter life spans of the pariicipams.

QOur pension plans were under-funded by $113.026 at December 31, 2006. We established a funding policy
in which service cost plus 15% of plan deficit will be contributed annually. We made $19,500 of pension plan
contributions in 2006. See Note 21 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this
report for the components of the net periodic benefit cost.

Commercial Paper Program

The Company maintains a $300,000 commercial paper program, which is available for werking capital and
other general corporate purposes. Our commercial paper program is rated AMB-2 by A.M. Best, P-2 by Moody’s
and A2 by S&P. Our subsidiaries do not maintain commercial paper or other borrowing facilities at their level.
This program is backed up by a $500,000 senior revolving credit facility with a syndicate of banks arranged by
J.P. Morgan Securities, Inc. (successor by merger to Banc One Capital Markets, Inc.) and Citigroup Global
Market, Inc., which was established on January 30, 2004, In April 2005, we amended and restated our $500,000
senior revolving credit facility with a syndicate of banks arranged by Citibank and JP Morgan Chase Bank. The
amended and restated credit facility is unsecured and is available until April 2010, so long as the Company is in
compliance with all the covenants. This facility is also available for general corperate purposes, but to the extent
used thereto, would be unavailable to back up the commercial paper program. There were no amounts relating to
the commercial paper program outstanding at December 31, 2006. We did not use the revolving credit facility
during 2006 and no amounts are outstanding.

The revolving credit facility contains restrictive covenants. The terms of the revolving credit facility also
require that we maintain certain specified minimum ratios or thresholds. We are in compliance with all covenants
and we maintain all specified minimum ratios and thresholds.

Senior Notes

On February 18, 2004, we issued two series of senior notes in an aggregate principal amount of $975,000.
The first series is $500,000 in principal amount, bears interest at 5.625% per year and is payable in a single
installment due February 13, 2014. The second series is 475,000 in principal amount, bears interest at
6.750% per vear and is payable in a single installment due February 15, 2034. Our senior notes are rated bbb by
A.M. Best, Baal by Moody’s and BBB+ by S&P.

Interest on our senior notes is payable semi-annually on February 15 and August 15 of each year. The senior
notes are unsecured obligations and rank equally with all of our other senior unsecured indebtedness. The senior
notes are not redeemable prior to maturity.
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Management believes that our subsidiaries’ cash flow from operations together with our income and gains
from our investment portfolio will provide sufficient liquidity to meet our needs in the ordinary course of
business.

Cash Flows

We monitor cash flows at the consolidated, holding company and subsidiary levels. Cash flow forecasts at
the consolidated and subsidiary levels are provided on a monthly basis, and we use trend and variance analyses Lo
project future cash needs making adjustments to the forecasts when needed.

The table below shows our recent net cash flows:

For the Year Ended
December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(in thousands)

Net cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities®™ ................. e $934,158 5 899,176 $ 821.850
Investing activities ... ... ... ...ttt (84,511} (548,688) (744,962}
Financing activities ... .. ... ... . i (717,544} (302,001) (228,003)
Netchangeincash ... .. ... .. . i i $ 132,103 $ 48487 $(151,115)

(1) Includes effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents.

Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004.
Operating activities:

Net cash provided by operating activities was $934,158 and $899,176 for the years ended December 31,
2006 and 2003, respectively. The $34,982 increase in net cash provided by operating activities in 2006 over the
comparable period in 2005 is primarily due to cash provided by reinsurance recoverables relating to settlements
for 2005 hurricane losses offset by a decrease in accounts payable.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $899,176 and $821,850 for the years ended December 31 .
2005 and 2004, respectively. The $77,326 increase in net cash provided by operating activities in 2006 over the
comparable period in 2005 is primarily attributable to increased reserves and accounts payable and other
liabilities, partially offset by increased reinsurance recoverables.

Investing Activities:

Net cash used in investing activities was $84,511 and $548,688 for the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively. The $464,177 decrease in net cash used in investing activities in 2006 over the comparable
peried in 2005 is primarily attributable to significant net cash received from the sale of short-term investments in
2006 compared to cash used to purchase short-term investments for the comparable period in 2005. Also, the net
cash received from the SFIS acquisition, a decrease in cash outflows for investments in commercial mortgage
loans on real estate and the cash received from the sale of PHCS, partially offset by an increase in cash used to
purchase fixed maturities, contributed to the overall decrease in cash used in investing activities.

Net cash used in investing activities was $548,688 and $744,962 for the years ended December 31, 2005 and
2004, respectively. The $196.274 decrease in net cash used in investing activities in 2005 over the comparable
period in 2004 is primarily attributable to the decrease in net cash used to purchase fixed maturities and equity
securities. This was partially offset by an increase in cash used to purchase short-term investments in 2005
compared to 2004.
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Financing Activities:

Net cash used in financing activities was $717,544 and $302,001 for the years ended December 31, 2006
and 2005, respectively. The $415.543 increase in net cash used in financing activities in 2006 over the
comparable period in 2005 is primarily attributable to an increase in net cash used to purchase treasury stock and
a change in collateral held under securities lending.

Net cash used in financing activities was $302,001 and $228.003 for the years ended December 31, 2005
and 2004, respectively. The $73,998 increase in net cash used in financing activities in 2005 over the comparable
period in 2004 is primarily attributable to an increase in cash used to purchase treasury stock, the issuance of
common stock and 4 change in collateral held under securities lending. Offsetting these changes was the net
repayment of debt in 2004.

The table below shows our cash outflows for distributions and dividends for the periods indicated:

For the Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
{in thousands)

Security

Mandatory redeemable preferred securities of subsidiary trust ............. 8 — 5 — 5066734

Mandatory redeemable preferred stock dividends and interest paid . ........ 61,159 61,179 37,7109

Commen steck dividends .. ... ... . 48,157 42.050 29.676
Total e $109.316 $103,229 $134,119

Commitments and Contingencies

We have obligations and commitments to third parties as a result of our operations. These obligations and
commitments, as of December 31, 2006, are detailed in the table below by maturity date as of the dates indicated:

As of December 31,
1-3 3-5 More than 5
Less than 1 Year Years Years Years Total

(in thousands)
Contractual obligations .

Insurance liabilities (1) .. .. ......... $1.790.344  $1.557.398 51,363,427 $11.668.762 $16,379.931
Debt and related interest . ..., ..., ... 60.188 120,375 120,375 1,736,626 2,037,564
Mandatory redeemable preferred
stock ... — — —_ 22,160 22,160
Operating leases ... ............... 35129 52,795 28,135 30,978 147,037
Pension obligations and postretirement
benefit ........................ 31,539 53,773 56,604 185.561 327.477
Commitments:
Investment purchases outstanding:
Unsettledtrades .............. 9,647 — — — 9,647
*Commercial mortgage loans on
realestate ................. 34.260 — — — 34,260
Other investments . ............ 19,497 — — — 19,497
Total obligations and commitments ...  $1,980,604  $1,784.341 $1.568.541 313,644,087 818,977,573

(1} Insurance liabilities, reflected in the commitments and contingencies table above, include products for which
we are currently making periodic payments and products for which we are not making periodic payments, but
for which we believe the amount and timing of future payments is essentially fixed and determinable. Amounts
included in insurance liabilities reflect estimated cash payments to be made to policyholders.
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Liabilities for future policy benefits and expenses of $6,766,343 and claims and benefits payable of
$3,412.166 have been included in the commitments and contingencies table. Significant uncertainties relating to
these liabilities include mortality, morbidity, expenses, persisiency, investment returns, inflation, contract terms
and the timing of payments.

Letters of Credit

In the normal course of business, letters of credit are issued primarily to support reinsurance arrangements.
These letters of credit are supported by commitments with financial institutions. We had approximately $33,219
and 528,216 of letters of credit outstanding as of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that are reasonably likely to have a
material effect on the financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, or capital resources of the Company. .

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

As a provider of insurance products, effective risk management is fundamental to our ability to protect both
our customers’ and stockholders’ interests. We are exposed to potential loss from various market risks, in
particular interest rate risk and credit risk. Additionally, we are exposed to inflation risk and to a small extent to
foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk is the possibility the Fair value of liabilities will change more or less than the market value
of investments in response to changes in interest rates, including changes in the slope or shape of the yield curve
and changes in spreads due to credit risks and other factors.

Credit risk is the possibility that counterparties may not be able to meet payment abligations when they
become due. We assume counterparty credit risk in many forms. A counterparty is any person or entity from
which cash or other forms of consideration are expected to extinguish a hability or obligation to us. Primarily,
our credit risk exposure is concentrated in our fixed income investment portfolio and, 10 a lesser extent, in our
reinsurance recoverables,

Inflation risk is the possibility that a change in domestic price levels produces an adverse effect on earnings.
This typically happens when only one of invested assets or liabilities is indexed to inflation.

Foreign exchange risk is the possibility that changes in exchange rates produce an adverse effect on earnings
and equity when measured in domestic currency. This risk is largest when assets backing liabilities payable in
one currency are invested in financial instruments of another currency. Our general principle is to invesl in assets
that match the currency in which we expect the liabilities to be paid.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises as we invest substantial funds in interest-sensitive fixed income assets, such as fixed
maturity investments, mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities and commercial mortgage loans, primarily in
the United States and Canada. There are two forms of interest rate risk—price risk and reinvestment risk. Price
risk occurs when fluctuations in interest rates have a direct impact on the market valuation of these investments.
As interest rates rise, the market value of these investments falls, and conversely, as interest rates fall, the market
value of these investments rises. Reinvestment risk occurs when fluctuations in interest rates have a direct impact
on expected cash flows from mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities. As interest rates fall, an increase in
prepayments on these assets results in earlier than expected receipt of cash flows forcing us to reinvest the
proceeds in an unfavorable lower interest rate environment, and conversely as interest rates rise, a decrease in
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prepayments on these assets results in later than expecied receipt of cash flows forcing us to forgo reinvesting in
a favorable higher interest rate environment.

We expect to manage interest rate risk by selecting investments with characteristics such as duration, yield,
currency and liquidity tailored to the anticipated cash outflow characteristics of our insurance and reinsurance
liabilities.

Our group long term disability reserves are also sensitive to interest rates. Group long-term disability and
group term life waiver of premium reserves are discounted to the valuation date at the valuation interest rate. The
valuation interest rate is determined by taking into consideration actual and expected earned rates on our asset
portfolio.

The interest rate sensitivity relating to price risk of our fixed maturity security assets is assessed using
hypothetical scenarios that assume several positive and negative parallel shifts of the yield curves. We have
assumed that the United States and Canadian yield curve shifts are of equal direction and magnitude. The
individual securities are repriced under each scenario using a valuation model. For investments such as callable
bonds and mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities, a prepayment model was used in conjunction with a
valuation model. Qur actual experience may differ from the results noted below particularly due to assumptions
utilized or if events occur that were not included in the methodology. The following table summarizes the results
of this analysis for bonds, mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities held in our investment portfolio: '

Interest Rate Movement Analysis
of Market Value of Fixed Maturity Securities Investment Portfolio

As of December 31, 2006
-100 -50 0 50 100
({in thousands)

Total marketvalue . ............... $9.733,684  $9.420,078 59,118,049  $8.828,083  $8,549.122
% Change in market value from base

CHSE «vvreeerrininar s 6.75% 331% — % -3.18% -3.77%
% Change in market value from base

CASE o\ttt $§ 615635 § 302029 § — 5 (289.960) 5 (568.927)

The interest rate sensitivity relating to reinvestment risk of our fixed maturity security assets is assessed
using hypothetical scenarios that assume purchases in the primary market and considers the effects of interest
rates on sales, The effects of embedded options including call or put features are not considered. Our actual
results may differ from the results noted below particularly due to assumptions utilized or if events occur that
were not included in the methodology. :

The following table summarizes the results of this analysis on our reported portfolio yieid:
Interest Rate Movement Analysis

Of Portfolio Yield of Fixed Maturity Securities Investment Portfolio
As of December 31, 2006

e s 0w
Portfolio Yield .. ... .o e e 5.69% 5.75% 5.82% 5.89% 5.95%
Basis Point Change in Portfolio Yield . .......................... (0130 (0.0N% — % 0.07% 0.13%

Credit Risk

We have exposure to credit risk primarily as a holder of fixed income securities and by entering into
reinsurance cessions.
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Our risk management strategy and investment policy is to invest in debt instruments of high credit quality
issuers and 1o limit the amount of credit exposure with respect to any ene issuer. We attempt to limit our credit
exposure by imposing fixed maturity portfolio limits on individual issuers based upon credit quality. Currently
our portfolio limits are 1.5% for issuers rated AA-and above, 1% for issvers rated A- to A+, 0.75% for issuers
rated BBB- to BBB+ and 0.38% for issuers raied BB- to BB+. These ponfolio limits are further reduced for
certain issuers with whom we have credit exposure on reinsurance agreements. We use the lower of Meody’s or
Standard & Poor’s ratings 1o determine an issuer’s rating.

The following table presents our fixed maturity investment portfolio by ratings of the nationally recognized
securities rating organizations as of December 31, 2006:

Percentage of

Rating Fair Value Total
- (in thousands)

AQW/AWA L e $6,127.830 67%
Baa ... e e 2,386,317 26%
Ba . e 479,037 6%
Bandlower ... ... e 124,865 1%
Total oo A $9,118,049 100%

We are also exposed to the credit risk of our reinsurers. When we reinsure, we are still liable to our insureds
regardless of whether we get reimbursed by our reinsurer. As part of our overall risk and capacity management
strategy, we purchase reinsurance for certain risks underwritten by our various business segments as described
above under “lItem 7—Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—Reinsurance.”

For at least 50% of our $3,914,972 of reinsurance recoverables at December 31, 2006, we are protected
from the credit risk by using various types of risk mitigation mechanisms such as trusts, letters of credit or by
withholding the assets in a modified coinsurance or co-funds-withheld arrangement. For example. reserves of
$1,366.601 and $1.361,615 as of December 31, 2006 relating 1o two large coinsurance arrangements with The
Hartford and John Hancock, respectively, related to sales of businesses. If the value of the assets in these trusts
falls below the value of the associated liabilities, The Hartford and John Hancock, as the case may be, will be
required 10 put more assets in the trusts. We may be dependent on the financial condition of The Hartford and
John Hancock, whose A.M. Best ratings are currently A+ and A++, respectively. For recoverables that are not
protected by these mechanisms, we are dependent solely on the credit of the reinsurer. Occasionally, the credit
worthiness of the reinsurer becomes questionable. See “ltem 1A-—Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our
Company—Reinsurance may not be available or adequate to protect us against losses, and we are subject to the
credit risk of reinsurers.” We believe that a majority of our reinsurance exposure has been ceded to companies
rated A- or better by A.M. Best.

Inflation Risk

Inflation risk arises as we invest substantial funds in nominal assets, which are not indexed to the level of
inflation, whereas the underlying liabilities are indexed to the level of inflation. Approximately 12% of Assurant
preneed’s insurance policies with reserves of approximately $398,000 as of December 31, 2006 have death
benefits that are guaranteed to grow with the CPI. In times of rapidly rising inflation, the credited death benefit
growth on these liabilities increases relative to the investment income earned on the nominal assets resulting in
an adverse impact on earnings. We have partially mitigated this risk by purchasing contracts with payments tied
to the CPl. See “"'—Derivatives.”

In addition, we have inflation risk in our individval and small employer group health insurance businesses (o
the extent that medical costs increase with inflation, and we have not been able to increase premiums to keep
pace with inflation.
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Foreign Exchange Risk

We are exposed to some foreign exchange risk arising from our international operations mainly in Canada.
We also have limited foreign exchange risk exposure to currencies other than the Canadian dollar, primarily the
British pound and Danish krone. However, total invested assets denominated in these other currencies were less
than 2% of our total invested assets at December 31, 2006.

Foreign exchange risk is mitigated by matching our liabilities under insurance policies that are payable in
foreign currencies with investments that are denominated in such currency. We have not established any hedge to
our foreign currency exchange rate exposure.

The foreign exchange risk sensitivity of our fixed maturity security assets denominated in Canadian dollars
on our entire fixed maturity portfolio.is summarize in the following table:

Foreign Exchange Movement Analysis
Of Market Value of Fixed Maturity Securities Assets

As of December 31, 2006

Foreign exchange spot rate at December 31, .
2006, US Dollar to Canadian Dellar -10% 5% (1] 5% 10%
Total marketvalue .. .............. $9.046,178  $9082,113  $9,118,049 $9,153984  $9,189,920
% change of market value from base '

CASE et {0.79% 0.39% — % 0.39% 0.79%
$ change of market value from base .

CASE v vvvne st $ 71,871y $ (35936) & — $ 35935 % 71871

The foreign exchange risk sensitivity of our consolidated net income is assessed using hypothetical test
scenarios that assume earnings in Canadian dollars are recognized evenly throughout a period. Our actual results
may differ from the results noted below particularty due to assumptions utilized or if events occur that were not
included in the methodology. The following table summarizes the results of this analysis on our reported net
income:

Foreign Exchange Movement Analysis
Of Net Income
As of December 31, 2006

Foreign exchange daily average rate for the year ended

2{06, US Dollar to Canadian Dollar 0% -5% t] 5% 10%
NELINCOME . .t ittt e e i $713,792  $715.604  $717.418  $719,230  §721,042
% change of net income from base case ...... (0.51)% (0.25)% — % 0.25% 0.51%
$ change of net income from base case ... .... $ (3625 $ (1.813) $ — $ 1,813 § 3,625
Derivatives

Derivatives are financial instruments whose values are derived from interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
financial indices or the prices of securities or commedities. Derivative financial instruments may be exchange-
traded or contracted in the over-the-counter market and include swaps, futures, options and forward contracts.

Under insurance statutes, our insurance companies may use derivative financial instruments to hedge actual
or anticipated changes in their assets or liabilities, to replicate cash market instruments or for certain income-
generating activities. These statutes generally prohibit the use of derivatives for speculative purposes. We
generally do not use derivative financial instruments.

We have purchased contracts to cap the inflation risk exposure inherent in some of our preneed insurance
policies.
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In 2003, we determined that the modified coinsurance agreement with The Hartford contained an embedded
derivative. In accordance with DIG B36, we bifurcated the contract into its debt host and embedded derivative
(i.e., total return swap) and recorded the embedded derivative at fair value on the balance sheet.
Contemporaneous with the adoption of DIG B36, we reclassified the invested assets related to this modified
coinsurance agreement from fixed maturities available for sale to trading securities, included in other
investments. The combination of the two aforementioned transactions has no net impact in the consolidated
statements of operations for all periods presented.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

The consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules in Part I'V, Item 15(a) 1 and 2 of
this report are tncorporated by reference into this Item 8.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

There have been no disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial disclosure.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

The management of Assurant is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective disclosure controls
and procedures, as defined under Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. As of
December 31, 2006, an evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of the
Company's management, including the chief executive officer and chief financial officer, of the effectiveness of
the design and operation of Assurant’s disclosure controls and procedures. Based on that evaluation, management
concluded that Assurant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2006, were effective.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of thé Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control
over financial reporting for the Company as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasenable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that in
reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company: and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent
or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

The Company’s management assessed its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006
using criteria established in “Internal Control—Integrated Framework™ issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

Management, including the Company’s chief executive officer and its chief financial officer, based on their
evaluation of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Securities Exchange Act
Rule 13a-15(0)}, have concluded that the Company’s internat control over financial reporting was effective as of
December 31, 2006.

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2006 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public
accounting firm, as stated in their report which appears herein.

There have been no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the Company’s fourth fiscal quarter in 2006 that have materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART I

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The informatien regarding executive officers in the 2007 Proxy Statement dated April 12 (*2007 Proxy
Statement”) under the caption “Executive Compensation” is incorporated herein by reference. The information
regarding directors in the 2007 Proxy Statement, under the captions “Directors” and “Election of Directors” in
“Proposal One” is incorporated herein by reference. The information regarding Compliance With Section 16(a)
of the Exchange Act in the 2007 Proxy Statement, under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance™ is incorporated herein by reference. The information regarding the Nominating
Committee and the Audit Committee in the 2007 Proxy Statement under the captions “Nominating and Corporate
Governance Commitiee” and “Audit Committee” in “Corporate Governance™ is incorporated herein by reference.

Code of Fthics.

We have adopted The Assurant Guidelines on Business Conduct—Qur Code of Ethics that applies to all
directors, officers and employees of Assurant. Our Code of Ethics and our Corporate Governance Guidelines are
pasted on the “Corporate Governance” subsection of the “Investor Relations” section of our website at
www,assurant.com. We intend to post any amendments to or waivers from Qur Code of Ethics that apply 10 our
executive officers or directors at this location on our website. We may elect to also disclose the amendment or
waiver in a report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information in the 2007 Proxy Statement under the captions “Compensation of Named Executive
Officers™ and “Compensation of Directors™ is incorporated herein by reference. The information in the 2007
Proxy Statement regarding the compensation commitiee under the caption “Compensation Committee” in
*Corporate Governance™ i1s incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
The information in the 2007 Proxy Statement under the captions “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial

Owners” and “Security Ownership of Management” is incorporated herein by reference.

Securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans

This infermation is furnished under “ltem 5—Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder
Matters and Issuer Purchased of Equity Securities™.

ltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information in the 2007 Proxy Statement under the captions “Transactions with Related Persons and
Certain Control Persons™ and “Director Independence” in “Corporate Governance” is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information in the 2007 Proxy Statement under the caption “Fees of Principal Accountants” in “Audit
Committee Matters™ is incorporated herein by reference.
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PARTIV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a)1. Consolidated Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statements of Assurant, Inc., incorporated by reference into Item 8, are
attached hereto:

Page(s)

Consolidated Financial Statements of Assurant. Inc.
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm ... ... ... oo F-1
Assurant, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31.2006,and 2005 .. ....... F-3
Assurant. Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Statements of Operations Years Ended December 31, 2006,

2005 and 2004 . . . e e e F-4
Assurant, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity Years

Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 . . . ... . s F-5
Assurant, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Years Ended December 31,

2006, 2005 and 2004 . . ... e F-6
Assurant, Inc. and Subsidiaries Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements December 31, 2006, 2005

AN 2004 . e e e e e s F-8

(2)2. Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules
The following consolidated financial statement schedules of Assurant, Inc. are attached hereto:

Schedule I—Summary of Investments other than Investments in Retated Parties
Schedule 1I—Parent Only Condensed Financial Statements

Schedule [II—Supplementary [nsurance Information

Schedule IV—Reinsurance

Schedule V—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

* Al other schedules are omitied because they are not applicable, not required, or the information is included
in the financial statements or the notes thereto.

79




(2)3. Exhibits

The following exhibits either (a) are filed with this report or (b} have previously been filed with the SEC and
are incorporated herein by reference to those prior filings. Exhibits are available upon request at the investor
relations section of our website, located at www.assurant.com.

Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

31

3.2

33

34

4.1

4.2

4.3

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10,7

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1
to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/ A (File No. 333-109984) and amendments
thereto, originally filed on January 13, 2004).

Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Registrant (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.2 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 3-1/ A {File No. 333-109584) and amendments thereto,
originally filed on January 13, 2004},

Termination and Amendment Agreement between Assurant, Inc. and Fortis Insurance N.V.
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.5 to Assurant, Inc.’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1/A (File No. 333-121820) and amendments thereto, originally filed on January 10, 2005).

Letter Agreement between Assurant, Inc. and Fortis Insurance N.V. (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 3.6 to Assurant, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/ A (File No. 333-121820) and
amendments thereto, originally filed on January 10, 2005).

Registration Rights Agreement between the Registrant and Fortis Insurance N.V. (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 3.4 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/ A (File
No. 333-109984) and amendments thereto, originally filed on January 13, 2004).

Specimen Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1/ A (File No. 333-109984) and amendments thereto, originally -
filed on Januvary 13, 2004).

Senior Debt Indenture dated as of February 18, 2004 between Assurant, Inc. and SunTrust Bank, as
Trustee (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.27 to Registrant’s Form 10-K, originally filed on
March 30, 2004).

Cooperation Agreement, among the Registrant, Fortis Insurance N.V., Fortis SA/ NV and Fortis N.V.
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.! to the Registrant's Registration Staternent on )
Form S-1/ A (File No. 333-109984) and amendments thereto, originally filed on January 13, 2004).

Assurant 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/ A (File No. 333-109984) and amendments thereto,
originally filed on January 13, 2004).

Amendment No. | To The Assurant, Inc. 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q, originally filed on November 14, 2005).

Amendment No. 2 To the Assurant, Inc. 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan, effective December 7,
2006.

Form of CEO/Director Delegated Authority Restricted Stock Agreement under the Assurant, Inc.
2004 Long Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant's
Form 10-K, originally filed on March 10, 2006).

Amended Form of CEO/Director Delegated Authority Restricted Stock Agreement under the
Assurant, Inc. 2004 Long Term Incentive Plan, effective January 11, 2007.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, as amended (incorporated by reference from Exhibit
100.4 to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 {File No. 333-109984) and amendments
thereto, originally filed on October 24, 2003).
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Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

Amendment No. 2 To the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s Form 10-Q, originally filed on November 12, 2004).

Executive Pension and 401(k) Plan {(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.5 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-109984) and amendments thereto,
originally filed on October 24, 2003).

Amendment No. | To the Executive Pension and 401K Plan (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Form 10-Q, originally filed on November 12, 2004).

Amendment No. 2 To the Executive Pension and 401K Plan (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.2 1o Registrant’s Form 10-Q, originally filed on November 14, 2005).

Amendment No. 3 To the Executive Pension and 401K Plan (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K, originaily filed on March 10, 2006).

Change in Control Severance Agreement with I. Kerry Clayton (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-121820) and
amendments thereto, originally filed on January 3, 2005).

Change in Control Severance Agreement with Robert B. Pollock {incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-121820) and
amendments thereto, originally filed on January 3, 2005).

Amendment No. | To The Change in Control Severance Agreement with Robert B. Pollock
{incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.13 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K, originally filed on
March 10, 2006).

Change in Control Severance Agreement with Philip Bruce Camacho (incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-121820)
and amendments thereto, originally filed on January 3, 2005).

Change in Control Severance Agreement with Philip Bruce Camacho (incerporated by reference
from Exhibit 10.15 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K, originally filed on March 10, 2006).

Change in Control Severance Agreement with Lesley Silvester (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.11 to the Registrant’s Registration Staternent on Form S-1 (File No. 333-121820) and
amendments thereto, originally filed on January 3, 2003).

Amendment No. 1 To The Change in Control Severance Agreement with Lesley Stlvester
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.17 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K. criginally filed on
March 10, 2006).

Change in Control Severance Agreement with Donald Hamm (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.18 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K, originally filed on March 10, 2006).

Amendment No. | To The Change in Control Severance Agreement with Donald Hamm
{incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.19 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K, originally filed on
March 10, 2006). '

Letter Agreement, dated October 17, 1997, between American Bankers Insurance Group and Philip
Bruce Camacho (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.11 to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1/ A (File No. 333-109984) and amendments thereto. originally filed on
December 10, 2003).

Assurant Directors Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.12 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/ A (File No. 333-109984) and amendments thereto,
originally filed on January 13, 2004).

Assurant, Inc. Amended and Restated Directors Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q. originally filed on August 22, 2005).
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Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

Form of Directors Stock Agreement under Directors Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 10.23 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K, originally filed on March 10, 2006).

Form of Directors Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement under the Directors Compensation Plan
{incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.24 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K, originally filed on
March 16, 2006). ’

Assurant Executive Management Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.16 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-109984} and amendments thereto,
criginally filed on October 24, 2003).

Assurant Long Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s
Form 8-K, originally filed on April 13, 2005).

Amended and Restated Assurant Long Term Incentive Plan (initially adopted effective April 8, 2003
and amended and restated on November 9, 2006 and January 11, 2007).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the Assurant Long Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.27 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K, originally filed on March 10, 2006).

Amended Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the Assurant Long Term Incentive Plan,
effective January 11, 2007.

Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement under the Assurant Long Term Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.28 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K, originally filed on
March 10, 2006).

Amended Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement under the Assurant Long Term Incentive
Plan, effective January 11, 2007.

Assurant Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.17 to the
Registrant’s Form 10-K, originally filed on March 31, 2005).

Consulting, Non-Compete and Payments Agreement, dated July 19, 1999, among Fortis, Inc., Allen
R. Freedman and Fortis Insurance N.V. (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.19 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 5-1 (File No. 333-109984) and amendments thereto,
originally filed on October 24, 2003).

Retirement Agreement, dated July 19, 1999, among Fortis, Inc., Allen R. Freedman and Fortis
Insurance N.V., as amended (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.20 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-109984) and amendments thereto, originally filed
on October 24, 2003).

Agreement, dated September 1, 2003, between Fortis Insurance Company and its affiliates Fortis
Benefits Insurance Company and John Alden Life Insurance Company and National Administration
Company, Inc. {incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.25 to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1/ A (File No. 333-109984) and amendments thereto, originally filed on
December 10, 2003).

Amendment to the Agreement, effective May 1, 2005 between Fortis Insurance Company and its
affiliates Fortis Benefits Insurance Company and John Alden Life Insurance Company and National
Administration Company, Inc. (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.33 to the Registrant’s
Form 10-K, originally filed on March 10, 2006).

Three Year Credit Agreement, dated as of January 30, 2004, by and among Assurant, Inc., as the
borrower, certain banks and financtial institutions, as the lenders, Bank One, NA, as administrative
agent for the lenders, Citigroup North America Inc., as syndication agent, and Morgan Stanley Senior
Funding, Inc. and JP Morgan Chase Bank, as co-documentation agents (incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 10.26 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on form S-1/ A (File No. 333-109984)
and amendments thereto, originally filed on February 3, 2004).
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Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

211
231
24.1
31
31.2
321

32.2

First Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of April 29, 2005 among Assurant, Inc., as
the borrower, and certain banks and financial institutions as the lenders, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
as Administrative Agent {incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q,
originally filed on May 16, 2005).

Amendment No. | To The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement Dated as of April 29, 2005
among Assurant, Inc., as the borrower and certain banks and financial institutions as the lenders,
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as Administrative Agent (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10,1
to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q, originally filed on November 14, 2005). '

Amendment No. 2 To The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement among Assurant, Inc., as the
borrower and certain banks and financial institutions as the lenders, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as
Administrative Agent, effective April 2006,

Amendment No. 3 To The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement among Assurant, Inc., as the
borrower and certain banks and financial institutions as the lenders, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as
Administrative Agent, effective February 2, 2007.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

Power of Atlorney.

Rule 13a-14{a)/15d-14{a) Cerlification of Principal. Executive Officer.
Rule 13a-14{a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Principal Financial Officer.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Assurant, Inc. pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 9206 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Assurant, Inc. pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on March 1,

2007,

ASSURANT, INC.
By: /8/ ROBERTB. PoLLOCK

Name: Robert B, Pollack
Title: President and Chief Executive Qfficer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacities indicated on March 1, 2007,

Signature

/s/ ROBERT B. POLLOCK

Robert B, Pollock

*

P, Bruce Camache

%

John A. Sondej

*

John Michael Palms

*

Michel Baise

*

Robert J. Blendon

*

Beth L. Bronner

*

Howard L. Carver

*

Juan N. Centa

*

Allen R. Freedman

*

Charles J. Kuch

*

H. Carroll Mackin

*

Michele Coleman Mayes

By: s/ RoBERT B. POLLOCK
Name: Robert B, Pollock
Attorney-in-Fact
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Senior Vice President and Controller

(Principal Accounting Officer)
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Director
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PRICEVWATERHOUSE(QOPERS

PricewaterhouseGCoopers LLP
~ PricewaterhouseCoopers Center

300 Madison Avenue

New York NY 10017

Telephone {645} 471 3000

Facsimile {813} 286 6000

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the board of directors and shareholders of Assurant, Inc.:
We have completed integrated audits of Assurant, Inc.'s 2006 and 2005 consolidated financial
statements and of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, and an audit of
its 2004 consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company

Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules

In our opinion, the consclidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under Item 15¢a)(1),
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Assurant, Inc. and its subsidiaries at
December 31, 2006 and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2006 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement
schedules listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(2), present fairly, in all material respects, the
information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements and financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and
financial statement schedules based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its
method of accounting for share-based compensation on January 1, 2006, and for defined benefit
pension and other postretirement plans on December 31, 2006.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in Management's Annual Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A, that the Company maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 based on criteria established in
Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COSO), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those criteria.
Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
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PRICENVATERHOUSE(QOPERS

control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal
Control - Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. The Company’s management is responsible
for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Qur responsibility is to express opinions on
management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in ali material respects. An
audit of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we
consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinions, :

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

//LM&WMMM@?M G
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

March 1, 2007
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Assuorant, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets
At December 31, 2006 and 2605

December 31, December 31,
2006 2005
{in thousands except number of shares)
Assets
Investments:
Fixed maturities available for sale, at fair value (amortized cos1—3$8,934,017 in 2006 and
BB 68505 I 2005 ) ..o $ 9,118,049 ¥ B.961,778
Equity securities available for sale, at fair value (cost—3$735.566 in 2006 and $694,977 in
21 1 741.639 693,101
Commercial mortgage loans on real estate, st amortized cost ... ... ... ... 1,266,158 1,212,006
POliCY JOANS o e e e 58,733 61,043
Short-term iNVESIMENTs . . ... ... . i 314,114 427,474
Collateral held under securities lending . ... ... 365,958 610,662
Other inVesIIMENIS . . .. ...t e 564,494 549,759
Totab IVESIIMENTS . .. .ottt e et e e 12,429,145 12,515,823
Cash and cash equivalents ........... ... .. i 987.672 855.569
Premiums and accounts receivable, net ... ... ... i 612,011 454,789
Reinsurance recoverables . . .. ... . s 3914972 4.447 810
Accrued invesSIMENT IMCOIME . .. ... .o et et iaaa e i e 137,803 128,150
TaX TECRIVADIE ..o e e s — 3,868
Deferred acquistlion COSIS ... .. ... ... .. i 2,397,906 2,022,308
Property and equipment, al cost less accumulated depregciation .. ..., i 275,201 267.720
Goodwill .o 790,519 804,864
Value of business acquired . . .. ... .. 134,437 151.512
LTt 1T T 186,939 240,603
Assets held in SeParate ACCOUMNLS .\ u vttt vttt e s e eeaae s et eaainarrrannsanss 3,298,343 3472435
Total BSSEES . . . .t $25,165,148 $25,365453
Liabilities
Future policy benefits and eXpenses . ...t $ 6,766,343 3 06,664,854
Uneamned premiums |, ..o oo e 4,429,893 3851614
Cluims and benefits puyable . .. ... 3,412,166 3,875,223
Commissions payable . ... 304,640 301.209
Reinsurance balances puyable .. ... 84,891 129,547
Funds held under reinsurance 49 980 78.5378
Deferred gain on disposul of businesses . ........... ... 249,911 287,212
Obligation under securities lending . ... i e 365,958 610,662
Accounts payable and other liabilities ... .o v v i i e 1,282,903 1,351,196
Deferred income taXes, MEE . . .. ... ittt 57.157 47,514
Income taxes payable . ... 36,232 —
0. 971.774 971,690
Mandatorily redeemable preferred SIOCK .. v vt i i 22,160 24,160
Liubilities reluted to separtte 8cCOUnts . ... ... ... ... 3,298.543 3472435
Total Tiabilities .. ..o e $21,332,551 $21,665,894
Commitments and contingencies (Nole 20) ... ...
Stockholders’ equity
Commen stock, par value $.01 per share, 800,000,000 shares authorized, 143,080,961 and

142.563.829 shares issued, 122,618,317 and 130,591,834 shares outstanding at December 31,

2006 and 2005, respectively ... 3 1,430 % 1,426
Additional paid-incapital . ... ... . e 2,894 892 2,880,329
Retained eamings . .. .. ...ttt e 1,676,171 1,006.910
Unamortized restricted stock compensation; (127,601 shares at December 31,2005y .......... — (2.829)
Accumulated other comprehensive inCOME ... oo i i e e 88,064 219,459
Treasury stock. at cost; 20,308,610 and 11,844,394 shares at December 31, 2006 and 2005,

TESPECHVELY .. o (827.960) (405,776)
Total stockholders” equity ... ... 3.832,597 3,699,559

Total liabilities and stockholders™ equity ... .. .. .. ... .. $25,165,148 $25,365,453

See the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Assurant, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(in thousands except number of shares and per share
amounts)
Revenues
Net earned premiums and other considerations .............. $ 6,843,775 $ 6,520,796 $ 6,482.87]
Netinvestmentincome . ............. ... ... . .. ivirnen, 736,686 687,257 634,749
Net realized gains oninvestments .. ....................... 111,863 8,235 24,308
Amortization of deferred gain on disposal of business .. ....... 37,300 42,508 57,632
Loss on disposal of businesses ........... ..o iiiun... — — (9,232)
Feesand otherincome ....... ... ... ... i, 340,958 238,879 220,386
Totalrevenues . ......... ... ..., 8,070,584 7.497.675 7.410,714
Benefits, losses and expenses
Policyholderbenefits .. ...... ... .. ... ... ... ... ... 3,538,947 3,707,809 3,839,769
Amortization of deferred acquisition costs and value of business
acquired . ... 1,185,113 926,608 820,456
Underwriting, general and administrative expenses ........... 2,189,539 2,146,392 2,155,980
Interest eXpense . ... ... e 61,243 61,258 56,418
Distributions on mandatorily redeemable preferred securities . .. — — 2,163
Total benefits, losses and expenses . ........... 6,974,842 6,842,067 6,874,786
Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle ........ ... ... . o 1,095,742 655,608 535,928
INCOME taXeS ... oot e 379,871 176,253 185,368
Net income before cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle . . . ... 715,871 479,355 350,560
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . ......... 1,547 — —
NetIncome . ...t $ 717418 § 479,355 § 350,560
Earnings Per Share—Basic
Net income before cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle ... $ 565 % 353 % 2.53
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle .......... 0.01 — —
Netincome . ......... .. it $ 566 % 353 % 2.53
Earnings Per Share—Diluted
Net income before cumulative effect of change in accounting
Principle . . ... $ 556 % 350 % 2.53
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle .......... 0.01 — —
Netincome . ... ... .. . e $ 557 % 350 $ 253
Dividends pershare . ...t $ 038 % 031 % 0.21
Share Data:
Weighted average shares outstanding used in basic per
share calculations . ......... ... ... .. ... ... .. ..... 126,846,990 135,773,551 138,358,767
Plus: Dilutive Securities . . . ........ou e 1,965,823 1,171,759 108,797
Weighted average shares used in diluted per share
calculations . ...... ... .. .. i 128,812,813 136,945,310 138,467,564

See the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Assurant, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(it thousands)

QOperating activities
NetinCome ... i § 717418 $§ 479355 § 350,560
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

operating activities:

Change in reinsurance recoverables ....................... 533,938 (249,7127) 220,214
Change in premiums and accounts receivables ... ............ (104,090) (39.,641) 35,7147
Change in deferred acquisition costs and valueof ............
businesses acquired . .. ... . ... . 0 i (339,898) (367,200) (228,933)
Change in accrued investmentincome ..................... (9,468) (631 8,139
Change in insurance policy reserves and expenses . ... ........ 104,904 926,522 493,453
Change in accounts payable and other liabilities ............. (17,870} 108,799 (34,239)
Change in commissions payable .......................... (983) 6,243 (59,779
Change in reinsurance balances payable .. .................. (44,962) (27,930) 14,326
Change in funds held under reinsurance .................... (28,640) (18,201) (82,736)
Change in trading portfolio .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 13,376 5,660 (35,623)
Change in INCOME TAXES . .ottt n et it ee e e 121,142 32,914 168,757
Amortization of deferred gain on disposal of businesses ....... (37,301) (42,508) (57,632)
Depreciation and amortization ........................... 93,305 83,169 60,757
Net realized gainsoninvestments .. ....................... (111,865) (8,235) (24,308)
Loss on disposal of businesses ........................... — — 9,232
Stock based compensation expense . ... ... oL 17,569 40,089 945
Excess tax benefit from share-base payment arrangements .. ... 2,561y -~ — —
Other ... 18,983 (26,140) (23,926)
Net cash provided by operating activities . ...................... $ 922997 $§ 902,538 $ 814,954
Investing activities
Sales of:
Fixed maturities available forsale ...................... .. $ 1,854,030 $ 1,689,974 $ 1,737,937
Equity securities available forsale ........................ 302,757 117,307 132,832
Property and equipment . ... .. ... ... . ... ... oL, 25,045 14,226 8,817
Equity interest (1) . ... .. . i e 146,368 — —
Maturities, prepayments, and scheduled redemption of:
Fixed maturities available forsale ........................ 640,070 831,598 841,518
Purchase of:
Fixed maturities available forsale ........................ (3,001,808) (2,569,754) (2,902,334)
Equity securities available forsale ........................ (313,758) (193,325) (236,168)
Property and equipment ........... ... ... ... .. ... . ... (74,706) (56,059) (60,273)
Subsidiary, net of cashreceived (2} ................. ... ... 47,514 — —
Change in commercial mortgage loans onreal estate .............. (38,461) (157,241) (119,048)
Change in short term InVestments ... ... eeinnnn.. 113,408 (134,114) (24,776)
Change in other invested assels . .. ..ot eenn (31,989) (19,854) (15,834)
Change inpolicy loans ......... ... i, 2,315 3,885 3,380
Change in collateral held under securities lending ................ 244,704 (75,331 (114,549
Net cash received related to sale of business .................... — — 3,536

Net cash (used in) investing activities . . ........................ $ (B4,511) § (548,688) $ (744,962)




Assurant, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows—(Continued)
Years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004

(in thousands)

$ — 8 (196224)
— 971,537

—  (1,750,000)
3771 725491
(338874)  (63.628)
42,050)  (29,676)
75331 114,549
134,821 99,948 -
(1350000 _ (100,000)

$(302,001) § (228,003)

$ (3362) $ 6,896
48,487 (151,115)
807,082 958,197

$ 855,369 $ 807,082

2006

Financing activities
Répayment of mandatorily redeemable preferred securities . ........... $ —
Redemption of mandatorily redeemable preferred stock .............. (2,000}
Issuanceofdebt ....... ... . i —
Repaymentofdebt ...... ... i —
Issuance of common stock .. ... . e (2,734)
Excess tax benefits from stock-based payment arrangements .......... 2,561
Acquisition of treasury stock .. .. ... . o i e (422,451}
Dividendspaid . . ... ... o e (48,157)
Change in obligation under securities lending ...................... (244,704)
Commercial paperissued ......... ..o ieiiiii i 59,941
Commercial paperrepaid ......... . i (60,000)
Net cash (used in) financing activities ........... ... ... ... ... ... $(717.544)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ......... $ 11,161
Change in cash and cashequivalents ........ ... ... ... ........... 132,103
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of peried ................... 855,569
Cash and cash equivalents atend of period .......... ... ... .. ... § 987,672
Supplemental information:

Income taxes paid, netof refunds ... ... ... ... ... o $ 257,317

Interest premium on redemption of mandatorily redeemable

preferred securitiespaid ...... ... . oo $ —_
Interest on mandatorily redeemable preferred stock
anddebt ... ... $ 61,159

$122406 $ 9931
$  — $ 66734

$ 61,179 $ 37,709

(1) This relates to the sale of our equity interest in Private Healthcare Systems Inc., in November 2006.
(2) This relates to the acquisition of Safeco Financial Institution Solutions, Inc., acquired on May 1, 2006.
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Assurant, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
(In thousands except number of shares and per share amounts)

1. Nature of Operations

Assurant, Inc. (formerly, Fortis, Inc.) {the “Company™) is a holding company whose subsidiaries provide
specialized insurance products and related services in North America and selected international markets. Prior to
the Initial Public Offering {the “IPQ™), Fortis, Inc. was incorporated in Nevada and was indirectly wholly owned
by Fortis N.V. of the Netherlands and Fortis SA/NV of Belgium (collectively, “Fortis™) through their affiliates,
including their wholly owned subsidiary, Fortis Insurance N.V.

On February 5, 2004, Fortis sold approximately 65% of its ownership interest in Assurant, Inc. via the [POQ
and retained approximately 35% of its ownership (50,199,130 shares). In connection with the IPO, Fortis, Inc.
was merged into Assurant, Inc., a Delaware corporation, which was formed solely for the purpose of the
redomestication of Fortis, Inc. After the merger, Assurant, Inc. became the successor to the business, operations
and obligations of Fortis, Inc. Assurant, Inc. is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol AIZ.

The following events occurred in connection-with the Company’s IPO: The Company (1) redeemed the
outstanding $196,224 of mandatorily redeemable preferred securities in January 2004, (2) issued 68,976 shares of
common stock of Assurant, Inc. to certain directors and officers of the Company, and (3) issued
32,976,854 shares of common stock of Assurant, Inc. to Fortis [nsurance N.V. simultaneously with the closing of
the IPO in exchange for a $725,500 capital contribution based on the public offering price of the Company’s
common stock.

On January 21, 2005, Fortis owned approximately 36% (50,199,130 shares) of the Company based on the
number of shares outstanding that day and sold 27,200,000 of those shares in a secondary offering to the public.
The Company did not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of shares of common stock by Fortis. Fortis
received all net proceeds from the sale. Fortis concurrently sold exchangeable bonds, due January 26, 2008, that
are mandatorily exchangeable for their remaining 22,999,130 shares of Assurant. Fortis may elect, prior to the
maturity date of the bonds, a cash settlement alternative and pay the bondholders an amount of cash equal to the
applicable market value of the Company’s common stock. The exchangeable bonds and the shares of the
Company’s common stock into which they are exchangeable have not been and will not be registered under the
Securities Act of 1933 and may not be offered or sold in the United States absent registration or an applicable
exemption from registration requircments.

Through its operating subsidiaries, the Company provides creditor-placed homeowners insurance,
manufactured housing homeowners insurance, debt protection administration, credit insurance, warranties and
extended service contracts, individual health and small employer group health insurance, group dental insurance,
group disability insurance, group life insurance and pre-funded funeral insurance.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). Dollar amounts are presented in U.S. dollars and
all amounts are in thousands, except for number of shares and per share amounts.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and all of its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant inter-company transactions and balances are eliminated in consolidation. See Note 4
for dispositions of businesses.
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Assurant, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—{Continued)
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
(In thousands except number of shares and per share amounts)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assurnptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. The most significant items on the
Company’s balance sheet affected by the use of estimates are investments, reinsurance recoverables, deferred
acquisition costs (“DAC™), deferred income taxes, goodwill, valuation of business acquired (“VOBA”), future
policy benefits and expenses, unearned premiums, claims and benefits payable, deferred gain on disposal of
businesses, and commitments and contingencies. The estimates are sensitive to market conditions, investment
yields, mortality, morbidity, commissions and other acquisition expenses, policyholder behavior and other
factors. Actual results could differ from the estimates reported. The Company believes the amounts reported are
reasonable and adequate. :

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if
securities or other contracts that can be converted into common stock were exercised as of the end of the period.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is comprised of net income and other comprehensive income. Other comprehensive
income includes unrealized gains (losses) on foreign currency translation, unrealized gains and losses on
securities classified as available for sale and direct charges for pension under-funding, less deferred income
taxes.

Reclassifications

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2006 presentation. See Note 22—
Segment Information.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes and reporis revenue when realized or realizable and earned. Revenue generally is
realized or realizable and earned when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or
services have been rendered, the price is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured.

Foreign Currency Translation

For those foreign affiliates where the foreign currency is the functional currency, unrealized foreign
currency translation gains (losses) net of deferred income taxes have been reflected in “accumulated other
comprehensive income.” Other than for wholly owned Canadian subsidiaries, deferred taxes have not been
provided for unrealized currency translation gains (losses) since the Company intends to indefinitely reinvest the
earnings in these other jurisdictions.

Investments

Fixed maturities and equity securities are classified as available-for-sale and reported at fair value. [f the fair
value is higher than the amortized cost for debt securities or the purchase cost for equity securities, the excess is
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Assurant, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
(In thousands except number of shares and per share amounts)

an unrealized gain. and, if lower than cost, the difference is an unrealized loss. The net unrealized gains and
losses, less deferred income taxes, are included in accumulated other comprehensive income.

Commercial mortgage loans on real estate are reported at unpaid balances, adjusted for amortization of
premium or discount, less allowance for losses. The allowance is based on management’s analysis of factors
including actual loan loss experience, specific events based on geographical. political or economic conditions,
industry experience and individually impaired loan analysis. A loan is considered individually impaired when it
becomes probable the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due, including principal and interest.
Changes in the allowance for loan losses are recorded in net realized gains and losses.

Policy loans are reported at unpaid principal balances, which do not exceed the cash surrender value of the
underlying policies.

Short-term investments include all investment cash and short maturity investments. These amounts are
reported at cost, which approximates fair value.

Collateral held under securities lending and the obligation under securities lending are reported at cost.
which approximates fair value.

Other investments consist primarily of investments in joint ventures, partnerships, invested assets associated
with a modified coinsurance arrangement and invested assets associated with the Assurant Investment Plan
(“AIP™). The joint ventures and partnerships are valued according to the equity method of accounting. The
invested assets related to modified coinsurance arrangements and the AIP are classified as trading securities and
are reported at fair value,

The Company monitors its investment portfolio to identify investments that may be other-than-temporarily
impaired. In addition, securities whose market price is equal o 85% or less of their original purchase price are
added to the impairment watchlist, which is discussed at quarnterly meetings attended by members of the
Company’s investment, accounting and finance departments. Any security whose price decrease is deemed other-
than-temporary is written down to its then current market level with the amount of the writedown reported as a
realized loss in that period. Assessment factors include, but are not limited to, the length of time and the extent 1o
which the market value has been less than cost, the financial condition and rating of the issuer, whether any
collateral is held and the intent and ability of the Company to retain the investment for a period of time sufficient
to allow for recovery. Realized gains and losses on sales of investments and declines in value judged to be other-
than-temporary are recognized on the specific identification basis.

Investment income is reported as earned net of investment expenses.

The Company anticipates prepayments of principal in the calculation of the effective yield for mortgage-
backed securities and structured securities. The majority of the Company's mortgage-backed securities and
structured securities are of high credit quality. The retrospective method is used to adjust the effective yield.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers cash on hand, all operating cash and working capital cash to be cash equivalents.
These amounts are carried at cost, which approximates fair value. Cash balances are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine if negative cash balances exist. If negative cash balances do exist, the cash
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Assurant, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—{Continued)
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
(In thousands except number of shares and per share amounts)

accounts are netted with other positive cash accounts of the same bank providing the right of offset exists
between the accounts, If the right of offset does not exist, the negative cash balances are reclassified to accounts
payable.

Receivables

The Company reports a receivable when revenue has been recognized and reported but not collected. The
Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for probable losses resulting from the inability to collect
payments.

Reinsurance

Reinsurance recoverables include amounts related to paid benefits and estimated amounts related to unpaid
policy and contract claims, future policyholder benefits and policyholder contract deposits. The cost of
reinsurance is recognized over the terms of the underlying reinsured policies using assumptions consistent with
those used to account for the policies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent
with claim and claim adjustment expense reserves or future policy benefits reserves and are reported in the
consolidated balance sheets. The cost of reinsurance related to long-duration contracts is recognized over the life
of the underlying reinsured policies. The ceding of insurance does not discharge the Company’s primary liability
to insureds. An allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded on the basis of periodic evaluations of balances due
from reinsurers, reinsurer solvency, management's experience, and current economic conditions.

Reinsurance balances payable are reported for reinsurance assumed based upon ceding entities’ estimations.

Funds held under reinsurance represent amounts contractually held from assuming companies in accordance
with reinsurance agreements.

Reinsurance premiums assumed are calculated based upon payments received from ceding companies
together with accrual estimates, which are based on both payments received and in force policy information
received from ceding companies. Any subsequent differences arising on such estimates are recorded in the period
in which they are determined. '

Income Taxes

Current federal income taxes are recognized based upor amounts estimated to be payable or recoverable as
a result of taxable operations for the current year. Deferred income taxes are reported for temporary differences
between the financial reporting basis and income tax basis of assets and liabilities, based on enacted tax laws and
statutory tax rates applicable to the periods in which the Company expects the tempoerary differences to reverse.
A valuation allowance is established for deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that an amount will
not be realized.

Deferred Acquisition Costs

The costs of acquiring new business that vary with and are primarily related to the production of new
business are deferred to the extent that such costs are deemed recoverable from future premiums or gross profits.
Acquisition costs primarily consist of commissions, policy issuance expenses. and certain direct marketing
expenses.
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Assurant, Inc, and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
(In thousands except number of shares and per share amounts})

Loss recognition testing is performed annually and reviewed quarterly. Such testing involves the use of best
estimate assumptions including the anticipation of interest income to determine if anticipated future policy
premiums are adequate to recover all DAC and related claims, benefits and expenses. To the extent a premium
deficiency exists, it is recognized immediately by a charge to the statement of operations and a corresponding
reduction in DAC. If the premium deficiency is greater than unamortized DAC, a liability will be accrued for the
excess deficiency.

Long Duration Contractys

Acquisition costs for pre-funded funeral life insurance policies and life insurance policies no longer offered
are deferred and amortized in proportion to anticipated premiums over the premium-paying period. These
acquisition costs consist primanily of first year commissions paid to agents and sales and policy issue costs.

Acquisition costs relating to worksite group life and disability consist primarily of first year commissions to
brokers and one time policy transfer fees and costs of issuing new certificates. These acquisition costs are
front-end loaded. thus they are deferred and amortized over the estimated terms of the underlying contracts.

For pre-funded funeral investment type annuities and universal life and investment-type annuities no longer
offered, DAC is amortized in proportion to the present value of estimated gross margins or profits from
investment, mortality, expense margins and surrender charges over the estimated life of the policy or contract.
The assumptions used for the estimates are consistent with those used in computing the policy or contract
liabilities.

Acquisition costs relating to individual medical contracts issued prior to 2003 and currently in a limited
number of jurisdictions are deferred and amortized over the estimated average terms of the underlying contracts.
These acquisition costs relate to commissions and policy issuance expenses. Commissions represent the majority
of deferred costs and result from commission schedules that pay significantly higher rates in the first year. The
majority of deferred policy issuance expenses are the costs of separately underwriting each individual medical
contract,

Short Duration Contracts

Acquisition costs relating to property contracts, warranty and extended service contracts and single premium
credit insurance contracts are amortized over the term of the contracts in relation to premiums earned.

Acquisition costs relating to monthly pay credit insurance business consist mainly of direct marketing costs
and are deferred and amortized over the estimated average terms and balances of the underlying contracts.

Acquisition costs relating to group term life, group disability and group dental consist primarily of
compensation to sales representatives. These acquisition costs are front-end loaded; thus, they are deferred and
amortized over the estimated terms of the underlying contracts.

Acquisition costs on individual medical contracts issued in most jurisdictions after 2002 and small group
medical contracts consist primarily of commissions to agents and brokers and compensation to representatives.
These contracts are considered short duration because the terms of the contract are not fixed at issue and they are
not guaranteed renewable. As a result, these costs are not deferred, but rather they are recorded in the
consolidated statement of operations in the period in which they are incurred.
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Assurant, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—{(Continued)
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
(In thousands except number of shares and per share amounts)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are reported at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated on a
straight-line basis over estimated useful lives with a maximum of 39.5 years for buildings, a maximum of 7 years
for furniture and a maximum of 5 years for equipment. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to
income and reported as incurred. Expenditures for improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the
remaining useful life of the asset.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of acquisition costs over the net fair values of identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed in a business combination. Goodwill is deemed to have an indefinite life and is not
amortized, but rather tested at least annually for impairment. The goodwill impairment test has two steps. The
first identifies potential impairments by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit with its book value,
including goodwill. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds the carrying amount, goodwill is not impaired
and the second step is not required. If the carrying value exceeds the fair value, the second step calculates the
possible impairment loss by comparing the implied fair value of goodwill with the carrying amount. If the
implied goodwill is less than the carrying amount, a write down is recorded. The fair value is based on an
evaluation of ranges of future discounted earnings, public company trading multiples and acquisitions of similar
companies, Certain key assumptions considered include forecasted trends in revenues, operating expenses and
effective tax rates.

The Company adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“FAS 1427) No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, on January 1, 2002. As part
of the adoption of FAS 142, the Company is required to test goodwill on at least an annual basis. The Company
performed a January 1, 2005 impairment test during the first quarter and concluded that goodwill is not impaired.
Effective September 30, 2005, the Company changed the timing of its annual goodwill impairment test to the
fourth quarter based on actual data through October [st. The Company determined this change in accounting
principle is preferable because it will allow management to incorporate this test into the normal flow of the
financial planning and reporting cycle and provide more timely analysis on the recoverability of goodwill. The
Company’s fourth quarter 2006 impairment test concluded that goodwill is not impaired.

Value of Businesses Acquired

VOBA is the identifiable intangible asset representing the value of the insurance businesses acquired. The
amount is determined using best estimates for mortality, lapse, maintenance expenses and investment returns at
date of purchase, The amount determined represents the purchase price paid to the seller for producing the
business. Similar to the amortization of DAC, the amortization of VOBA is over the premium payment period for
traditional life insurance policies and a small block of limited payment policies. For the remaining limited
payment policies, pre-funded funeral life insurance policies, all universal life policies and annuities, the
amortization of VOBA is over the expected lifetime of the policies.

VOBA is tested for recoverability annually. If it is determined that future policy premiums and investment

income or gross profits are not adequate to cover related losses or loss expenses, then an expense is reported in
current carnings.
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Assurant, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
(In thousands except number of shares and per share amounts)

Other Assets

Other assets include prepaid items and intangible assets. Identifiable intangible assets with finite lives,
including costs capitalized relating to developing software for internal use, are amortized on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The Company tests the intangible assets for impairment whenever
circumstances warrant, but at least annually. If impairment exists, then the excess of the unamortized balance
over the fair value of the intangible assets will be charged to earnings at that time.

Separate Accounts

Assets and liabilities associated with separate accounts relate to premium and annuity considerations for
variable life and annuity products for which the contract-holder, rather than the Company, bears the investment
risk. Separate account assets are reported at fair value. Revenues and expenses related to the separate account .
assets and liabilities, to the extent of benefits paid or provided to the separate account policyholders, are excluded
from the amounts reported in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Reserves

Reserves are established according 1o GAAP, using generally accepted actuarial methods and are based ona
number of factors. These factors include experience derived from historical claim payments and actuarial
assumptions to arrive at loss development factors. Such assumptions and other factors include trends, the
incidence of incurred claims, the extent to which all ctaims have been reported, and internal claims processing
charges. The process used in computing reserves cannot be exact, particularly for liability coverages, since actual
claim costs are dependent upon such complex factors as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal liabilities and
damage awards. The methods of making such estimates and establishing the related liabilities are periodically
reviewed and updated.

Reserves do not represent an exact calculation of exposure, but instead represent our best estimates,
generally involving actuarial projections at a given time, of what we expect the ultimate settlement and
administration of a claim or group of claims will cost based on our assessment of facts and circumstances then
" known. The adequacy of reserves will be impacted by future trends in claims severity, frequency, judicial
theories of liability and other factors. These variables are affected by both external and internal events, such as:
changes in the economic cycle, changes in the social perception of the value of work, emerging medical
perceptions regarding physiological or psychological causes of disability, emerging health issues and new
methods of treatment or accommodation, inflation, judicial trends, legislative changes and claims handling
procedures,

Many of these items are not directly quantifiable, particularly on a prospective basis. Reserve estimates are
refined as experience develops. Adjustments to reserves, both positive and negative, are reflected in the statement
of operations of the period in which such estimates are updated. Because establishment of reserves is an
inherently uncertain process involving estimates of future losses, there can be no certainty that ultimate losses
will not exceed existing claims reserves. Future loss development could require reserves to be increased, which
could have a material adverse effect on our earnings in the perieds in which such increases are made.
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Long Duration Contracts

Future policy benefits and expense reserves on Long Term Care (“LTC”), life insurance policies and
annuity contracts that are no longer offered, individual medical policies issued prior to 2003 or issued in a limited
number of jurisdictions and the traditional life insurance contracts within FFG are reported at the present value of
future benefits to be paid to policyholders and related expenses less the present value of the future net premiums.
These amounts are estimated and include assumptions as to the expected investment yield, inflation, mortality,
morbidity and withdrawal rates as well as other assumptions that are based on the Company's experience. These
assumptions reflect anticipated trends and include provisions for possible unfavorable deviations.

Future policy benefits and expense reserves for pre-funded funeral investment-type annuities, universal life
insurance policies and investment-type annuity contracts no longer offered, and the variable life insurance and
investment-type annuity contracts in FFG consist of policy account balances before applicable surrender charges
and certain deferred policy initiation fees that are being recognized in income over the terms of the policies.
Policy benefits charged to expense during the period include amounts paid in excess of policy account balances
and interest credited to policy account balances.

Future policy benefits and expense reserves for pre-funded funeral life insurance contracts are reported at
the present value of future benefits to policyholders and related expenses less the present value of future net
premiums, Reserve assumptions are selected using best estimates for expected investment yield, inflation,
mortality and withdrawal rates. These assumptions reflect current trends, are based on Company experience and
include provision for possible unfavorable deviation. An unearned revenue reserve is also recorded for these
contracts which represents the balance of the excess of gross premiums over net premiums that is still to be
recognized in future years’ income in a constant relationship to insurance in force.

For worksite group disability, the case reserves and incurred but not reperted (“IBNR™) are recorded at an
amount equal to the net present value of the expected future claims payments. Worksite group disability reserves
are discounted to the valuation date at the valuation interest rate. The valuation interest rate is reviewed quarterly
by taking into consideration actual and expected earned rates on our asset portfolio.

Changes in the estimated liabilities are reported as a charge or credit to policyholder benefits as the
estimates are revised.

Short Duration Contracts

For short duration contracts, claims and benefits payable reserves are reported when insured events occur.
The liability is based on the expected ultimate cost of settling the claims. The claims and benefits payable
reserves include (1) case reserves for known but unpaid claims as of the balance sheet date; (2) [BNR reserves
for claims where the insured event has occurred but has not been reported to the Company as of the balance sheet
date; and (3) loss adjustment expense reserves for the expected handling costs of settling the claims.

For group disability, the case reserves and the IBNR are reported at an amount equal to the net present value
of the expected claims future payments. Group long-term disability and group term life waiver of premiums
reserves are discounted to the valuation date at the valuation interest rate. The valuation interest rate is reviewed
quarterly by taking into consideration actual and expected earned rates on our asset portfolio. Group long term
disability and group term life reserve adequacy studies are performed annually, and morbidity and mortality
assumptions are adjusted where appropriate.
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Unearned premium reserves are maintained for the portion of the premiums on short duration contracts that
is related to the unexpired period of the policies. The Company has exposure to asbestos, envirenmental and
other general liability claims arising from its participation in various reinsurance pools from 1971 through 1985.
This exposure arose from a short duration contract that the company discontinued writing many years ago. The
Company carried case reserves for these liabilities as recommended by the various pool managers and bulk
reserves for claims incurred but not yet reported. Any estimation of these liabilities is subject to greater than
normal variation and uncertainty due to the general lack of suffictent detailed data, reporting delays, and absence
of generally accepted actuarial methodology for determining the exposures. There are significant unresolved
industry legal issues, including such items as whether coverage exists and what constitutes an occurrence. In
addition, the determination of ultimate damages and the final allocation of losses to financially responsible
parties are highly uncertain.

Changes in the estimated liabilities are reported as a charge or credit to policyholder benefits as estimates
are revised. Amounts reimbursed by the National Flood Insurance Program for processing and adjudication
services are reported as a reduction of policyholder benefits.

Deferred Gain on Disposal of Businesses

The Company reports a deferred gain on disposal of businesses for disposals utilizing reinsurance. On
March 1, 2000, the Company sold its LTC business using a coinsurance contract. On April 2, 2001, the Company
sold its FFG business using a modified coinsurance contract. Since the form of sale did not discharge the
Company’s primary liability to the insureds, the gain on these disposals was deferred and reported as a liability
and decreased as it is recognized and reported as revenue over the estimated life of the contracts’ terms. The
Company reviews and evaluates the estimates affecting the deferred gain on disposal of businesses annually or
when significant information affecting the estimates becomes known to the Company.

Debt

The Company reports debt net of unamortized discount or premium, Interest expense related to debt is
expensed and reported as incurred.

The Company reports mandatorily redeemable preferred stock equal to redemption value.

Premiums
Long Duration Contracts

Currently, the Company’s long duration contracts being sold are pre-funded funeral life insurance,
investment type annuities and worksite group disability and life insurance. The pre-funded funeral life insurance
policies include provisions for death benefit growth that is either pegged to the changes in the Consumer Price
Index or determined periodically at the discretion of management. For pre-funded funeral life insurance policies,
revenues are recognized and reported when due from policyholders. For pre-funded funeral investment-type
annuity contracts, revenues consist of charges assessed against policy balances. Revenues are recognized when
earned on the worksite group disability.

For individual medical contracts sold prior to 2003, individual medical contracts currently sold in a limited
number of jurisdictions and traditional life insurance contracts previously sold by the preneed business but no
longer offered, revenue is recognized and reported when due from policyholders.
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For universal life insurance and investment-type annuity contracts previously sold by the Solutions segment
but no longer offered, revenues consist of charges assessed against policy balances.

Premiums for LTC insurance and traditional life insurance contracts within FFG are recognized and
reported as revenue when due from the policyhelder. For universal life insurance and investment-type annuity
contracts within FFG, revenues consist of charges assessed against policy balances. For the FFG and LTC
businesses previously sold, all revenue is ceded.

Short Duration Contracts

The Company’s short duration contracts are those on which the Company recognizes and reports revenue on
a pro-rata basis over the contract term. The Company’s short duration contracts primarily include group term life,
group disability, medical, dental, property and warranty, credit life and disability, and extended service contracts
and individual medical contracts issued after 2002 in most jurisdictions.

Reinstatement premiums for reinsurance are netted against net earned premiums and other considerations in
the statement of operations.

Fee Income

The Company primarily derives income from fees received from providing administrative services. Fee
income is recognized and reported when services are performed.

Dealer obligor service contracts are sales in which the retailer/dealer is designated as the obligor
{administrative service-only plans). For these contract sales, the Company recognizes and reports administrative
fee revenue on a straight-line pro-rata basis over the terms of the service contract.

Administrator obligor service contracts are sales in which the Company is designated as the obligor. The
Company recognizes and reports administration fees related to these contracts as earned on the same basis as the
premium is recognized or on a straight-line pro-rata basis. Administration fees related to the unexpired portion of
the contract term are deferred. Acquisition costs related to these contracts are also deferred. Both the deferred
administration fees and acquisition costs are amortized over the term of the contracts.

Underwriting, General and Administrative Expenses

Underwriting, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of commissions, premium taxes,
licenses, fees, amortization of DAC and VOBA, salaries and personnel benefits and other general operating
expenses. These expenses are reported as incurred.

Leases

The Company reports expenses for operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Contingencies

The Company follows SFAS No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies (“"FAS 5}, which requires the Company
to evaluate each contingent matter separately. A loss is reported if reasonably estimable and probable. The
Company establishes reserves for these contingencies at the best estimate, or if no one estimated number within
the range of possible losses is more probable than any other, the Company reports an estimated reserve at the low
end of the estimated range. Contingencies affecting the Company include litigation matters which are inherently
difficult to evaluate and are subject to significant changes.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Adopted

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("FAS") No. 123
(revised 2004), Share-Based Payment (“FAS 123R”") which replaces Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123, Share-Based Paymeni and supersedes Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 23,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. FAS 123R requires all share-based payments to employees, including
grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the financial statements based on their fair values. The pro
forma disclosures previously permitted under FAS 123 are no longer an alternative to financial statement
recognition. Under FAS 123R, the Company must determine the appropriate fair value mode! to be used for
valuing share-based payments, the amortization method for compensation cost, and the transition method to be
used at date of adoption. The Company adopted FAS 123R using the modified prospective method which
requires that compensation expense be recorded for all unvested stock options at the beginning of the first quarter
of adoption of FAS 123R. The adoption of FAS 123R did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial
statements. See Note 17 for further information regarding the adoption of FAS 123R.

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted FAS No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, a
replacement of APB Opinion No. 20, Accounting Changes, and Statement No. 3, Reporting Accounting Changes
in Interim Financial Statements (“FAS 1547). FAS 154 changes the accounting and reporting of a change in
accounting principle. Prior to FAS 154, the majority of voluntary changes in accounting principles were required
to be recognized as a cumulative effect adjustrment within net income during the period of the change. FAS 154
requires retrospective application to prior period financial statements unless it is impracticable to determine
either the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change. The adoption of FAS 154 did not have a
material effect on our financial position or results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued FAS 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Plans (“FAS 1587). FAS 158 requires companies to recognize a net liability or asset to
report the funded status of their defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans on their balance sheet
with an offsetting adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income. FAS 158 requires companies to make
additional disclosures, but does not change how pension and postretirement benefits are accounted for and
reported in the statement of operations. The Company adopted FAS 158 as of December 31, 2006, See Note 21
for additional disclosures required by FAS 158 and the effects of adoption.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifving Misstatements in Current Year
Financial Statements (“SAB 108”). SAB 108 provides guidance for how errors should be evaluated to assess
materiality from a quantitative perspective. SAB 108 permits companies to initially apply its provisions by either
restating prior financial staterments or recording the cumulative effect of initially applying the approach as
adjustments to the carrying values of assets and liabilities as of January 1, 2006 with an offsetting adjustment to
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retained earnings. The Company adopted SAB 108 as of December 31, 2006. The adoption of SAB 108 did not
have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Quitstanding

In September 2005, the AICPA issued Statement of Position 03-1, Accounting by Insurance Enterprises for
Deferred Acquisition Costs in Connection with Modifications or Exchanges or Insurance Contracts, (“SOP
05-17). SOP 05-1 provides guidance on internal replacements of insurance and investment contracts. An internal
replacement is a modification in product benefits, features, rights or coverages that occurs by the exchange of a
contract for a new contract, or by amendment, endorsement, or rider to a contract, or by the election of a feature
or coverage within a contract. Moedifications that result in a new contract that is substantiaily different from the
replaced contract are accounted for as an extinguishment of the replaced contract, and the associated unamortized
DAC, unearned revenue liabilities and deferred sales inducements from the replaced contract must be reported as
an expense immediately. Modifications resulting in a new contract that is substantially the same as the replaced
contract are accounted for as a continuation of the replaced contract. SOP 05-1 is effective for internal
replacements occurring in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The adoption of SOP 03-1 will not
have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48”). This Interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty
in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements. This Interpretation prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position
taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. This Interpretation also provides guidance on derecognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. The Interpretation
is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006 and, therefore, the Company is required to adopt
FIN 48 by the first quarter of 2007. The adoption of FIN 48 wiil not have a material impact on the Company’s
financial statements.

On September 135, 2006, the FASB 1ssued FAS 157, Fair Value Measurements (“FAS 1577). FAS 157
defines fair value, addresses how companies should measure fair value when they are required to use a fair value
measure for recognition or disclosure purposes under GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements, FAS [57 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 13,
2007, and interim perieds within those fiscal years. Therefore, the Company is required to adopt FAS 157 by the
first quarter of 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the requirements of FAS 157 and the potential impact
on the Company’s financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued FAS 139, The Fuir Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (“FAS 1597). FAS 159 allows to choose to measure many financial assets and financial Habilities at
fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected are reported in
eamnings. FAS 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. Therefore, the Company is
required to adopt FAS 139 by the first quarter of 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the requirements of
FAS 159 and the potential impact on the Company’s financial statements.

3. Acquisitions of Businesses

On May 1, 2006, the Company acquired 100% of the common stock of Safeco Financial Institution
Solutions, Inc. (“SFIS™). At the time of the acquisition, SFIS was the fourth largest provider of creditor-placed
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homeowners insurance and dirgct tracking services for mortgage lenders and servicers nationwide. The Company
also entered into a reinsurance agreement with certain Safeco Insurance Companies. Upon acquisition, SFIS
became a part of the Assurant Specialty Property segment. The purchase of SFIS did not meet the criteria of a
significant acquisition and therefore no pro-forma financial information is required.

4. Dispositions of Businesses
The Company’s results of operations were affected by the following dispositions:

On November 9, 2005, the Company signed an agreement with Forethought Life Insurance Company
(“Forethought”) to sell via reinsurance new preneed insurance policies written as of October 1, 2005 in the
United States via independent funeral homes and funeral home chains other than those owned and operated by
Service Corporation International (*SCI™). The Company will receive payments from Forethought over the next
ten years based on the amount of business the Company transitions to Forethought. This agreement does not
impact preneed’s Independent—Canada operation or SCI distribution channels.

On May 3, 2004, the Company sold the assets of its Workability division of Core, Inc. The Company
recorded a pre-tax loss on sale of $9,232.

5. Investments

The amortized cost and fair value of fixed maturities and equity securities at December 31, 2006 were as
follows:

Cost or Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Fixed maturities
Bonds:
United States Government and government agencies and
AUTHOTIEIES + . vttt e et et e n et $ 324745 $ 4,836 § (2.118) § 327463
States, municipalities and political subdivisions . ....... 221,078 15,723 (372) 236,429
Foreign governments ..........0 v inanas 631,740 24,071 (3,149) 652,662
Publicutilities .. ... ... oo 1,074,962 38,003 (8,798) 1,104,167
All other corperate bonds ........... ... ... ... ... 5,467,558 168,411 (45,238) 5,590,731
Mortgage backed securities ... ... . ... . L. 1,213,934 4,843 (12,180) 1,206,597
Total fixed maturities ... ..................... $8,934,017 $255,887 $(71.855) $9,118,049
Equity securities
Common stocks:
Banks, trusts and insurance companies . .............. $ 18¢ % — 8 30) $ 156
Industrial, miscellaneous and all other .. ........ ... .. 505 377 2) 880
Non-redeemable preferred stocks:
Non-sinking fund preferred stocks .................. 734,875 14,070 (8,342) 740,603
Total equity securities .. ............ ... ... ... $ 735566 § 14,447 § (8374) § 741,639
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The amortized cost and fair value of fixed maturities and equity securities at December 31, 2005 were as
follows:

Cost or Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Yalue
Fixed maturities
Bonds:
United States Government and government agencies and
amthorilies ... ... e $ 352,636 § 11,635 5 (2,308) $§ 361963
States, municipalities and political subdivisions ... ... .. 217,100 19,111 (278) 235,933
Foreign governments . ........... ... ..., 566,577 25,326 (2,550) 589,353
Publicutilities .. ...... ... .0 i 1,018,278 32,806 (6,493) 1,064,591
All othercorporate bonds . ....... ... ... ... .. ... 5,169,018 236,797  (34,309) 5,371,506
Mortgage backed securities ......... ... ... ... 1,344,986 5581 (12,135) 1,338,432
Total fixed maturities ........................ $8,668,595 $351,256 $(58,073) $B8,961,778
Equity securities
Common stocks:
Banks, trusts and insurance companies . .............. 3 155 &% — 3 {n % 154
Industrial, miscellaneous and all other . .............. 1,165 304 (44) 1,425
Non-redeemable preferred stocks:
Non-sinking fund preferred stocks .................. 693,657 9,619 (11,754) 691,522
Total equity securities .............covveun.... $ 694977 $ 9923 $(11,799) $ 693,101

The amortized cost and fair value of fixed maturities at December 31, 2006 by contractual maturity are
shown below. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because issuers of the securities may
have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Amortized
Cost Fair Value
Dueinoneyearorless ... ... .. L. $ 258919 § 258947
Due after one year throughfiveyears .. ........... vt nans 2,030,940 2,037,926
Due after five years throughtenyears ............................ 2,094,801 2,110,069
Due afterten years .. .. .. .. i e 3,335,423 3,504,510
o 1 7,720,083 7,911,452
Mortgage and asset backed securities .. ..... ... ... ... .. ... 1,213,934 1,206,597
Total .. e $8,934,017  $9,118,049

Proceeds from sales of available for sale securities were $2,201,923, 51,817,288 and $1,861,924 during
2006, 2005 and 2004 respectively. Gross gains of $33,511, $31,789 and $53,547 and gross losses of $36,590,
$42,580 and $20,232 were realized on dispositions in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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Major categories of net investment income were as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Fized maturities ... ... ... ... $517,744  $499,950  $484,232
Equity securities .. ...... ..o i e 49,779 45,621 41,592
Commercial mortgage loansonrealestate ................. 90,000 85,942 79,334
Policyloans ........ ... o i s 3,669 3,699 3,832
Short-term INVESIMENTS . .. ... ..ot eneanns 11,575 7,774 3,158
Other inveStMeNts . ... ... ... ..t 57,836 52,295 35,927
Cashand cashequivalents .......... ... ... ............ 30,836 16,542 6,942
Total Investment Income .. ............. ... ciiiennen... 761,439 711,823 659,017
[nvestment eXpenses .. ... ..ottt (24,753) (24,566) (24,268)

Net investment iNCOME . . ..o v v e e ernrenernnns $736,686  $687,257 $634,749

The net realized gains (losses) recorded in income for 2006, 2005 and 2004 are summarized as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Fixed Maturities ...t e et mr e $ (147D % (8,627) 331815
Equity SECurilies . ... ... ittt (3,742) (2,929 900
Total marketable securities . ... ..ot s i e (3,889) (11,556) 32,715
Real 851818 . oottt e e e P {232) — (580)
(101 ¢ 115986(1) 19,791 (7,827)
Total ... .. e $111,865 & 8,235 $24,308

(1) Includes $98,342 of realized gain relating to the sale of PHCS.

The Company recorded $810, $765 and $600 of pre-tax realized losses in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, associated with other-than-temporary declines in value of available for sale securities. The
Company recorded $854, zero and $4,217 of pre-tax realized losses in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively,
associated with other investments.
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The investment category and duration of the Company’s gross unrealized losses on fixed maturities and
equity securities at December 31, 2006 were as follows:

Less than 12 months 12 Months or More Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Fixed maturities
Bonds:
United States Government and
government agencies and
authorities ..................... $ 189,037 § (1,373) 5 24036 § (745) % 213,073 $ (2,118)
States, municipalities and political
subdivisions . ................... 21,423 214y 9,398 (158) 30,821 372
Foreign governments . .. ............ 247,291 (2,823) 12,899 (326) 260,190  (3,149)
Public utilities . ................... 346,570  (7,267) 45626 (1,531)y 392,196  (8,798)
Al other corporate bonds . ........ .. 2,136,342 {37,521y 250908 (7,717) 2,387,250 (45,238)"
Mortgage backed securities . ..., ..... 713912 (8,850) 99713 (3,330 813,625 (12,180)
Total fixed matunities .......... $3,654,575 $(58,048) $442,580 $(13,807) $4,097,155 %(71.85%)
Equity securities
Common stocks:
Banks, trusts and insurance
COMPANIES ...\ oeeeennen e, $ 140 $ 30 — § — § 140 3 (30)
Industrial, miscellaneous and all
other............ ..., o102 (2) — — 102 )
Non-redeemable preferred stocks:
Nen-sinking fund preferred stocks . ... 248,030 {5,425y 67,143 2917) 315,173 (8,342)
Total equity securities .......... $ 248272 $ (5457 % 67,143 § (2917 $ 315415 § (8,374
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The investment category and duration of the Company’s gross unrealized losses on fixed maturities and
equity securities at December 31, 2005 were as follows:

Less than 12 months 12 Months or More Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Fixed maturities
Bonds:
United States Government and
government agencies and
authonities ..................... $ 128,125 § (1,617} $ 22380 § (691) % 150,505 $ (2,308)
States, municipalities and political
subdivisions . .......... . e .., 6,521 44y 12,179 (234) 18,700 (278)
Foreign governments . .............. 142,116  (2,081) 10,142 (469) 152,258 (2,550}
Public utilities .................... 240,259  (5,358) 36,752 (L.135 277011 (6,493}
All other corporate bonds ........... 1,611,483 (28.,926) 131,084 (5.383) 1,742,567 (34,309)
Mortgage backed securities . ......... 707,930  (8,082) 124,754 (4,053) 832,684 (12,135}
Total fixed maturities .. ........ $2,836,434 $(46,108) $337.291 $(11,965) $3,173,725 $(58,073)
Equity securities
Common stocks:
Banks, trusts and insurance
COMPANIES - . ..\ oveeeaen., $ 10 % ns — $ — % 10 % )
Industrial, miscellaneous and all
other ... ... . .. .. . i 55 (44) —_ — 55 44
Non-redeemable preferred stocks:
Non-sinking fund preferred stocks . ... 307,918  (7.468) 71,798  (4,280) 379,716 (11,754)
Total equity securities .. ........ $ 307983 $ (7513 % 71,798 § (4.286) % 379,781 $(11,799)

The total unrealized fosses represent less than 2% of the aggregate fair value of the related securities at
December 31, 2006 and 20035, Approximately 799 and 77% of these unrealized losses have been in a continuous
loss position for less than twelve months in 2006 and 2005, respectively. The total unrealized losses are
comprised of 1,394 and 1,172 individual securities with 94% of the individual securities having an unrealized
loss of less than $200 in 2006 and 2005, respectively. The total unrealized losses on securities that were in a
continuous unrealized loss position for greater than six months but less than 12 months were approximately
$2,171 and $9,388 in 2006 and 2005, respectively. There were no securities with an unrealized loss of greater
than $200 having a market value below 88% and 79% of book value at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

As part of the Company’s ongoing monitoring process, the Company regularly reviews its investment
portfolio to ensure that investments that may be other-than-temporarily impaired are identified on a timely basis
and that any impairment is charged against earnings in the proper period. The Company has reviewed these
securities and recorded $810, $765 and $600 of additional other than temporary impairments as of December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Due to issuers’ continued satisfaction of the securities’ obligations in
accordance with their contractual terms and their continued expectations to do so, as well as the Company’s
evaluation of the fundamentals of the issuers’ financial condition, the Company believes that the prices of the
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securities in an unrealized loss position as of December 31, 2006 in the sectors discussed above were temporarily
depressed primarily as a result of the prevailing level of interest rates at the time the securities were purchased.
The Company has the intent and ability to hold these assets until the date of recovery.

The Company has made commercial mortgage loans, collateralized by the underlying real estate, on
properties located throughout the United States and Canada. At December 31, 2006, approximately 38% of the
outstanding principal balance of commercial mortgage loans was concentrated in the states of California, New
York, and Pennsylvania. Although the Company has a diversified loan portfolio, an economic downturn could
have an adverse impact on the ability of its debtors to repay their loans. The outstanding balance of commercial
mortgage loans range in size from $23 to $17,768 at December 31, 2006 and from $20 to $18,000 at
December 31, 2003. The mortgage loan valuation allowance for losses was $4,753 and $19,921 at December 31,
2006 and 20085, respectively.

At December 31, 2006, loan commitments outstanding totaled approximately $34,260. Furthermore, at
December 31, 2006, the Company is committed to fund additional capital contributions of $19,497 to joint
ventures and to certain investments in limited partnerships.

The Company has short term investments and fixed maturities of $392,397 and $707,445 at December 31,
2006 and 2003, respectively, on deposit with various governmental authorities as required by law.

The Company utilizes derivative instruments in managing the Solutions segment pre-arranged funeral
business exposure to inflation risk. The derivative instruments, Consurmer Price Index Caps (the “CPl1 CAPs”),
limit the inflation risk on certain policies. The CPI CAPs do not qualify under GAAP as effective hedges;
therefore, they are marked-to-market on a quarterly basis and the accumulated gain or loss is recognized in the
results of operations in fees and other income. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the CPI CAPs included in
other assets amounted to $7,400 and $9,980, respectively. The (loss)/gain recorded in the resulis of operations
totaled $(2,580) and ($1,795) and $1,050 for the period ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Security Lending

The Company engages in transactions in which fixed maturities, especially bonds issued by the United
States Government, agencies, and U.8. Corporations, are loaned to selected broker/dealers. Collateral, greater
than or equal to 102% of the fair value of the securities lent plus accrued interest, is received in the form of cash
and cash equivalents held by a custodian bank for the benefit of the Company. The Company monitors the fair
value of securities loaned and the collateral received, with additional collateral obtained as necessary. The
Company is subject to the risk of loss to the extent there is a loss in the investment of cash collateral. At
December 31, 2006 and 2003, securities with a fair value of $356,839 and $587,982, respectively, were on loan
to select brokers and are included in the Company’s available for sale investments. At December 31, 2006 and
2005, collateral with a fair value of $365,958 and $610,662, respectively, is included in the Company’s assets
with offsetting liabilities.

6. Fair Value Disclosures

FAS 107, Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments, (“FAS 1077) requires disclosure of fair
value information about financial instruments, as defined therein, for which it is practicable to estimate such fair
value. These financial instruments may or may not be recognized in the consolidated balance sheets. In the
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measurement of the fair value of certain financial instruments, other valuation techniques were utilized if quoted
market prices were not available. These derived fair value estimates are significantly affected by the assumptions
used. Additionally, FAS 107 excludes certain financial instruments including those related to insurance contracts.

In estimating the fair value of the financial instruments presented, the Company used the following methods
and assumptions:

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments : the carrying amount reported approximates fair value
because of the short maturity of the instruments.

Fixed maturity securities: the fair value for fixed maturity securities, which include both public and 144A
securities, is based on quoted market prices, where available. For fixed maturity securities that are not actively
traded, fair values are estimated using values obtained from independent pricing services or, in the case of private
placements, excluding 144A securities, are estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a current
market rate applicable to the yield, credit quality, and maturity of the investments.

Equity securities: the fair value of equity securities and non-sinking fund preferred stocks is based upon
quoted market prices.

Commercial morigage loans and policy loans: the fair values of mortgage foans are estimated using
discounted cash flow analyses, based on interest rates currently being offered for similar loans to borrowers with
similar credit ratings. Mortgage loans with similar characteristics are aggregated for purposes of the calculations.
The carrying amounts of policy loans reported in the balance sheets approximate fair value.

Other investments: the fair values of joint ventures are based on financial statements provided by
partnerships or members. The invested assets related to a modified coinsurance arrangement and the AIP are
classified as trading securities and are reported at fair value. The carrying amounts of the rematning other
investments approximate fair value.

Collateral and obligations under securities lending: the fair value of securities lending assets and liabilities
are based on quoted market prices.

Policy reserves under investment products: the fair values for the Company’s policy reserves under the
investment products are determined using cash surrender value.

Separate account assets and liabilities: separate account assets and liabilities are reported at their estimated
fair values in the balance sheet.
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December 31, 2006 December 31, 205
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Financial assets

Cash and cashequivalents ........................... $ 987,672 § 987.672 § 855569 $ 855.569
Fixed maturities . ... ... ... it 9,118,049 9,118,049 8961778 8,961,778
Equity securities . . ......... ... i i 741,639 741,639 693,101 693,101
Commercial mortgage loans on real estate . ............. 1,260,158 1302448 1,212,006 1,299,215
Policy I0ARS .. ... 58,733 58,733 61,043 61.043
Short-term investments . ............c.oiuurenrunennna. 314,114 34114 427,474 427,474
Other investments ............. ... ... ... .cc....... 564,494 564,494 549,759 549,759
Assets held in separate accounts ................. ... 3,268,543 3,208,543 3472435 3,472,435
Collateral held under securities lending . . ............... 365,958 365,598 610,662 610,662

Financial liabilities
Policy reserves under investment products (Individual and

group annuities, subject to discretionary withdrawal) .... § 730,862 § 723,069 $§ 818,848 § 810,570
Liabilities related to separate accounts .. ............... 3,208,543 3,208,543 3,472,435 3,472435
Obligations under securities lending ................... 365,958 365,938 610,662 610,662

The fair value of the Company’s liabilities for insurance contracts other than investment-type contracts are
not required to be disclosed. However, the fair values of liabilities under all insurance contracts are taken into
consideration in the Company’s overall management of interest rate risk, such that the Company’s exposure to
changing interest rates is minimized through the matching of investment maturities with amounts due under
insurance contracts.

7. Premiums and Accounts Receivable

Receivables are reported net of an allowance for uncollectible items. A summary of such receivables is as
follows:

As of December 31,
2006 2005
Insurance premiums receivable . .......... ... e $368,552  $316,238
Otherreceivables . . ... .. .. e 267,046 163,885
Allowance for uncollectible items .. ... . o i i e (23,587 (25,3348
Total e e e $612,011  $454,789

F-27




Assurant, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
(In thousands except number of shares and per share amounts)

8. Income Taxes

The Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are subject to U.S. tax and file a U.S. consotidated federal
income tax return. Information about current and deferred tax expense follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Current expense:
Federal ....... .. ... $283,762  $ 44235  $110.,516
Foreign ... ..o 11,691 9,228 7,748
Total current exXpense . .......oveeii i nany 295,453 53,463 118,264
Deferred expense (benefit)
Federal .. ...t e 80,459 126,076 68,227
Foreign ... oo (5.041) (3,280) (1,123)
Total deferred expense .......... ... . ..ot 84,418 122,790 67,104
Total iNCOME 1aX EXPENSE . - .o o vvv i e vnrnins e $379.871  $176,253  3185,368

The provision for foreign taxes includes amounts attributable to income from U.8. possessions that are
considered foreign under U.S. tax laws. International operations of the Company are subject to income taxes
imposed by the jurisdiction in which they operate.

A reconciliation of the federal income tax rate to the Company’s effective income tax rate follows:

December 31,
2006 2005 2004

.......................................... 35.0% 350% 35.0%

Federal income tax rate:
Reconciling items:

Tax eXEMPUITIETEST . .ottt e r et s it nns 0.2y (©2) (0.3)
Dividends received deduction . ..., ... . Lo i 0.5y (0.6 (1.0)
Permanent nondeductible expenses ........ ... 0 i 0.1 0.3 0.2
Change in liability for prior yeartaxes ............ .00 ioeenn.. 03 48 (19
Tax on Jobs Actrepatriation ......... ... .. . it — (1.2) 35
Goodwill ... . e — — 0.1
Foreign earmings . .. ..o ii i e 0.1 1.3 0.6
Foreigntaxcredit ..... ... . 0.5 ((1.6y (1.5
Low-income housingcredit .. ....... ... it 0.2y (04 (0.6)

Low-income housing adjustments ..........iiniivrrreeiinannn 0.1 0.3 03
Valuation allowance . ...... ... o, 02 — —

(0117 o OO 0.3 LI,'E) ﬂ
................... e 347% 269% 34.6%

The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (“The Jobs Act™) was enacted in October, 2004. In December
2004, the Company repatriated $110,066 from its Puerto Rico subsidiaries and incurred $18,887 of tax expense.
Due to a technical correction to The Jobs Act and the resolution of the U.S. Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”),
the Company recaptured $8,054 of this tax as a tax benefit in 2005. Additionally, the Company adjusted tax
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liabilities for previously provided tax accruals which were no longer considered necessary due to the resolution
of IRS audits. As a result of these adjustments, the Company realized tax benefits of $32,629 and $10,000 for
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively and adjusted purchase accounting goodwill by $18,096 and $12,541
for December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The tax effects of temporary differences that result in significant deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are as follows:

December 31,
2006 2005

Deferred Tax Assets
Policyholder and separate account reserves ................oviuiiin. $ 420,319  $ 383,304
Accrued liabilities .. ......... .. o o 105,389 100,022
INVESTMENLS, MEL . ottt e ettt e et et e e e e e s 22,072 25,186
Losscarryforwards .. ... ... ... . e 20,832 14,707
Capital loss carryforwards .. ... ... .. v i — 15,526
Deferred gain on disposal of businesses .. ............... ... ... ... .. §7.469 100,524
Compensationrelated .. ... ... .. ... . ... .. 33,695 37,299
Employee and post-retirement benefits . .......... ... ... L 59,990 20,564

Total deferred tax assel . . ... oo oot i i i e 749,766 697,132
Less valuation allowance ........ ..ottt nans (8,782) —
Netdeferred tax assel ..ottt it e ettt e e e e $ 740984 § 697,132
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Deferred acquisition costs ... ... ... ... . $(661,278)  $(549,990)
Net unrealized appreciation on securities ... .......... ... .. ... ... ... (64,475) {98,050)
L 17" (72,388) {96,606)

Total deferred tax liability ............ ... .. i il $(798,141) $(744.646)
Net deferred income tax liability ........... ... ... ... .. L. $ (57,157 $ 47514

After consideration of all the available facts, it is management’s opinion, that it is more likely than not, that
the Company will realize the benefit of the deferred tax assets except for those relating to certain international
subsidiaries. The deferred tax asset includes the expected tax benefit of $8,782 attributable to those international
subsidiaries and a full valuation allowance for this balance has been established.

Other than for wholly owned Canadian subsidiaries, deferred taxes have not been provided on the
undistributed earnings of wholly owned foreign subsidiaries since the Company intends to indefinitely reinvest
the earnings in these other jurisdictions. The cumulative amount of undistributed earnings for which the
Company has not provided deferred income taxes is approximately $86,811. Upon distribution of such eamings
in a taxable event, the Company would incur additional U.S. income taxes of approximately $21,974 net of
anticipated foreign tax credits.

Under pre- 1984 life insurance company income tax laws, a portion of a life insurance company’s “gain from
operations™ was not subject to current income taxation but was accumulated, for tax purposes, in a memorandum

F-29




Assurant, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
(In thousands except number of shares and per share amounts)

account designated as “Policyholders’ Surplus Account.” Amounts in this account only become taxable upon the
occurrence of certain events, including dividend distributions from the Policyholders” Surplus Account. The
approximate amount in this account was $0 and $5,500 at December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively. Deferred
taxes were not provided on the amount from 2005 since the Company neither contemplated any action nor
foresaw any events occurring that would create such tax. The Jobs Act suspends the additional tax imposed on
distributions from the Policyholders” Surplus Account for 2005 and 2006. In addition the Jobs Act provides that
distributions made during the two year suspension peried will first reduce the Company’s Policyholders® Surplus
Account balance. The Policyholders' Surplus Account has decreased to zero because the Company paid
dividends from the account in 2006 and 2005. Under the Jobs Act, no tax was paid or payable due to this
distribution from the Policyholders” Surplus Account.

At December 31, 2006, the Company and its subsidiaries had net operating loss carryforwards for U.S.
federal income tax purposes. Net operating loss carryforwards total $59,521 and will expire if unused as follows:

w Amount
2009 L s $ 18
20010 ... e 359
2004 243
20015 501
2016 ... e 1,047
2017 e 6,167
208 e 315
1012 13,238
0240 O 4,275
2023 e 8.682
2024 e e 2410
202 e e 1,725
2026 e 1,678
unlimited ... ... 18,573

$59,521

The Company and its subsidiaries have fully utilized all capital loss carryforwards for U.S. federal income
tax purposes as of December 31, 2006.

9. Deferred Acquisition Costs

Information about deferred acquisition costs follows:

December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Beginning Balance . ......... ... ... ... 0iiiiiia, $ 2,022,308  $1,047,654 51,384,827
Costs deferred andother (1) . ... ..... ... ... ... 1,544,736 1,282,027 1,061,812
AMOMIZAUON ..ottt et me e e et e (1,169,138} (907,373) (798,985)
EndingBalance .............. ... 00t $ 2397906 $2,022,308 $1,647.654

(1) Includes foreign currency translation.
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10. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consists of the following:

As of December 31,

2006 2005
Land .. e $ 14359 $ 14359
Buildings and improvements .. ... ... .. .. L L e 190,056 189,367
Furniture, fixtures and equipment .. ... ... ... ... .. i 339,401 323,251
Toal . e 543,816 526,977
Less accumulated depreciation . ............ .. ... oL (268,613) (259,257)
Total .o e e $ 275201  § 267,720

Depreciation expense for 2006, 2005 and 2004 amounted to $48,629, $49,901 and $45,675, respectively.
Depreciation expense is included in underwriting, general and administrative expenses in the consolidated
statemnents of operations.

11. Goedwill and VOBA
Information about goodwill and VOBA is as follows:

Goodwill for the Years Ended VOBA for the Years Ended
December 31, December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
Beginning Balance .................. $804.864 $823.054 $828.523 $151,512 $170,663 $191,929
Acquisitions (Dispositions) .. ...... (14,183) (340) 6,501 481 — —
Amortization, net of interest
accrued . ... ..., — —— — (17,572  (19,235) (21,472)
Foreign currency translation and
other ........ ... ... ... 31 246 571 16 84 206
Tax adjustments . .. .............. (193) (18,096) (12,541} — — —
Ending balance ..................... $790,519 $804,864 $823,054 $134,437 $151,512 $170,663

As prescribed under FAS 142, the Company has assigned goodwill to its reportable segments, Below is a
rollforward of goodwill by reportable segment. This assignment of goodwill is performed only for FAS 142
impairment testing purposes. The following table has been recast to reflect the new segment reporting structure,
See Note 22—Segment Information.

Specialty Employee

Solutions Property Health Renefits Consolidated

Balance at December 31,2004 . ... ... ... ... .. $167.093 $250,640 $220,243 S185,078 823054
(DISPOSIIONS) ...\ vt (136) (204) — — (340)
Foreign Currency Translation and Other . .. .. (7,140  (10,710) — — (17.850)

Balance at December 31,2005 ................ $159,817 $239726 $220,243 $185078 $804.,864
Acquisitions (Dispositions) . ............... 1,757 — (15,940) — (14,183)
Foreign Currency Translation and Other ... .. (162) — — — (162)

Balance at December 31,2006 ................ $161.412 $239726 $204,303 $185,078 $790,519
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As of December 31, 2006, the majority of the outstanding balance of VOBA is in the Company’s Solutions’
preneed business. VOBA in the preneed business assumes an interest rate ranging from 6.5% 10 7.5%.

At December 31, 2006 the estimated amortization of VOBA for the next five years is as follows:

12. Reserves

Amount

$15,830
$14,225
512,774
$11,716
$10,543

The foliowing table provides reserve information by the Company’s major lines of business at the dates shown:

Long Duration Contracts:
Pre-funded funeral life

insurance policies and

investment-type annuity

CONLracts . ....vouenvan

Life insurance no longer
offered ... .........

Universal life and other
products no longer
offered . ....... ...,

FFG and LTC disposed

businesses .. ...........
Medical .................

Allother ... .......
Short Duration Contracts:
Group term life .. .. ..

Group disability ..........

Medical ............

Dental .......

Property and Warranty

Credit Life and Disability . ..

Extended Service

Conuract .........
Allother ...........

Total .......... ... . .cceann

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Future Incurred Future Incurred
Policy But Not Palicy But Net
Benefits and  Unearned Case Reported Benefits and Unearned Case Reported
Expenses Premiums Reserve Reserves  Expenses  Premijums  Reserve  Reserves
$3.031487 $ 3339 5 10599 § 3094 $2902918 $ 3616 5 11476 § 3443
502,406 784 1,356 467 513426 820 1,612 517
331.257 1.537 263 8,289 346,928 1.699 339 7.128
2,743,154 45,129 262,960 34,743 2724575 46,956 218,311 15,243
152954 23,827 34,454 43,602 172,441 31,650 50,866 45,926
5,085 504 . 11,532 7.213 4,566 608 8,548 7.926
— 6,787 327,180 53.221 — 6,207 331,040 58,953
— 2,195 1,362,594 156,296 — 2110 1,330,091 168,825
— 95,651 123,736 192,394 — 89,776 143,379 180,727
— 3,796 4,746 19,873 — 4,226 4,631 23,332
— 1,488,253 195,306 296.336 — 1.261,145 415,654 531,364
— 494,113 125909 93.261 — 571,723 154,964 120,279
— 2.179.345 3.075 32,462 — 1,784,292 6.726 27,900
— 84,633 3,251 3.954 _ 46,786 3694 2.329

$6.766.343 34,420,893 $2.466.961

$945205 $6.664,854 $3,851.614 32,681,331 $1,193,892

The following table provides a roll forward of the claims and benefits payable for the Company’s group term life,
group disability, medical and property and warranty lines of business. Claims and benefits payable is comprised of
case reserves and IBNR. These are the Company’s product lines with the most significant shert duration claims and
benefits payable balances. Medical also includes business classified as long duration because the methodology used for
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setting claims and benefits payable is similar to that for short duration Medical. The majority of the Company’s credit

life and disability claims and benefits payable are ceded to reinsurers. The Company’s net retatned credit life and
disability claims and benefits payable were $95,529 and $115.873 at December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively.

Balance as of December 31, 2003, gross of reinsurance ..

Group Short Long Property
Term Group Duration Duration and
Life Disability Medical Medical ~ Warranty

$394.292  $1,372,232 § 272,955 $149.308 $ 671,993

Less: Reinsurance ceded and other(1) .................. 37 (21,037 (58,897) (17.596) (287,302)
Balance as of January 1, 2004, net of reinsvrance ... ... ... 394,255 1,351,195 214,058 131,712 384,691
Incurred losses related to:

CUMment Year . .. .. ...t 221,779 407.188 1,103,374 398,685 585,750

Prior year'sinterest ........ ... .. 10,282 59,674 — —

PROT YEATIS) .+« oot ee e e e e e e (49,547} (71.39%)  (38,540p (30,998)  (25.458)
Total incurred 1OSSES . . ... oot e 182,514 395,467 1,064,834 367,687 560,292
Paid losses related to: . 7

CUITENL YEar . ..ot it 137,992 69,391 837,945 209738 413,612

PrOT YEAN(S) + v v e v v e et e e e 45,762 257,535 157,956 95,281 148,449
Total paid losses ........... .. ... i 183,754 326,926 995901 395,019 562,061
Balance as of December 31, 2004, net of reinsurance ... ... 393,015 1.419,736 282,991 104,380 382,922
Plus: Reinsurance ceded and other(1y . .................. 36 16,633 70.547 18,327 303,572
Balance as of December 31, 2004, gross of reinsurance .. $393,051 $1.436,369 $ 353,538 $122,707 § 686,494
Less: Reinsurance ceded and other(l) .................. (36) (16,633) (70,547) (18,327  (303,572)
Balance as of January 1, 2003, net of reinsurance . ........ 393,015 1,419,736 282,991 104,380 382,922
Incurred losses related to:

CUITENT YEAr . .ot teeeeeeieirea e 211,518 382,172 1,114,229 335788 583,837

Prior year'sinterest ........ ... ... ... ... 0 9,845 64,474 — —

Prioryear(s) . ... oov (56,557) (38,018} (53,192  (17,632) 19,627(2)
Total incurred 108S€8 ... .. ...t e 164,806 408,628 1,061,037 318,156 603,464
Paid losses related to:

CUTENM YEAT . .« . o e vt v et et e e 127,289 71,780 872,899 259,863 363,547

Prioryear(s). ... 41,201 274,726 207,137 79,817 230,233
Total paid 108ses . ... ... e 168,490 346,506 1,080,036 339,680 593,780
Balance as of December 31, 2005, net of reinsurance ...... 389,331 1,481,858 263,992 82,856 392,606
Plus: Reinsurance ceded and other (1) .................. 663 17,058 60,114 13,936 554,412
Balance as of December 31, 2005, gross of reinsurance $389.994 51498916 $ 324,106 § 96,792 § 947,018
Less: Reinsurance ceded and other (1) .................. (663) {17,058) 60,114y (13,936} (554,412)
Balance as of January 1, 2006, net of reinsurance ......... 389,331 1,481,858 263,992 82,856 392,606
Incurred losses related to:

CUITENT YEAr . .o vt v vt i e e eeies 199,869 393,849 1,110,600 280,538 702,581

Prioryear'sinterest ......... .. ... ... . ... 10,216 63,124 — — —

1) DU, (59.937)  (83,206)  (45.629) (11.668) (29,235
Total incurred JOSSES . oot e ettt ettt e e 150,148 375,767 1,064,971 268,870 673,346
Paid losses related to:

CUITENE YEAM . o o« v v e e e et e e e iae i ae e 123,439 69,819 868,805 218,388 500,11

Prioryear(s) .. ... ... .. 36,452 281,807 194,370 63,694 215,376
Totalpaid losses .. ...t i 159,891 351626 1,063,175 282,082 715,487
Balance as of December 31, 2006, net of reinsurance . ... 379.588 1,505,999 265,788 69,644 350,465
Plus: Reinsurance ceded and other (13 .................. 813 12,891 50,342 8412 141,177
Balance as of December 31, 2006, gross of reinsurance .. $380,401 $1,518,890 $ 316,130 $ 78,056 $ 491,642
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(1) Reinsurance ceded and other includes claims and benefits payable balances that have either been (a) reinsured (o third parties.
(b) established for claims related expenses whose subsequent payment is not recorded as a paid claim, or (¢) reserves established for
obligations that would persist even if contracts were cancelled (such as extension of benefits), which cannot be analyzed appropriately
under a roll-forward approach.

(2} The $19,627 Propenty and Warranty 2005 reserve deficiency is net of $61,943 of additional claims and benefits payable in 2005
attributable to cerain excess of loss reinsurance programs written from 1995 to 1997 (see note 26, Commitments and Contingencies for
further discussion).

Case reserves and IBNR amounts are developed using actuarial principles and assumptions that consider,
among other things, contractual requirements, historical wtilization trends and payment patterns, benefit changes,
medical inflation, seasonality, membership, product mix, legislative and regulatory environment, economic
factors, disabled life mortality and claim termination rates and other relevant factors. The Company consistently
applies the principles and assumptions listed above from year to year, while also giving due consideration to the
potential variability of these factors.

Since case reserves and TBNR include estimates developed from various actuarial methods, the Company's
actuai losses incurred may be more or less than the Company’s previously developed estimates. As shown in the
table above, if the amounts listed on the line labeled “Incurred losses related to: Prior years™ are negative
(redundant) this means that the Company’s actual losses incurred related to prior years for these lines were less
than the estimates previously made by the Company. If the line labeled “Incurred losses related to: Prior years™
are positive (deficient) this means that the Company’s actual losses incurred related to prior years for these lines
were greater than the estimates previously made by the Company.

Medical reserves established for obligations that would persist even if contracts were cancelled (such as
extension of benefits) have been excluded from the incurred loss roll-forwards because they cannat be analyzed
appropriately under a roll-forward approach. In addition, Medical business classified as long duration has been
included because the methodology used for setting claims and benefits payable is similar to that for short
duration Medical.

The Group Term Life case reserves and IBNR redundancies in all years are due to actual mortality rates
running below those assumed in prior year reserves, and actual recovery tates running higher than those assumed
in prior year reserves.

Group Disability case reserves and IBNR show redundancies in all years due 1o actual claim recovery rates
exceeding those assumed in prior year reserves. During the three year period, recoveries and terminations due to
death were the most favorable in 2004 and 2006 leading to a higher reserve redundancy in those years.

The redundancies in our Medical lines case reserves and IBNR were caused by the Company’s claims
developing more favorably than expected. The Company’s actual claims experience reflected lower medical
provider utilization and lower medical inflation than assumed in the Company’s prior-year pricing and reserving
processes.

In 2004 and 2006, the Company's Property and Warranty case reserves and IBNR show redundancies from
the Company’s credit unemployment lines, driven by strong growth and declining unemployment in the U.S.
economy. In 2005, the core Property and Warranty lines had similar experience, but was more than offset by
$61,943 of additional claims and benefits payable amounts related to certain excess of loss reinsurance programs
written from 1995 to 1997. (See Note 26, Commitments and Contingencies, for further discussion on the excess
of loss reinsurance programs). For the longer-tail Property and Warranty coverages (e.g. asbestos, environmental,
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and other general liability), there were no material changes in estimated amounts for incurred claims in prior
years for all years. Property and Warranty gross case reserve and IBNR were at their highest level at December
31. 2003 due to outstanding 2005 Hurricane claims, which were paid in 2006.

Long Duration Contracts

The Company’s long duration contracts are primarily comprised of pre-funded funeral life insurance
policies and annuity contracts, traditional life insurance policies no longer offered, universal life and annuities no
longer offered and FFG and LTC disposed businesses. The principal products and services included in these
categories are described in the summary of significant accounting polices (see Note 2).

The Company’s Solutions segment through its preneed business manages pre-funded funeral insurance
products through two separate divisions, the independent division and the American Memorial Life Insurance
Company (“AMLIC"} division. The Company signed an agreement with Forethought on November 9, 2005
whereby the Company discounted writing new preneed insurance policies in the United States via Independent
Funeral Homes (see Note 4). The reserves for future policy benefits and expenses for pre-funded funeral life and
annuity contracts and traditional life insurance no longer offered by the preneed business differ by division and
are established based upon the following assumptions.

PreNeed Business—Independent Division

Interest and discount rates for pre-funded funeral life insurance are level, vary by year of issuance and
product, and ranged from 4.7% to 7.3% in 2006 and 2005 before provisions for adverse deviation, which ranged
from 0.2% to 0.5% in 2006 and 2005.

Interest and discount rates for traditional life insurance no longer offered vary by year of issuance and
products and were 7.5% grading to 5.3% over 2() years in 2006 and 2005 with the exception of a block of
pre-1980 business which had a level 8.8% discount rate in 2006 and 2005.

Mortality assumptions are based upon pricing assumptions and medified to allow provisions for adverse
deviation. Surrender rates vary by product and are based upon pricing assumptions.

Future policy benefit increases on pre-funded funeral life insurance policies ranged from 1.0% to 7.0% in
2006 and 2005. Some policies have future policy benefit increases. which are guaranteed or tied to equal some
measure of inflation. The inflation assumption for most of these inflation-linked benefits was 3.0% in both 2006
and 2005 with the exception of most policies issued in 2006 and 2005 where the assumption was 2.3%.

The reserves for annuities issued by the independent division are based on assumed interest rates credited on
deferred annuities, which vary by year of issue, and ranged from 2.0% to 5.5% in 2006 and 2005. Withdrawal
charges, if any, generally range from 7.0% to 0% and grade 1o zero over a period of seven years for business
issued in the United States. Canadian annuity products have a surrender charge that varies by product series and
premium paying period, typically grading to zero after all premiums have been paid.

PreNeed Business—AMLIC Division

Interest and discount rates for pre-funded funeral life insurance policies issued October 2000 and beyond
vary by issue year and are based on pricing assumptions and modified to allow for provisions for adverse
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deviation. 2006 issues used a level 6.0% discount rate, 2005 issues used a level 5.5% discount rate, and 2004
issues used a level 5.3% discount rate. Pre-funded funeral Jife insurance policies issued prior to October 2000
and all traditional life policies issued by the AMLIC division use discount rates, which vary by issue year and
product and ranged from 2.5% to 7.5% in 2006 and 2005.

Mortality assumptions for pre-funded funeral life insurance products issued in October 2000 and beyond are
based upon pricing assumptions, which approximate actual experience, and modified to allow for provisions for
adverse deviation. Surrender rates for pre-funded funeral life insurance products issued in October 2000 and
beyond vary by product and are based upon pricing assumptions, which approximate actual experience. Mortality
assumptions for all pre-funded funeral life insurance and traditional life insurance issued by the AMLIC division
prior to October 2000 are based on statutory valuation requirements, which approximate GAAP, with no explicit
provision for lapses.

Future policy benefit increases on pre-funded funeral life insurance are based upon pricing assumptions,
First-year guaranteed benefit increases range from 0.0% to 6.0% in 2006 and 2005. Renewal guaranteed benefit
increases range from 0.0% 10 3.0% in 2006 and 2005, except for a very small portion of policies which are
guaranteed at 8.0%. For contracts with minimum benefit increases associated with an inflation index. assumed
benefit increases equaled the discount rate less 3.0% in 2006 and 2005.

The reserves for annuities issued by the AMLIC division are based on assumed interest rates credited on
deferred annuities and ranged from 1.0% 10 6.5% in 2006 and 2005. Withdrawal charges ranged from 0.0% to
8.0% grading to zero over eight years for business issued in the United States. Canadian annuity products have a
ftat 35% surrender charge. Nearly all the deferred annuities contracts have a 3.09% guaranteed interest rate.

Universal Life and Annuities—No Longer Offered

The reserves for universal tife and annuity products no longer offered in the Assurant Solutions segment
have been established based on the following assumptions: Interest rates credited on annuities, which vary by
product and time when funds were received, ranged from 3.5% to 4.0% with guaranteed credited rates that
ranged from 3.5% to 4.0% in 2006 and 2005, except for a very small portion of pelicies with a credited rate of
6.0% and guaranteed credited rate of 4.5%. Annuities are also subject to surrender charges, which vary by
contract year and grade to zero over a peried no longer than seven years. Surrender values will never be less than
the amount of paid-in premiums (net of prior withdrawals) regardless of the surrender charge. Credited interest
rates on universal life funds vary by product and the funds received and ranged from 4.0% o 5.1% in 2006 and
2005. Guaranteed crediting rates where present ranged from 4,0% to 4.5%. Additionally, universal life funds are
subject to surrender charges that vary by product, age, sex, year of issue, risk class, face amount and grade to
zero over a period not longer than 20 years.

FFGand LTC

‘The reserves for FFG and LTC are included in the Company’s reserves in accordance with FAS 113,
Accounting and Reporting for Reinsurance of Short-Duration and Long-Duration Contracts. The Company
maintains an offsetting reinsurance recoverable related to these reserves (see note 13).
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Short Duration Contracts

The Company’s short duration contracts are comprised of group term life, group disability, medical, dental,
property and warranty, credit life and disability, extended service contract and all other. The principal products
and services included in these categories are described in the summary of significant accounting polices (see
note 2}.

The Company’s group disability products are short duration contracts that include short and long term
disability coverage. Case reserves and IBNR for long-term disability have been discounted at 5.25% in 2006. The
December 31, 2006 and 2005 liabilities net of reinsurance include $1,478,368 and $1,440,479 respectively, of
such reserves. The amount of discounts deducted from outstanding reserves as of December 31, 2006 and 2005
are $466,170 and $466,929, respectively

13. Reinsurance

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is involved in both the assumption and cession of
reinsurance with non-affiliated companies. The following table provides details of the reinsurance recoverables
balance for the years ended December 31:

2006 2005
Ceded future policyholder benefits and expense ............ $2,635445 52,565,223
Ceded unearned premium . ......... ... ... ..o 637,447 691,787
Ceded claims and benefits payable .. ..................... 577,052 928,382
Cededpaidlosses ... .. i 65,028 261,918
Total ... 33914972  $4,447.810

The effect of reinsurance on premiums earned and benefits incurred was as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Long Short Long Short Long Short
Duration Duration Total Duration Duration Total Duration Duration Total

Gross earned
Premiums and other
considerations ... $ 1,207,705 $ 7,152,654 $ 8,360,359 § 1,391,120 $ 6,902,914 § 8,294,034 $1,556,964 § 6,808,796 $ 8,365,760

Premiums
assumed ........ 1,578 482,718 484,296 59,706 308,432 368,138 40,583 350,702 391,285
Premiums ceded ...  (497.315) (1.503,565) (2,000.880) (530,500) {1,610,876) (2,141,376) (495,584} (1,778,590 (2,274,174)

Net earned premiums and
other considerations .. $ 711,968 § 6,131,807 $ 6,843,775 8 920,326 § 5.600470 $ 6,520,796 $1,101,963 § 5,380,908 § 6,482,871

Gross pelicyhelder

benefits $ 1,657,362 § 3,054,061 54,701,423 5 1,797,670 $ 4,394,017 § 6,191,687 $1,707,500 $ 3,371,977 $ 5079477
benefits assumed . . . 6,134 291,320 297,454 32,494 219,665 252,159 29,156 282,595 | 311,751
benefits ceded ..... {L,037,690) (432,240) (1,469,930) (1,050,329) (1,685,708) (2,736,037) (R32,898) (718.561) (1,551,459)

Net pelicyhelder
benefits ............ $ 625806 3% 2.913,141 $3,538947 5 779,835 $ 2,927,974 $ 3,707,809 $ 903,758 $2,936,01] § 3,839,769

The Company had $372,678 and $403,045, respectively, of invested assets held in trusts or by custodians as
of December 31, 2006 and 2005.for the benefit of others related to certain reinsurance arrangements.
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The Company utilizes ceded reinsurance for loss protection and capital management, business dispositions,
and in Assurant Solutions and Assurant Specialty Property segments, for client risk and profit sharing.

Loss Protection and Capital Management

As part of the Company’s overall risk and capacity management strategy, the Company purchases
reinsurance for certain risks underwritten by the Company’s various segments, including significant individual or
catastrophic claims, which enables the Company to free up capital to write additional business.

For those product lines where there is exposure to catastrophes, the Company closely monitors and manages
the aggregate risk exposure by geographic area and the Company has entered into reinsurance treaties to manage
exposure to these types of events.

Under indemnity reinsurance transactions in which the Company is the ceding insurer, the Company
remains liable for policy claims if the assuming company fails to meet its obligations. To minimize this risk, the
Company has control procedures to evaluate the financial condition of reinsurers and to monitor the
concentration of credit risk, The selection of reinsurance companies is based on criteria related to solvency and
reliability and, to a lesser degree, diversification as well as developing strong relationships with the Company’s
reinsurers for the sharing of risks.

Business Divestifures

The Company has used reinsurance to exit certain businesses, such as the disposals of FFG and L.TC.
Reinsurance was used in these cases to facilitate the transactions because the businesses shared legal entities with
business segments that the Company retained. Assets supporting liabilities ceded related to these businesses are
held in trusts and the separate accounts relating to FFG are still reflected in the Company’s balance sheet.

The reinsurance recoverable from The Hartford was $1,366,601 and $1,444,992 as of December 31, 2006
and 2005, respectively. The reinsurance recoverable from John Hancock was $1,361.615 and $995,488 as of
December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively. The Company would be responsible for administering this business
in the event of a default by reinsurers. In addition, under the reinsurance agreement, The Hartford is obligated to
contribute funds to increase the value of the separate account assets relating to Modified Guaranteed Annuity
business sold if such value declines below the value of the associated liabilities. If The Hartford fails to fulfill
these obligations, the Company will be obligated to make these payments. As of December 31, 2006 there have
been no default events by The Hartford or John Hancock and the Company has not been obligated te fulfill any
of the reinsurers” obligations.

Segment Client Risk and Profit Sharing

The Assurant Solutions and Assurant Specialty Property segments write business produced by their clients,
such as mortgage lenders and servicers and financial institutions, and reinsures all or a portion of such business
to insurance subsidiaries of the clients. Such arrangements allow significant flexibility in structuring the sharing
of risks and profits on the underlying business.

A substantial portion of Assurant Solutions and Assurant Specialty Property’s reinsurance activities are
related to agreements to reinsure premiums and risks related to business generated by certain clients to the
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clients” own captive insurance companies or to reinsurance subsidiaries in which the clients have an ownership
interest. Through these arrangements, our insurance subsidiaries share some of the premiums and risk related o
client-generated business with these clients. When the reinsurance companies are not authorized to do business in
our insurance subsidiary’s domiciliary state, our insurance subsidiary generally obtains collateral, such as a trust
or a letter of credit, from the reinsurance company or its affiliate in an amount equal to the outstanding reserves
to obtain full statutory financial credit in the domiciliary state for the reinsurance.

The Company’s reinsurance agreements do not relieve the Company from its direct obligation to its
insureds. Thus, a credit exposure exists to the extent that any reinsurer is unable to meet the obligations assumed
in the reinsurance agreements. To minimize its exposure to reinsurance insolvencies, the Company evaluates the
financial condition of its reinsurers and holds substantial collateral (in the form of funds, trusts, and letters of
credit) as security under the reinsurance agreements

14, Debt

In February 2004, the Company issued two series of senior notes with an aggregate principal amount of
$975,000. The Company received net proceeds from this transaction of $971,537, which represents the principal
amount less the discount. The discount will be amortized over the life of the notes. The first series is $500,000 in
principal amount, bears interest at 5.63% per year and is payable in a single installment due February 15, 2014
and was issued at a 0.11% discount. The second series is $475,000 in principal amount, bears interest at 6.75%
per year and is payable in a single installment due February 13, 2034 and was issued at a 0.61% discount, Interest
on the senior notes is payable semi-annually on February 15 and August 13 of each year. The senior notes are
unsecured obligations and rank equally with all of the Company’s other senior unsecured indebtedness. The
senior notes are not redeemable prior to maturity. The senior notes were registered under the Securities Act in
2004 and all of the holders exchanged their notes for the new, registered notes.

The interest expense incurred for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 relating to the senior
notes was $60,188, $60,188 and $52,163 respectively. There was $22,570 of accrued interest at December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004. The Company made interest payments of $30,094 on February 15, 2006 and August 15,
2006, respectively.

In March 2004, the Company established a $500,000 commercial paper program, which is available for
working capital and other general corporate purposes. The Company's subsidiaries do not maintain commercial
paper or other borrowing facilities at their level. This program is backed up by a $500,000 senior revolving credit
facility with a syndicate of banks arranged by J.P. Morgan Securities, Inc. (successor by merger to Banc One
Capital Markets, Inc.) and Citigroup Global Markets, Inc., which was established on January 30, 2004. In April
2005, the Company amended and restated its $500,000 senior revolving credit facility with a syndicate of banks
arranged by Citibank and JP Morgan Chase Bank. The amended and restated credir facility is unsecured and is
available until April 2010, so long as the Company is in compliance with all the covenants. This facility is also
available for general corporate purposes, but to the extent used thereto, would be unavailable to back up the
commercial paper program. On February 7, 2006, May 8, 2006 and August 24, 2006 the Company used $20,000,
$20,000 and $20,000, respectively, from the commercial paper program for general corporate purposes, which
was repaid on February 14, 2006, May 15, 2006 and August 31, 2006, respectively. There were no amounts
relating to the commercial paper program outstanding at December 31, 2006. The Company did not use the
revolving credit facility during the twelve months ended December 31, 2006 and no amounts are currently
outstanding.
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The revolving credit facility contains restrictive covenants. The terms of the revolving credit facility also
require that the Company maintain certain specified minimum ratios and thresholds. The Company is in
compliance with all covenants and the Company maintains all specified minimum ratios and thresholds.

15. Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred Stocks

The carrying value equals the redemption value for all classes of preferred stock. The Company’s Board of
Directors has the authority to issue up to 200,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $1.00 per share, in one
or more series and to fix the powers, preferences, rights and qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof,
which may include dividend rights, conversion rights, voting rights, terms of redemption, liquidation preferences
and the number of shares constituting any series or the designations of the series.

Information about the preferred stock is as follows:

December 31,
2006 2005
Preferred stock, par value $1.00 per share:
Series B: 30,000 shares authorized, 17,160 and 19,160 shares issued and
outstanding in 2006 and 2005, respectively ......... ... . ... $17.160  $19,160
Series C: 5,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding . ............. 5,000 5,000
Total ... $22,160  $24,160

There was no change in the outstanding shares of Series C for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, Changes in the number of Series B shares outstanding are as follows:

For the Years Ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Shares outstanding, beginning . .......... o i e 19,160 19,160 19,160
Sharesredeemed . .. .. ... ... . ... ... (2,000) — —
Shares outstanding, ending .. ...t it 17,160 19,160 19,160

All shares have a liquidation price of $1,000 per share and rank senior to common stock with respect to
rights to receive dividends and to receive distributions upon the liquidation, disselution or winding up of the
Company.

Holders of the Series B Preferred Stock are entitled to receive cumulative dividends at the rate of 4.0% per
share per annum, multiplied by the $1,000 per share liquidation price, and holders of the Series C Preferred Stock
are entitled to receive dividends at the rate of 4.5% per share per annum multiplied by the $1,000 per share
liquidation price. All dividends are payable in arrears on a quarterly basis. Any dividend that is not paid on a
specified dividend payment date with respect to a share of such Preferred Stock shall be deemed added to the
liquidation price of such share for purposes of computing the future dividends on such share, until such
delinguent dividend has been paid.

Holders of the Series B Preferred Stock may elect to have any or all of their shares redeemed by the
Company at any time after April 1, 2002, and the Company must redeem all shares of the Series B Preferred
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Stock no later than July 1, 2017. Holders of the Series C Preferred Stock may elect to have any or all of their
shares redeemed by the Company any time after April 1, 2022, and the Company must redeem all shares of the
Series C Preferred Stock no later than July 1, 2027. The Company also has the right and the obligation to redeem
the Series B Preferred Stock and Series C Preferred Stock upon the eccurrence of certain specified events. The
redemption price in all cases shall equal the $1,000 per share liquidation price plus all accumulated and unpaid
dividends. The Company is not required to establish any sinking fund or similar funds with respect to such
redemptions. None of the shares of Series B Preferred Stock or Series C Preferred Stock are convertible into
common stock or any other equity security of the Company. However, holders of the Series B Preferred Stock
and Series C Preferred Stock are entitled to one vote per share owned of record on all matters voted upon by the
Company stockholders, voting with the holders of common stock as a single class, and not as a separate class or
classes. The shares of Series B Preferred Stock and Series C Preferred Stock are subject to certain restrictions on
transferability, and the Company has the right of first refusal to acquire the shares if any holder thereof desires to
make a transfer not otherwise permitted by the terms thereof.

16. Common Stock

Prior to the IPO in 2004, the Company had three classes of common stock, Class A, B and C. There were
40,000,000 shares authorized, 7,750,000 shares issued and outstanding of Class A common stock; 150,001 shares
authorized, issued and outstanding of Class B common stock; 400,001 shares authorized, issued and outstanding
of Class C common stock.

In connection with the merger of Fortis, Inc. and Assurant, Inc., each share of Fortis, Inc. Class A common
stock was exchanged for 10.75882039 shares of common stock of Assurant, Inc., which totaled 83,380,858
shares. Also, the Class B and Class C common stock outstanding were converted into an aggregate of 25,841,418
shares of common stock of Assurant, Inc. These events resulted in 109,222,276 shares of common stock
outstanding. ‘

Changes in the number of common stock shares outstanding are as follows:

December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Shares outstanding, beginning . ... ... ... .. o oo 130,591,834 139,766,177 109,222,276

Issuance to Fortis in connection with [PO (Note 1) .......... — — 32,976,854

Vested Restricted Shares, net (Note 1) () ................ 50,900 24,546 1,262

Issuance to Board of Directors (Note 17) .................. 11,555 14,207 10911

Issuance related to ESPP (Note 17) . .. ... ... ... 152,567 148,877 —

Issuance related to SARS exercise (Note 17) ............... 275,677 37,295 —

Shares repurchased as part of buy-back program (Note 18) .. .. (8,464,216) (9,391,968) (2,411,500}

Net shares repurchased as part of Executive 401k plan

(NOtE 17) oo e e e — (7,300) (33,626)

Shares outstanding, ending . ....... ... i e i 122,618,317 130,591,834 139,766,177

(a) Vested Restricted Shares shown net of shares retired to cover participant tax liability.
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The Company is authorized to issue 800,000,000 shares of common stock. The 150,001 shares of Class B
and 400,001 shares of Class C common stock, per the Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Assurant, Inc., are
still authorized but have not been retired and it is management intent not to reissue these shares.

17. Incentive Plans
Stock Based Incentive Plans

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for stock based compensation plans in accordance with
the provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (“APB
25™), which required compensation expense for compensatory plans to be recognized based on the intrinsic value
of the award. Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the recognition provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment (“FAS 123R") using the modified
prospective transition method and, therefore, has not restated results for prior periods. Under this transition
method, stock-based compensation costs are recognized based on the grant date fair value, in accordance with
FAS 123R, for new awards granted after Janvary 1, 2006 as well as any unvested portion of awards granted prier
to January 1, 2006. The Company also applied the “long form™ method to calculate it’s beginning pool of
windfall tax benefit related to employee stock based compensation awards as of the adoption date of FAS 123R.
For the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company recognized compensation costs net of a 5% per year
forfeiture rate on a pro-rated basis over the remaining vesting period.

FAS 123R requires that a one time cumulative adjustment be made at the adoption date to record an
estimate of future forfeitures on outstanding awards. This adjustment is the amount of compensation cost
recorded prior to the adoption of FAS 123R related to omstanding awards that are not expected to vest, based on
an estimate of forfeitures as of the FAS 123R adoption date. The cumulative adjustment. net of taxes, had a
positive impact of $1,547 on the consolidated results of operations of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2006.

Also in connection with the adoption of FAS 23R, the Company reclassified 32,829 of Unamortized
Restricted Stock Compensation {contra-equity account) outstanding at December 31, 2005 to additional paid in
capital. Under FAS 123R, an equity instrument is not recorded to stockholders’ equity until the related
compensation expense is recorded over the requisite vesting period of the award. Prior to the adoption of
FAS 123R, and in accordance with APB 25, the Company recorded the full fair value of all issued but unvested
Restricted Stock to additional paid in capital with an offsetting amount to Unamortized Restricted Stock
Compensation {contra-equity account) which represented the amount of compensation costs not yet recognized
for Restricted Stock.

Director’s Compensation Plan

The Company’s Director’s Compensation Plan permits the issuance of up to 500,000 new shares of the
Company’s common stock 1o Non-Employee Directors. Under this plan, each Non-Employee Director shall
receive annual compensation in the form of both common stock and Stock Appreciation Rights (“SARs™) equal
to $60 each. Awards to a Non-Employee Director vest immediately and must be held for 5 years subsequent to
the date of grant or settlement, or one year post-resignation. The compensation expense recorded related to shares
issued under the Director’s Plan was $565, $505 and $245 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively.
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Long-Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP*)

The 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan authorizes the granting of up to 10,000,000 new shares of the
Company’s common stock to employees and officers under the Assurant Long Term Incentive Plan (“ALTIP™),
Business Value Rights (“BVR”) Program and CEO Equity Grants Program. -

Under the ALTIP, the Company is anthorized {o grant restricted stock and SARs, subject to approval by the
Compensation Committee, which is made up of members of the Board of Directors. Restricted stock grants under
the ALTIP are made annually and vest pro ratably over a three year period. Unearned compensation, representing
the market value of the shares at the date of issuance, is charged to earnings over the vesting period. SARs grants
under the ALTIP are alsc made annually and vest as of December 31 of the second calendar year following the
calendar year in which the right was granted and have a five year contractual life. SARs not exercised prior to the
end of the contractual life are automatically exercised on that date.

Under the BVR Program, the Company grants SARs, subject to the approval of the Compensation
Committee or the Board of Directors designee. SARs grants under this plan are made annually and have a three
year cliff vesting period and a three year contractual life, at the end of which the rights are automatically
exercised.

The Company’s CEQ is authorized by the Board of Directors to grant common stock and restricted stock to
employees other than the executive officers of the Company (as defined in Section 16 of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended {the “Exchange Act”™)) limited to 100,000 new shares per year. Restricted stock grants
under this program have variable vesting schedules.

All shares awarded under the LTIP vest and are exercised net of taxes at the option of the participants.

Restricted Stock
A summary of the Company’s outstanding Restricted Stock is presented below:

Weighted-Average
Grant-Date Fair

Shares Value
Shares outstanding at December 31,2005 ................. ... .... 127,601 $32.86
GIantS ot 104,727 $49.65
R £ (60,021) $29.86
Forfeitures ... ... oo (18,274) $31.96
Shares outstanding at December 31,2006 .. ... .. ... ... . ... .. 154,033 $45.55

The compensation expense recorded retated to restricted stock was $3,366, $1,616, and $699 for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The related total income tax benefit recognized was
$1,178, zero and zero for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 respectively. The weighted average
grant date fair value for restricted stock granted in 2005 and 2004 was $36.98 and $22.00, respectively.

As of December 31, 20006, there was $3,424 of unrecognized compensation cost related to outstanding
restricted stock. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.3 years. The total fair
value of shares vested during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $2,862, $979 and $33,
respectively.
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Stock Appreciation Rights

On April 7. 2005, the Company approved an amendment to the LTIP. The amendment, which was effective
June 30, 2005, amended SARs from rights that paid appreciation to participants in the form of cash to rights that
pay appreciation to participanis in the form of shares of the Company’s common stock.

A summary of the Company’s SARs is presented below:

Weighted Average
Remaining Aggregate
Weighted Average  Contractusl Term Intrinsic
Rights Exercise Price (Years) Value

SARs outstanding, December 31,2005 ........... 5,981,397 $27.40
Grants . .ot e, 1,400,377 $49.25
EXEICISES .. .\ov it (851.918) $24.53
Forfeitures and adjustments .. .............. (317.676) $34.49

SARs outstanding, December 31,2006 ........... 6,212,180 $32.35 4.58 $142,250

SARs exercisable at December 31,2006 .......... 3,594,299 $25.15 5.54 $108,199

There were 1,400,377 and 1.448,292 SARs granted during the years ended December 31, 2006 and 20035,
respectively. The compensation expense recorded related to SARs was $14,779 for the year ended December 31,
2006 and the related income tax benefit recognized was $5,142. Total compensation expense includes expense
for SARs granted to the Board of Directors, which vest immediately. The weighted average grant date fair value
for SARs granted in 2006 and 2005 were $11.37 and $8.64, respectively.

The total intrinsic value of SARs options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 was
$22.,790 and $2,354. respectively. As of December 31, 2006, there was approximately $14,157 of unrecognized
compensation cost related to outstanding SARs. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average
period of 1.6 years,

The fair value of each SARs cutstanding was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model, Expected volatilities for awards issued during the year ended December 31, 2005 were based on
the median historical stock price volatility of a peer group of insurance companies. Expected volatilities for
awards issued during the year ended December 31, 2006 were based on the median hisiorical stock price
volatility of a peer group of insurance companies and implied volatilities from traded options on the Company's
common stock. The expected term for rights granted under the previous plan that were converted on June 30,
2005 was assumed to be the optimal term from the employee’s perspective under the Black-Scholes Model. The
expected term for grants made subsequent to the June 30, 2005 conversion was assumed to equal the average of

- the vesting period of the right and the full contractual term of the right. The risk-free rate for periods within the
contractual life of the option was based on the U.S. Treasury vield curve in effect at the time of grant.

For awards issued during the years

ended December 31,
2006 2005
Expected Volatility ... i i 20.25-22.85%  26.61-27.19%
Risk Free Interest Rates .. .. ... . ... ... ... ... . .. ....... 4.77 - 4.89% 3.69-4.12%
Dividend Yield . .. .. .. ... . . e 0.65% 0.84 - 0.89%
Expected Life (Years) ....... ... ... ... .. . ... . ... 3.00- 3.88 3.69-3.75




Assurant, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continved)
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
(In thousands except number of shares and per share amounts)

Executive 401K Plan

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company purchased 12,900 treasury shares for $438 via a
Rabbi Trust which was allocated to the Assurant Stock Fund. Effective December 2005, the Assurant Stock Fund
was dissolved and the Company's stock will no longer be offered to participants of the Executive 401K Plan.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”), the Company is authorized to issue up 1o 5,000,000
new shares to employees who are participants in the ESPP. The ESPP allows eligible employees to contribute,
through payroll deductions, up to 15% of their after-tax compensation in each offering period toward the
purchase of shares of the Company’s common stock. There are two offering periods during the vear (January 1
through June 30 and July 1 through December 31} and shares are purchased at the end of each offering period at
90% of the lower of the closing price of the commen stock on the first or last day of the offering period. Prior to
January 1, 2006, participants’ contribution was Hmited to a maximum of $6 per offering period. The ESPP was
amended in November 2005 to increase the maximum contribution to $7.5 per offering period, or $15 per year.

The ESPP is offered 10 individuals who are scheduled to work at least 20 hours per week and at least five
months per year, have been continuously employed for at least six months by the stant of the offering period, are
not temporary employees {employed less than 12 months), and have not been on a leave of absence for more than
90 days immediately preceding the offering period. Participants must be employed on the last day of the offering
period in order to purchase Company shares under the ESPP, The maximum number of shares that can be
purchased each offering period is 5,000 shares per employee.

In January 2007, the Company issued 80,282 shares to employees at a price of $43.52 for the offering period
of July | through December 31, 2006, related to the ESPP. In January 2006, the Company issued 73,992 shares to
employees at a price of $32.59 for the offering period of July 1 through December 31, 2005, relating to the ESPP.
In January 2005, the Company issued 71,860 shares at a price of $23.67 for the offering periad of July 1 through
December 31, 2004, relating to the ESPP.

In July 2006, the Company issued 78,575 shares to employees at a price of $39.66 for the offering period of
January 1 through June 30, 2006, relating to the ESPP, In July 2005, the Company issued 77,017 shares at a price
of $27.63 for the offering period of January 1 through June 30, 20035, relating to the ESPP.

The compensation expense recorded related to the ESPP was $1,239 for the year ended December 31, 2006
and the related income tax benefit for disqualified disposition was $52. Prior to the adoption of FAS 123R, the
Company accounted for ESPP in accordance with APB 25 as a non-compensatory plan, and accordirigly did not
record any compensation expense.

The fair value of each award under ESPP was estimated at the beginning of each offering period using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model and the assumptions in the following table. Expected volatilities are based
on implied volatilities from traded options on the Company’s stock and the historical volatility of the Company’s
stock. The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual life of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield
curve in effect at the time of grant.

F-45




Assurant, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—{Continued)
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
(In thousands except number of shares and per share amounts)

For awards issved during the years

ended December 31,
2006 2005
Expected Volatility ......... ... ... i 21.06-21.09% 15.9-16.63%
Risk Free Interest Rates .. ... oo iiiiinnirn e 3.35-4.35% 1.63-2.61%
Dividend Yield . .. ... .. . e 0.72 - 0.88% 0.91 - 1.06%
Expected Life (Years) ........... . . i, 0.5 0.5

Pro-Forma Disclosure

The following pro forma informatien of net income and net income per share amounts were determined as if
the Company had accounted for SARs and the ESPP Plan under the fair value method of FAS 123 for the years
ended December 30, 2005 and 2004. This disclosure is not equivalent to the impact of FAS 123R.

For the For the

Year Ended Year Ended
December 30, 2005 December 30, 2004

Netincome asreported .. ... oot i $479,355 $350,560
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net

income, net of related tax effects . ... ... ... ... . 46,530 —
Deduet: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined

under fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax

7§ (210 (40,690) (180)
Pro forma net iNCOME ... ...ttt i aa $485,195 $350,380
Earnings per share as reported:
BaSIC « ittt e $§ 353 $ 253
Diluted ... .. § 350 $ 253
Pro forma earnings per share:
BaSIC ottt e $ 357 $ 253
DHIUted . . e $ 354 P 253

Non-Stock Based Incentive Plans
Deferred Compensation

The Deferred Compensation Programs consist of three plans: the Assurant Investment Plan (“AIP"), the
American Security Insurance Company (“ASIC”) Plan and the Assurant Deferred Compensation Plan (“ADC™).
The AIP and ASIC Plans provided key employees the ability to exchange a portion of their compensation for
options to purchase certain third-party mutual funds. Both Plans were frozen in December 2004 and no additional
contributions can be made to the Plans. Effective March 1, 2005, the ADC Plan was established as an amendment
and restatement of the AIP and ASIC in order to comply with the Jobs Act of 2004. The ADC Plan provides key
employees the ability to defer a portion of their eligible compensation to be invested in a variety of mutual funds.
Deferrals and withdrawals under the ADC are fully compliant with the Jobs Act definition of eligible
compensation and distribution requirements. The amounts included in other investments and other liabilities
related to the Deferred Compensation Plans were $105,328 and $99,035 at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. : ‘
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18. Stock Repurchase

The following table shows the shares repurchased during the periods indicated:

Total Number of Shares
Purchased as Part of

Period Number of Average Price Publicly Announced -
in 2006 Shares Purchased Paid Per Share Programs
January . 450,200 $44.33 450,200
February . ... ... .. . 416,600 $44 .49 416,600
March ... ... 550,000 $46.38 550,000
APHl e 475,000 $48.86 475,000
May o e 475,000 $49.90 475,000
June ... 1,190,000 $547.67 1,190,000
July 1,040,000 $48.21 1,040,000
AUZUSL L o e e 1,101,000 $50.14 1,101,000
September ... ... ... 940,000 $52.95 940,000 .
October ... .. e 1,030,000 $53.88 1,030,000 ;
November ... .. i i e 430,100 $54.79 430,100 ‘
December .......... it e i 366,316 $55.65 366,316

8,464,216 $49.88 8,464,216

On November 11, 2005 the Company’s Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program under
which the Company could repurchase $400,000 of its outstanding common stock, On November 21, 2006, the
Company reached the $400,000 threshold under this program. Total shares repurchased under this program were
7,987,951 at a cost of $395,740 and 97,668 shares at a cost of $4,260 for the years ended December 31, 2006 and
20035, respectively.

On November 10, 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors approved another stock repurchase program
under which the Company may repurchase up to an additional $600,000 of its outstanding common stock. As of
December 31, 2006, the Company repurchased 476,265 shares of its outstanding common stock at a cost of
$26,445 under this autherization.

The total number of shares repurchased under both programs during 2006 totaled 8,464,216 at a cost of
$422,184. As of December 31, 2006, an additional $573,555 can be used to purchase shares pursuant to the
November 10, 2006 repurchase program.
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19. Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The Company’s components of other comprehensive income (loss) net of tax at December 31 are as
follows:

Foreign Currency Pension

Translation Unrealized Gains Under- Accomulated Other

Adjustment (Losses) on Securities  funding  Comprehensive Income
Balance at December 31,2003 ........ $22.241 $ 331,536 $(35,250) $ 318,527
Activity in2004 ... ... ... ... ... 18,595 3,362 (2.321) 19,636
Balance at December 31,2004 ........ 40,836 334,898 (37,571) 338,163
Activity in2005 ................... (4,574) (141,642) 27,552 (118.664)
Balance at December 31,2005 ..... ... 36,262 193,256 (10,019) 219,499
Activity in2006 . .................. 6,373 (67.627) 1,331 (59,923)
Adoption FAS 158 ................. : — — (71,512) {(71,512)
Balance at December 31,2006 ........ $42.635 $ 125629 $(80,200) $ 88,064

The unrealized (gains) losses on securities is net of reclassification adjustments of $(8.886). $(5.017), and
$21.448,. net of tax, in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, for net realized gains (losses) on sales of securities
included in net income.

20. Statutory Information

The Company’s insurance subsidiaries prepare financial statements on the basis of statutory accounting
practices (“SAP”) prescribed or permitted by the insurance departments of their states of domicile. Prescribed
SAP includes the Accounting Practices and Procedures Manual of the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners (“NAIC™) as well as state laws, regulations and administrative rules.

The principal differences between SAP and GAAP are: 1) policy acquisition costs are expensed as incurred
under SAP, but are deferred and amortized under GAAP; 2) the value of business acquired is not capitalized
under SAP but is under GAAP; 3} amounts collected from holders of universal life-type and annuity products are
recognized as premiums when collected under SAP, but are initially recorded as contract deposits under GAAP,
with cost of insurance recognized as revenue when assessed and other contract charges recognized over the -
periods for which services are provided; 4) the classification and carrying amounts of investments in certain
securities are different under SAP than under GAAP; 5) the criteria for providing asset valuation allowances, and
the methodologtes used to determine the amounts thereof, are different under SAP than under GAAP; 6) the
timing of establishing certain reserves, and the methodologies used to determine the amounts thereof, are
different under SAP than under GAAP; 7) certain assets are not admitted for purpases of determining surplus
under SAP: 8) methodologies used to determine the amounts of deferred taxes and goodwill are different under
SAP than under GAAP; and 9) the criteria for obtaining reinsurance accounting treatment is different under SAP
than under GAAP.
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The combined statutory net income, excluding intercompany dividends and surplus note interest, and capital
and surplus of the Company’s US domiciled statutory insurance subsidiaries follow:

Years Ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Statutory Net Income (Loss)
P&C Companies .. ...... ottt et et $242.848 543571 % 92,927
Life Companies . ........ ... .. ittt 470,080(2) 384,755 390,870
Total Statutory NetIncome . ... .. ... . ..... $712,928 $370,398 $483,797

(1) The $(14,357) P&C Companies statutory net loss in 2005 includes an after-tax charge of approximately
$101,100 relating to American Reliable Insurance Company (“ARIC”) a wholly owned subsidiary that
participated in certain excess of loss reinsurance programs. See Note 26—Commitments and Contingencies

(2) The $ 470,080 Life Companies statutory net income in 2006 includes a gain of approximately $31,700
(after-tax) resulting from the April 2006 sale of the Canadian insurance operations of Union Security
Insurance Company (USIC) to an affiliated entity not subject to SAP. The USIC Canadian operations
contributed statutory net income included above of approximately $3,998, $14,164 and $8,379 for the years
ended 2006, 2005 and 2004 respectively. The Life Companies 2006 statutory net income also includes
approximateiy $40,500 (after-tax} from a settlement awarded to Assurant Solutions in the fourth quarter of
2006 resulting from the successful resolution of a contract dispute with Progeny Marketing Innovations, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Cendant Carporation.

At December 31,
2006 2005
Statutory Capital and Surplus
P&C COMPANIES . oo\ vt e ettt et e e et e et in e $ 933416 $ 675,971(3)
Life Companies ... ... ..o it e i 1,157,394 1,442,178
Total Statutory Capital and Surplus . ......................... $2,090,810  $2.118,149

(3} ARIC’s 2003 Statutory capital and surplus reflects the charge of approximately $101,100 discussed above as
well as approximately $71,700 of gain booked directly to Statutory capital and surplus relating to the
‘reversal of previously non-admitted reinsurance recoverables.

The Company also has non-insurance subsidiaries and foreign insurance subsidiaries that are not subject to
SAP. Some of these non-instrance subsidiaries and foreign insurance subsidiaries were owned by one of the
Company’s US domiciled life statutory insurance subsidiaries until September 30, 2006 and thus are included in
the 2005 capital and surplus amounts for life companies presented above. In 2006, the common stock of these
subsidiaries was distributed as a dividend and return of capital to an upstream holding company that is not
subject to SAP and therefore the value of these subsidiaries is no longer included in Statutory capital and surplus.
The value of the non insurantce and foreign subsidiaries included in Statutory capital and surplus in 2005 was
$141,937. The statutory net income presented above does not include foreign insurance subsidiaries in
accordance with SAP.

F-49




Assurant, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
(In thousands except number of shares and per share amounts)

+ [nsurance enterprises are required by state insurance departments to adhere to minimum risk-based capital
(“RBC”) requirements developed by the NAIC. All of the Company’s insurance subsidiaries exceed minimum
RBC requirements.

The payment of dividends to the Company by any of the Company’s regulated U.S domiciled insurance
subsidiaries in excess of a certain amount (i.e., extraordinary dividends) must be approved by the subsidiary’s
domiciliary state department of insurance. Qcdinary dividends, for which no regulatory approval is generally
required, are limited to amounts determined by a formula, which varies by state. The formula for the majority of
the states in which the Company’s subsidiaries are domiciled is based on the prior year’s statutory net income or
10% of the statutory surplus as of the end of the prior year. Some states limit ordinary dividends to the greater of
these two amounts, others limit them to the lesser of these two amounts and some states exclude prior year
realized capital gains from prior year net income in determining ordinary dividend capacity. Some states have an
additional stipulation that dividends may only be paid out of earned surplus. If insurance regulators determine
that payment of an ordinary dividend or any other payments by the Company’s insurance subsidiaries to the
Company (such as payments under a tax sharing agreement or payments for employee or other services) would
be adverse to policyholders or creditors, the regulators may block such payments that would otherwise be
permitted without prior approval. Based on the dividend restrictions under applicable laws and regulations, the
maximum amount of dividends that the Company's U.S domiciled insurance subsidiaries could pay to the
Company in 2007 without regulatory approval is approximately $476,070. No assurance can be given that there
will not be further regulatory actions restricting the ability of the Company’s insurance subsidiaries to pay
dividends.

21. Retirement and Other Employee Benefits

The Company and its subsidiaries participate in a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering '
substantially all of their employees. Benefits are based on certain years of service and the employee’s
compensation during certain such years of service. The Company’s funding policy is to contribute amounts to the
plan sufficient to meet the minimum funding requirements set forth in the Employee Retirement Income Security
Act of 1974, plus such additional amounts as the Company may determine to be appropriate from time to time up
1o the maximum permitted. Contributions are intended to provide not only for benefits attributed to service to
date, but also for those expected 1o be earned in the future. The Company also has a noncontributory,
nonqualified supplemental program covering certain employees. The qualified and nonqualified plans are
referred to as “Pension Benefits” unless otherwise noted.

In addition, the Company provides certain life and healthcare benefits (“Retirement Health Benefits™) for
retired employees and their dependents. Substantially all employees of the Company may become eligible for
these benefits depending on age and years of service. The Company has the right to modify or terminate these
benefits.

F-50




Assorant, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
(In thousands except number of shares and per share amounts)

Summarized information on the Company’s Pension Benefits and Retirement Health Benefit plans for the
years ended December 31 is as follows:

Pension Benefits Retirement Health Benefits
2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004

Change in projected benefit obligation
Projected benefit obligation at beginning

ofyear ...... ... ... .o 5(487,670) $(444.913) $(395.818) 3(60,698) $(54.215) $(51.029)
Service CoSt .. .ottt (21,705) (20,111 (19,099) (2,791  (2,516) (2,172}
Interestcost ... ... (27,0908)  (25297y (24402 (3087 (3,123 (2937
Amendments . ........... ... .. ... — (850) (2,280) (389) — —
Actuarial (loss) gain ................ (5.,481) (17,666} (27,397 5,165 (1,303) 722
Benefitspaid ...................... 24,691 21,167 19,424 1,253 461 1,201 .
Settlements ............ ... vinan — — 4,659 — — —
Projected benefit obligation at end of

VEAT oot $(517,263) $(487.670) $(444,913) $(60,547) $(60.698) $(54,215)
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of

year ........... O $ 353,154 §$302312 $263966 $ 13,734 $12628 % 6,536
Actual return on plan assets . ......... 49,001 21,504 28,889 1,895 820 704
Employer contributions . ............. 27,350 51,101 34,234 1,060 761 0,601
Benefits paid (including administrative

EXPENSES) . ... (25,268)  (21.763)  (20,118)  (1,253) 476y {(1,213)
Settlements . ............ ... ... — — (4,659) — — —
Fair value of plan assets at end of

YEAL o $404,237 $353,154 $302312 §$15436 $13733 $ 12,628
Funded status at end of year .. ........ $(113,026) $(134,516) $(142,601) $(45,111) $(46,965) $(41,587)
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Incremental Effect of Applying FASB Statement No. 158 on Individual Line Items in the
Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2006
Before After

Application of Application of

Statement 158 Adjustments  Statement 158

OthEr B88BIS . o o ittt ettt e et e e e $ 190347 $ (3.408) $ 186,939
Total assels . ... $25.168,556 % (3,408) $25,165,148
Accounts payable and other labilities .. ..................... ... $ 1,176,303 3106600 § 1,282,903
Deferred inCOmMe 1aXeS5, NEL . ..ottt et 3 95,653 $(38.496) $ 57,157
Total liabilities . ... ... ... . . e, $21.264,447 § 68,104  $21,332,551
Accumulated other comprehensive income .. .................... $ 159576 $(71.,512) $  88.064
Total stockholders™ equity . ..., $ 3.904,109 3$(71.512) $ 3,832,597

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, accumulated benefit obligations exceeded plan
assets as follows:

Pension Benefits

2006 2005 2004
Projected benefit obligation ........ ... ... .. .. i $517,263 $487.670 $444913
Accumulated benefit obligation . ... ... ... ... $449,209 3$421,562 $380,828
Fairvalug of planassets . ... ... .. . . ... ... . Ll $404.237 $353,154 $302312
Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets consist of:
Retirement Health
Pension Benefits Benefits
W6 W5 204 W06 2005 2004
NOn-current asset . .......... ... ... .iiiiiiiiiia.s 3 — N/A NA $§ — NA NA
Current liabilities .. ... ... .o oo i 5 (10,65L)N/A N/A  §  (862)N/A N/A
Non-current liabilities . ............. ... ... .o i S(10237T5)NFA N/A S(H4249)N/A N/A

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income consist of:

Pension Benefits Retirement Health Benefits

e s 204 2066 s o

Net{Joss) gain . ... vn it $(107,260) N/A N/A $3.553 N/A N/A
Prior Service COSt .. vt i i (10,025) NJA N/A (9,573) NFJA N/A

5(117.285) N/A N/A $(6,020) N/JA  N/A
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Components of net periodic benefit cost and other amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive
income for the years ended December 31 were as follows:

Pension Benefits Retirement Health Benefits
2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
Net Periodic Benefit Cost
SErVICE COSL . ov vttt s $ 21705 520,111 $19.099 %2791 $2516 $2,172
Interest cost . ........c i 27,098 25,297 24,402 3.087 3825 2937
Expected return on plan assels ..., ., ... oey i nn (28.541) (26,262} (22,331) (1.133) (1,066) (539}
Amortization of prior servicecost .................... 3,714 3,752 3775 1,331 1.307 1,307
Amortizationofnetloss ....... ... ... .. .. ... 11,600 11,036 8,881 — —_ —
Settlement loss ... ... .. o it 609 — 1,089
Net periodic benefitcost ................... § 36,185 $33934 334915 56076 § 5882 85877
Other Changes in Plan Assets and Benefit
Obligations Recognized in Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income
Net(lossygain ... ... .o . i $(107,260) N/A N/A  $ 3,553 N/A N/A
Prior service {cost)credit .. ... ... . ... L. {10,025) N/A N/IA  (9.573) NIA N/A
Total recognized in accumulated other comprehensive .
INCOME Lttt i $(117.285) N/A N/A - 56,0200 N/A N/A
Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost and
accumulated other comprehensive income ... ..., 3 (31.100) N/A N/A § 56 N/A N/A

|

The estimated net loss and prior service cost for the defined benefit pension plans that will be amortized
from accumuliated other comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year are $9,467
and $3,713, respectively. The estimated prior service cost for the other defined benefit postretirement plans that
will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic cost over the next fiscal year
is $1.342,

Determination of the projected benefit obligation was based on the following assumptions for the year ended
December 31:

Pension Benefits Retirement Health Benefits
2006 005 004 06 205 204
Discountrate ....... ... ottt 589% 566% S580% 592% 566% 580%

Determination of the net periedic berefit cost was based on the following assumptions for the year ended
December 31:

Pension Benefits Retirement Health Benefits

W06 205 004 006 205 2004
Discountrate ........ ... o it 5.66% 5.80% 6.20% 5.66% 580% 6.20%
Expected long-term rewurn on planassets ............... 825% 8.25% 825% B825% 825% 825%

The selection of our discount rate assumption reflects the rate at which the pension and postretirement plan
obligations could be effectively settled at December 31, 2006 and 2003, the methodology for selecting the
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discount rate was to match each plan’s cash flows to that of a yield curve that provides the equivalent yields on
zero-coupon corporale bonds for each maturity. The discount rate, for each plan, is the single rate that produces

the same present value of cash flows,

The discount rate as of December 31, 2004 was selected by management based on benchmark information,

primarily the yield on the Moody's AA long-term corporate bond index.

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption, the Company considered the current
level of expected returns on risk free investments (primarily, government bonds), the historical level of the risk
premium associated with the other asset classes in which the portfolio is invested and the expectations for future
returns of each asset class. The expected return for each asset class was then weighted based on the targeted asset
atlocation to develop the expected long-term rate of return on asset assumptions for the portfolio. This resulted in

the selection of the 8.25% assumption for the fiscal year 2006, 2005 and 2004,

Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year:
Pre-65 Non-reimbursement Plan .. ... ... ... . ... . ... . . i
Post-65 Non-reimbursement Plan ... .. ... .. . ... ... ..
Pre-65 Reimbursement Plan . ... ... ... . e
Post-65 Reimbursement Plan . .. ... . r i e
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline (“the ultimate trend rate™) .. ..
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate .. .. ... . .

Retirement Health Bencfits

2006 205 2004

10,0% 10.0% 11.0%
12.0% 14.0% 15.0%
10.0% 7.0% 8.0%
120% 710% 8.0%
50 5.0% 5.0%
2011 2013 2013

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care
plans. A cne-percentage point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects:

Retirement Health Benefits

2005 2004

2006
One percentage point increase in health care cost trend rate
Effect on total of service and interest cost components . ........... $ 65
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation ..................... 31151
One percentage point decrease in health care cost trend rate
Effect on total of service and interest cost components ............ $ (66)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation .................. ... $(1,143)
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The Company’s qualified pension plans and other post retirement benefit plans weighted-average asset
allocation at December 31, by asset category, are as follows:

Pension Benefits Retirement Health Benefits

2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004

Assets Category

Equity securities . ...... ... . ... .. L. 76.9% 71.0% 77.0% T169% 77.0% 77.0%
Debtsecurities .. ... 0o e 222% 21.5% 200% 222% 215% 200%
Other .. ... 09% 1.5% 30% 09% 15% 3.0%

Total ......... .. 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 1000% 100.0%

The goals of the asset strategy are to determine if the growth in the value of the fund over the long-term,
both in real and nominal terms, manage (control) risk exposure. Risk is managed by investing in a broad range of
asset classes, and within those asset classes, a broad range of individual securities.

The Investment Committee that oversees the investment of the plan assets conducted a review of the
Investment Strategies and Policies of the Plan. This included a review of the strategic asset allocation, including
the relationship of the Plan liabilities and portfolio structure. As a result of this review, the Investment
Committee has adopted a target asset allocation and modified the ranges:

Low Target High

Debt securities . ...................... 20 25% 30%
Equity securities ..................... 65% T75%  85%

The equity securities category includes both domestic and foreign equity securities. The target asset equity
security allocation of U.S. and foreign securities is 65% and 10%, respectively.

The Company expects to contribute $40.000 to its qualified pension plan in 2007.

The following pension benefits, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be

paid:
Retirement

Pension Health

Benelits benefits
2007 e s $ 30,277 $ 1,262
2008 L e e 25,177 1,449
2000 e e e 25,470 1677
2000 e 25,449 1,935
.. 26,984 2,236
Year 2012-2016 .. oo 168,764 16,797
Total ... e $302,121 $25,356
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The Company and its subsidiaries have a defined contribution plan covering substantially all employees
which provides benefits payable to participants on retirement or disability and to beneficiaries of participants in
the event of the participant’s death. The amounts expensed by the Company related to this plan were $29,260,
$25,381, and $25,318 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

22. Segment Information

On April 1, 2006, the Company separated Assurant Solutions business segiment into two business segments:
Assurant Solutions and Assurant Specialty Property. In addition, concurrent with the creation of the new
Assurant Solutions and Assurant Specialty Property segments, the Company realigned the preneed segment
under the new Assurant Selutions segment. The segment income statement for the years ended December 31,
2005 and 2004 and the segments assets for the year ended December 31, 2005 have been recast to reflect the new
segment reporting structure.

In connection with the segment changes described above, the Company transferred the run-off Asbestos
business previously in the Assurant Solutions segment to the Corporate & Other segment. The transfer of this
business is consistent with the Company’s policy of managing run-off business in the Corporate & Other
segment.

The Company has five reportable segments, which are defined based on the nature of the products and
services offered: Assurant Solutions, Assurant Specialty Property, Assurant Health, Assurant Employee Benefits,
and Corporate & Other. Assurant Solutions provides credit insurance, including life, disability and
unemployment, debt protection administration services, warranties and extended service contracts, life insurance
policies and annuity products that provide benefits to fund pre-arranged funerals. Assurant Specialty Property
provides creditor-placed homeowners insurance and manufactured housing homeowners insurance. Assurant
Health provides individual, short-term and small group health insurance. Assurant Employee Benefits provides
employee and employer paid dental, disability, and life insurance products and related services. Corporate &
Other includes activities of the holding company, financing and interest expenses, net realized gains {losses) en
investments, interest income earned from short-term investments held and additional costs associated with excess
of loss reinsurance programs reinsurad and ceded to certain subsidiaries in the London market between 1995 and
1997. Corporate & Other also includes the amortization of deferred gains associated with the sales of FFG and
LTC through reinsurance agreements.

The Company evaluates performance of the operating business segments based on segment income after-tax
excluding realized gains (losses) on investments. The Company determines reportable segments in a manner
consistent with the way the Company organizes for purposes of making operating decisions and assessing
performance. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in the summary
of significant accounting policies. (See Note 2)

On October 19, 2006 the Company announced that it had completed the sale of its equity interest in Private
Healthcare Systems, Inc. (“PHCS”) to New York based MultiPlan, Inc. (“MultiPlan™). PHCS was accounted for
under the equity method. MultiPlan, a heatthcare financial risk manager, acquired PHCS from the Company and
the other majority shareholders in PHCS. As part of the agreement, Assurant’s health care customers will have
long-term access to the PHCS and MultiPlan networks. The Company recorded a pre-tax net realized gain of
$98,342 in the Corporate and other segment related to the sale of PHCS.

F-56




Assurant, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—{Continued)
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
(In thousands except number of shares and per share amounts)

The following tables summarize selected financial information by segment for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 20035 and 2604

Year Ended December 31, 2006

Specialty Employee Corporate &
Solutions Property Health Benefits Other Consolidated
Revenues
Net eamed premiums and
other considerations . ... $ 2,371,605 $1,208,311 $2,083,957 $1,179,902 § — % 6,843,775
Net investment income . .. 392,510 74,501 75,215 158,525 35,935 736,686
Net realized gains on
investments .......... — — — — 111,865 111,865
Amortization of deferred
gain on disposal of
businesses ........... — — — — 37,300 37,300
Fees and other income . . .. 221,751 49424 41,560 27,541 682 340,958
Total revenues ...... 2,985866 1,332,236 2,200,732 1,365,968 185,782 8,070,584
Benefits, losses and
exXpenses
Policyholder benefits . . . . . 998,770 408,721 1,300,817 830,634 5 3,538,947

Amortization of deferred

acquisition costs and

value of business

acquired ............. 902,403 232,780 24,756 25,174 — 1,185,113
Underwriting, general and

administrative

exXpenses ............ 787,373 320,672 616,572 381,846 83,076 2,189,539
Interest expense .. ....... — — — — 61,243 61,243 ~
Total benefits, losses . ‘
and expenses ..... 2,688,546 962,173 1942145 1,237,654 144,324 6,974,842
Segment income before
incometax ............ 297,320 370,063 258,587 128,314 41,458 1,095,742
Income taxes ........... 98,427 128,942 90,668 44711 17,123 379,871
Segment income after
tax ... § 198,893 § 241,121 $ 167919 $ 83603 $ 24335 § 715871

Cumulative effect of
change in accounting
principle .. ........... $ 1,547

Netincome .............. $ 717418

Segment Assets: -
Segments assets, excluding

goodwill ............. $10,637,152 $2,189.673 $1,278,108 $2,806,337 $7,463,350 $24,374,629
Goodwill .............. 790,519

Total assets ........ $25,165,148
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Year Ended December 31, 2005

Specialty Employee Corporate &
Solutions Property Health Benefits Other Consolidated
Revenues .
Net earned premiums and
other considerations . . . $ 2,220,145 $ 858848 $2,163.965 $1,277,838 § — § 6,520,796
Net investment income . . 371,565 61,953 69,056 156,889 27,794 687,257
Net realized gains on
investments ......... — — — — 8,235 8,235
Amortization of deferred
gain on disposal of
businesses .......... — — — — 42,508 42,508
Fees and other income . . . 132,730 38,159 40,344 26,214 1,432 238,879
Total revenues . .. .. 2,724,440 958,960 2,273.365 1,460,941 79,969 7.497.675
Benefits, losses and
expenses
Policyholder benefits . . . . 1,046,900 317,507 1,344,624 . 936,835 61,943 3,707,809
Amortization of deferred
acquisition costs and
value of business
acquired ............ 679,368 195,963 30,094 21,183 — 926,608
Underwriting, general and
administrative
EXPENSES ... ..., 798,137 227,036 627,805 397,359 96,035 2,146,392
Interest expense ........ — — — — 61,258 61,258
Total benefits, losses
and expenses .. .. 2,524,405 740,506 2,002,523 1,355,377 219,256 6,842,067
Segment income (loss) '
before income tax .. ... 200,035 218,454 270,842 105,564 {139,287) 655,608
Income taxes . ......... 66,888 75,227 92,787 37,198 (95,847) 176,253
Segment income (loss) ' '
aftertax ............. $ 133,147 § 143,227 $ 178055 % 68366 § (43440) $ 479355
Netincome ............. $ 479335
Segment Assets:
Segments assets,
excluding goodwill ... $10457,115 $2,262902 $1452,878 $2,898.471 $7.489,223 $24,560,589
Goodwill ............. 804,864
Total assets . ...... $25,365,453
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Year Ended December 31, 2004

Specialty Employee Corporate &
Solutions Property Health Benefiis Other Cansolidated
Revenues
Net earned premiums and
other considerations . ..... $2,205,988 8768,773 $2.231,298 $1276812 $ —  $648287i
Net investment income .. . . .. 318,705 72,546 67,902 149,718 25,878 634,749
Net realized gains on
investments . ............ — — — — 24,308 24,308
Amortization of deferred gain
on disposal of businesses .. — — — — 57.632 57,632
L.oss on disposal of
businesses .............. (9,232) (9,232)
Fees and other income . ..... 113,515 37,013 38.708 29,306 1,844 220,386
Total revenues .. ......... 2,638,208 878,332 2337908 1,455836 100430  7.410,714
Benefits, losses and expenses
Policyholder benefits ... ... 1,094,884 363,926 1,422,783 950,235 7.941 3,839,769
Amortization of deferred
acquisition costs and value
of business acquired . ... .. 608,277 158877 37,602 15,700 — 820,456
Underwriting, general and
administrative expenses . . . 805,285 242,450 637,305 394,037 76,903 2,155,980
Interest expense ........... 56,418 56,418
Distributions on mandatorily
redeemable preferred
SECUrities .. ............. — — —_ — 2,163 2,163
Total benefits, losses and
EXPENSES .. vrn s 2508446 765,253 2,097.690  1,359972 143,425 6,874,786
Segment income (loss) before
incometax ............... 129,762 113,079 240,218 95,864 (42,993) 535,928
Income taxes .............. 39,044 38,138 81,931 33,654 (7,399 185,368
Segment income (loss) after
taxX .. $ 90718 % 74941 % 158287 $§ 62210 $(35596) $ 350,560

Netincome . ...._........... $ 350,560
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The Company operates primarily in the United States and Canada. The following table summarizes selected
financial information by geographic location for the years ended or as of December 31:

Long-lived
Location Revenues Assets
2006
United SWIES . .ottt e $7,482,045  $267.870
Foreign ... ..o i 588,539 7,331
Total .o e e $8,070,584  §275,201
2005
United SEALES ..t r e e e e e e $7.057,187  $260,792
FOTEIEN . o e e 440,488 6,928
TOlA] © et e e e s $7.497,675  $267,720
2004
United STates ... ... e $7.053.134  $268,229
30 C 4 S O 357,580 8,859
Total L. $7,410,714  $277,088

Revenue is based in the country where the product was sold and long-lived assets are based on the physical
location of those assets. The Company has no reportable major customers.
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23. Earnings per common share

The following table presents the weighted average common shares used in calculating basic earnings per
common share and those used in calculating diluted earnings per common share for each income category

presented below.

Numerator
Net income before cumulative effect of change in accounting

PRNCIPlE . ..

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

(Note 17} oo e e e

NeLIMCOME . .. it it e

Denominator
Weighted average shares outstanding used in basic per share

calculations ......... ..

Incremental common shares from assumed:

SARS L e e
Executive 401K plan ... ... . ... . ... ...

Restricted stock . ... .o i i
ESPP ... e

Weighted average shares used in diluted per share

calculations .. ... e

Earnings Per Share—Basic
Net income before cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle ... ...
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . ... ... ...

N I OINIE L L. .t it et i et e e e

Earnings Per Share—Diluted
Net income before cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle . .. ... L.
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ... .......

= T3 a 1 o = O

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
715,871 479,355 150,560
1,547 _ —_
717,418 479,355 350,560
126,846,990 135773551  138.358.767
1.853972 1075458 _
— — 8,055
31,572 22300 28,882
80,279 73.992 71,860
128.812,813 136945310  138.467.564
565 % 353§ 253
00l $ S -
566 $ 153§ 253
556§ 350§ 9,53
001 $ B -
557 § 150§ 253

Restricted shares totaling 100,686, 92,937 and zero for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, were outstanding but were anti-dilutive and thus not included in the computation of diluted EPS
under the treasury stock method. SARs totaling zero and 44,247 for the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively, were also outstanding but were anti-dilutive and thus not included in the computation of

diluted EPS under the treasury method.
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24. Quarterly results of Operations

The Company’s quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 are
summarized in the tables below:

Three Month Periods Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
2006
TOtal TEVENUES o\ vt e et iee e ciane e eaaeaee s $1,929,782 $1,949,090 $1,984,079 $2,207,633
Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle . .......... ... ... 242,356 232,163 231,041 390,182
Net income before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle . ....... ... i iaa iy 160,925 151,136 151,303 252,507
NELINCOME & vt e ot ieeeeim e ian e 162,472 151,136 151,303 252,507
Basic per share data:
Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle ........ ... ... $ 186 §$ 1.81 % 1.84 3 3.17
Net income before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle ... ... ool $ 1.24 % 1.18 § 120 § 2.05
NELINCOME ..ot v et ittt cae v $ 125 $ 1.18  § 120 §$ 2.05
Diluted per share data:
Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle . ............... ) 1.84 % 1.78 % 1.81 § 311
Net income before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle . ... .ol $ 122 % 1.16 § 1.18 % 2.1
NELINCOME oot ee e e anes 3 123 % 1.16  $ .18 § 2.M
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
2005
TotAl FEVEIUES . ot v et et e e i aane s $1,862,354 $1,874,303 $1,879.441 51,881,577
Income before INCOME tAXES . . .. oo oot it an 176,723 188,099 141,374 149,412
NELiNCOME . .ottt et et e eee e an e an 114,398 127,624 100,287 137,046
Basic per share data:
Income before iNCome taxes . .. o.oooveevenunar.- $ 126 % 1.37 § 1.05 % .14
NetINCOME . . o\ e e ie e eeea e $ 082 3% 093 % 0.74 § 1.05
Diluted per share data:
Income before income taxes .. ...........oouvn... $ 126 § 1.35 § 1.04 % 1.12
NELIICOME v v vt e et et ee e eae e e $ 082 § 092 $ 074 % 1.03

As disclosed in the Company’s 2004 10-K, on February 5. 2005 the Assurant Solutions segment was
successful in a contract dispute with Progeny Marketing Innovations, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cendant
Corporation. A settlement was awarded to Assurant Solutions in the fourth quarter of 2006 in the amount of
$62,278.

During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company also completed the sale of its equity interest in PHCS. As a
result, the Company recorded a pre-tax investment gain of $98,342 in its fourth quarter results. See Note 22—

Segment Information:
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During the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company adjusted tax labilities by $32,629 for previously provided
tax accruals which were no longer considered necessary due to the resolution of IRS audits. See Note 8—Income
Taxes.

25, Subsequent Events

On February 15, 2007, the Company announced that the Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend of
$0.10 per common share. The dividend will be payable on March 12, 2007 to the Company’s stockholders as of
February 26, 2007.

In February 2007, the Company amended its senior revolver credit facility to expand the definition of the
term Equity. The term Equity, as it relates to the financial covenant ratios, now excludes all of accumulated other
comprehensive income which is consistent with how the Company calculates other equity based ratios. There
were no changes to any other terms and conditions of the credit facility agreement. See Note 14 — Debt.

26. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company and its subsidiaries lease office space and equipment under operating lease arrangements.
Certain facility leases contain escalation clauses based on increases in the lessors’ operating expenses. At
December 31, 2006, the aggregate future minimum lease payment under operating lease agreements that have
initial or non-cancelable terms in excess of one year are:

. $ 35,129
2008 e e $ 29,042
200 e e e e e $ 23753
2000 e $ 17,430
200l e $ 10,705
Thereafter ... . e $ 30978
Total minimum future lease payments .. .. .. ... i, $147,037

Rent expense was $40,112, $34,921 and $37,712 for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

In the normal course of business, letters of credit are issued primarily to Support reinsurance arrangements.
These letters of credit are supported by commitments with financial institutions. The Company had $33,219 and
$28,216 of letters of credit outstanding as of December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively.

The Company is regularly involved in litigation in the ordinary course of business, both as a defendant and
as a plaintiff, The Company may from time to time be subject to a variety of legal and regulatory actions relating
to the Company’s current and past business operations. While the Company cannot predict the outcome of any
pending or future litigation, examination or investigation and although no assurances can be given, the Company
does not believe that any pending matter will have a material adverse effect individually or in the aggregate, on
the Company’s financial condition or results of operations.

One of the Company’s subsidiaries, American Reliable Insurance Company (“ARIC"), participated in
certain excess of loss reinsurance programs in the London market and, as a result, reinsured certain personal
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accident, ransom and kidnap insurance risks from 1995 to 1997. ARIC and a foreign affiliate ceded a portion of
these risks to retrocessionaires. ARIC ceased reinsuring such business in 1997. However, certain risks continued
beyond 1997 due to the nature of the reinsurance contracts written. ARIC and some of the other reinsurers
involved in the programs are seeking to avoid certain treaties on various grounds, including material
misrepresentation and non-disclosure by the ceding companies and intermediaries involved in the programs.
Similarly, some of the retrocessionaires are seeking avoidance of certain treaties with ARIC and the other
reinsurers and some reinsureds are seeking collection of disputed balances under some of the treaties. The
disputes generally involve multiple layers of reinsurance, and allegations that the reinsurance programs involved
interrelated claims “spirals” devised to disproportionately pass claims losses to higher-level reinsurance layers.
Many of the companies involved in these programs, including ARIC, are currently involved in negoliations,
arbitrations and/or litigation between multiple layers of retrocessionaires, reinsurers, ceding companies and
intermediaries, including brokers, in an effort to resolve these disputes.

Many of the disputes involving ARIC and an affiliate, Bankers Insurance Company Limited (*BICL”),
relating to the 1995 and 1997 program years, were resolved by settlement or arbitration in 2003. As a result of
the settlements and an arbitration (in which ARIC did not prevail) additional information became available in
2005, and based on management’s best estimate, the Company increased its reserves and recorded a total pre-tax
charge of $61,943 for the year ended December 31, 2005. Negotiations, arbitrations and litigation are still
ongoing or will be scheduled for the remaining disputes. On February 28, 2006 there was a settlement relating to
the 1996 program. Loss accruals previously established relating to the 1996 program were adequate. The
Company believes, based on information currently available, that the amounts accrued for currently outstanding
disputes are adequate. However, the inherent uncertainty of arbitrations and lawsuits, including the uncertainty of
estimating whether any settlements the Company may enter into in the future would be on favorable terms,
makes it difficult to predict the outcomes with certainty.

As part of ongoing, indusiry-wide investigations, the Company has received various subpoenas and requests
from the Securities and Exchange Commission and the United States Attorney for the Southern District of New
York in connection with various investigations into certain loss mitigation products and the use of finite risk
insurance. The Company is cooperating fully with these investigations and is complying with these requests.

The Company conducied an evaluation of the transactions that could potentially falt within the scope of the
subpoenas, as defined by the authorities, and has provided information as requested. Based on the Company’s
investigation to date, the Company has concluded that there was a verbal side agreement with respect to one of
our reinsurers under our catastrophic reinsurance program. While management believes that the difference
resulting from the appropriate alternative accounting treatment would be immaterial to our financial position or
results of aperations, regulators may reach a different conclusion. In 2004 and 2003, premiums ceded to this
reinsurer were $2,600 and $1,500, respectively, and losses ceded were $10,000 and zero, respectively. This
contract expired in December 2004 and was not renewed.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, with the assistance of independent and Company counsel as
it deemed appropriate, also completed its own investigation of the matters raised by the subpoenas, continues to
respond to inquiries from the regulatory agencies and otherwise continues to fully cooperate with the regulatory
agencies. The Audit Committee has not found any wrongdoing on the part of any of the officers of the Company.
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Fixed Maturities
Bonds:

United States Government and government agencies and
authorities . ........ ... ... .. e

States, municipalities and political subdivisions . .........

Foreign governments ............ .. .. i

Public utilities . ...

Allothercorporatebonds .. ..........................

Mortgage backed securities .................. ... .....

Total fixed maturities . ......... ... ... .. .......

Equity securities
Common stocks:
Banks, trusts and insurance companies . ................
Industrial, miscellaneous and allother .. ................
Non-redeemable preferred stocks:
Non sinking fund preferred stocks .....................

Total equity securities ..........................

Commercial mortgage loans on real estate, at amortized cost . . . .
Policyloans . ........ .. ... ... . e
Short-term investments ... .............. .. inirrernenans
Collateral held under securities lending .. ...................
Otherinvestments . ... ... ... it
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Amount at which
shown in balance

Amortized Cost Fair Value sheet
(in thousands)

$ 3247745 % 327463 % 327463
221,078 236,429 236,429
631,740 652,662 652,662
1,074,962 1,104,167 1,104,167
5,467,558 5,590,731 5,590,731
1,213,934 1,206,597 1,206,597
$ 8,534,017 $ 9,118,049 § 9,118,049
$ 186 % 156 $ 156
505 880 880
734,875 740,603 740,603
$ 735566 % 741,639 F 741,639
$ 1,266,158 §$ 1,302,448 § 1,266,158
58,733 58,733 58,733
314,114 314,114 314,114
365,958 365,958 365,958
564,494 564,494 564,494
$12,239,040 $12,465,435 $12,429,145
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December 31,
2006 2005
mxcepl number of shares)
Assels
Investments:
Equity investment in subsidiaries ........ .. ... ... oLl $ 4,044,635 $3,946,863
Fixed maturities available for sale (amortized cost—%126,842 in 2006
and $100,492 0 2005) . .. oot i e e 126,906 100,251
Short-term INVESUMENNS .. .. ... i vt e i r e ir e in e naneannenas 8,211 12,067
Other INVESTMENTS . . ...ttt s et a et a i annenns 123,521 M
Total investmenis ........... .. ...ttt 433,273 4,175,962
Cash and cash equivalents .. .......... ... . i i, 493,744 361,488
Receivable from subsidiaries . ..... ... o0 i i e 19,574 28,991
Tax receivable .. ... e e 11,801 37,733
Accrued InVestment INCOME . .. .. ..ttt ittt ee e ae e 1,523 130
Property and equipment, at cost less accumulated depreciation .. ......... 155,144 158,622
Deferred income taxes, ML . ... .. .ottt ae e 116,615 56,882
Goodwill ... .. . e 43,832 59,772
OEhET AS8ETS .o vt r ittt et e e e e e e e 37,560 64,637
Total ASSELS & ot ot e e e e e e $ 5,183,166 $4,944,217
Liabilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities ........... ... ... . ... . ... $ 356,635 $ 248,808
Debt L e e e 971,774 971,690
Mandatorily redeemable preferred stock .......... ... .. . oLl 22,160 24,160
Total Habilities . .. ..ottt e e e e 1,350,569 1,244,658

Stockholders’ equity

Common stock, par value $.01 per share, 800,000,000 shares authorized,
143,080,961 and £42,563,829 shares issued, 122,618,317 and
130,591,834 shares outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005,

TESPECHVELY ..o e $ 1,430 3 1426
Additional paid-incapital ... .. .. L 2,894,892 2,880,329
Retained earnings .. ... ... .. .. i 1,676,171 1,006,910
Unamortized restricted stock compensation; 127,601 shares at

December 31, 2005 .. ... ... e — (2,829)
Accumulated other comprehensive income .. ... ... ... 88,0604 219,499
Treasury stock, at cost; 20,308,610 and 11,844,394 shares at December 31,

2006 and 2005, respectively . ... ... o e (827,960) (405,776)
Total stockholders’ equity . ....... .. i 3,832,597 3,699,559

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . ...... ... .......... $ 5,183.166 $4.944,217

Effective December 31, 2006, Core Inc., an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Assurant, Inc. and
subsidiaries, was merged into the operations of Assurant, Inc. (“Parent Company”). Accordingly, all prior period
amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2006 presentation. The financial information of the Parent
Company should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto.
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Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
{in thousands)

Revenues
Net inVeStmMENt INCOTIE . .\ o v v vt ettt e e e e eieie e eeneas $ 19643 $ 14115 § 7,106
Net realized gains (losses} oninvestments . .......... ... oo ... 98,151 5,763 (3411}
Loss ondisposal of business . ....... ... ... . 0o — — (9,232)
Fees and other iINCOMIE . . . o . oottt et e e et e i e 60,760 61,598 63,482
Equity in undistributed and distributed net income of subsidiaries ........ 686,928 520,346 426,617
Total revVenUes . ... .. e 865,482 001,822 484,562
Expenses
General and administrative eXpenses . ............ ... i, 121,226 138,240 118,521
INEreSt BXPENSE . . .. ..ottt it i e 61,243 61,258 56,418
Distributions on mandatorily redeemable preferred securities ............ — — 2,163
Total eXPeNSES . .. oot 182,469 199,498 177,102
Encome before income taxes and cumulative effect of change in accounting
PrinCIple . . L e e e 683,013 402,324 307,460
Income tax benefit .. .. .. .. . e 32,858 77,031 43,100
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ....... 715,871 479,355 350,560
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . ............... ... 1,547 — —
Nt INCOME . . .ttt it i ettt m e e $ 717,418 $479.355 $350,560

Effective December 31, 2006, Core Inc., an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Assurant, Inc. and
subsidiaries, was merged into the operations of Assurant, Inc. (“Parent Company”). Accordingly, all prior period
amounts have been reclassified to conform 1o the 2006 presentation. The financial information of the Parent '
Company should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto.
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Assurant, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Schedule II—Condensed Cash Flows (Parent Only)

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(in thousands)

Operating Activities

NeUINCOME . . ..o e e $ 717418 $ 479,355 § 350,560
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity in undistributed net loss (income) on consolidated subsidiaries ....... (68,982) 8,904 (65,387)
Change inreceivables .. ... ... . . ... . . e 8,024 (25,075 (24,006)
Change in INCOME [AXES L . vt vttt vt ettt et 3,162 {16518) 58,161
Change in accounts payable and other liabilities . . ........... ... ... ... ... 4,041 (14,825) 13,221
Change in trading portfolio . ... ... ..o o e 236 (8,138) (40,961)
Depreciation and amortization ... ... ... i e 30,114 26,554 25,300
Net realized (gains) losses on investments ................... ... vn.. (98,151)  (5,763) 3414
Excess tax benefit from share-base payment arrangements ................ (2,561) — —
Stock base compensation eXpPense .. . ... ... 17,569 40,089 945
Olher (9.017) 25386 (4,281)
Net cash provided by operating activities .. ........ . ... ... ... .. ... .. .... 601,853 509,969 316,966
Investing Activities
Sales of:
Fixed maturities available forsale . ........ ... ... ... ... ... ... ... . ... 7422 43,213 —
Property and equipment . ....... ... e 23,173 12,238 12,467
Equity interest ... ... .. 146,368 — —
Maturities, prepayments, and scheduled redemption of:
Fixed maturities avatlable forsale ......... ... .. ... ... ... ... ... ... 37,567 32,713 2,013
Purchase of:
Fixed maturities available forsale .. .. ... ... .. .. ... .. .. .. ... . ....... (71,5843 (100,000) (78,577)
Property and eqUipment . .. .. .. ... i e (49.440) (42,288) (46,450)
Capital contributed to subsidiaries . .......... ... ... ... ... .. (76,143)  (29,236) 29)
Purchase of subsidiariest!? ... .. ... (11,000) — (16,000)
Change in short term iNVestments . . ...... . ... ittt 3,856 (5,556) (5,495)
Change in other invested aSsels .. ... ...t e (6,976) (153) 301
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities .................coiivinn.. 3,243 (89,069 (131.776)
Financing Activities
Repayment of mandatorily redeemable preferred securities .. .................. -— — (196,224)
Redemption of mandatorily redeemable preferredstock ....................... (2.000) — —
[ssuance of debt . . ... . e — — 971,537
Repayment of debt ... ... . — — (1,750,000}
[ssuance of common Stock ... ... . (2,734) 3,771 725,491
Excess tax benefits from stock-based payment arrangements . .................. 2,561 — —
Purchase of treasury stock .. ... ... . (422,451) (338,874) (63,628)
Dividends paid . . ... ... (48,157) (42,050 (29.676)
Commercial paperissued ... ... ... ... .. . i 59,941 134,821 99,948
Commercial paperrepaid . ... ... ... .. (60,000) (135,000  (100,000)
L 11T — — —
Net cash (used in) financing activities . ... ... ... . i v e, (472,840) (377,332) (342,552)
Change incash and cashequivalents . . ........ ... ... . ... . ... . iiueo.. 132,256 43,568 (157,362)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period . .................... ... .. 361,488 317,920 475,282
Cash and cash equivalents atendof period . . ............................... $ 493,744 §$ 361,488 § 317,920

(3 This relates to the acquisition of SAFECO Financial Institution Solutions, Inc., acquired on May 1, 2006,

Effective December 31, 2006, Core Inc., an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Assurant, Inc. and subsidiaries,
was merged into the operations of Assurant, Inc. (*Parent Company™). Accordingly, all prior period amounts have been
reclassified to conform to the 2006 presentation. The financial information of the Parent Company should be read in
conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto.
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Assurant, Inc, and Subsidiaries
for the years ended December 31, 2006

Schedule IV—Reinsurance

Assumed from Percentage of
Ceded to other other amount
Gross amount Companies Companies Net amount assumed to net
(in thousands} :
Life Insurance in Force ......... $136,511,963 $37,861,720  $994,736  $99.644,979 1.0%
Premiums:
Life insurance .............. 877,535 443,055 42,476 476,956 8.9%
Accident and health
insurance ................ 4,224,731 711,240 212,060 3,725,551 5.7%
Property and liability
INSUFANCE .. .. ... 0vrunn. 3,258,003 846,585 229,760 2,641,268 8.7%
Total premiums . ............ $ 8360,359 $ 2,000,880 $484,296 $ 6,843,775 7.1%
Benefits:
Life insurance .............. 971,710 768,285 16,986 220411 71.7%
Accident and health
INSUrANCE . ... .'vinnn.ns. 2,609,700 411,757 197,788 2,395,731 8.3%
Property and liability
insurance ................ 1,130,013 289,888 82,680 922,805 9.0%
Total benefits .............. $ 4711423 § 1469930 $297454 $ 3,538,947 8.4%
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Assurant, Inc. and Subsidiaries
for the year ended December 31, 2005

Schedule IV—Reinsurance

Assumed from
Ceded to nther other

Percentage of
amount

Gross amount Companies Companies Net amount assumed (o net
{in thousands)
Life Insurance in Force ........ $155,936,027 $46,017,284 $1,267,402 $111,186,145 1.1%
Premiums:
Life insurance ............. $ 1418297 $§ 547653 % 96,584 § 967,228 10.0%
Accident and health
insurance ............... 4,191,619 738,933 175,067 3,627,753 4.8%
Property and liability
Insurance ............... 2,684,118 854,790 96,487 1,925,815 5.0%
Total premioms . ........... % 8,294,034 §$ 2,141,376 $ 368.138 $ 6,520,796 5.6%
Benefits:
Life insurance ............. 1,628,281 924,522 47,282 751,041 6.3%
Accident and health
insurance . .............. 2,323,819 311,910 164,861 2,176,770 7.6%
Property and liability
Insurance . .............. 2,239,587 1,499,605 40,016 779,998 5.1%
Total benefits ............. $ 6,191,687 § 2,736,037 $ 252,159 § 3,707.809 6.8%
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Assurant, Inc. and Subsidiaries
for the year ended December 31, 2004

Schedule IV—Reinsurance

Assumed from Percentage of
Ceded to other other amount
Gross amount Companies Companies Net amount assumed to net
{in thousands)
Life Insurance in Force ... .. ... $160,553,222 $49,955.772 $5894.874 $116,492,324 5.1%
Premiums:
Life insurance .. ........... 1,512,658 549968 76,212 1.038,902 7.3%
Accident and health
INSUTANCE ...\ v v vrvr et 4,390,340 827,090 187,175 3,750,425 5.0%
Property and liability
insurance ............... 2,462,762 897,116 127,898 1,693,544 7.6%
Total premiums .. .......... $ 8,365,760 5 2274,174 $ 391,285 3% 6,482,871 6.0%
Benefits:
Life insurance ............. 1,625,748 849,979 58,165 833,934 7.0%
Accident and health
INSUrance ... .. ... ... 2,366,835 259,363 156,645 2,264,117 6.9%
Property and liability
INSUMANCE .. .. vv v enn s 1,086,894 442 117 96,941 741,718 i3.1%
Total benefits ............. $ 5079477 § 1.551439 % 311,751 § 3,839.769 8.1%
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Assurant, Inc. and Subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Schedule Y—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Additions
Batance at Charged to  Charged to Balance at
Beginning  Costs and Other End of
of Year Expenses Accounts  Deductions Year
({in thousands)
2006:
Valuation allowance for foreign NOL deferred
tax carryforward ......... oL $ — § 8782 § — $ — $ 8,782
Valuation allowance for mortgage loans on real
BRI . e 19,921 (15,168} — — 4,753
Valuation allowance for uncollectible agents
balances ........... .. ... ..., 17,784 857 (82) 1,848 16,711
Valuation allowance for uncollectible
ACCOUNES oottt ittt et et e eeens 7,550 (128) 84 630 6,876
Total ... $45255 $ (5657 §$§ 2 $2,478  $37,122
2005:
Valuation allowance for mortgage loans on real
ESIAE ...\ttt e $17955 $ 2586 § — $ 620  $i9,921
Valuation allowance for uncollectible agents .
balances ........ ... ... ... .. ... 21,945 (2,063) 1,032 3,130 17,784
Valuation allowance for uncollectible
ACCOUNIS . ittt ittt ittt iaanan 2,873 6,781 918) 1,186 7,550
Total ... ... $42773 % 7304 % 114 $4,936  $45,255
2004:
Valuation allowance for mortgage loans on real
ESTAE L . L., $18854 3 550 §$ — 1,449 §17,955
Valuation allowance for uncollectible agents
balances ......... ... ... . .. 28,449 474 — 6,978 21,945
Valuation allowance for uncollectible
ACCOUNES . vttt ittt et et e 867 2,569 — 563 2,873
Total ... i $48,170 % 3593 § — $8,990  $42,773
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